Washtenaw |S D

A REGIONMAL EDUCATIOMNAL SERVICE AGENCY

March 26, 2024 Regular Board Meeting

A Regular meeting of the Board of Education of Washtenaw Intermediate School District will be held beginning at 5:00 PM at the
WISD Teaching and Learning Center, 1819 S. Wagner Rd. Ann Arbor, MI (734) 994-8100.

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 05:00 PM

1. Call To Order - President Diane Hockett

2. Roll Call - Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the
Superintendent

3. Approval of the Agenda
March 26, 2024 Memo (p. 4)
4. Communications
5. Public Participation
6. Financial Report

A. Financial Report - February 2024
Graphic Financial Report February 2024 (p. 9)

Treasurers Report February 2024 (p. 18)

B. Head Start & Early Head Start Financial Report
Head Start Financial Summary February 2024 (p. 70)

7. Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice Dialogue
8. Consent Agenda

A. Approval: Minutes
March 12, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes (p. 110)

B. Approval: Superintendent's Recommendations

085-23-24 Home Visiting Grant Renewal - SOS Community Services Contract
Agreement

Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal - SOS Community Services Contract Amendment Memo
(p. 114)

Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal - SOS Community Services Contract Amendment (p. 115)

Packet page 1 of 271


https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893969
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893949
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893643
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893642
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893968
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893922
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893923

086-23-24 Internet Access for Internal Communications
Internet Access for Internal Communications Memo (p. 116)

Internet Access for Internal Communications Bid Evaluation (p. 117)
087-23-24 High Point School Turf

High Point Turf Memo (p. 118)

High Point Turf Bid (p. 119)

088-23-24 FY25 SNAP-Ed Grant Application
SNAP-Ed Grant Application FY25 Memo (p. 120)

089-23-24 Ten80 Race Car Challenge Purchase Request Amendment
Ten80 Memo (p. 121)
Ten80 Invoice (p. 122)

090-23-24 University Translators Contract
University Translators Memo (p. 123)

University Translators Contract (p. 124)

9. Unfinished Business

A. Board Policies - Second Read

Policies Memo (p. 128)

PO 1662 - Anti-harassment (p. 129)

PO 3362 - Anti-harassment (p. 148)

PO 4362 - Anti-harassment (p. 167)

PO 5517 - Anti-harassment (p. 186)

PO 1422 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 205)
PO 3122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 217)
PO 4122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 229)

10. Authorization of Closed Session

Closed Session Memo #24-001 (p. 241)
Closed Session Memo #24-002 (p. 242)

11. Recess to Closed Session
12. Reconvene to Open Session
13. New Business

A. Decision Regarding Closed Session Topic

B. Care Solace Contract

Care Solace Memo (p. 243)
Care Solace Agreement (p. 244)

Packet page 2 of 271


https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893646
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893647
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893748
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893749
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893650
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893652
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893651
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893654
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893653
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893696
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893698
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893700
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893702
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893703
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893697
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893699
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893701
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893963
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893964
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893645
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893644

C. Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 127 Plan Document & Grant
Application

IRC Section 127 Plan Memo (p. 265)
IRC Section 127 Plan (p. 266)

D. Student Advocacy Center Contract

Student Advocacy Center Contract Memo (p. 267)
Student Advocacy Center Contract (p. 268)

14. Other Items of Business
15. Board of Education Reports
16. Administrative Reports

A. Superintendent’s Report
17. Recess to Closed Session
18. Reconvene to Open Session

19. Adjournment

Packet page 3 of 271


https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893648
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893649
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893920
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893921

Washtenaw |S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Education
FROM: Naomi Norman, Superintendent
DATE: March 26, 2024
RE: Regular Meeting March 26, 2024
Agenda Item 3: Approval of the Agenda: President Diane Hockett will ask for approval of the
agenda.
Agenda Item 4: Communications: There are no communications at this time.
Agenda Item 5: Public Participation: Members of the public who wish to address the Board may
do so at this time.
Agenda Item 6: Financial Report: Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel will review the financial

report for February 2024 (p. 9) and will be available to answer questions or provide additional
information. Early Childhood Programs Grant Manager LaDawn White will review the February 2024 Head
Start Financial Report (p. 70) and be available to answer questions at Tuesday’s meeting.

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education approve the February 2024 Head Start Financial
Reports, as presented. (Roll Call Vote)

Agenda Item 7: Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice Dialogue: Superintendent Naomi Norman will
facilitate the equity, inclusion, and social justice discussion.

Agenda Item 8: Consent Agenda
A. Approval: Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the March 12, 2024, regular meeting. (p. 110)
B. Approval: Superintendent’s Recommendations:

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the contract amendment with SOS
Community Services to develop the home visiting program for a cost of $2,660.00, as presented:

085-23-24 Home Visiting Grant Renewal — SOS Community Services Contract Amendment: Please

see the memo from Director of Success by 6 Great Start Collaborative, Margy Long. At the July 27, 2023,
Board of Education meeting, the Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal with SOS Community Services
was approved for $40,000.00. Since then, the need for funding has shifted from professional

Packet page 4 of 271



development to home visiting programming, necessitating a $2,660.00 amendment to the original
contract. This brings the contract total to $42,660.00. SOS Community Services will provide the scope of
work as outlined in the original contract. (p. 114)

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the contract with Comcast to provide
internet access for a cost of $84,772.80 plus the cost of any applicable taxes, tariffs, and fees, as
presented:

086-23-24 Internet Access for Internal Communications: Please see the memo from Assistant
Director, Technology & Data Services Matthew Cook. The administration is seeking to enter a three-
year contract with Comcast to provide internet access to out-centers and programs. The bid evaluation
is detailed in the attached bid evaluation sheet. The final cost of $84,772.80 does not account for
applicable taxes, tariffs, and fees. However, the agency will apply to the federal Universal Service Fund
(USF) program for discounts on this expenditure. (p.116)

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve a contract with AstroTurf Great Lakes for
installation of synthetic turf at High Point School for a cost not to exceed $71,500.00, as presented:

087-23-24 High Point School Turf: Please see the memo from Director of Operations Tanner Rowe.
The request for the installation of synthetic turf stems from concerns about a muddy area under the
shade pavilion at High Point School due to high foot traffic and lack of sunlight. AstroTurf Great Lakes
submitted the sole proposal for the project, offering to complete it for $65,000 plus a 10% contingency,
with an estimated total of $71,500.00. After a post-bid interview confirming their capability, it was
determined that they are well-equipped to complete the project by June 2024. Funding will be sourced
from the existing 2019 High Point Bond Construction budget. (p.118)

The Superintendent recommends the Board authorize the administration to apply for the FY25
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) to receive $350,000.00, as presented:

088-23-24 FY25 SNAP-Ed Grant Application: Please see the attached memo from Regional School
Health Coordinator Danielle Dros. The administration is seeking approval to apply to the FY25
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) funding from Michigan Fitness
Foundation. This program would allocate $350,000.00 to pay for 100% of the WISD’s Healthy Habits
Start Now Program Assistant’s salary and benefits, 100% of WISD’s Healthy Habits Start Now Program
Nutrition Outreach Specialist’s salary and benefits, contracted staff time, staff travel, and program
supplies for the period of October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2025. (p. 120)

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the amendment to the Ten80 Car
Challenge Request to meet additional needs of the program for a cost of $15,000.00, as presented:

089-23-24 Ten80 Race Car Challenge Purchase Request Amendment: Please see the memo from
Director of Instruction Jennifer Banks. At the November 28, 2023, Washtenaw ISD Board of Education
meeting, a $50,000 purchase request was approved for materials and curriculums from Ten80
Education to support the implementation of the Ten80 Race Car Challenge. Additional needs have since
been identified, necessitating an amendment to the request by $15,000.00, bringing the new total to
$65,000. Funding will be sourced from the 2023-2024 Region 2 MiSTEM Funds and STEM Support funds.
WISD Math & Science Coordinator, Heather Holshoe, has been working with eleven students at

Packet page 5 of 271



Ypsilanti Community Schools, preparing them for participation in the National Society of Black
Engineers (NSBE) Annual Convention, where they will race their Ten80 vehicles. Heather will collaborate
with Ten80 Education to review race components, undergo training for car maintenance, and oversee
the purchase of a repair parts kit for vehicle upkeep. Ten80 Education is committed to fostering a STEM
ecosystem that encourages innovation and entrepreneurial thinking among students. (p. 121)

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the contract with University Translators for
translation services through the remainder of the 2023-24 program year for a cost of $67,997.00, as
presented:

090-23-24 University Translators Contract: Please see the memo from Executive Director for Early
Childhood Edward Manuszak. WISD’s Early Childhood programs frequently require translation
assistance for effective communication between staff and the families we serve. While we currently
contract with Propio Language Services for remote translation, University Translators offers on-site
services, which better meet our department's needs. The proposed contract, totaling $67,997.00, will
be funded through grant accounts within the Early Childhood Department. This partnership will enable
WISD to seamlessly serve non-native English-speaking families in both regular programming and family
events, eliminating communication barriers. (p. 123)

Recommendation: The Superintendent recommends that the Board of Education approve the minutes
and Superintendent’s recommendations in the Consent Agenda, as presented. (Roll Call Vote)

Agenda Item 9: Unfinished Business:
A. Board Policies — Second Read: The Board will hear the second reading of the following policy
revisions:

o #1662 — Harassment (p. 129)
#3362 — Harassment (p. 148)
#4362 — Harassment (p. 167)
#5517 — Harassment (p. 186)
#1422 — Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 205)
#3122 — Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 217)
#4122 — Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 229)

O O O 0O O O

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education approve policies #1662 — Harassment, #3362 —
Harassment, #4362 — Harassment, #5517 — Harassment, #1422 — Nondiscrimination & Equal
Employment Opportunity, #3122 — Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity, #4122 -
Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity, as presented. (Roll Call Vote)

Agenda Item 10: Authorization of Closed Session: The Board of Education has requested a closed
session under Sections 8(a) and 8(f) of the Open Meetings Act for the purpose of a discussion regarding
individuals who have requested the session be closed, and to conduct the Superintendent’s quarterly
evaluation. (p. 241, 242)

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education authorize a closed session under Sections 8(a)
and 8(f) of the Open Meetings Act for the purpose of a discussion regarding individuals who have
requested the session be closed, and to conduct the Superintendent’s quarterly evaluation.

Packet page 6 of 271



Agenda Item 11: Recess to Closed Session: Under Section 8(a) and 8(f) of the Open Meetings Act for
the purpose of a discussion regarding individuals who have requested the session be closed.

Agenda Iltem 12: Reconvene to Open Session
Agenda Iltem 13: New Business:
A. Decision Regarding Closed Session Topic: The Board will make a decision pertaining to the

information they receive from the Closed Session.

Recommendation: (Roll Call Vote)

B. Care Solace Contract: Please see the memo from Project Manager Shannon Novara. Care Solace,
Inc. provides mental health care coordination and referral services for each participating district,
matching families with providers based on their preferences, including insurance, location, and specialty.
The contract will be in effect from April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, for a cost of $162,233.00, funded
through Section 31aa funds. (p. 243)

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education authorize the administration to approve a
contract with Care Solace, Inc. to provide mental health care coordination and referral services for a
cost not to exceed $77,583.00. (Roll Call Vote)

C. Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 127 Plan Document & Grant Application Request: Please
see the memo from Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel. The Michigan Legislature recently added a
provision under Section 27k for a student loan repayment program to increase teacher retention. The
Section 27k plan will reimburse WISD staff that work directly with pre-K to grade 12 students for 32 hours
or more per week, up to $200.00 per month. Legal counsel’s recommendation is to have an IRC Section
127 in place so WISD can offer their employees up to $5,250.00 annually in tax-free education assistance
for undergraduate or graduate level courses. (p. 265)

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education establish an IRC Section 127 plan and authorize
the administration to apply for Section 27k grant on behalf of WISD’s eligible staff. (Roll Call Vote)

D. Student Advocacy Center Contract: Please see the memo from Superintendent Naomi Norman.
State funding from the 2023-24 supplemental budget has been allocated to extend the reach of the
Student Advocacy Center helpline, a long-standing resource in Washtenaw County, to other counties
across Michigan. This initiative, facilitated by WISD as the flow-through organization, aims to broaden
access to critical support services for families statewide. Senator Jeff Irwin facilitated the allocation
process, emphasizing the importance of the helpline's contributions to communities. (p. 267)

Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education authorize the administration to contract with
Student Advocacy Center to maintain a statewide helpline for families in educational crisis for a cost
not to exceed $100,000.00.

Agenda Item 14: Other Items of Business:

Packet page 7 of 271



Agenda Item 15: Board of Education Reports:

Agenda Item 16: Administrative Reports:
A. Superintendent’s Report: Superintendent Norman will address the Board.
Agenda Item 17: Recess to Closed Session: Under Section 8(a) for the purpose of conducting the

Superintendent’s quarterly evaluation.

Agenda Item 18: Reconvene to Open Session

Agenda Item 19: Adjournment

Packet page 8 of 271



11 General Fund| 22 Special Education Fund

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024

Month-End Balances
June July August September October November December January February March April May June
$90 !
(2]
c
2 : $82,304,855
= $30 $77,922,272 $78,239,722 $78,140,532
T $73,221,492 $73,451,534
$76,888,965" = o . & )
V D R - o ==L $68,426,941
$70 /il SO 679 100,436 N7
S
gl $69,536,925 S~ i $62,477,470 $61,911,079
59,018,438 7 S - - D= '
$60 $ - M e T $63,021,073 S oty =
&/ o= Sege=="" $60965790
: $57,912,278 : N
$55,478,856 $56,820,493 \\
$50 'y ~
N\
/ $44.721.731 $45,799,530
$40 et
\\
\\
30 »
$ N \
\ $21,927,370
$20 \\ D
$11,260,629 \
\t.l
$10 $11,260,629
$9,488,755
$0
1
=== Current Year / Projected === Prior Year
Powered By:
FORECASTS
©2016 Forecastb Analytics, Inc.

ANALYTICS

Packet page 9 of 271



11 General Fund | 22 Special Education Fund
For the Period Ending February 28, 2024

Projected Year End Balance Actual YTD Revenues Actual YTD Local Source Actual YTD State Sources
as % of Budgeted Revenues

68.32%
76.87%
94.11%
Projected YTD Revenues Projected YTD Local Sources Projected YTD State Sources
74.92% 90.11% 67.88%

Revenue Analysis

General Fund | Top 10 Revenues by Source YTD
Revenue by Source | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD

Early Childhood State Aid $8,684,203 mPrior YTD  mCurrent YTD
Restricted State Revenues Received As Grants $5,569,386
Property Tax Levy $2,122,512 g $1200
Adult Education Participants $2,040,361 é
Lawmasc State Aid $1,252,379 $100.0
Restricted Revenues Received Through Non-Educational Entity $1,119,731
Compensation Rec'D In Pmt Of Srvc Prvided To Other Public School $1,018,722 $80.0
Restricted Received Directly From Federal Government $934,355
State Aid $834,381 $60.0
Other Distributions Received From Other Public Schools $619,241
$40.0
Percent of Total Revenues Year-to-Date 91.77%
$20.0
$0.0
] LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS & FUND
Revenues by Fund | Budget / Projected YTD / Current OTHER MODIFICATIONS
YTD
mBudget ®Projected YTD ®Current YTD
., $160.0 .
5 Revenue by Source | Projected YTD vs. Current YTD
= $1400 B Projected YTD ®Current YTD
$120.0 2 $120.0
9
$100.0 = $1000
$80.0 $80.0
$60.0 $60.0
$40.0 $40.0
$20.0 $20.0
$0.0 $0.0
11 GENERALFUND 22 SPECIAL EDUCATION 25FOOD SERVICEFUND 27 COOPERATIVE '
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS & FUND
FUND ACTIVITIES FUND OTHER MODIFICATIONS
Powered By:
FORECASTS
©2016 Forecastb5 Analytics, Inc.

ANALYTICS

Packet page 10 of 271



11 General Fund | 22 Special Education Fund
For the Period Ending February 28, 2024

Projected Year End Balances Actual YTD Expenditures Actual YTD Salaries/Benefits Actual YTD Purchased Services

as % of Budgeted Expenditures
44.03% 37.96%

50.03%
11.14%‘ A A A
Projected YTD Expenditures Projected YTD Salaries/Benefits Projected YTD Purchased Services
49.14% 55.33% 55.43%

Expenditure Analysis

General Fund | Top 10 Expenditures by Program YTD _ ] _
Expenditures by Object | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD

Pmts To Other Mich Publ Schools $2,619,578 m Prior YTD m Current YTD
Improvement Of Instruction $2,324,543 $50.0
Non-Instr Technology Services $1,541,844 %’ '
Supervisiondirection Of Instr Staff $1,374,548 g $45.0
Custody And Care Of Children $771,628 $40.0
Community Activities $639,932 $35.0
Pmts To Other Govt Entities $446,275 $30.0
Executive Administration $438,175 6250
Operating Buildings Services $359,871 '
Planning, Research And Evaluation $292,861 $200
$15.0
Percent of Total Expenditures Year-to-Date 79.54% $10.0
$5.0
$0.0
SALARIES EMP. PURCH. OTHER SUPPLIES  CAPITAL OTHER EXP. TRANSFERS
Expenditures by Fund | Budget/ Projected YTD / Current BENEFITS - SERV. - PURCH OUTLAY
YTD
B Budget m®mProjected YTD m®mCurrent YTD
160.0 . . .
2 ’ Expenditures by Object | Projected YTD vs. Current YTD
E $140.0
mProjected YTD  mCurrent YTD
, $60.0
$120.0 5
5 $50.0
$100.0
$80.0 $400
$40.0 $20.0
$20.0 $10.0
$0.0 $0.0 m—
11 GENERAL FUND 22 SPECIAL EDUCATION 25 FOOD SERVICE FUND 27 COOPERATIVE SALARIES EMP. PURCH. OTHER  SUPPLIES  CAPITAL OTHER EXP. TRANSFERS
FUND ACTIVITIES FUND BENEFITS SERV. PURCH. OUTLAY
SERV.
Powered By:
FORECASTS
ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecastb Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 11 of 271



General Fund | Financial Summary

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024
YTD % of PY YTD % of
Prior YTD Prior Year Total Total Current YTD Annual Budget Budget
REVENUES
Local $2,732,569 $2,749,731 99.38% $3,309,844 $3,589,805 92.20%
State 12,137,984 15,138,019 80.18% 18,616,826 23,977,111 77.64%
Federal 1,980,800 8,130,700 24.36% 1,681,268 8,368,262 20.09%
Transfers & Other 1,351,306 2,430,882 55.59% 2,757,694 8,914,609 30.93%
Fund Modifications 0 54,175 0.00% 0 54,870 0.00%
TOTAL REVENUE $18,202,660 $28,503,507 63.86% $26,365,632 $44,904,657 58.71%
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $3,605,075 $5,773,523 62.44% $4,402,909 $9,495,806 46.37%
Employee Benefits 2,535,171 4,291,831 59.07% 3,099,358 6,744,625 45.95%
Purchased Services 1,864,533 3,699,470 50.40% 1,663,475 5,662,907 29.37%
Other Purchased Services 450,232 547,043 82.30% 323,920 650,214 49.82%
Supplies & Materials 261,829 591,213 44.29% 168,921 679,799 24.85%
Capital Outlay 52,784 114,161 46.24% 41,860 345,024 12.13%
Other Expenditures 119,544 151,435 78.94% 447,566 2,342,523 19.11%
Transfers & Other 2,499,434 13,474,045 18.55% 3,442,499 18,967,899 18.15%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $11,388,602 $28,642,722 39.76% $13,590,507 $44,888,797 30.28%
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $6,814,058 ($139,215) $12,775,124 $15,860
ENDING FUND BALANCE $5,085,250 $5,101,110
Revenues by Source | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD Expenditures by Object: Prior YTD vs. Current YTD
B Prior YTD E Current YTD B Prior YTD ECurrent YTD
2 $20.0 . $5.0
2 $18.0 S $4.5
E —
$16.0 = $4.0
$14.0 $3.5
$3.0
$12.0
$2.5
$10.0 620
$8.0 $1 .5
$6.0 $1.0
$4.0 $0.5
$2.0 $0.0
’ SALARIEMP. BENEFURBCHOSHRER PURCH. SEIRPLIESPITAL OUTOAMER EXAFRANSFERS
$0.0
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND
MODIFICATIONS
Powered By:
FORECASTS
ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecast5 Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 12 of 271



General Fund | Financial Forecast

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024

ANALYTICS

Variance
Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget Over / (Under)
REVENUES
Local $2,732,569 $3,309,844 $355,736 $3,665,581 $3,589,805 $75,776
State 12,137,984 18,616,826 3,154,743 21,771,569 23,977,111 (2,205,542)
Federal 1,980,800 1,681,268 6,183,130 7,864,397 8,368,262 (503,865)
Transfers & Other 1,351,306 2,757,694 3,523,774 6,281,467 8,914,609 (2,633,142)
Fund Modifications 0 0 54,870 54,870 54,870 0
TOTAL REVENUE $18,202,660 $26,365,632 $13,272,253 $39,637,884 $44,904,657 ($5,266,773)
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $3,605,075 $4,402,909 $3,546,956 $7,949,865 $9,495,806 ($1,545,941)
Employee Benefits 2,535,171 3,099,358 2,644,846 5,744,204 6,744,625 (1,000,421)
Purchased Services 1,864,533 1,663,475 2,786,601 4,450,076 5,662,907 (1,212,831)
Other Purchased Services 450,232 323,920 199,565 523,485 650,214 (126,729)
Supplies & Materials 261,829 168,921 361,952 530,873 679,799 (148,926)
Capital Outlay 52,784 41,860 188,717 230,577 345,024 (114,447)
Other Expenditures 119,544 447 566 310,704 758,270 2,342,523 (1,584,253)
Transfers & Other 2,499,434 3,442,499 14,044,215 17,486,714 18,967,899 (1,481,185)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $11,388,602 $13,590,507 $24,083,558 $37,674,065 $44,888,797 ($7,214,732)
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $6,814,058 $12,775,124 ($10,811,305) $1,963,819 $15,860
ENDING FUND BALANCE $7,049,069 $5,101,110 $1,947,959
Expenditures by Object | Forecast vs. Budget
Revenues by Source | Forecast vs. Budget P y b | 9
B Forecast B Budget
B Forecast B Budget ® $20.0
£ $18.0
» $30.0 =
15 $16.0
= $25.0 $14.0
$20.0
$15.0
$10.0
$5.0
$0.0
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND
MODIFICATIONS
Powered By:
FORECASTS

©2016 Forecast5 Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 13 of 271



Special Education Fund | Financial Summary

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024
YTD % of PY YTD % of
Prior YTD Prior Year Total Total Current YTD Annual Budget Budget
REVENUES
Local $95,243,534 $105,815,425 90.01% $105,560,253 $112,097,899 94.17%
State 8,984,789 21,742,006 41.32% 11,767,714 20,496,448 57.41%
Federal 3,572,296 13,422,490 26.61% 5,025,013 15,441,592 32.54%
Transfers & Other 138,020 279,927 49.31% 130,287 411,604 31.65%
Fund Modifications 0 284,419 0.00% 0 288,059 0.00%
TOTAL REVENUE $107,938,639 $141,544,267 76.26% $122,483,267 $148,735,602 82.35%
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $12,177,390 $21,968,191 55.43% $14,347,970 $27,717,555 51.76%
Employee Benefits 8,363,696 17,151,343 48.76% 10,033,494 19,768,652 50.75%
Purchased Services 3,394,979 6,283,676 54.03% 2,696,238 6,443,064 41.85%
Other Purchased Services 728,563 1,279,908 56.92% 689,565 1,398,203 49.32%
Supplies & Materials 398,952 698,318 57.13% 422,688 1,079,924 39.14%
Capital Outlay 172,499 325,835 52.94% 267,068 694,758 38.44%
Other Expenditures 908,876 1,211,616 75.01% 906,382 1,525,458 59.42%
Transfers & Other 41,276,005 90,714,292 45.50% 43,704,082 93,283,347 46.85%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $67,420,959 $139,633,178 48.28% $73,067,486 $151,910,961 48.10%
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $40,517,680 $1,911,089 $49,415,781 ($3,175,359)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $6,175,379 $3,000,020
Revenues by Source | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD Expenditures by Object | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD
m Prior YTD m Current YTD mPrior YTD ~ ®Current YTD
,, $120.0 . $50.0
15 2 $45.0
Z $100.0 = $40.0
$35.0
$80.0 $30.0
$25.0
$60.0 $20.0
$15.0
$40.0 $10.0
$5.0
$20.0 $0.0
SALARIES/IP. BENHFURSCHOSHER. PURCH. SERRPLIESPITAL OUTOAMER EXPRANSFERS
$0.0
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND
MODIFICATIONS
Powered By:
FORECASTS
ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecast5 Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 14 of 271



Special Education Fund | Financial Forecast

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024
Variance
Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget Over / (Under)
REVENUES
Local $95,243,534 $105,560,253 $11,085,397 $116,645,650 $112,097,899 $4,547,751
State 8,984,789 11,767,714 11,128,440 22,896,154 20,496,448 2,399,706
Federal 3,572,296 5,025,013 12,542,055 17,567,069 15,441,592 2,125477
Transfers & Other 138,020 130,287 251,685 381,972 411,604 (29,632)
Fund Modifications 0 0 288,059 288,059 288,059 0
TOTAL REVENUE $107,938,639 $122,483,267 $35,295,636 $157,778,903 $148,735,602 $9,043,301
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $12,177,390 $14,347,970 $12,576,713 $26,924,683 $27,717,555 ($792,872)
Employee Benefits 8,363,696 10,033,494 9,697,593 19,731,087 19,768,652 (37,565)
Purchased Services 3,394,979 2,696,238 2,817,880 5,514,118 6,443,064 (928,946)
Other Purchased Services 728,563 689,565 504,178 1,193,743 1,398,203 (204,460)
Supplies & Materials 398,952 422,688 438,265 860,952 1,079,924 (218,972)
Capital Outlay 172,499 267,068 275,028 542,096 694,758 (152,662)
Other Expenditures 908,876 906,382 832,212 1,738,594 1,525,458 213,136
Transfers & Other 41,276,005 43,704,082 48,866,626 92,570,708 93,283,347 (712,639)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $67,420,959 $73,067,486 $76,008,495 $149,075,982 $151,910,961 ($2,834,979)
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $40,517,680 $49,415,781 ($40,712,859) $8,702,922 ($3,175,359)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $14,878,301 $3,000,020 $11,878,281
Revenues by Source | Forecast vs. Budget Expenditures by Object | Forecast vs. Budget
B Forecast B Budget
B Forecast B Budget
$100.0
» $140.0 @
S 2 $90.0
E $120.0 = $80.0
$70.0
$100.0
$60.0
$80.0 $50.0
$40.0
60.0
$ $30.0
$40.0 $20.0
$10.0
$20.0 $0.0
) ~ Q- )
$0.0 R > & K
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND o R 0/8‘ &5
MODIFICATIONS )
R
Powered By:
FORECASTS
ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecastb Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 15 of 271



Cooperative Activities Fund | Financial Summary

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024

YTD % of PY YTD % of
Prior YTD Prior Year Total Total Current YTD Annual Budget Budget
REVENUES
Local $4,518,430 $8,236,684 54.86% $5,195,536 $8,596,708 60.44%
State 598,679 2,136,600 28.02% 825,422 1,042,364 79.19%
Federal 232,261 204,444 113.61% 230,064 300,000 76.69%
Transfers & Other 9,827,764 15,529,262 63.29% 11,300,693 16,642,292 67.90%
Fund Modifications 0 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE $15,177,135 $26,106,989 58.13% $17,551,714 $26,581,364 66.03%
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $4,197,316 $7,471,401 56.18% $4,117,553 $7,467,393 55.14%
Employee Benefits 2,899,741 5,978,659 48.50% 2,932,632 5,426,405 54.04%
Purchased Services 1,310,444 2,190,593 59.82% 1,049,709 2,425,523 43.28%
Other Purchased Services 536,565 995,319 53.91% 763,577 753,421 101.35%
Supplies & Materials 241,940 370,718 65.26% 63,440 366,073 17.33%
Capital Outlay 62,243 67,739 91.89% 13,507 91,015 14.84%
Other Expenditures 502,894 547,314 91.88% 536,246 916,059 58.54%
Transfers & Other 4,858,937 7,489,602 64.88% 2,436,221 9,316,482 26.15%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $14,610,079 $25,111,345 58.18% $11,912,884 $26,762,371 44.51%
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $567,055 $995,643 $5,638,831 ($181,007)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $22,814,033 $22,633,026

Revenues by Source | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD Expenditures by Object | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD
B Prior YTD B Current YTD EPrior YTD E Current YTD
$12.0 o $6-0
2 5
) 2
= s $5.0
= $10.0 =
$4.0
$8.0
$3.0
$6.0
$2.0
$4.0
$1.0
2.0
® $0.0
SALARIE3/P. BENHFURRCHO$SHER. PURCH. SERRPLIESPITAL OUTOAMER EXPRANSFERS
$0.0
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND
MODIFICATIONS
Powered By:
FORECASTS

ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecast5 Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 16 of 271



Cooperative Activities Fund | Financial Forecast

For the Period Ending February 28, 2024
Variance
Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget Over / (Under)
REVENUES
Local $4,518,430 $5,195,536 $3,814,632 $9,010,167 $8,596,708 $413,459
State 598,679 825,422 573,612 1,399,034 1,042,364 356,670
Federal 232,261 230,064 114,584 344,648 300,000 44,648
Transfers & Other 9,827,764 11,300,693 5,884,094 17,184,786 16,642,292 542,494
Fund Modifications 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE $15,177,135 $17,551,714 $10,386,921 $27,938,635 $26,581,364 $1,357,271
EXPENDITURES
Salaries $4,197,316 $4,117,553 $3,199,176 $7,316,728 $7,467,393 ($150,665)
Employee Benefits 2,899,741 2,932,632 2,540,115 5,472,747 5,426,405 46,342
Purchased Services 1,310,444 1,049,709 1,554,126 2,603,836 2,425,523 178,313
Other Purchased Services 536,565 763,577 187,265 950,842 753,421 197,421
Supplies & Materials 241,940 63,440 160,222 223,661 366,073 (142,412)
Capital Outlay 62,243 13,507 54,212 67,719 91,015 (23,296)
Other Expenditures 502,894 536,246 471,293 1,007,539 916,059 91,480
Transfers & Other 4,858,937 2,436,221 6,029,399 8,465,620 9,316,482 (850,862)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $14,610,079 $11,912,884 $14,195,809 $26,108,692 $26,762,371 ($653,679)
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $567,055 $5,638,831 ($3,808,888) $1,829,943 ($181,007)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $24,643,976 $22,633,026 $2,010,950
Revenues by Source | Forecast vs. Budget Expenditures by Object | Forecast vs. Budget
B Forecast B Budget B Forecast mBudget
» $20.0 $10.0
5 2
2 $18.0 S $9.0
E —
$16.0 = $8.0
$14.0 $7.0
$6.0
$12.0
$5.0
$10.0 $4.0
$8.0 $3.0
$6.0 $2.0
$4.0 $1.0
$0.0
$2.0 <
&
$0.0 @)
LOCAL STATE FEDERAL TRANSFERS FUND <\‘>\’
MODIFICATIONS N
¢
Powered By:
FORECASTS
ANALYTICS ©2016 Forecast5 Analytics, Inc.

Packet page 17 of 271



Fund 11-General Fund

Fund 11-General Fund Totals

Fund 11- General Fund

Expense Totals

Fund 11-General Fund Totals

3/18/2024 9:24 AM

110 - Taxes Levied

120 - Appropriations Received from Local Units of Gov't

150 - Earnings on Investments and Deposits

180 - Revenue from Community Service Activities

190 - Other Local Revenue

210 - Revenue from Non-Educational Activities
310 - Grants In Aid

320 - State Payments in Lieu of Taxes

410 - Grant-In-Aid

510 - Payments Received from Other Public Schools Within the State

620 - Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds

110 - Basic Functions

120 - Added Needs

130 - Adult/Continuing Education

210 - Support Services Pupil

220 - Support Services Instructional Staff
230 - Support Services General Administration
240 - Support Service School Administration
250 - Support Services Business

260 - Operations and Maintenance

270 - Pupil Transportation Services

280 - Support Services Central

290 - Support Services Other

310 - Community Services Direction

330 - Community Activities

350 - Custody and Care of Children

360 - Welfare Activities

390 - Other Community Services

410 - Payments to Other Public Schools Within Michigan
440 - Payments to Other Governmental and Not-For-Profit Entities
450 - Facilities Acquisition, Construction, and Improvements

500 - Debt Service Long Term Only
600 - Fund Modifications

Budget Performance Report

General Education
Summary Budget Report
As of 2/29/24

Actual &
Amended Budget ~ Current Month Actual Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances Budget-Actual % Used/Rec'd
$1,967,579.00 $275,388.78 $1,864,275.11 $0.00 $1,864,275.11 $103,303.89 94.75%
$2,421.00 $387.56 $1,996.02 $0.00 $1,996.02 $424.98 82.45%
$570,000.00 $69,819.31 $414,679.32 $0.00 $414,679.32 $155,320.68 72.75%
$342,262.00 $2,026.72 $275,038.05 $0.00 $275,038.05 $67,223.95 80.36%
$707,543.00 $46,819.43 $526,424.70 $0.00 $526,424.70 $181,118.30 74.40%
$4,322,811.00 $279,925.00  $1,119,730.66 $0.00  $1,119,730.66  $3,203,080.34 25.90%
$23,958,756.00 $2,672,545.81  $18,546,155.12 $0.00 $18,546,155.12 $5,412,600.88 77.41%
$18,355.00 $217.68 $18,572.27 $0.00 $18,572.27 ($217.27) 101.18%
$8,368,262.00 ($199,052.52)  $1,703,283.08 $0.00 $1,703,283.08 $6,664,978.92 20.35%
$4,591,798.00 $206,492.74  $1,624,724.14 $0.00  $1,624,724.14  $2,967,073.86 35.38%
$54,870.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,870.00 0.00%
$44,904,657.00 $3,354,570.51  $26,094,878.47 $0.00 $26,094,878.47 $18,809,778.53 58.11%
Actual &
Amended Budget  Current Month Actual Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances Budget-Actual % Used/Rec'd

$1,874,911.00 $2,480.00 $231,782.00 $0.00 $231,782.00  $1,643,129.00 12.36%
$14,371.00 $1,177.83 $6,145.74 $0.00 $6,145.74 $8,225.26 42.76%
$450,645.00 $166,509.22 $222,970.97 $0.00 $222,970.97 $227,674.03 49.48%
$5,749,053.00 $214,008.97 $854,467.85 $102,830.56 $957,298.41 $4,791,754.59 16.65%
$8,491,783.00 $289,933.59  $3,951,357.88 $360,485.56  $4,311,843.44  $4,179,939.56 50.78%
$835,012.00 $61,843.51 $513,746.84 $11,790.88 $525,537.72 $309,474.28 62.94%
$94,069.00 $95,152.75 $95,975.22 $0.00 $95,975.22 ($1,906.22) 102.03%
$443,850.00 $38,433.98 $215,405.44 $525.24 $215,930.68 $227,919.32 48.65%
$620,836.00 $71,651.55 $360,419.29 $63,829.17 $424,248.46 $196,587.54 68.34%
$126,568.00 $3,801.11 $44,638.16 $380.00 $45,018.16 $81,549.84 35.57%
$4,329,905.00 $261,847.50  $2,322,314.70 $93,854.61  $2,416,169.31  $1,913,735.69 55.80%
$130,453.00 $10,918.06 $87,498.30 $0.00 $87,498.30 $42,954.70 67.07%
$725,471.00 $101,635.84 $280,024.20 $43,231.75 $323,255.95 $402,215.05 44.56%
$2,569,751.00 $33,184.55 $639,987.72 $1,001.31 $640,989.03  $1,928,761.97 24.94%
$1,198,700.00 $126,889.66 $785,434.91 $15,001.30 $800,436.21 $398,263.79 66.78%
$90,000.00 $7,533.00 $7,929.90 $0.00 $7,929.90 $82,070.10 8.81%
$42,681.00 $57.23 $2,981.80 $74.00 $3,055.80 $39,625.20 7.16%
$15,140,978.00 $895,454.33  $2,619,578.07  $10,740,007.15 $13,359,585.22  $1,781,392.78 88.23%
$1,953,710.00 $139,132.17 $599,195.47 $853,546.49  $1,452,741.96 $500,968.04 74.36%
$6,050.00 $1,521.49 $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $3,300.00 45.45%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
$44,888,797.00 $2,523,166.34  $13,844,604.46  $12,286,558.02 $26,131,162.48 $18,757,634.52 58.21%

$15,860.00 $831,404.17  $12,250,274.01  ($12,286,558.02) ($36,284.01) $52,144.01

PageNum: 1

Packet page 18 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

General Fund Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category General Fund
Fund Type
Fund 11 - General Fund
Revenue from Local Sources
Taxes Levied 1,967,579.00 275,388.78 1,864,275.11 .00 103,303.89 95
Appropriations Received from Local Units of Gov't 2,421.00 387.56 1,996.02 .00 424.98 82
Earnings on Investments and Deposits 570,000.00 69,819.31 414,679.32 .00 155,320.68 73
Revenue from Community Service Activities 342,262.00 2,026.72 275,038.05 .00 67,223.95 80
Other Local Revenue 711,543.00 46,819.43 526,424.70 .00 185,118.30 74
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $3,593,805.00 $394,441.80 $3,082,413.20 $0.00 $511,391.80 86%
Revenues from a Non-Educational Entity or Political Subdivision 4,322,811.00 279,925.00 1,119,730.66 .00 3,203,080.34 26
Revenue from State Sources
Grants In Aid 24,192,828.00 2,672,545.81 18,546,155.12 .00 5,646,672.88 77
State Payments in Lieu of Taxes 18,355.00 217.68 18,572.27 .00 (217.27) 101
Revenue from State Sources Totals $24,211,183.00 $2,672,763.49 $18,564,727.39 $0.00 $5,646,455.61 77%
Revenues from Federal Sources
Grant-In-Aid 8,714,002.00 (199,052.52) 1,703,283.08 .00 7,010,718.92 20
Revenues from Federal Sources Totals $8,714,002.00 ($199,052.52) $1,703,283.08 $0.00 $7,010,718.92 20%
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions
Payments Received from Other Public Schools Within the State 4,659,028.00 206,492.74 1,624,724.14 .00 3,034,303.86 35
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions Totals $4,659,028.00 $206,492.74 $1,624,724.14 $0.00 $3,034,303.86 35%
Fund Modifications
Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds 54,870.00 .00 .00 .00 54,870.00 0
Fund Modifications Totals $54,870.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,870.00 0%
Salaries
Administration 3,200,219.00 209,696.19 1,748,949.14 .00 1,451,269.86 55
Professional Educational 1,980,450.00 53,091.11 942,596.73 .00 1,037,853.27 48
Professional Business 232,991.00 23,281.05 130,464.28 .00 102,526.72 56
Professional Other 2,100,104.00 99,354.50 298,903.63 .00 1,801,200.37 14
Technical 1,540,400.00 165,077.78 957,688.17 .00 582,711.83 62
Operation and Service 557,548.00 58,583.85 341,422.00 .00 216,126.00 61
Special Salary Payments 11,595.00 924.20 (34,376.47) .00 45,971.47 (296)
Overtime Salaries and Extension of Contract 37,856.00 1,763.93 16,833.57 .00 21,022.43 44
Salaries Totals $9,661,163.00 $611,772.61 $4,402,481.05 $0.00 $5,258,681.95 46%
Employee Benefits
Employee Insurance 1,658,525.00 87,845.69 648,175.94 .00 1,010,349.06 39
Mandatory Coverage 5,070,099.00 337,710.95 2,393,788.42 .00 2,676,310.58 47
Workers Compensation 33,075.00 (2,394.42) 17,459.34 .00 15,615.66 53
Other Employee Benefits 66,337.00 6,595.96 39,934.60 .00 26,402.40 60
Employee Benefits Totals $6,828,036.00 $429,758.18 $3,099,358.30 $0.00 $3,728,677.70 45%

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:50:23 AM

Packet page 19 of 271

Page 1 of 3



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

General Fund Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category General Fund
Fund Type
Fund 11 - General Fund
Purchased Services
Professional and Technical Services 4,576,432.00 312,279.67 1,396,079.85 545,026.72 2,635,325.43 42
Travel Workshops Staff 389,973.00 14,300.71 111,707.13 2,800.00 275,465.87 29
Client Pupil Transportation 19,285.00 .00 8,402.00 380.00 10,503.00 46
Communication 366,656.00 7,050.65 142,696.01 601.64 223,358.35 39
Advertisement 7,895.00 .00 373.14 750.00 6,771.86 14
Printing and Binding 139,235.00 6,309.13 39,697.15 6,310.09 93,227.76 33
Tuition 326,148.00 258.00 57,197.09 .00 268,950.91 18
Utility Service 44,571.00 516.10 7,295.40 1,326.87 35,948.73 19
Insurance and Bond Premiums 31,392.00 (41.58) 38,020.81 .00 (6,628.81) 121
Repairs and Maintenance Services 527,101.00 40,616.34 309,495.41 32,896.37 184,709.22 65
Rentals 20,589.00 515.79 6,548.86 2,739.98 11,300.16 45
Other Purchased Services 102,524.00 7,533.00 19,574.18 .00 82,949.82 19
Purchased Services Totals $6,551,801.00 $389,337.81 $2,137,087.03 $592,831.67 $3,821,882.30 42%
Supplies and Materials
Teaching Testing Supplies and Materials 37,900.00 552.72 9,829.94 987.40 27,082.66 29
Periodicals 7,316.00 .00 904.24 .00 6,411.76 12
Energy Supplies 87,200.00 7,935.71 49,436.87 13,972.48 23,790.65 73
Transportation Supplies 2,000.00 10.58 194.82 .00 1,805.18 10
Other Supplies 535,851.00 17,301.72 200,955.52 19,781.87 315,113.61 41
Supplies and Materials Totals $670,267.00 $25,800.73 $261,321.39 $34,741.75 $374,203.86 44%
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 2,750.00 1,521.49 2,750.00 .00 .00 100
Improvements Other Than Buildings 3,300.00 .00 .00 .00 3,300.00 0
Equipment and Furniture 341,304.00 12,012.73 40,391.83 65,430.96 235,481.21 31
Capital Outlay Totals $347,354.00 $13,534.22 $43,141.83 $65,430.96 $238,781.21 31%
Other Expenditures
Dues and Fees 150,526.00 15,668.99 92,778.34 .00 57,747.66 62
Claims and Judgments 501.00 .00 3.42 .00 497.58 1
Taxes Abated and Written Off 5,000.00 22.31 859.54 .00 4,140.46 17
Miscellaneous Expenditures 2,186,496.00 204.99 358,440.02 .00 1,828,055.98 16
Other Expenditures Totals $2,342,523.00 $15,896.29 $452,081.32 $0.00 $1,890,441.68 19%
Outgoing Transfers and Other Transactions
Payments to Other Public School Districts 10,916,910.00 518,573.02 1,441,213.00 7,785,753.96 1,689,943.04 85
Sub-Grantee Disbursements 8,213,138.00 518,493.48 2,007,920.54 3,807,799.68 2,397,417.78 71
Indirect Cost Recovery and Program Changes 160.00 .00 .00 .00 160.00 0
Outgoing Transfers and Other Transactions Totals $19,130,208.00 $1,037,066.50 $3,449,133.54 $11,593,553.64 $4,087,520.82 79%

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:50:23 AM

Page 2 of 3
Packet page 20 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

General Fund Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category General Fund
Fund Type
Fund 11 - General Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 45,555,699.00 3,354,570.51 26,094,878.47 .00 19,460,820.53 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 45,531,352.00 2,523,166.34 13,844,604.46 12,286,558.02 19,400,189.52 57%
Fund 11 - General Fund Net Gain (Loss) $24,347.00 $831,404.17 $12,250,274.01  ($12,286,558.02) ($60,631.01) (149%)
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 45,555,699.00 3,354,570.51 26,094,878.47 .00 19,460,820.53 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 45,531,352.00 2,523,166.34 13,844,604.46 12,286,558.02 19,400,189.52 57%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) $24,347.00 $831,404.17 $12,250,274.01  ($12,286,558.02) ($60,631.01) (149%)
Fund Category General Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 45,555,699.00 3,354,570.51 26,094,878.47 .00 19,460,820.53 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 45,531,352.00 2,523,166.34 13,844,604.46 12,286,558.02 19,400,189.52 57%
Fund Category General Fund Net Gain (Loss) $24,347.00 $831,404.17 $12,250,274.01  ($12,286,558.02) ($60,631.01) (149%)
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 45,555,699.00 3,354,570.51 26,094,878.47 .00 19,460,820.53 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 45,531,352.00 2,523,166.34 13,844,604.46 12,286,558.02 19,400,189.52 57%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) $24,347.00 $831,404.17 $12,250,274.01  ($12,286,558.02) ($60,631.01) (149%)

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:50:23 AM

Page 3 of 3
Packet page 21 of 271



Fund 22 - Special Education

Fund 22 - Special Education Totals

Fund 22 - Special Education

Expense Totals

Fund 22 - Special Education Totals

3/18/2024 9:27 AM

110 - Taxes Levied

120 - Appropriations Received from Local Units of Gov't

130 - Tuition
150 - Earnings on Investments and Deposits

180 - Revenue from Community Service Activities

190 - Other Local Revenue

310 - Grants In Aid

320 - State Payments in Lieu of Taxes
410 - Grant-In-Aid

510 - Payments Received from Other Public Schools Within the State
620 - Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds

110 - Basic Functions

120 - Added Needs

210 - Support Services Pupil

220 - Support Services Instructional Staff
230 - Support Services General Administration
240 - Support Service School Administration
250 - Support Services Business

260 - Operations and Maintenance

270 - Pupil Transportation Services

280 - Support Services Central

290 - Support Services Other

330 - Community Activities

370 - Non Public School Pupils

390 - Other Community Services

410 - Payments to Other Public Schools Within Michigan
440 - Payments to Other Governmental and Not-For-Profit Entities
450 - Facilities Acquisition, Construction, and Improvements

500 - Debt Service Long Term Only
600 - Fund Modifications

Budget Performance Report

Special Education

Summary Budget Report
As of 2/29/24
Actual &
Amended Budget  Current Month Actual Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances  Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
$108,269,577.00 $15,055,715.43  $102,348,600.96 $0.00  $102,348,600.96 $5,920,976.04 94.53%
$230,423.00 $21,327.62 $109,840.41 $0.00 $109,840.41 $120,582.59 47.67%
$961,421.00 $310,639.59 $657,407.60 $0.00 $657,407.60 $304,013.40 68.38%
$2,319,942.00 $526,788.65 $2,246,820.32 $0.00 $2,246,820.32 $73,121.68 96.85%
$5,000.00 $1,003.28 $3,012.08 $0.00 $3,012.08 $1,987.92 60.24%
$311,536.00 $35,516.74 $246,645.60 $0.00 $246,645.60 $64,890.40 79.17%
$19,405,216.00 $3,705,350.41 $10,747,873.61 $0.00 $10,747,873.61 $8,657,342.39 55.39%
$1,091,232.00 $11,955.32 $1,019,840.15 $0.00 $1,019,840.15 $71,391.85 93.46%
$15,441,592.00 $1,562,537.47 $5,025,876.31 $0.00 $5,025,876.31  $10,415,715.69 32.55%
$411,604.00 $39,196.01 $130,287.08 $0.00 $130,287.08 $281,316.92 31.65%
$288,059.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $288,059.00 0.00%
$148,735,602.00 $21,270,030.52  $122,536,204.12 $0.00 $122,536,204.12  $26,199,397.88 82.39%
Actual &
Amended Budget  Current Month Actual Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances  Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd

$1,805,354.00 $151,963.26 $790,999.60 $222,117.91 $1,013,117.51 $792,236.49 56.12%
$18,366,352.00 $1,288,923.59 $8,877,905.34 $436,032.44 $9,313,937.78 $9,052,414.22 50.71%
$22,567,689.00 $1,548,845.31  $11,283,729.67 $103,950.01  $11,387,679.68  $11,180,009.32 50.46%
$5,676,611.00 $412,261.72 $2,986,782.95 $427,819.28 $3,414,602.23 $2,262,008.77 60.15%
$358,089.00 $25,199.14 $215,369.29 $9,658.79 $225,028.08 $133,060.92 62.84%
$318,500.00 $23,208.54 $202,304.67 $1,509.71 $203,814.38 $114,685.62 63.99%
$1,639,818.00 $107,062.22 $890,062.16 $3,942.61 $894,004.77 $745,813.23 54.52%
$2,503,928.00 $192,157.36 $1,364,726.42 $465,907.16 $1,830,633.58 $673,294.42 73.11%
$68,380.00 $4,795.16 $12,080.84 $3,533.41 $15,614.25 $52,765.75 22.83%
$4,075,870.00 $217,481.83 $2,099,359.23 $112,213.22 $2,211,572.45 $1,864,297.55 54.26%
$21,240.00 $1,777.36 $14,243.89 $0.00 $14,243.89 $6,996.11 67.06%
$70,500.00 $22,887.21 $38,316.15 $3,852.56 $42,168.71 $28,331.29 59.81%
$202,428.00 $13,803.32 $76,077.21 $126,350.79 $202,428.00 $0.00 100.00%
$34,554.00 $8.43 $5,062.35 $367.50 $5,429.85 $29,124.15 15.71%
$90,800,219.00 $14,279,946.80  $43,128,004.97  $10,156,268.67  $53,284,273.64  $37,515,945.36 58.68%
$1,780,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,780,700.00 0.00%
$17,950.00 $1,782.75 $2,787.89 $0.00 $2,787.89 $15,162.11 15.53%
$1,102,779.00 $92,253.17 $827,865.03 $260,433.51 $1,088,298.54 $14,480.46 98.69%
$500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 100.00%
$151,910,961.00 $18,384,357.17 $73,315,677.66  $12,333,957.57 $85,649,635.23  $66,261,325.77 56.38%

($3,175,359.00) $2,885,673.35 $49,220,526.46  ($12,333,957.57)  $36,886,568.89  ($40,061,927.89)

PageNum: 1

Packet page 22 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Special Education Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Special Revenue
Fund Type
Fund 22 - Special Education
Revenue from Local Sources
Taxes Levied 108,269,577.00 15,055,715.43 102,348,600.96 .00 5,920,976.04 95
Appropriations Received from Local Units of Gov't 230,423.00 21,327.62 109,840.41 .00 120,582.59 48
Tuition 968,048.00 310,639.59 657,407.60 .00 310,640.40 68
Earnings on Investments and Deposits 2,319,942.00 526,788.65 2,246,820.32 .00 73,121.68 97
Revenue from Community Service Activities 5,000.00 1,003.28 3,012.08 .00 1,987.92 60
Other Local Revenue 311,536.00 35,516.74 246,645.60 .00 64,890.40 79
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $112,104,526.00 $15,950,991.31 $105,612,326.97 $0.00 $6,492,199.03 94%
Revenue from State Sources
Grants In Aid 19,405,216.00 3,705,350.41 10,747,873.61 .00 8,657,342.39 55
State Payments in Lieu of Taxes 1,091,232.00 11,955.32 1,019,840.15 .00 71,391.85 93
Revenue from State Sources Totals $20,496,448.00 $3,717,305.73 $11,767,713.76 $0.00 $8,728,734.24 57%
Revenues from Federal Sources
Grant-In-Aid 15,454,529.00 1,562,537.47 5,025,876.31 .00 10,428,652.69 33
Revenues from Federal Sources Totals $15,454,529.00 $1,562,537.47 $5,025,876.31 $0.00 $10,428,652.69 33%
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions
Payments Received from Other Public Schools Within the State 411,604.00 39,196.01 130,287.08 .00 281,316.92 32
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions Totals $411,604.00 $39,196.01 $130,287.08 $0.00 $281,316.92 32%
Fund Modifications
Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds 288,059.00 .00 .00 .00 288,059.00 0
Fund Modlifications Totals $288,059.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $288,059.00 0%
Salaries
Administration 2,363,129.00 193,091.23 1,504,161.17 .00 858,967.83 64
Professional Educational 13,051,237.00 928,656.05 6,500,483.79 .00 6,550,753.21 50
Professional Business 558,004.00 51,107.12 370,735.17 .00 187,268.83 66
Professional Other 4,171,413.00 280,872.39 2,164,408.37 67.06 2,006,937.57 52
Technical 767,451.00 55,204.10 490,382.76 .00 277,068.24 64
Operation and Service 5,942,917.00 429,436.36 3,032,649.18 .00 2,910,267.82 51
Special Salary Payments 314,806.00 74,432.34 (27,741.53) .00 342,547.53 9)
Temporary Salaries 379,333.00 35,783.18 196,456.78 .00 182,876.22 52
Overtime Salaries and Extension of Contract 149,265.00 16,428.30 116,102.79 .00 33,162.21 78
Salaries Totals $27,697,555.00 $2,065,011.07 $14,347,638.48 $67.06 $13,349,849.46 52%
Employee Benefits
Employee Insurance 4,750,167.00 307,332.10 2,208,621.32 .00 2,541,545.68 46
Mandatory Coverage 14,666,647.00 1,150,261.79 7,655,150.50 .00 7,011,496.50 52
Workers Compensation 89,201.00 (6,457.58) 47,086.66 .00 42,114.34 53

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:08:35 AM

Page 1 of 3
Packet page 23 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Special Education Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Special Revenue
Fund Type
Fund 22 - Special Education
Employee Benefits
Other Employee Benefits 246,531.00 19,493.47 123,724.23 .00 122,806.77 50
Employee Benefits Totals $19,752,546.00 $1,470,629.78 $10,034,582.71 $0.00 $9,717,963.29 51%
Purchased Services
Professional and Technical Services 4,474,832.00 209,726.06 2,010,367.65 984,525.62 1,479,938.73 67
Travel Workshops Staff 638,598.00 64,334.77 226,178.61 4,905.71 407,513.68 36
Client Pupil Transportation 71,380.00 4,795.16 12,080.84 3,533.41 55,765.75 22
Communication 479,709.00 22,544.25 201,255.47 8,315.73 270,137.80 44
Advertisement 36,942.00 .00 57.00 4,250.00 32,635.00 12
Printing and Binding 104,202.00 3,350.08 52,022.13 5,485.04 46,694.83 55
Tuition 501,000.00 .00 206,400.00 169,800.00 124,800.00 75
Utility Service 66,450.00 4,115.47 32,751.03 5,031.72 28,667.25 57
Insurance and Bond Premiums 114,684.00 .00 112,659.69 .00 2,024.31 98
Repairs and Maintenance Services 1,308,760.00 68,615.61 687,398.08 238,583.85 382,778.07 71
Rentals 88,943.00 1,186.87 5,751.01 90,997.24 (7,805.25) 109
Purchased Services Totals $7,885,500.00 $378,668.27 $3,546,921.51 $1,515,428.32 $2,823,150.17 64%
Supplies and Materials
Teaching Testing Supplies and Materials 271,678.00 5,427.09 129,345.56 7,058.94 135,273.50 50
Periodicals 1,913.00 .00 247.73 .00 1,665.27 13
Energy Supplies 302,100.00 38,216.86 170,389.31 97,401.18 34,309.51 89
Transportation Supplies 2,000.00 95.24 1,443.97 .00 556.03 72
Other Supplies 508,333.00 18,109.90 188,809.74 54,399.36 265,123.90 48
Supplies and Materials Totals $1,086,024.00 $61,849.09 $490,236.31 $158,859.48 $436,928.21 60%
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 15,250.00 1,782.75 2,787.89 .00 12,462.11 18
Improvements Other Than Buildings 2,700.00 .00 .00 .00 2,700.00 0
Equipment and Furniture 677,308.00 17,115.95 276,919.89 74,800.24 325,587.87 52
Capital Outlay Totals $695,258.00 $18,898.70 $279,707.78 $74,800.24 $340,749.98 51%
Other Expenditures
Redemption of Long-term Bonds, Loans and Capital Leases 885,636.00 92,253.17 827,865.03 260,433.51 (202,662.54) 123
Interest on Debt 217,143.00 .00 .00 .00 217,143.00 0
Dues and Fees 58,025.00 1,802.70 31,648.05 484.50 25,892.45 55
Claims and Judgments 1,500.00 .00 187.24 .00 1,312.76 12
Taxes Abated and Written Off 350,000.00 1,223.77 47,157.29 .00 302,842.71 13
Miscellaneous Expenditures 13,154.00 270.50 5,651.08 .00 7,502.92 43
Other Expenditures Totals $1,525,458.00 $95,550.14 $912,508.69 $260,918.01 $352,031.30 77%

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:08:35 AM

Page 2 of 3
Packet page 24 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Special Education Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Special Revenue
Fund Type
Fund 22 - Special Education
Outgoing Transfers and Other Transactions
Fund Modifications 500,000.00 .00 500,000.00 .00 .00 100
Payments to Other Public School Districts 202,428.00 13,803.32 76,077.21 126,350.79 .00 100
Sub-Grantee Disbursements 92,580,919.00 14,279,946.80 43,128,004.97 10,197,533.67 39,255,380.36 58
Outgoing Transfers and Other Transactions Totals $93,283,347.00 $14,293,750.12 $43,704,082.18 $10,323,884.46 $39,255,380.36 58%
Fund 22 - Special Education Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 148,755,166.00 21,270,030.52 122,536,204.12 .00 26,218,961.88 82%
EXPENSE TOTALS 151,925,688.00 18,384,357.17 73,315,677.66 12,333,957.57 66,276,052.77 56%
Fund 22 - Special Education Net Gain (Loss) ($3,170,522.00) $2,885,673.35 $49,220,526.46  ($12,333,957.57) $40,057,090.89 (1,163%)
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 148,755,166.00 21,270,030.52 122,536,204.12 .00 26,218,961.88 82%
EXPENSE TOTALS 151,925,688.00 18,384,357.17 73,315,677.66 12,333,957.57 66,276,052.77 56%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) ($3,170,522.00) $2,885,673.35 $49,220,526.46  ($12,333,957.57) $40,057,090.89 (1,163%)
Fund Category Special Revenue Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 148,755,166.00 21,270,030.52 122,536,204.12 .00 26,218,961.88 82%
EXPENSE TOTALS 151,925,688.00 18,384,357.17 73,315,677.66 12,333,957.57 66,276,052.77 56%
Fund Category Special Revenue Net Gain (Loss) ($3,170,522.00) $2,885,673.35 $49,220,526.46  ($12,333,957.57) $40,057,090.89 (1,163%)
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 148,755,166.00 21,270,030.52 122,536,204.12 .00 26,218,961.88 82%
EXPENSE TOTALS 151,925,688.00 18,384,357.17 73,315,677.66 12,333,957.57 66,276,052.77 56%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) ($3,170,522.00) $2,885,673.35 $49,220,526.46  ($12,333,957.57) $40,057,090.89 (1,163%)

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:08:35 AM

Page 3 of 3
Packet page 25 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

High Point Kitchen Monthly Report

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

Current Month

G/L Account Number Account Description Location Description Amended Budget Actual  Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
25 - Food Service Fund
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
25.0151.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits High Point 6,000.00 688.62 .00 4,444.28 1,555.72 74
25.0161.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 Food Sales to Pupils High Point 300.00 .00 .00 290.50 9.50 97
25.0161.0000.913.0000.00000.0000 Food Sales to Pupils District-Wide .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
25.0162.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 Food Sales to Patrons High Point 4,000.00 .00 .00 2,521.40 1,478.60 63
25.0164.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 A-La-Carte Sales High Point 55.00 .00 .00 55.63 (.63) 101
25.0164.0000.913.0000.00000.0000 A-La-Carte Sales District-Wide 3.00 .00 .00 3.25 (.25) 108
25.0199.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 Miscellaneous Local Revenues High Point 1,032.00 .00 .00 1,032.53 (.53) 100
25.0312.0110.000.2644.06147.0000 Restricted State Aid - Food Service High Point 85,000.00 .00 .00 25,437.18 59,562.82 30
25.0312.0110.000.2654.06147.0000 Restricted State Aid - Food Service High Point 123,000.00 .00 .00 50,703.75 72,296.25 41
25.0312.0110.000.3100.06147.0000 Restricted State Aid - Food Service High Point 1,500.00 171.68 .00 1,091.42 408.58 73
25.0312.0110.000.3733.06147.0000 Restricted State Aid - Food Service High Point 24,292.00 .00 .00 .00 24,292.00 0
25.0312.0110.000.3734.06147.0000 Restricted State Aid - Food Service High Point 6,500.00 .00 .00 1,593.62 4,906.38 25
25.0414.0110.000.8500.06147.0000 Federal Lunch Reimbursement High Point 300,000.00 .00 .00 80,654.26 219,345.74 27
25.0414.0110.000.8510.06147.0000 Federal Lunch Reimbursement High Point 100,000.00 .00 .00 45,606.10 54,393.90 46
25.0481.0110.000.7810.00000.0000 USDA Entitlement Commodities District-Wide 11,926.00 .00 .00 .00 11,926.00 0
25.0482.0110.000.7820.00000.0000 USDA Bonus Commodities District-Wide .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
25.0622.0000.000.0000.06147.0000 Fund Modification - Special Education Fund  High Point .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
0000 - Revenue $663,608.00 $860.30 $0.00 $213,433.92 $450,174.08 32 %
Revenue $663,608.00 $860.30 $0.00 $213,433.92 $450,174.08 32%
Expense
1297 - Food Services
25.1297.3190.000.8510.06147.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services High Point 5,200.00 1,379.75 .00 2,188.50 3,011.50 42
25.1297.3450.000.0000.06147.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv High Point 3,000.00 .00 1,995.00 2,895.00 (1,890.00) 163
25.1297.5610.000.0000.06147.0000 Food Supplies High Point 185,000.00 28,155.44 74,280.46 100,921.34 9,798.20 95
25.1297.5650.000.7810.06147.0000 USDA Commod Supp Usage High Point 11,926.00 .00 .00 .00 11,926.00 0
25.1297.5650.000.7820.06147.0000 USDA Commod Supp Usage High Point .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
25.1297.5990.000.0000.06147.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls High Point 16,500.00 2,419.28 6,164.69 9,329.25 1,006.06 94
25.1297.7410.000.0000.06147.0000 Dues and Fees High Point 1,600.00 .00 .00 275.63 1,324.37 17
25.1297.8221.000.0000.06147.0000 Payments to LEA's - Food Service Wages High Point 115,000.00 53,635.93 .00 75,134.41 39,865.59 65
25.1297.8222.000.0000.06147.0000 Payments to LEA's - Food Service Benefits High Point 57,500.00 26,041.29 .00 36,010.12 21,489.88 63
25.1297.8223.000.0000.06147.0000 Payments to LEA's - Food Service Supplies High Point 1,000.00 578.26 .00 602.81 397.19 60
25.1297.8226.000.0000.06147.0000 Payments to LEA's - Food Service Indirect High Point 18,500.00 8,464.99 .00 11,917.93 6,582.07 64
25.1297.8227.000.0000.06147.0000 Payments to LEA's - Food Service Mileage High Point 13,000.00 4,394.50 .00 7,432.05 5,567.95 57
1297 - Food Services $428,226.00 $125,069.44 $82,440.15 $246,707.04 $99,078.81 77 %
Expense $428,226.00 $125,069.44 $82,440.15 $246,707.04 $99,078.81 77 %
Revenue Totals $663,608.00 $860.30 $0.00 $213,433.92 $450,174.08 32%
Expense Totals $428,226.00 $125,069.44 $82,440.15 $246,707.04 $99,078.81 77 %
25 - Food Service Fund $235,382.00 ($124,209.14) ($82,440.15) ($33,273.12) $351,095.27
Revenue Totals $663,608.00 $860.30 $0.00 $213,433.92 $450,174.08 32%
Expense Totals $428,226.00 $125,069.44 $82,440.15 $246,707.04 $99,078.81 77 %
$235,382.00 ($124,209.14) ($82,440.15) ($33,273.12) $351,095.27
Run By jmillina on 03/12/2024 9:41:55 AM Page - 1

Packet page 26 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Balance Sheet

Through 02/29/24
Detail Listing
Include Rollup Account/Rollup to Object & Suffix

Current YTD Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Total Actual Net Change Change %
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 41 - Capital Projects - General Educ
ASSETS
2131
2131.0000 Due From Other Funds 1,556,682.33 (3,003.94) 1,559,686.27 51,921.35
2131 - Totals $1,556,682.33 ($3,003.94) $1,559,686.27 51,921.35%
2181
2181.0000 MILAF Short-Term Fund 377,659.37 470,582.56 (92,923.19) (19.75)
2181.0003 MILAF - Accounts Payable 2,970.96 .00 2,970.96 +++
2181 - Totals $380,630.33 $470,582.56 ($89,952.23) (19.12%)
ASSETS TOTALS $1,937,312.66 $467,578.62 $1,469,734.04 314.33%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
2402
2402.0000 Accounts Payable 28.58 .00 28.58 +++
2402 - Totals $28.58 $0.00 $28.58 +++
LIABILITIES TOTALS $28.58 $0.00 $28.58 +++
FUND EQUITY
2721
2721.0000 Restricted Fund Balance 467,578.62 467,578.62 .00 .00
2721 - Totals $467,578.62 $467,578.62 $0.00 0.00%
FUND EQUITY TOTALS Prior to Current Year Changes $467,578.62 $467,578.62 $0.00 0.00%
Prior Year Fund Equity Adjustment .00
Fund Revenues (1,505,605.14)
Fund Expenses 35,899.68
FUND EQUITY TOTALS $1,937,284.08 $467,578.62 $1,469,705.46 314.32%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY TOTALS $1,937,312.66 $467,578.62 $1,469,734.04 314.33%
Fund 41 - Capital Projects - General Educ Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 T
Fund Type Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 09:44:17 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 27 of 271



GE Capital Projects Activities
Washtenaw | S D P ] Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 41 - Capital Projects - General Educ
Revenue from Local Sources
Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 1,032.26 5,605.14 .00 (5,605.14) +++
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $0.00 $1,032.26 $5,605.14 $0.00 ($5,605.14) +++
Fund Modifications
Fund Modification - General Fund .00 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 .00 (1,500,000.00) +++
Fund Modlifications Totals $0.00 $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00 $0.00 ($1,500,000.00) +++
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 51,101.00 23,828.67 35,803.29 9,263.16 6,034.55 88
Equipment and Furniture 76,278.00 .00 3,923.15 19,150.99 53,203.86 30
Capital Outlay Totals $127,379.00 $23,828.67 $39,726.44 $28,414.15 $59,238.41 53%
Fund 41 - Capital Projects - General Educ Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 1,501,032.26 1,505,605.14 .00 (1,505,605.14) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 127,379.00 23,828.67 39,726.44 28,414.15 59,238.41 53%
Fund 41 - Capital Projects - General Educ Net Gain (Loss) ($127,379.00) $1,477,203.59 $1,465,878.70 ($28,414.15) $1,564,843.55 (1,128%)
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 1,501,032.26 1,505,605.14 .00 (1,505,605.14) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 127,379.00 23,828.67 39,726.44 28,414.15 59,238.41 53%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) ($127,379.00) $1,477,203.59 $1,465,878.70 ($28,414.15) $1,564,843.55 (1,128%)
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 1,501,032.26 1,505,605.14 .00 (1,505,605.14) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 127,379.00 23,828.67 39,726.44 28,414.15 59,238.41 53%
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Net Gain (Loss) ($127,379.00) $1,477,203.59 $1,465,878.70 ($28,414.15) $1,564,843.55 (1,128%)
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 1,501,032.26 1,505,605.14 .00 (1,505,605.14) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 127,379.00 23,828.67 39,726.44 28,414.15 59,238.41 53%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) ($127,379.00) $1,477,203.59 $1,465,878.70 ($28,414.15) $1,564,843.55 (1,128%)
Run by Millina, Jack on 03/15/2024 10:52:59 AM Page 1 of 1

Packet page 28 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Balance Sheet

Through 02/29/24
Detail Listing
Include Rollup Account/Rollup to Object & Suffix

Current YTD Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Total Actual Net Change Change %
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 42 - Capital Projects - Spec Educ
ASSETS
2131
2131.0000 Due From Other Funds (1,508,605.13) (8,605.13) (1,500,000.00) (17,431.46)
2131 - Totals ($1,508,605.13) ($8,605.13) ($1,500,000.00) (17,431.46%)
2181
2181.0000 MILAF Short-Term Fund 2,026,022.33 75,666.19 1,950,356.14 2,577.58
2181.0001 MILAF Max Fund 3,880,718.72 3,743,306.28 137,412.44 3.67
2181 - Totals $5,906,741.05 $3,818,972.47 $2,087,768.58 54.67%
ASSETS TOTALS $4,398,135.92 $3,810,367.34 $587,768.58 15.43%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
2402
2402.0000 Accounts Payable (28.58) 449.85 (478.43) (106.35)
2402 - Totals ($28.58) $449.85 ($478.43) (106.35%)
LIABILITIES TOTALS ($28.58) $449.85 ($478.43) (106.35%)
FUND EQUITY
2721
2721.0000 Restricted Fund Balance 3,809,917.49 3,809,917.49 .00 .00
2721 - Totals $3,809,917.49 $3,809,917.49 $0.00 0.00%
FUND EQUITY TOTALS Prior to Current Year Changes $3,809,917.49 $3,809,917.49 $0.00 0.00%
Prior Year Fund Equity Adjustment .00
Fund Revenues (658,498.27)
Fund Expenses 70,251.26
FUND EQUITY TOTALS $4,398,164.50 $3,809,917.49 $588,247.01 15.44%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY TOTALS $4,398,135.92 $3,810,367.34 $587,768.58 15.43%
Fund 42 - Capital Projects - Spec Educ Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 T
Fund Type Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 09:49:56 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 29 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

SE Capital Projects Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 42 - Capital Projects - Spec Educ
Revenue from Local Sources
Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 20,322.44 158,498.27 .00 (158,498.27) +++
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $0.00 $20,322.44 $158,498.27 $0.00 ($158,498.27) +++
Fund Modifications
Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds .00 .00 500,000.00 .00 (500,000.00) +++
Fund Modifications Totals $0.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 ($500,000.00) +++
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 41,810.00 16,365.20 26,612.46 7,578.95 7,618.59 82
Equipment and Furniture 73,049.00 2,219.21 43,638.80 18,533.00 10,877.20 85
Capital Outlay Totals $114,859.00 $18,584.41 $70,251.26 $26,111.95 $18,495.79 84%
Fund 42 - Capital Projects - Spec Educ Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 20,322.44 658,498.27 .00 (658,498.27) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 114,859.00 18,584.41 70,251.26 26,111.95 18,495.79 84%
Fund 42 - Capital Projects - Spec Educ Net Gain (Loss) ($114,859.00) $1,738.03 $588,247.01 ($26,111.95) $676,994.06 (489%)
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 20,322.44 658,498.27 .00 (658,498.27) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 114,859.00 18,584.41 70,251.26 26,111.95 18,495.79 84%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) ($114,859.00) $1,738.03 $588,247.01 ($26,111.95) $676,994.06 (489%)
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 20,322.44 658,498.27 .00 (658,498.27) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 114,859.00 18,584.41 70,251.26 26,111.95 18,495.79 84%
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Net Gain (Loss) ($114,859.00) $1,738.03 $588,247.01 ($26,111.95) $676,994.06 (489%)
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 20,322.44 658,498.27 .00 (658,498.27) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 114,859.00 18,584.41 70,251.26 26,111.95 18,495.79 84%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) ($114,859.00) $1,738.03 $588,247.01 ($26,111.95) $676,994.06 (489%)

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 09:51:50 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 30 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Balance Sheet

Through 02/29/24
Detail Listing
Include Rollup Account/Rollup to Object & Suffix

Current YTD Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Total Actual Net Change Change %
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund
ASSETS
2131
2131.0000 Due From Other Funds (55,395.55) 12,401.11 (67,796.66) (546.70)
2131 - Totals ($55,395.55) $12,401.11 ($67,796.66) (546.70%)
2161
2161.0000 Interest Receivable on Investments and Deposits 3,912.33 3,912.33 .00 .00
2161 - Totals $3,912.33 $3,912.33 $0.00 0.00%
2181
2181.0000 MILAF Short-Term Fund 1,382,459.00 1,407,219.57 (24,760.57) (1.76)
2181.0001 MILAF Max Fund 4,346,595.49 4,192,686.76 153,908.73 3.67
2181.0003 MILAF - Accounts Payable .00 1,860.57 (1,860.57) (100.00)
2181 - Totals $5,729,054.49 $5,601,766.90 $127,287.59 2.27%
2191
2191.0000 Deposits 971.92 38,365.00 (37,393.08) (97.47)
2191 - Totals $971.92 $38,365.00 ($37,393.08) (97.47%)
ASSETS TOTALS $5,678,543.19 $5,656,445.34 $22,097.85 0.39%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
2402
2402.0000 Accounts Payable .00 69,657.23 (69,657.23) (100.00)
2402 - Totals $0.00 $69,657.23 ($69,657.23) (100.00%)
LIABILITIES TOTALS $0.00 $69,657.23 ($69,657.23) (100.00%)
FUND EQUITY
2721
2721.0000 Restricted Fund Balance 5,586,788.11 5,586,788.11 .00 .00
2721 - Totals $5,586,788.11 $5,586,788.11 $0.00 0.00%
FUND EQUITY TOTALS Prior to Current Year Changes $5,586,788.11 $5,586,788.11 $0.00 0.00%
Prior Year Fund Equity Adjustment .00
Fund Revenues (202,944.42)
Fund Expenses 111,189.34
FUND EQUITY TOTALS $5,678,543.19 $5,586,788.11 $91,755.08 1.64%
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY TOTALS $5,678,543.19 $5,656,445.34 $22,097.85 0.39%
Fund 43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 T
Fund Type Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Fund Category ~Capital Projects Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Tt
Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 09:53:46 AM Page 1 of 1

Packet page 31 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

2019 Bond Capital Projects Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund
Revenue from Local Sources
Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 24,043.70 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $0.00 $24,043.70 $202,944.42 ($202,944.42) +++
Purchased Services
Professional and Technical Services 44,540.00 .00 36,035.00 8,505.00 81
Purchased Services Totals $44,540.00 $0.00 $36,035.00 $8,505.00 81%
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 50,000.00 14,021.00 14,021.00 35,979.00 28
Improvements Other Than Buildings .00 256.20 2,688.20 (2,688.20) +++
Equipment and Furniture 13,000.00 23,173.00 58,445.14 (45,445.14) 450
Capital Outlay Totals $63,000.00 $37,450.20 $75,154.34 ($12,154.34) 119%
Fund 43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 24,043.70 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 107,540.00 37,450.20 111,189.34 (3,649.34) 103%
Fund 43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund Net Gain (Loss) ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) $91,755.08 $199,295.08 (85%)
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 24,043.70 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 107,540.00 37,450.20 111,189.34 (3,649.34) 103%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) $91,755.08 $199,295.08 (85%)
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 24,043.70 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 107,540.00 37,450.20 111,189.34 (3,649.34) 103%
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Net Gain (Loss) ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) $91,755.08 $199,295.08 (85%)
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 24,043.70 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS 107,540.00 37,450.20 111,189.34 (3,649.34) 103%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) $91,755.08 $199,295.08 (85%)

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 10:09:19 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 32 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

HP Construction Fund
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

Budget Current Month
G/L Account Number Account Description Adopted Budget Amendments Amended Budget Actual  Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
43.0151.0000.000.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 .00 .00 24,043.70 .00 202,944.42 (202,944.42) +++
43.0153.0000.000.0000.00000.0000 Gain or Loss on Sale of Investement .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
43.0591.0000.000.0000.00000.0000 Proceeds from issuance of bonds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
0000 - Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,043.70 $0.00 $202,944.42  ($202,944.42) +++
Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,043.70 $0.00 $202,944.42  ($202,944.42) +++
Expense
1122 - Special Education
43.1122.6410.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip >$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
43.1122.6420.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1122 - Special Education $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
1231 - Board of Education
43.1231.3170.000.0000.06147.0000 Legal Services .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 224.00 .00 4,776.00 4
43.1231.3180.000.0000.06147.0000 Audit Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1231 - Board of Education $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $224.00 $0.00 $4,776.00 4%
1252 - Fiscal Services
43.1252.7410.000.0000.06147.0000 Dues and Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1252 - Fiscal Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ot
1261 - Operating Buildings Services
43.1261.6410.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip >$5000 .00 .00 .00 19,923.00 5,790.00 31,173.00 (36,963.00) +++
43.1261.6420.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 .00 .00 .00 3,250.00 .00 16,693.54 (16,693.54) +++
1261 - Operating Buildings Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,173.00 $5,790.00 $47,866.54 ($53,656.54) -
1266 - Security Services
43.1266.6410.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip >$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1266 - Security Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
43.1284.3190.000.0000.06147.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,370.00 (2,370.00) +++
43.1284.6410.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip >$5000 .00 13,000.00 13,000.00 .00 .00 10,578.60 2,421.40 81
43.1284.6720.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-Educ Media - Initial - Depreciable .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $0.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,948.60 $51.40 100 %
1452 - Site Improvement Services
43.1452.6310.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-Improv Other Than Bldgs - Depreciable .00 .00 .00 256.20 1,661.80 2,688.20 (4,350.00) +++
1452 - Site Improvement Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $256.20 $1,661.80 $2,688.20 ($4,350.00) ot
1453 - Architect & Engineering Serv
43.1453.3190.000.0000.06147.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services .00 37,540.00 37,540.00 .00 2,875.00 33,665.00 1,000.00 97
1453 - Architect & Engineering Serv $0.00 $37,540.00 $37,540.00 $0.00 $2,875.00 $33,665.00 $1,000.00 97 %
1456 - Building Improvement Services
43.1456.3190.000.0000.06147.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 2,000.00 0
43.1456.6220.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-Non-Prop Exp for Bldgs. and Alter by .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 14,021.00 .00 14,021.00 35,979.00 28
Contractors
43.1456.6410.000.0000.06147.0000 Capital-New Equip >$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1456 - Building Improvement Services $0.00 $52,000.00 $52,000.00 $14,021.00 $0.00 $14,021.00 $37,979.00 27 %
1459 - Other Facil Acquis and Construction Serv
43.1459.3170.000.0000.06147.0000 Legal Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
43.1459.3190.000.0000.06147.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
43.1459.7310.000.0000.06147.0000 Other Bond Issuance Costs .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1459 - Other Facil Acquis and Construction Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Run By jmillina on 03/12/2024 10:11:42 AM Page - 1

Packet page 33 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

HP Construction Fund
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

Budget Current Month
G/L Account Number Account Description Adopted Budget Amendments Amended Budget Actual  Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund
43.1622.8110.000.0000.06147.0000 Fund Modifications .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1642 - Fund Modif to SE Cap Proj
43.1642.8110.000.0000.06147.0000 Fund Modifications .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1642 - Fund Modif to SE Cap Proj $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Expense $0.00 $107,540.00 $107,540.00 $37,450.20 $10,550.80 $111,189.34 ($14,200.14) 113 %
Revenue Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,043.70 $0.00 $202,944.42  ($202,944.42) +++
Expense Totals $0.00 $107,540.00 $107,540.00 $37,450.20 $10,550.80 $111,189.34 ($14,200.14) 113 %
43 - Capital Projects 2019 Bond Fund $0.00  ($107,540.00) ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) ($10,550.80) $91,755.08  ($188,744.28)
Revenue Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,043.70 $0.00 $202,944.42 ($202,944.42) +++
Expense Totals $0.00 $107,540.00 $107,540.00 $37,450.20 $10,550.80 $111,189.34 ($14,200.14) 113 %
$0.00  ($107,540.00)  ($107,540.00) ($13,406.50) ($10,550.80) $91,755.08  ($188,744.28)
Run By jmillina on 03/12/2024 10:11:42 AM Page - 2

Packet page 34 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Balance Sheet

Through 02/29/24
Detail Listing
Include Rollup Account/Rollup to Object & Suffix

Current YTD Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Total Actual Net Change Change %
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 47 - Capital Projects - WEOC
ASSETS
2131
2131.0000 Due From Other Funds 99,001.00 32,000.00 67,001.00 209.38
2131 - Totals $99,001.00 $32,000.00 $67,001.00 209.38%
2181
2181.0000 MILAF Short-Term Fund (103,835.71) (18,905.56) (84,930.15) (449.23)
2181.0003 MILAF - Accounts Payable .00 1.00 (1.00) (100.00)
2181 - Totals ($103,835.71) ($18,904.56) ($84,931.15) (449.26%)
ASSETS TOTALS ($4,834.71) $13,095.44 ($17,930.15) (136.92%)
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
2402
2402.0000 Accounts Payable .00 1,760.00 (1,760.00) (100.00)
2402 - Totals $0.00 $1,760.00 ($1,760.00) (100.00%)
LIABILITIES TOTALS $0.00 $1,760.00 ($1,760.00) (100.00%)
FUND EQUITY
2721
2721.0000 Restricted Fund Balance 11,335.44 11,335.44 .00 .00
2721 - Totals $11,335.44 $11,335.44 $0.00 0.00%
FUND EQUITY TOTALS Prior to Current Year Changes $11,335.44 $11,335.44 $0.00 0.00%
Prior Year Fund Equity Adjustment .00
Fund Revenues (60,000.00)
Fund Expenses 76,170.15
FUND EQUITY TOTALS ($4,834.71) $11,335.44 ($16,170.15) (142.65%)
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY TOTALS ($4,834.71) $13,095.44 ($17,930.15) (136.92%)
Fund 47 - Capital Projects - WEOC Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 T
Fund Type Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 10:13:12 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 35 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

WEOC Capital Projects Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund
Fund Type
Fund 47 - Capital Projects - WEOC
Fund Modifications
Fund Modification - Special Revenue Funds 61,301.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 1,301.00 98
Fund Modlifications Totals $61,301.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $1,301.00 98%
Salaries
Professional Business 390.00 .00 390.00 .00 .00 100
Salaries Totals $390.00 $0.00 $390.00 $0.00 $0.00 100%
Employee Benefits
Mandatory Coverage 30.00 .00 29.84 .00 .16 99
Employee Benefits Totals $30.00 $0.00 $29.84 $0.00 $0.16 99%
Capital Outlay
Building and Additions 42,112.00 .00 40,984.51 1,127.00 .49 100
Equipment and Furniture 34,766.00 .00 34,765.80 .00 .20 100
Capital Outlay Totals $76,878.00 $0.00 $75,750.31 $1,127.00 $0.69 100%
Fund 47 - Capital Projects - WEOC Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 61,301.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 1,301.00 98%
EXPENSE TOTALS 77,298.00 .00 76,170.15 1,127.00 .85 100%
Fund 47 - Capital Projects - WEOC Net Gain (Loss) ($15,997.00) $0.00 ($16,170.15) ($1,127.00) ($1,300.15) 108%
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 61,301.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 1,301.00 98%
EXPENSE TOTALS 77,298.00 .00 76,170.15 1,127.00 .85 100%
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) ($15,997.00) $0.00 ($16,170.15) ($1,127.00) ($1,300.15) 108%
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 61,301.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 1,301.00 98%
EXPENSE TOTALS 77,298.00 .00 76,170.15 1,127.00 .85 100%
Fund Category Capital Projects Fund Net Gain (Loss) ($15,997.00) $0.00 ($16,170.15) ($1,127.00) ($1,300.15) 108%
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 61,301.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 1,301.00 98%
EXPENSE TOTALS 77,298.00 .00 76,170.15 1,127.00 .85 100%
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) ($15,997.00) $0.00 ($16,170.15) ($1,127.00) ($1,300.15) 108%

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 10:15:14 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 36 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Balance Sheet

Through 02/29/24

Detail Listing

Include Rollup Account/Rollup to Object & Suffix

Current YTD Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Total Actual Net Change Change %
Fund Category Internal Service
Fund Type
Fund 81 - Internal Service Fund
ASSETS
2101
2101.0005 CASH- SELF INSURED 1,147,776.70 1,476,692.76 (328,916.06) (22.27)
2101 - Totals $1,147,776.70 $1,476,692.76 ($328,916.06) (22.27%)
2121
2121.0000 Accounts Receivable 98,100.00 98,100.00 .00 .00
2121 - Totals $98,100.00 $98,100.00 $0.00 0.00%
2131
2131.0000 Due From Other Funds (452,963.70) (31,357.49) (421,606.21) (1,344.52)
2131 - Totals ($452,963.70) ($31,357.49) ($421,606.21) (1,344.52%)
ASSETS TOTALS $792,913.00 $1,543,435.27 ($750,522.27) (48.63%)
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
2402
2402.0000 Accounts Payable 467,587.01 889,193.22 (421,606.21) (47.41)
2402 - Totals $467,587.01 $889,193.22 ($421,606.21) (47.41%)
LIABILITIES TOTALS $467,587.01 $889,193.22 ($421,606.21) (47.41%)
FUND EQUITY
2771
2771.0000 Unreserved Retained Earnings-MED 650,142.97 650,142.97 .00 .00
2771.0001 Unreserved Retained Earnings-DEN 165,121.32 165,121.32 .00 .00
2771.0002 Unreserved Retained Earnings-VIS 29,627.79 29,627.79 .00 .00
2771 - Totals $844,892.08 $844,892.08 $0.00 0.00%
FUND EQUITY TOTALS Prior to Current Year Changes $844,892.08 $844,892.08 $0.00 0.00%
Prior Year Fund Equity Adjustment .00
Fund Revenues (3,754,052.24)
Fund Expenses 4,082,968.30
FUND EQUITY TOTALS $515,976.02 $844,892.08 ($328,916.06) (38.93%)
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY TOTALS $983,563.03 $1,734,085.30 ($750,522.27) (43.28%)
Fund 81 - Internal Service Fund Totals ($190,650.03) ($190,650.03) $0.00 0.00%
Fund Type Totals ($190,650.03) ($190,650.03) $0.00 0.00%
Fund Category Internal Service Totals ($190,650.03) ($190,650.03) $0.00 0.00%
Grand Totals ($190,650.03) ($190,650.03) $0.00 0.00%
Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 10:17:11 AM Page 1 of 1

Packet page 37 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDWCATIOMNAL SERYICE AGERNCY

Internal Service Fund Activities

Through 02/29/24
Summary Listing

Annual MTD YTD YTD Budget Less % of
Classification Budget Amount Actual Amount Actual Amount Encumbrances YTD Actual Budget
Fund Category Internal Service
Fund Type
Fund 81 - Internal Service Fund
Revenue from Local Sources
Other Local Revenue .00 538,091.38 3,726,660.74 .00 (3,726,660.74) +++
Revenue from Local Sources Totals $0.00 $538,091.38 $3,726,660.74 $0.00 ($3,726,660.74) +++
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions
Other Financing Sources .00 3,179.73 27,391.50 .00 (27,391.50) +++
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions Totals $0.00 $3,179.73 $27,391.50 $0.00 ($27,391.50) +++
Employee Benefits
Employee Insurance .00 681,503.70 4,082,968.30 .00 (4,082,968.30) +++
Employee Benefits Totals $0.00 $681,503.70 $4,082,968.30 $0.00 ($4,082,968.30) +++
Fund 81 - Internal Service Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 541,271.11 3,754,052.24 .00 (3,754,052.24) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 681,503.70 4,082,968.30 .00 (4,082,968.30) +++
Fund 81 - Internal Service Fund Net Gain (Loss) $0.00 ($140,232.59) ($328,916.06) $0.00 ($328,916.06) +++
Fund Type Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 541,271.11 3,754,052.24 .00 (3,754,052.24) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 681,503.70 4,082,968.30 .00 (4,082,968.30) +++
Fund Type Net Gain (Loss) $0.00 ($140,232.59) ($328,916.06) $0.00 ($328,916.06) +++
Fund Category Internal Service Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 541,271.11 3,754,052.24 .00 (3,754,052.24) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 681,503.70 4,082,968.30 .00 (4,082,968.30) +++
Fund Category Internal Service Net Gain (Loss) $0.00 ($140,232.59) ($328,916.06) $0.00 ($328,916.06) +++
Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 541,271.11 3,754,052.24 .00 (3,754,052.24) +++
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 681,503.70 4,082,968.30 .00 (4,082,968.30) +++
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss) $0.00 ($140,232.59) ($328,916.06) $0.00 ($328,916.06) +++

Run by Millina, Jack on 03/12/2024 10:19:55 AM

Page 1 of 1
Packet page 38 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27 - Cooperative Activities Fund
000 - Unassigned

Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 1,112,992.00 362,476.48 .00 690,042.84 422,949.16 62
Revenue $1,112,992.00 $362,476.48 $0.00 $690,042.84 $422,949.16 62 %

Expense
*Function* 1113 - High School 7,916.00 6,442.37 .00 6,737.37 1,178.63 85
*Function* 1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff 688,743.00 57,714.52 1,276.00 437,693.87 249,773.13 64
*Function* 1249 - Other School Administration 25,000.00 .00 .00 5,973.53 19,026.47 24
*Function* 1252 - Fiscal Services 85,586.00 7,265.56 .00 58,160.22 27,425.78 68
*Function* 1283 - Staff/Personnel Services 32,292.00 .00 14,022.82 18,971.13 (701.95) 102
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 231,550.00 7,687.65 .00 66,507.10 165,042.90 29
*Function* 1391 - Other Community Services 2,084.00 .00 .00 .00 2,084.00 0
*Function* 1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal 39,840.00 3,411.00 .00 25,515.00 14,325.00 64
Expense $1,113,011.00 $82,521.10 $15,298.82 $619,558.22 $478,153.96 57 %
000 - Unassigned ($19.00) $279,955.38 ($15,298.82) $70,484.62 ($55,204.80) 5%
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 1

Packet page 39 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
910 - WIHI - IB Program
Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 7,282,809.00 683,496.22 .00 5,076,793.13 2,206,015.87 70
Revenue $7,282,809.00 $683,496.22 $0.00 $5,076,793.13 $2,206,015.87 70 %
Expense

*Function* 1112 - Middle/Junior High 366,936.00 49,249.07 .00 350,080.88 16,855.12 95
*Function* 1113 - High School 3,855,005.00 292,427.22 13,839.82 1,932,275.67 1,908,889.51 50
*Function* 1212 - Guidance Services 317,489.00 32,622.32 .00 175,549.57 141,939.43 55
*Function* 1216 - Social Work Services 216,935.00 17,631.09 .00 110,286.04 106,648.96 51
*Function* 1218 - Teacher Consultant 25,000.00 .00 .00 .00 25,000.00 0
*Function* 1221 - Improvement of Instruction 880.00 .00 .00 .00 880.00 0
*Function* 1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff 492,699.00 25,959.94 .00 279,329.15 213,369.85 57
*Function* 1241 - Office of the Principal 691,489.00 30,823.64 .00 255,188.43 436,300.57 37
*Function* 1249 - Other School Administration 25,000.00 .00 3,700.00 20.00 21,280.00 15
*Function* 1261 - Operating Buildings Services 283,521.00 25,679.25 71,644.43 136,622.45 75,254.12 73
*Function* 1266 - Security Services 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
*Function* 1271 - Pupil Transportation Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 97,627.00 8,060.80 .00 64,371.28 33,255.72 66
*Function* 1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools 530,038.00 175,500.00 .00 320,500.00 209,538.00 60
*Function* 1456 - Building Improvement Services 12,005.00 .00 .00 12,004.31 .69 100
*Function* 1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal 350,000.00 .00 .00 350,000.00 .00 100
*Function* 1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund 25,488.00 .00 .00 .00 25,488.00 0
*Function* 1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund 133,809.00 .00 .00 .00 133,809.00 0
*Function* 1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC 15,000.00 .00 .00 15,000.00 .00 100
Expense $7,439,182.00 $657,953.33 $89,184.25 $4,001,227.78 $3,348,769.97 55 %

910 - WIHI - IB Program ($156,373.00) $25,542.89 ($89,184.25) $1,075,565.35 ($1,142,754.10) 15%

Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 2

Packet page 40 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
913 - ECA Program
Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 4,966,901.00 422,477.99 .00 3,409,173.28 1,557,727.72 69
Revenue $4,966,901.00 $422,477.99 $0.00 $3,409,173.28 $1,557,727.72 69 %
Expense

*Function* 1113 - High School 3,328,072.00 159,144.69 .00 1,819,256.87 1,508,815.13 55
*Function* 1212 - Guidance Services 293,202.00 23,757.59 .00 193,166.95 100,035.05 66
*Function* 1216 - Social Work Services 93,355.00 (10,709.90) .00 42,795.60 50,559.40 46
*Function* 1218 - Teacher Consultant 10,938.00 .00 .00 .00 10,938.00 0
*Function* 1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff 425,341.00 45,251.50 .00 276,545.97 148,795.03 65
*Function* 1241 - Office of the Principal 390,874.00 33,387.44 .00 236,072.69 154,801.31 60
*Function* 1249 - Other School Administration 24,740.00 56.31 .00 295.29 24,444.71 1
*Function* 1259 - Other Business Services .00 .00 .00 252.50 (252.50) 0
*Function* 1271 - Pupil Transportation Services 5,000.00 .00 .00 1,800.00 3,200.00 36
*Function* 1281 - Planning, Research and Evaluation 11.00 .00 .00 .00 11.00 0
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 85,281.00 6,762.57 .00 57,331.53 27,949.47 67
*Function* 1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools 318,023.00 105,300.00 .00 192,300.00 125,723.00 60
*Function* 1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0
*Function* 1599 - Miscellaneous Other Financing So 280,508.00 .00 .00 .00 280,508.00 0
*Function* 1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund 18,624.00 .00 .00 .00 18,624.00 0
*Function* 1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund 97,773.00 .00 .00 .00 97,773.00 0
*Function* 1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC 15,000.00 .00 .00 15,000.00 .00 100
Expense $5,386,742.00 $362,950.20 $0.00 $2,834,817.40 $2,551,924.60 53 %

913 - ECA Program ($419,841.00) $59,527.79 $0.00 $574,355.88 ($994,196.88) 16 %

Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 3

Packet page 41 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
915 - WAVE Program
Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 3,391,238.00 277,196.36 .00 2,134,991.96 1,256,246.04 63
*Function* 0192 - MI Ctr Youth Justice Wave Grant 1,839.00 .00 .00 1,838.14 .86 100
Revenue $3,393,077.00 $277,196.36 $0.00 $2,136,830.10 $1,256,246.90 63 %
Expense

*Function* 1112 - Middle/Junior High 275,366.00 21,541.30 .00 69,621.67 205,744.33 25
*Function* 1113 - High School 1,392,834.00 116,898.95 131.49 922,223.99 470,478.52 66
*Function* 1212 - Guidance Services 266,912.00 21,696.68 .00 172,354.52 94,557.48 65
*Function* 1216 - Social Work Services 104,966.00 (12,280.05) .00 46,992.61 57,973.39 45
*Function* 1218 - Teacher Consultant 43,500.00 .00 .00 .00 43,500.00 0
*Function* 1221 - Improvement of Instruction 2,709.00 .00 .00 79.00 2,630.00 3
*Function* 1222 - Educational Media Services 61,340.00 4,266.14 .00 37,082.18 24,257.82 60
*Function* 1225 - Instructional Technology 97,397.00 6,180.64 290.40 56,243.55 40,863.05 58
*Function* 1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff 404,458.00 32,341.68 .00 285,406.46 119,051.54 71
*Function* 1249 - Other School Administration 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0
*Function* 1261 - Operating Buildings Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0
*Function* 1271 - Pupil Transportation Services 5,295.00 .00 .00 1,650.00 3,645.00 31
*Function* 1283 - Staff/Personnel Services 1,615.00 .00 .00 .00 1,615.00 0
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 103,005.00 8,193.77 .00 68,447.17 34,557.83 66
*Function* 1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools 212,015.00 70,200.00 .00 128,200.00 83,815.00 60
*Function* 1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal 198,444.00 16,537.00 .00 132,296.00 66,148.00 67
*Function* 1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund 10,758.00 .00 .00 .00 10,758.00 0
*Function* 1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund 56,477.00 .00 .00 .00 56,477.00 0
*Function* 1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC 31,301.00 .00 .00 30,000.00 1,301.00 96
Expense $3,269,892.00 $285,576.11 $421.89 $1,950,597.15 $1,318,872.96 60 %

915 - WAVE Program $123,185.00 ($8,379.75) ($421.89) $186,232.95 ($62,626.06) 3%

Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 4

Packet page 42 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
917 - Washtenaw County Tech Consortium
Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 738,860.00 3,751.82 .00 715,789.28 23,070.72 97
Revenue $738,860.00 $3,751.82 $0.00 $715,789.28 $23,070.72 97 %
Expense
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 1,212,977.00 18,190.71 229,716.48 508,221.30 475,039.22 61
Expense $1,212,977.00 $18,190.71 $229,716.48 $508,221.30 $475,039.22 61 %
917 - Washtenaw County Tech Consortium ($474,117.00) ($14,438.89) ($229,716.48) $207,567.98 ($451,968.50) 36 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 5

Packet page 43 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
918 - New World Software

Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 292,748.00 257,495.38 .00 264,355.50 28,392.50 90
Revenue $292,748.00 $257,495.38 $0.00 $264,355.50 $28,392.50 90 %

Expense
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 356,958.00 348.96 53,209.74 184,889.80 118,858.46 67
*Function* 1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0
Expense $356,958.00 $348.96 $53,209.74 $184,889.80 $118,858.46 67 %
918 - New World Software ($64,210.00) $257,146.42 ($53,209.74) $79,465.70 ($90,465.96) 24 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 6

Packet page 44 of 271



Cooperative Activities (Summary)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

*Function* Code Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
919 - Medicaid Programs
Revenue
*Function* 0000 - Revenue 8,822,241.00 716,440.95 .00 5,345,594.79 3,476,646.21 61
Revenue $8,822,241.00 $716,440.95 $0.00 $5,345,594.79 $3,476,646.21 61 %
Expense

*Function* 1213 - Health Services 19,590.00 2,515.00 6,325.00 10,175.00 3,090.00 84
*Function* 1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff 233,881.00 10,962.54 .00 157,150.07 76,730.93 67
*Function* 1231 - Board of Education 4,728.00 .00 .00 4,727.81 .19 100
*Function* 1283 - Staff/Personnel Services 2,566.00 .00 .00 1,972.10 593.90 77
*Function* 1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services 20,540.00 .00 .00 5,162.55 15,377.45 25
*Function* 1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools 6,272,738.00 295,221.00 2,329,015.00 295,221.00 3,648,502.00 42
*Function* 1641 - Fund Modif to GE Cap Proj 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 .00 1,500,000.00 .00 100
Expense $8,054,043.00 $1,808,698.54 $2,335,340.00 $1,974,408.53 $3,744,294.47 54 %

919 - Medicaid Programs $768,198.00 ($1,092,257.59) (%$2,335,340.00) $3,371,186.26 ($267,648.26) 7%

Revenue Totals $26,609,628.00 $2,723,335.20 $0.00 $17,638,578.92 $8,971,049.08 66 %

Expense Totals $26,832,805.00 $3,216,238.95 $2,723,171.18 $12,073,720.18 $12,035,913.64 55 %

27 - Cooperative Activities Fund ($223,177.00) ($492,903.75) ($2,723,171.18) $5,564,858.74 ($3,064,864.56)
Revenue Totals $26,609,628.00 $2,723,335.20 $0.00 $17,638,578.92 $8,971,049.08 66 %
Expense Totals $26,832,805.00 $3,216,238.95 $2,723,171.18 $12,073,720.18 $12,035,913.64 55 %
($223,177.00) ($492,903.75) ($2,723,171.18) $5,564,858.74 ($3,064,864.56)
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:22:19 AM Page - 7

Packet page 45 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
000 - Unassigned
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.000.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0192.0000.000.9864.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 2,756.00 .00 .00 2,755.77 .23 100
27.0312.0000.000.2083.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants 50,000.00 11,476.48 .00 46,127.47 3,872.53 92
27.0312.0000.000.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0312.0070.000.3491.00000.0000 LAWMASC State aid 160.00 .00 .00 159.60 .40 100
27.0518.0000.000.0000.00000.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 1,060,076.00 351,000.00 .00 641,000.00 419,076.00 60
School
0000 - Revenue $1,112,992.00 $362,476.48 $0.00 $690,042.84 $422,949.16 62 %
Revenue $1,112,992.00 $362,476.48 $0.00 $690,042.84 $422,949.16 62 %
Expense
1113 - High School
27.1113.2310.000.0000.00000.0000 Tuition 5,000.00 3,822.00 .00 3,822.00 1,178.00 76
27.1113.3210.000.3490.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 160.00 (135.40) .00 159.60 .40 100
27.1113.3220.000.9864.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.1113.5110.000.9864.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 1,756.00 1,755.77 .00 1,755.77 .23 100
27.1113.5990.000.3490.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.7410.000.3490.00000.0000 Dues and Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1113 - High School $7,916.00 $6,442.37 $0.00 $6,737.37 $1,178.63 85 %
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff
27.1226.1160.000.0000.00000.0000 Supervision/Direction-Staff 191,480.00 15,788.91 .00 114,941.06 76,538.94 60
27.1226.1620.000.0000.00000.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 55,000.00 3,666.67 .00 29,333.40 25,666.60 53
27.1226.2110.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 143.00 7.92 .00 66.00 77.00 46
27.1226.2120.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 416.00 40.60 .00 335.60 80.40 81
27.1226.2130.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 12,180.00 1,673.22 .00 11,361.36 818.64 93
27.1226.2140.000.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,489.00 156.78 .00 989.92 499.08 66
27.1226.2150.000.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 400.00 36.96 .00 255.46 144.54 64
27.1226.2820.000.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 91,681.00 9,595.29 .00 69,445.96 22,235.04 76
27.1226.2820.000.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2830.000.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 14,649.00 1,421.54 .00 10,522.57 4,126.43 72
27.1226.3150.000.0000.00000.0000 Management Services 275,000.00 25,014.16 .00 185,707.88 89,292.12 68
27.1226.3170.000.0000.00000.0000 Legal Services 25,000.00 .00 .00 2,130.00 22,870.00 9
27.1226.3190.000.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 9,500.00 .00 1,276.00 8,464.00 (240.00) 103
27.1226.3210.000.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 750.00 135.40 .00 135.40 614.60 18
27.1226.3220.000.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 4,000.00 177.07 .00 1,121.09 2,878.91 28
27.1226.3430.000.0000.00000.0000 Mail/Postage Serv .00 .00 .00 91.61 (91.61) +++
27.1226.3610.000.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
27.1226.5910.000.0000.00000.0000 Office Supplies 834.00 .00 .00 338.94 495.06 41
27.1226.6420.000.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0
27.1226.7410.000.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 750.00 .00 .00 313.66 436.34 42
27.1226.7910.000.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures 1,950.00 .00 .00 2,139.96 (189.96) 110
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff $688,743.00 $57,714.52 $1,276.00 $437,693.87 $249,773.13 64 %
1249 - Other School Administration
27.1249.5990.000.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 25,000.00 .00 .00 5,973.53 19,026.47 24
1249 - Other School Administration $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,973.53 $19,026.47 24 %
1252 - Fiscal Services
27.1252.1310.000.0000.00000.0000 Accounting 47,270.00 4,009.80 .00 32,467.56 14,802.44 69
27.1252.1790.000.0000.00000.0000 Other Special Payments .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1252.2110.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 153.00 11.58 .00 99.48 53.52 65
27.1252.2120.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 137.00 10.02 .00 88.32 48.68 64
27.1252.2130.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 10,441.00 869.38 .00 6,837.50 3,603.50 65
27.1252.2140.000.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 690.00 65.32 .00 468.86 221.14 68
27.1252.2150.000.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 186.00 15.38 .00 121.54 64.46 65
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 1

Packet page 46 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1252.2820.000.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 22,554.00 1,970.42 .00 15,456.67 7,097.33 69
27.1252.2820.000.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1252.2830.000.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 3,780.00 288.68 .00 2,345.45 1,434.55 62
27.1252.2990.000.0000.00000.0000 Other Benefits .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1252.3220.000.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 75.00 .00 .00 75.00 .00 100
27.1252.3410.000.0000.00000.0000 Telephone Serv 300.00 24.98 .00 199.84 100.16 67
1252 - Fiscal Services $85,586.00 $7,265.56 $0.00 $58,160.22 $27,425.78 68 %
1261 - Operating Buildings Services
27.1261.4210.000.0000.00000.0000 Land/Building Rental Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1261 - Operating Buildings Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services
27.1283.3120.000.0000.00000.0000 Employee Training & Devel Serv 4,167.00 .00 .00 .00 4,167.00 0
27.1283.3190.000.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 3,125.00 .00 .00 402.00 2,723.00 13
27.1283.3510.000.0000.00000.0000 Advertisement Serv 25,000.00 .00 14,022.82 18,569.13 (7,591.95) 130
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services $32,292.00 $0.00 $14,022.82 $18,971.13 ($701.95) 102 %
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1510.000.0000.00000.0000 Information Management 136,400.00 5,100.00 .00 40,800.00 95,600.00 30
27.1284.1920.000.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education 730.00 .00 .00 .00 730.00 0
27.1284.2110.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 62.00 3.60 .00 32.28 29.72 52
27.1284.2120.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 202.00 13.14 .00 117.72 84.28 58
27.1284.2130.000.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 11,712.00 .00 .00 .00 11,712.00 0
27.1284.2140.000.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 943.00 .00 .00 .00 943.00 0
27.1284.2150.000.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 236.00 .00 .00 .00 236.00 0
27.1284.2820.000.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 65,309.00 2,180.76 .00 18,466.08 46,842.92 28
27.1284.2820.000.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.2830.000.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 10,435.00 390.15 .00 3,121.22 7,313.78 30
27.1284.3220.000.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
27.1284.3450.000.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 5,000.00 .00 .00 3,969.80 1,030.20 79
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $231,550.00 $7,687.65 $0.00 $66,507.10 $165,042.90 29 %
1391 - Other Community Services
27.1391.5990.000.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 2,084.00 .00 .00 .00 2,084.00 0
1391 - Other Community Services $2,084.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,084.00 0%
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal
27.1511.7190.000.0000.00000.0000 Other LT Debt Principal 39,840.00 3,411.00 .00 25,515.00 14,325.00 64
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal $39,840.00 $3,411.00 $0.00 $25,515.00 $14,325.00 64 %
Expense $1,113,011.00 $82,521.10 $15,298.82 $619,558.22 $478,153.96 57 %
000 - Unassigned ($19.00) $279,955.38 ($15,298.82) $70,484.62 ($55,204.80) 5%
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 2

Packet page 47 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
910 - WIHI - IB Program
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.910.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits .00 .00 .00 3,528.88 (3,528.88) +++
27.0192.0000.910.9868.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.0199.0000.910.0000.00000.0000 Miscellaneous Local Revenues .00 4,075.00 .00 16,075.00 (16,075.00) +++
27.0312.0000.910.2083.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants 500,000.00 95,254.82 .00 382,858.07 117,141.93 77
27.0312.0000.910.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81010.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 1,104,440.00 98,882.33 .00 791,058.64 313,381.36 72
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81020.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 4,983,670.00 413,023.90 .00 3,304,191.18 1,679,478.82 66
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81040.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 9,128.00 3,803.17 .00 30,425.36 (21,297.36) 333
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81070.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 465,508.00 48,680.53 .00 389,444.24 76,063.76 84
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81080.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools .00 3,042.53 .00 24,340.24 (24,340.24) +++
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81100.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 45,638.00 4,563.80 .00 36,510.40 9,127.60 80
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81120.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 173,425.00 8,366.97 .00 66,935.76 106,489.24 39
27.0511.0000.910.0000.81140.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools .00 3,803.17 .00 30,425.36 (30,425.36) +++
0000 - Revenue $7,282,809.00 $683,496.22 $0.00 $5,076,793.13 $2,206,015.87 70 %
Revenue $7,282,809.00 $683,496.22 $0.00 $5,076,793.13 $2,206,015.87 70 %
Expense
1112 - Middle/Junior High
27.1112.1240.910.0000.00000.0000 Teaching 182,305.00 29,297.00 .00 206,282.67 (23,977.67) 113
27.1112.1920.910.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1112.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 362.00 18.00 .00 149.76 212.24 41
27.1112.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 1,277.00 73.28 .00 607.58 669.42 48
27.1112.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 71,730.00 3,012.88 .00 25,369.19 46,360.81 35
27.1112.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 8,040.00 424.10 .00 2,930.31 5,109.69 36
27.1112.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 1,987.00 100.92 .00 764.72 1,222.28 38
27.1112.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 87,288.00 14,139.61 .00 98,792.42 (11,504.42) 113
27.1112.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1112.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 13,947.00 2,183.28 .00 15,184.23 (1,237.23) 109
1112 - Middle/Junior High $366,936.00 $49,249.07 $0.00 $350,080.88 $16,855.12 95 %
1113 - High School
27.1113.1240.910.0000.00000.0000 Teaching 2,128,732.00 171,110.45 .00 1,078,234.39 1,050,497.61 51
27.1113.1790.910.0000.00000.0000 Other Special Payments 782.00 .00 .00 .00 782.00 0
27.1113.1920.910.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education 47,300.00 .00 .00 14,687.62 32,612.38 31
27.1113.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 1,750.00 118.41 .00 874.14 875.86 50
27.1113.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 10,847.00 460.10 .00 3,509.27 7,337.73 32
27.1113.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 293,835.00 26,060.25 .00 172,676.77 121,158.23 59
27.1113.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 26,221.00 2,174.33 .00 13,137.50 13,083.50 50
27.1113.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 7,313.00 487.80 .00 3,320.42 3,992.58 45
27.1113.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 1,042,259.00 81,514.44 .00 501,669.02 540,589.98 48
27.1113.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 166,527.00 12,652.52 .00 80,305.32 86,221.68 48
27.1113.3190.910.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
27.1113.3210.910.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1113.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 7,000.00 (736.60) .00 (843.11) 7,843.11 -12
27.1113.3450.910.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 27,000.00 .00 40.00 16,412.41 10,547.59 61
27.1113.3610.910.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 5,635.00 .00 .00 3,723.94 1,911.06 66
27.1113.4120.910.0000.00000.0000 Equip Repair Serv 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
27.1113.4140.910.0000.00000.0000 Software Maint Agmts Serv 7,292.00 .00 .00 915.71 6,376.29 13
27.1113.5110.910.0000.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 36,000.00 (1,414.48) 8,696.06 14,498.97 12,804.97 64
27.1113.5210.910.0000.00000.0000 Textbook Supp 5,209.00 .00 .00 1,476.10 3,732.90 28
27.1113.5990.910.9868.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0
27.1113.6420.910.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 6,000.00 .00 .00 1,335.00 4,665.00 22
27.1113.7410.910.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 33,000.00 .00 5,103.76 26,342.20 1,554.04 95
1113 - High School $3,855,005.00 $292,427.22 $13,839.82 $1,932,275.67 $1,908,889.51 50 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 3

Packet page 48 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
1212 - Guidance Services
27.1212.1220.910.0000.00000.0000 Counseling 176,787.00 19,692.22 .00 103,676.22 73,110.78 59
27.1212.1790.910.0000.00000.0000 Other Special Payments 417.00 .00 .00 .00 417.00 0
27.1212.1920.910.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1212.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 108.00 9.00 .00 76.23 3177 71
27.1212.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 353.00 36.24 .00 285.52 67.48 81
27.1212.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 37,240.00 1,884.43 .00 13,707.63 23,532.37 37
27.1212.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,525.00 152.41 .00 1,003.00 522.00 66
27.1212.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 395.00 36.11 .00 260.65 134.35 66
27.1212.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 84,846.00 9,329.15 .00 48,811.17 36,034.83 58
27.1212.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1212.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 13,557.00 1,482.76 .00 7,729.15 5,827.85 57
27.1212.3210.910.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1212.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 2,000.00 0
1212 - Guidance Services $317,489.00 $32,622.32 $0.00 $175,549.57 $141,939.43 55 %
1216 - Social Work Services
27.1216.1440.910.0000.00000.0000 Social Work 117,125.00 9,926.67 .00 61,879.97 55,245.03 53
27.1216.1920.910.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 118.00 7.20 .00 52.43 65.57 44
27.1216.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 423.00 24.36 .00 170.48 252.52 40
27.1216.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 30,046.00 1,973.08 .00 12,722.25 17,323.75 42
27.1216.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 2,294.00 148.04 .00 874.84 1,419.16 38
27.1216.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 627.00 35.36 .00 228.18 398.82 36
27.1216.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 56,080.00 4,760.83 .00 29,677.79 26,402.21 53
27.1216.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 8,961.00 755.55 .00 4,680.10 4,280.90 52
27.1216.3210.910.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1216.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0
1216 - Social Work Services $216,935.00 $17,631.09 $0.00 $110,286.04 $106,648.96 51 %
1218 - Teacher Consultant
27.1218.8220.910.0000.00000.0000 Pmt to Another Public School District for Serv 25,000.00 .00 .00 .00 25,000.00 0
1218 - Teacher Consultant $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0%
1221 - Improvement of Instruction
27.1221.3110.910.0000.00000.0000 Instructional Services 880.00 .00 .00 .00 880.00 0
27.1221.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1221 - Improvement of Instruction $880.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $880.00 0%
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff
27.1226.1620.910.0000.00000.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 243,800.00 13,116.66 .00 139,362.97 104,437.03 57
27.1226.1920.910.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 186.00 11.52 .00 128.40 57.60 69
27.1226.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 522.00 33.14 .00 361.78 160.22 69
27.1226.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 88,660.00 5,126.10 .00 49,476.83 39,183.17 56
27.1226.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 3,519.00 418.04 .00 2,865.49 653.51 81
27.1226.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 946.00 98.56 .00 742.49 203.51 78
27.1226.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 116,732.00 6,213.99 .00 65,454.44 51,277.56 56
27.1226.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 18,651.00 941.93 .00 10,107.30 8,543.70 54
27.1226.3190.910.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 250.00 .00 .00 .00 250.00 0
27.1226.3210.910.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 6.00 255.00 2
27.1226.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.3430.910.0000.00000.0000 Mail/Postage Serv 521.00 .00 .00 707.38 (186.38) 136
27.1226.3450.910.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 2,500.00 .00 .00 2,434.22 65.78 97
27.1226.3610.910.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 8,900.00 .00 .00 5,089.03 3,810.97 57
27.1226.4120.910.0000.00000.0000 Equip Repair Serv 250.00 .00 .00 .00 250.00 0
27.1226.5910.910.0000.00000.0000 Office Supplies 6,000.00 .00 .00 2,592.82 3,407.18 43
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 4

Packet page 49 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1226.7910.910.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures 1,001.00 .00 .00 .00 1,001.00 0
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff $492,699.00 $25,959.94 $0.00 $279,329.15 $213,369.85 57 %
1241 - Office of the Principal
27.1241.1160.910.0000.00000.0000 Supervision/Direction-Staff 390,250.00 19,145.83 .00 155,666.68 234,583.32 40
27.1241.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 292.00 7.20 .00 64.56 227.44 22
27.1241.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 704.00 44.92 .00 407.12 296.88 58
27.1241.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 73,788.00 582.86 .00 10,763.68 63,024.32 15
27.1241.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 5,135.00 174.18 .00 1,701.24 3,433.76 33
27.1241.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 1,363.00 41.42 .00 445.96 917.04 33
27.1241.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 186,852.00 9,408.26 .00 74,649.92 112,202.08 40
27.1241.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1241.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 29,855.00 1,418.97 .00 11,489.27 18,365.73 38
27.1241.3210.910.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0
27.1241.3220.910.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 2,000.00 0
27.1241.7410.910.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 750.00 .00 .00 .00 750.00 0
1241 - Office of the Principal $691,489.00 $30,823.64 $0.00 $255,188.43 $436,300.57 37 %
1249 - Other School Administration
27.1249.5990.910.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 25,000.00 .00 3,700.00 20.00 21,280.00 15
1249 - Other School Administration $25,000.00 $0.00 $3,700.00 $20.00 $21,280.00 15 %
1261 - Operating Buildings Services
27.1261.3410.910.0000.00000.0000 Telephone Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.3830.910.0000.00000.0000 Water Sewage Serv 6,500.00 .00 .00 .00 6,500.00 0
27.1261.3840.910.0000.00000.0000 Waste/Trash Serv 2,000.00 .00 .00 2,548.68 (548.68) 127
27.1261.4110.910.0000.00000.0000 Building Repair Serv 205,500.00 25,679.25 71,644.43 134,073.77 (218.20) 100
27.1261.4210.910.0000.00000.0000 Land/Building Rental Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.5510.910.0000.00000.0000 Natural Gas Supp 25,000.00 .00 .00 .00 25,000.00 0
27.1261.5520.910.0000.00000.0000 Electricity Supp 44,000.00 .00 .00 .00 44,000.00 0
27.1261.5990.910.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
1261 - Operating Buildings Services $283,521.00 $25,679.25 $71,644.43 $136,622.45 $75,254.12 73 %
1266 - Security Services
27.1266.5990.910.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
1266 - Security Services $261.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $261.00 0%
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services
27.1271.3310.910.0000.00000.0000 Transportation Serv-Cont Carrier .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1510.910.0000.00000.0000 Information Management 55,200.00 4,766.67 .00 38,133.32 17,066.68 69
27.1284.2110.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 51.00 3.60 .00 32.28 18.72 63
27.1284.2120.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 165.00 12.30 .00 107.04 57.96 65
27.1284.2130.910.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 6,814.00 582.86 .00 4,572.52 2,241.48 67
27.1284.2140.910.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 451.00 43.54 .00 312.56 138.44 69
27.1284.2150.910.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 126.00 10.62 .00 83.88 42.12 67
27.1284.2820.910.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 26,430.00 2,276.56 .00 18,212.48 8,217.52 69
27.1284.2820.910.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.2830.910.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 4,223.00 364.65 .00 2,917.20 1,305.80 69
27.1284.3450.910.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 4,167.00 .00 .00 .00 4,167.00 0
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $97,627.00 $8,060.80 $0.00 $64,371.28 $33,255.72 66 %
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools
27.1411.8510.910.0000.00000.0000 Sub-Grantee / Flow through Disbursements 530,038.00 175,500.00 .00 320,500.00 209,538.00 60
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools $530,038.00 $175,500.00 $0.00 $320,500.00 $209,538.00 60 %
1456 - Building Improvement Services
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 5

Packet page 50 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1456.6450.910.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip >$5000 12,005.00 .00 .00 12,004.31 .69 100
1456 - Building Improvement Services $12,005.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,004.31 $0.69 100 %
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal
27.1511.7190.910.0000.00000.0000 Other LT Debt Principal 350,000.00 .00 .00 350,000.00 .00 100
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 100 %
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund
27.1611.9990.910.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 25,488.00 .00 .00 .00 25,488.00 0
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund $25,488.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,488.00 0%
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund
27.1622.9990.910.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 133,809.00 .00 .00 .00 133,809.00 0
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund $133,809.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $133,809.00 0%
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC
27.1647.8110.910.0000.00000.0000 Fund Modifications 15,000.00 .00 .00 15,000.00 .00 100
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100 %
Expense $7,439,182.00 $657,953.33 $89,184.25 $4,001,227.78 $3,348,769.97 55 %
910 - WIHI - IB Program ($156,373.00) $25,542.89 ($89,184.25) $1,075,565.35 ($1,142,754.10) 15 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 6

Packet page 51 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
913 - ECA Program
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.913.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits 20,900.00 4,773.91 .00 40,280.70 (19,380.70) 193
27.0192.0000.913.9865.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.0199.0000.913.0000.00000.0000 Miscellaneous Local Revenues .00 .00 .00 4,067.00 (4,067.00) +++
27.0312.0000.913.2083.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants 250,000.00 49,557.55 .00 199,186.84 50,813.16 80
27.0312.0000.913.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0511.0000.913.0000.00000.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 209,022.00 .00 .00 .00 209,022.00 0
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81010.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 784,974.00 69,978.27 .00 571,572.57 213,401.43 73
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81020.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 1,086,185.00 93,557.90 .00 754,895.65 331,289.35 69
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81040.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 36,511.00 4,563.80 .00 82,012.28 (45,501.28) 225
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81050.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 73,021.00 .00 .00 132,055.23 (59,034.23) 181
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81070.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 1,049,674.00 106,488.66 .00 861,992.58 187,681.42 82
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81080.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 164,297.00 14,452.03 .00 116,311.64 47,985.36 71
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81100.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 428,998.00 44,877.37 .00 368,406.86 60,591.14 86
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81120.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 292,084.00 21,297.73 .00 173,250.37 118,833.63 59
27.0511.0000.913.0000.81140.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 118,659.00 12,930.77 .00 104,141.56 14,517.44 88
27.0511.0000.913.0000.82430.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 451,576.00 .00 .00 .00 451,576.00 0
0000 - Revenue $4,966,901.00 $422,477.99 $0.00 $3,409,173.28 $1,557,727.72 69 %
Revenue $4,966,901.00 $422,477.99 $0.00 $3,409,173.28 $1,557,727.72 69 %
Expense
1113 - High School
27.1113.1240.913.0000.00000.0000 Teaching 1,131,150.00 91,471.09 .00 553,395.24 577,754.76 49
27.1113.1630.913.0000.00000.0000 Aides .00 .00 .00 11,550.00 (11,550.00) +++
27.1113.1920.913.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education 46,700.00 .00 .00 32,622.00 14,078.00 70
27.1113.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 702.00 61.20 .00 418.78 283.22 60
27.1113.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 2,740.00 22454 .00 1,823.96 916.04 67
27.1113.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 166,594.00 15,438.16 .00 98,297.29 68,296.71 59
27.1113.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 11,667.00 1,227.94 .00 7,175.83 4,491.17 62
27.1113.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 3,155.00 291.94 .00 1,859.47 1,295.53 59
27.1113.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 563,955.00 43,853.73 .00 280,010.78 283,944.22 50
27.1113.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 90,106.00 6,552.94 .00 42,344.70 47,761.30 47
27.1113.3190.913.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 1,119,492.00 .00 .00 700,000.00 419,492.00 63
27.1113.3210.913.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1113.3220.913.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 5,938.00 .00 .00 615.34 5,322.66 10
27.1113.3450.913.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 7,020.00 .00 .00 7,018.02 1.98 100
27.1113.3610.913.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 20,021.00 .00 .00 8,994.15 11,026.85 45
27.1113.3710.913.0000.00000.0000 Tuition Services 9,800.00 .00 .00 2,868.00 6,932.00 29
27.1113.5110.913.0000.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 125,000.00 23.15 .00 59,457.90 65,542.10 48
27.1113.5990.913.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 19,271.00 (1,000.00) .00 9,626.41 9,644.59 50
27.1113.5990.913.9865.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.1113.6420.913.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 2,000.00 .00 .00 179.00 1,821.00 9
27.1113.6460.913.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip <$5000 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0
1113 - High School $3,328,072.00 $159,144.69 $0.00 $1,819,256.87 $1,508,815.13 55 %
1212 - Guidance Services
27.1212.1220.913.0000.00000.0000 Counseling 154,400.00 12,866.66 .00 102,933.36 51,466.64 67
27.1212.1920.913.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education 678.00 .00 .00 2,915.00 (2,237.00) 430
27.1212.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 122.00 7.20 .00 64.56 57.44 53
27.1212.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 467.00 32.10 .00 289.20 177.80 62
27.1212.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 44,534.00 3,289.67 .00 26,277.12 18,256.88 59
27.1212.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 3,660.00 261.28 .00 1,875.44 1,784.56 51
27.1212.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 896.00 61.60 .00 486.32 409.68 54
27.1212.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 74,252.00 6,322.67 .00 50,792.85 23,459.15 68
27.1212.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 7

Packet page 52 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1212.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 11,864.00 916.41 .00 7,533.10 4,330.90 63
27.1212.3220.913.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,521.00 .00 .00 .00 1,521.00 0
27.1212.7410.913.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 808.00 .00 .00 .00 808.00 0
1212 - Guidance Services $293,202.00 $23,757.59 $0.00 $193,166.95 $100,035.05 66 %
1216 - Social Work Services
27.1216.1440.913.0000.00000.0000 Social Work 56,200.00 (8,116.67) .00 25,290.02 30,909.98 45
27.1216.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 40.00 (8.94) .00 21.42 18.58 54
27.1216.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 127.00 (25.10) .00 69.26 57.74 55
27.1216.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 5,326.00 582.86 .00 3,091.84 2,234.16 58
27.1216.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 354.00 43.54 .00 214.86 139.14 61
27.1216.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 99.00 10.62 .00 56.74 42.26 57
27.1216.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 26,909.00 (2,575.29) .00 12,128.94 14,780.06 45
27.1216.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 4,300.00 (620.92) .00 1,922.52 2,377.48 45
1216 - Social Work Services $93,355.00 ($10,709.90) $0.00 $42,795.60 $50,559.40 46 %
1218 - Teacher Consultant
27.1218.8220.913.0000.00000.0000 Pmt to Another Public School District for Serv 10,938.00 .00 .00 .00 10,938.00 0
1218 - Teacher Consultant $10,938.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,938.00 0%
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff
27.1226.1170.913.0000.00000.0000 Program/Department Direction 79,575.00 6,631.25 .00 53,050.00 26,525.00 67
27.1226.1620.913.0000.00000.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 167,800.00 22,683.33 .00 110,316.66 57,483.34 66
27.1226.1920.913.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 209.00 23.34 .00 128.22 80.78 61
27.1226.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 697.00 78.02 .00 459.58 237.42 66
27.1226.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 7,052.00 582.86 .00 4,593.52 2,458.48 65
27.1226.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,968.00 148.04 .00 1,062.76 905.24 54
27.1226.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 627.00 35.36 .00 279.28 347.72 45
27.1226.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 118,444.00 12,818.54 .00 77,609.98 40,834.02 66
27.1226.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 18,925.00 2,214.73 .00 12,266.99 6,658.01 65
27.1226.3150.913.0000.00000.0000 Management Services 2,605.00 .00 .00 .00 2,605.00 0
27.1226.3190.913.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 6,584.00 .00 .00 331.83 6,252.17 5
27.1226.3210.913.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 36.03 .00 36.03 224.97 14
27.1226.3220.913.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 3,675.00 .00 .00 3,583.05 91.95 97
27.1226.3610.913.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 3,500.00 .00 .00 3,040.72 459.28 87
27.1226.4120.913.0000.00000.0000 Equip Repair Serv 625.00 .00 .00 .00 625.00 0
27.1226.5910.913.0000.00000.0000 Office Supplies 7,000.00 .00 .00 4,965.96 2,034.04 71
27.1226.6420.913.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 521.00 .00 .00 (357.43) 878.43 -69
27.1226.7410.913.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 573.00 .00 .00 .00 573.00 0
27.1226.7910.913.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures 4,700.00 .00 .00 5,178.82 (478.82) 110
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff $425,341.00 $45,251.50 $0.00 $276,545.97 $148,795.03 65 %
1241 - Office of the Principal
27.1241.1160.913.0000.00000.0000 Supervision/Direction-Staff 231,000.00 19,157.66 .00 136,333.34 94,666.66 59
27.1241.1920.913.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1241.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 67.00 7.20 .00 56.20 10.80 84
27.1241.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 384.00 44.50 .00 353.00 31.00 92
27.1241.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 22,670.00 3,100.82 .00 21,873.12 796.88 96
27.1241.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,860.00 235.14 .00 1,507.52 352.48 81
27.1241.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 456.00 55.54 .00 389.92 66.08 86
27.1241.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 110,603.00 9,459.44 .00 65,747.54 44,855.46 59
27.1241.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1241.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 17,672.00 1,327.14 .00 9,349.05 8,322.95 53
27.1241.3210.913.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 938.00 .00 .00 .00 938.00 0
27.1241.3220.913.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 4,000.00 .00 .00 13.00 3,987.00 0
27.1241.7410.913.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 1,224.00 .00 .00 450.00 774.00 37
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 8

Packet page 53 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
1241 - Office of the Principal $390,874.00 $33,387.44 $0.00 $236,072.69 $154,801.31 60 %
1249 - Other School Administration
27.1249.5990.913.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 24,740.00 56.31 .00 295.29 24,444.71 1
1249 - Other School Administration $24,740.00 $56.31 $0.00 $295.29 $24,444.71 1%
1259 - Other Business Services
27.1259.7910.913.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures .00 .00 .00 252.50 (252.50) +++
1259 - Other Business Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $252.50 ($252.50) +++
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services
27.1271.3310.913.0000.00000.0000 Transportation Serv-Cont Carrier 5,000.00 .00 .00 1,800.00 3,200.00 36
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $3,200.00 36 %
1281 - Planning, Research and Evaluation
27.1281.5910.913.0000.00000.0000 Office Supplies 11.00 .00 .00 .00 11.00 0
1281 - Planning, Research and Evaluation $11.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11.00 0%
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1510.913.0000.00000.0000 Information Management 47,200.00 3,933.33 .00 31,466.68 15,733.32 67
27.1284.2110.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 51.00 3.60 .00 32.28 18.72 63
27.1284.2120.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 136.00 9.82 .00 87.20 48.80 64
27.1284.2130.913.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 6,856.00 582.86 .00 4,593.52 2,262.48 67
27.1284.2140.913.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 451.00 43.54 .00 312.56 138.44 69
27.1284.2150.913.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 126.00 10.62 .00 83.88 42.12 67
27.1284.2820.913.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 22,600.00 1,878.56 .00 15,028.48 7,571.52 66
27.1284.2820.913.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.2830.913.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 3,611.00 300.24 .00 2,403.93 1,207.07 67
27.1284.3450.913.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 4,250.00 .00 .00 3,323.00 927.00 78
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $85,281.00 $6,762.57 $0.00 $57,331.53 $27,949.47 67 %
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools
27.1411.8510.913.0000.00000.0000 Sub-Grantee / Flow through Disbursements 318,023.00 105,300.00 .00 192,300.00 125,723.00 60
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools $318,023.00 $105,300.00 $0.00 $192,300.00 $125,723.00 60 %
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal
27.1511.7190.913.0000.00000.0000 Other LT Debt Principal .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1599 - Miscellaneous Other Financing So
27.1599.7190.913.0000.00000.0000 Other LT Debt Principal 280,508.00 .00 .00 .00 280,508.00 0
1599 - Miscellaneous Other Financing So $280,508.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $280,508.00 0%
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund
27.1611.9990.913.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 18,624.00 .00 .00 .00 18,624.00 0
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund $18,624.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,624.00 0%
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund
27.1622.9990.913.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 97,773.00 .00 .00 .00 97,773.00 0
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund $97,773.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $97,773.00 0%
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC
27.1647.8110.913.0000.00000.0000 Fund Modifications 15,000.00 .00 .00 15,000.00 .00 100
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100 %
Expense $5,386,742.00 $362,950.20 $0.00 $2,834,817.40 $2,551,924.60 53 %
913 - ECA Program ($419,841.00) $59,527.79 $0.00 $574,355.88 ($994,196.88) 16 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 9

Packet page 54 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
915 - WAVE Program
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.915.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits 6,750.00 1,757.50 .00 14,713.88 (7,963.88) 218
27.0192.0000.915.9861.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 2,000.00 .00 .00 2,000.00 .00 100
27.0192.0000.915.9862.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0192.0000.915.9868.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 1,690.00 .00 .00 1,689.45 .55 100
27.0192.0000.915.9899.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.0192.0000.915.9915.00000.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 65,000.00 .00 .00 65,000.00 .00 100
27.0212.0000.915.9869.00405.0000 Restricted Revenues Received Through Non-Educational Entity .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0312.0000.915.2083.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants 200,000.00 44,966.95 .00 180,735.85 19,264.15 90
27.0312.0000.915.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81010.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 310,339.00 8,366.97 .00 66,935.76 243,403.24 22
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81020.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 933,298.00 65,414.47 .00 523,315.76 409,982.24 56
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81040.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 54,766.00 10,648.87 .00 85,190.96 (30,424.96) 156
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81050.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 63,894.00 .00 .00 26,077.50 37,816.50 41
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81070.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 876,250.00 74,542.07 .00 596,336.56 279,913.44 68
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81080.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 182,552.00 11,409.50 .00 91,276.00 91,276.00 50
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81100.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 474,636.00 42,595.47 .00 340,763.76 133,872.24 72
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81120.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 173,425.00 14,452.03 .00 115,616.24 57,808.76 67
27.0511.0000.915.0000.81140.0000 Tuition Payments Received from Other Public Schools 45,638.00 3,042.53 .00 24,340.24 21,297.76 53
0000 - Revenue $3,391,238.00 $277,196.36 $0.00 $2,134,991.96 $1,256,246.04 63 %
0192 - MI Ctr Youth Justice Wave Grant
27.0192.0000.915.9745.00405.0000 Private Sources (Contributions) 1,839.00 .00 .00 1,838.14 .86 100
0192 - MI Ctr Youth Justice Wave Grant $1,839.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,838.14 $0.86 100 %
Revenue $3,393,077.00 $277,196.36 $0.00 $2,136,830.10 $1,256,246.90 63 %
Expense
1112 - Middle/Junior High
27.1112.1240.915.0000.00000.0000 Teaching 146,702.00 15,993.77 .00 39,103.19 107,598.81 27
27.1112.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 100.00 9.53 .00 25.03 74.97 25
27.1112.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 200.00 39.89 .00 102.70 97.30 51
27.1112.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 20,400.00 2,049.98 .00 7,133.59 13,266.41 35
27.1112.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,000.00 155.46 .00 512.07 487.93 51
27.1112.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 5,000.00 36.86 .00 127.96 4,872.04 3
27.1112.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 70,241.00 7,531.47 .00 18,300.64 51,940.36 26
27.1112.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 11,223.00 1,169.34 .00 2,816.12 8,406.88 25
27.1112.3210.915.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0
27.1112.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 2,500.00 .00 .00 1,500.00 1,000.00 60
27.1112.5110.915.0000.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 5,500.00 (5,445.00) .00 .37 5,499.63 0
27.1112.5210.915.0000.00000.0000 Textbook Supp 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0
27.1112.6420.915.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0
27.1112.6460.915.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip <$5000 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0
27.1112.7910.915.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0
1112 - Middle/Junior High $275,366.00 $21,541.30 $0.00 $69,621.67 $205,744.33 25 %
1113 - High School
27.1113.1240.915.0000.00000.0000 Teaching 692,245.00 38,564.45 .00 493,802.36 198,442.64 71
27.1113.1240.915.9915.00000.0000 Teaching 24,505.00 24,505.00 .00 24,505.00 .00 100
27.1113.1290.915.9899.00000.0000 Other Professional Educational .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.1920.915.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education 43,000.00 (7,500.00) .00 .00 43,000.00 0
27.1113.1920.915.9915.00000.0000 Professional-Education 20,000.00 9,500.00 .00 9,500.00 10,500.00 48
27.1113.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 502.00 30.82 .00 301.18 200.82 60
27.1113.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 2,150.00 191.74 .00 1,560.09 589.91 73
27.1113.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 131,202.00 9,480.86 .00 81,539.80 49,662.20 62
27.1113.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 8,848.00 708.66 .00 5,638.88 3,209.12 64
27.1113.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 2,386.00 175.63 .00 1,489.55 896.45 62
27.1113.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 352,036.00 30,815.86 .00 247,443.36 104,592.64 70
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 10

Packet page 55 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1113.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.2820.915.9915.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 56,247.00 4,760.28 .00 38,355.34 17,891.66 68
27.1113.2830.915.9915.00000.0000 Employer Social Security .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.3190.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1113.3190.915.9869.00405.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.3210.915.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1113.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 4,500.00 220.65 .00 1,345.65 3,154.35 30
27.1113.3450.915.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv .00 .00 .00 3,502.87 (3,502.87) +++
27.1113.3450.915.9745.00405.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.3610.915.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 275.00 .00 131.49 152.98 (9.47) 103
27.1113.3710.915.0000.00000.0000 Tuition Services 7,500.00 (1,000.00) .00 4,813.50 2,686.50 64
27.1113.3710.915.9861.00000.0000 Tuition Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.1113.4140.915.0000.00000.0000 Software Maint Agmts Serv 2,700.00 .00 .00 .00 2,700.00 0
27.1113.5110.915.0000.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 1,600.00 338.63 .00 (9.71) 1,609.71 -1
27.1113.5110.915.9915.00000.0000 Teaching/Testing Supplies 4,445.00 4,445.00 .00 4,445.00 .00 100
27.1113.5210.915.0000.00000.0000 Textbook Supp 782.00 .00 .00 .00 782.00 0
27.1113.5630.915.9869.00405.0000 Merchandise Supp .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.5990.915.9745.00405.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,839.00 (338.63) .00 1,838.14 .86 100
27.1113.5990.915.9868.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.5990.915.9899.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100
27.1113.6420.915.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 15,000.00 .00 .00 .00 15,000.00 0
27.1113.6420.915.9745.00405.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1113.6420.915.9915.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 16,050.00 .00 .00 .00 16,050.00 0
27.1113.6460.915.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip <$5000 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0
27.1113.7910.915.0000.00000.0000 Misc Expenditures 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0
1113 - High School $1,392,834.00 $116,898.95 $131.49 $922,223.99 $470,478.52 66 %
1212 - Guidance Services
27.1212.1220.915.0000.00000.0000 Counseling 150,000.00 12,500.00 .00 100,000.00 50,000.00 67
27.1212.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 134.00 7.20 .00 64.56 69.44 48
27.1212.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 535.00 31.20 .00 275.52 259.48 51
27.1212.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 27,361.00 1,952.36 .00 15,480.28 11,880.72 57
27.1212.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 2,161.00 148.04 .00 1,062.76 1,098.24 49
27.1212.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 665.00 35.36 .00 279.28 385.72 42
27.1212.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 71,820.00 6,142.52 .00 47,973.88 23,846.12 67
27.1212.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1212.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 11,475.00 880.00 .00 7,068.24 4,406.76 62
27.1212.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 2,500.00 .00 .00 150.00 2,350.00 6
27.1212.6420.915.9868.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1212.7410.915.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
1212 - Guidance Services $266,912.00 $21,696.68 $0.00 $172,354.52 $94,557.48 65 %
1216 - Social Work Services
27.1216.1440.915.0000.00000.0000 Social Work 66,200.00 (7,999.21) .00 30,617.44 35,582.56 46
27.1216.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 51.00 2.72 .00 31.40 19.60 62
27.1216.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 192.00 10.39 .00 120.15 71.85 63
27.1216.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 31,697.00 (3,682.01) .00 13,881.37 17,815.63 44
27.1216.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1216.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 5,065.00 (611.94) .00 2,342.25 2,722.75 46
27.1216.3210.915.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1216.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0
1216 - Social Work Services $104,966.00 ($12,280.05) $0.00 $46,992.61 $57,973.39 45 %
1218 - Teacher Consultant
27.1218.8220.915.0000.00000.0000 Pmt to Another Public School District for Serv 43,500.00 .00 .00 .00 43,500.00 0
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 11

Packet page 56 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
1218 - Teacher Consultant $43,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,500.00 0%
1221 - Improvement of Instruction
27.1221.3120.915.0000.00000.0000 Employee Training & Devel Serv 2,709.00 .00 .00 79.00 2,630.00 3
1221 - Improvement of Instruction $2,709.00 $0.00 $0.00 $79.00 $2,630.00 3%
1222 - Educational Media Services
27.1222.1260.915.0000.00000.0000 Instructional Media 27,342.00 2,278.50 .00 18,228.00 9,114.00 67
27.1222.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 62.00 3.60 .00 32.28 29.72 52
27.1222.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 163.00 4.74 .00 77.07 85.93 47
27.1222.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 16,807.00 623.42 .00 8,188.33 8,618.67 49
27.1222.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,429.00 104.50 .00 750.20 678.80 52
27.1222.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 353.00 24.74 .00 195.40 157.60 55
27.1222.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 13,092.00 1,119.66 .00 8,744.70 4,347.30 67
27.1222.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1222.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 2,092.00 106.98 .00 866.20 1,225.80 41
1222 - Educational Media Services $61,340.00 $4,266.14 $0.00 $37,082.18 $24,257.82 60 %
1225 - Instructional Technology
27.1225.3190.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 521.00 .00 .00 406.70 114.30 78
27.1225.3450.915.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 25,000.00 .00 .00 13,500.00 11,500.00 54
27.1225.3490.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Communic Serv 70,834.00 6,180.64 290.40 42,336.85 28,206.75 60
27.1225.4120.915.0000.00000.0000 Equip Repair Serv 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
27.1225.4140.915.0000.00000.0000 Software Maint Agmts Serv 521.00 .00 .00 .00 521.00 0
1225 - Instructional Technology $97,397.00 $6,180.64 $290.40 $56,243.55 $40,863.05 58 %
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff
27.1226.1170.915.0000.00000.0000 Program/Department Direction 129,600.00 10,583.44 .00 100,174.98 29,425.02 77
27.1226.1620.915.0000.00000.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 106,400.00 8,866.66 .00 70,933.36 35,466.64 67
27.1226.1920.915.0000.00000.0000 Professional-Education .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 161.00 11.16 .00 105.00 56.00 65
27.1226.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 636.00 46.20 .00 426.12 209.88 67
27.1226.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 13,262.00 959.62 .00 9,497.29 3,764.71 72
27.1226.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 2,301.00 246.08 .00 1,709.79 591.21 74
27.1226.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 618.00 49.28 .00 425.37 192.63 69
27.1226.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 112,997.00 9,664.20 .00 81,819.39 31,177.61 72
27.1226.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 18,054.00 1,430.52 .00 12,491.80 5,562.20 69
27.1226.3190.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 2,344.00 .00 .00 .00 2,344.00 0
27.1226.3210.915.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 261.00 .00 .00 .00 261.00 0
27.1226.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 5,000.00 .00 .00 144.00 4,856.00 3
27.1226.3430.915.0000.00000.0000 Mail/Postage Serv 261.00 465.92 .00 465.92 (204.92) 179
27.1226.3610.915.0000.00000.0000 Printing Serv 313.00 18.60 .00 671.97 (358.97) 215
27.1226.5910.915.0000.00000.0000 Office Supplies 6,000.00 .00 .00 5,571.24 428.76 93
27.1226.5990.915.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 3,000.00 .00 .00 970.23 2,029.77 32
27.1226.6420.915.0000.00000.0000 Capital-New Equip <$5000 2,500.00 .00 .00 .00 2,500.00 0
27.1226.7410.915.0000.00000.0000 Dues and Fees 750.00 .00 .00 .00 750.00 0
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff $404,458.00 $32,341.68 $0.00 $285,406.46 $119,051.54 71 %
1249 - Other School Administration
27.1249.5990.915.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0
1249 - Other School Administration $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0%
1261 - Operating Buildings Services
27.1261.1690.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Operation and Service .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1261.4110.915.0000.00000.0000 Building Repair Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 12

Packet page 57 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
27.1261.4210.915.0000.00000.0000 Land/Building Rental Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1261 - Operating Buildings Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services
27.1271.3310.915.0000.00000.0000 Transportation Serv-Cont Carrier 2,605.00 .00 .00 .00 2,605.00 0
27.1271.3310.915.9861.00000.0000 Transportation Serv-Cont Carrier 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0
27.1271.5990.915.9868.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 1,690.00 .00 .00 1,650.00 40.00 98
1271 - Pupil Transportation Services $5,295.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,650.00 $3,645.00 31%
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services
27.1283.3220.915.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,615.00 .00 .00 .00 1,615.00 0
27.1283.3220.915.9862.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1283.3510.915.9915.00000.0000 Advertisement Serv .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services $1,615.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,615.00 0%
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1590.915.0000.00000.0000 Other Technical 57,881.00 4,823.42 .00 38,587.36 19,293.64 67
27.1284.2110.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 62.00 3.60 .00 32.28 29.72 52
27.1284.2120.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 175.00 12.04 .00 107.60 67.40 61
27.1284.2130.915.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 7,054.00 574.22 .00 4,555.24 2,498.76 65
27.1284.2140.915.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 534.00 43.54 .00 312.56 221.44 59
27.1284.2150.915.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 157.00 10.62 .00 83.88 73.12 53
27.1284.2820.915.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 27,714.00 2,370.22 .00 18,511.76 9,202.24 67
27.1284.2820.915.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.2830.915.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 4,428.00 356.11 .00 2,859.73 1,568.27 65
27.1284.3450.915.0000.00000.0000 Software Lic/Agmts Serv 5,000.00 .00 .00 3,396.76 1,603.24 68
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $103,005.00 $8,193.77 $0.00 $68,447.17 $34,557.83 66 %
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools
27.1411.8510.915.0000.00000.0000 Sub-Grantee / Flow through Disbursements 212,015.00 70,200.00 .00 128,200.00 83,815.00 60
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools $212,015.00 $70,200.00 $0.00 $128,200.00 $83,815.00 60 %
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal
27.1511.7190.915.0000.00000.0000 Other LT Debt Principal 198,444.00 16,537.00 .00 132,296.00 66,148.00 67
1511 - Debt Service - Long Term Only - Principal $198,444.00 $16,537.00 $0.00 $132,296.00 $66,148.00 67 %
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund
27.1611.9990.915.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 10,758.00 .00 .00 .00 10,758.00 0
27.1611.9990.915.9915.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund $10,758.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,758.00 0%
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund
27.1622.9990.915.0000.00000.0000 Indirect Cost Recovery 56,477.00 .00 .00 .00 56,477.00 0
1622 - Fund Modif to Special Ed Fund $56,477.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,477.00 0%
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC
27.1647.8110.915.0000.00000.0000 Fund Modifications 31,301.00 .00 .00 30,000.00 1,301.00 96
1647 - Fund Mod to WEOC $31,301.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $1,301.00 96 %
Expense $3,269,892.00 $285,576.11 $421.89 $1,950,597.15 $1,318,872.96 60 %
915 - WAVE Program $123,185.00 ($8,379.75) ($421.89) $186,232.95 ($62,626.06) 3%
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 13

Packet page 58 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
917 - Washtenaw County Tech Consortium
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.917.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits 32,000.00 3,751.82 .00 19,208.28 12,791.72 60
27.0312.0000.917.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0518.0000.917.0000.00000.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 5,491.00 .00 .00 .00 5,491.00 0
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81010.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 289,952.00 .00 .00 289,952.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81020.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 70,924.00 .00 .00 70,924.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81040.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 44,287.00 .00 .00 44,287.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81050.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 65,806.00 .00 .00 65,806.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81070.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 68,463.00 .00 .00 68,463.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81080.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 14,668.00 .00 .00 14,668.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81100.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 36,423.00 .00 .00 36,423.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81120.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 92,682.00 .00 .00 92,682.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81140.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 13,376.00 .00 .00 13,376.00 .00 100
School
27.0518.0000.917.0000.81901.0000 Compensation Rec'd in Pmt of Srvc Prvided to Other Public 4,788.00 .00 .00 .00 4,788.00 0
School
0000 - Revenue $738,860.00 $3,751.82 $0.00 $715,789.28 $23,070.72 97 %
Revenue $738,860.00 $3,751.82 $0.00 $715,789.28 $23,070.72 97 %
Expense
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1170.917.0000.00000.0000 Program/Department Direction 27,653.00 .00 .00 .00 27,653.00 0
27.1284.1510.917.0000.00000.0000 Information Management 193,892.00 10,084.35 .00 73,023.52 120,868.48 38
27.1284.1760.917.0000.00000.0000 Termination Pay (Severance) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.1790.917.0000.00000.0000 Other Special Payments .00 .00 .00 (147.68) 147.68 +++
27.1284.2110.917.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 635.00 27.08 .00 184.59 450.41 29
27.1284.2120.917.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 555.00 23.18 .00 163.67 391.33 29
27.1284.2130.917.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 28,181.00 358.76 .00 5,307.66 22,873.34 19
27.1284.2140.917.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 2,206.00 158.14 .00 987.12 1,218.88 45
27.1284.2150.917.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 599.00 37.34 .00 255.07 343.93 43
27.1284.2820.917.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 96,928.00 4,722.64 .00 32,406.71 64,521.29 33
27.1284.2820.917.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.2830.917.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 16,137.00 772.70 .00 5,534.48 10,602.52 34
27.1284.2920.917.0000.00000.0000 Cash in Lieu of Benefits 6,193.00 262.77 .00 1,008.41 5,184.59 16
27.1284.2990.917.0000.00000.0000 Other Benefits .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1284.3190.917.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 563,493.00 .00 .00 .00 563,493.00 0
27.1284.4190.917.0000.00000.0000 Other Repair & Maint Serv 276,505.00 1,743.75 229,716.48 389,497.75 (342,709.23) 224
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $1,212,977.00 $18,190.71 $229,716.48 $508,221.30 $475,039.22 61 %
Expense $1,212,977.00 $18,190.71 $229,716.48 $508,221.30 $475,039.22 61 %
917 - Washtenaw County Tech Consortium ($474,117.00) ($14,438.89) ($229,716.48) $207,567.98 ($451,968.50) 36 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 14

Packet page 59 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)
Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
918 - New World Software
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.918.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits 9,000.00 2,206.22 .00 9,066.34 (66.34) 101
27.0519.0000.918.0000.00000.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 40,080.00 .00 .00 .00 40,080.00 0
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81010.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 104,580.00 110,127.51 .00 110,127.51 (5,547.51) 105
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81020.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 22,564.00 24,228.50 .00 24,228.50 (1,664.50) 107
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81040.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 14,540.00 15,025.13 .00 15,025.13 (485.13) 103
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81050.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 21,188.00 22,081.77 .00 22,081.77 (893.77) 104
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81070.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 22,049.00 23,119.00 .00 23,119.00 (1,070.00) 105
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81080.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 4,998.00 5,066.80 .00 5,066.80 (68.80) 101
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81100.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 12,050.00 12,449.13 .00 12,449.13 (399.13) 103
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81120.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 30,441.00 31,787.99 .00 31,787.99 (1,346.99) 104
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81140.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 4,081.00 4,276.78 .00 4,276.78 (195.78) 105
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81901.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 1,518.00 1,635.18 .00 1,635.18 (117.18) 108
27.0519.0000.918.0000.81903.0000 Other Distributions Received from Other Public Schools 5,659.00 5,491.37 .00 5,491.37 167.63 97
0000 - Revenue $292,748.00 $257,495.38 $0.00 $264,355.50 $28,392.50 90 %
Revenue $292,748.00 $257,495.38 $0.00 $264,355.50 $28,392.50 90 %
Expense
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.1510.918.0000.00000.0000 Information Management 38,502.00 202.94 .00 304.41 38,197.59 1
27.1284.2110.918.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 118.00 .54 .00 .81 117.19 1
27.1284.2120.918.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 105.00 44 .00 .66 104.34 1
27.1284.2130.918.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 4,761.00 28.70 .00 43.05 4,717.95 1
27.1284.2140.918.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 546.00 2.10 .00 3.15 542.85 1
27.1284.2150.918.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 149.00 .50 .00 .75 148.25 1
27.1284.2820.918.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 17,486.00 99.72 .00 149.58 17,336.42 1
27.1284.2830.918.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 2,983.00 14.02 .00 21.03 2,961.97 1
27.1284.2920.918.0000.00000.0000 Cash in Lieu of Benefits 384.00 .00 .00 .00 384.00 0
27.1284.3190.918.0000.00000.0000 Other Prof & Technical Services 53,996.00 .00 18,996.00 .00 35,000.00 35
27.1284.4140.918.0000.00000.0000 Software Maint Agmts Serv 203,714.00 .00 .00 184,366.36 19,347.64 91
27.1284.6450.918.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip >$5000 34,214.00 .00 34,213.74 .00 .26 100
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $356,958.00 $348.96 $53,209.74 $184,889.80 $118,858.46 67 %
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund
27.1611.8110.918.0000.00000.0000 Fund Modifications .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
1611 - Fund Modif to General Ed Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++
Expense $356,958.00 $348.96 $53,209.74 $184,889.80 $118,858.46 67 %
918 - New World Software ($64,210.00) $257,146.42 ($53,209.74) $79,465.70 ($90,465.96) 24 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 15

Packet page 60 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
919 - Medicaid Programs
Revenue
0000 - Revenue
27.0151.0000.919.0000.00000.0000 Earnings on Investments and Deposits 1,435,398.00 112,155.61 .00 887,553.76 547,844.24 62
27.0181.0000.919.0000.00000.0000 Revenue from Community Service Activites 6,856,114.00 524,863.00 .00 4,211,623.00 2,644,491.00 61
27.0181.0000.919.0000.10920.0000 Revenue from Community Service Activites 200,365.00 .00 .00 .00 200,365.00 0
27.0312.0000.919.2083.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants 30,364.00 4,068.94 .00 16,354.30 14,009.70 54
27.0312.0000.919.2633.00000.0000 Restricted State Revenues Received as Grants .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0412.0000.919.0000.00000.0000 Unrestricted Received from Federal Government Through State .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.0412.0000.919.0000.10919.0000 Unrestricted Received from Federal Government Through State 300,000.00 75,353.40 .00 230,063.73 69,936.27 77
0000 - Revenue $8,822,241.00 $716,440.95 $0.00 $5,345,594.79 $3,476,646.21 61 %
Revenue $8,822,241.00 $716,440.95 $0.00 $5,345,594.79 $3,476,646.21 61 %
Expense
1213 - Health Services
27.1213.3130.919.0000.00000.0000 Pupil Services 19,590.00 2,515.00 6,325.00 10,175.00 3,090.00 84
1213 - Health Services $19,590.00 $2,515.00 $6,325.00 $10,175.00 $3,090.00 84 %
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff
27.1226.1620.919.0000.00000.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 95,860.00 5,714.30 .00 53,290.41 42,569.59 56
27.1226.1620.919.0000.10919.0000 Secretary-Clerical-Bookkeeper 3,055.00 .00 .00 832.12 2,222.88 27
27.1226.1790.919.0000.00000.0000 Other Special Payments 780.00 .00 .00 (675.57) 1,455.57 -87
27.1226.1790.919.0000.10919.0000 Other Special Payments .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2110.919.0000.00000.0000 Group Life 84.00 16.08 .00 68.88 15.12 82
27.1226.2120.919.0000.00000.0000 Group Disability 243.00 13.94 .00 102.40 140.60 42
27.1226.2130.919.0000.00000.0000 Group Health and Accident 16,000.00 1,666.98 .00 9,949.74 6,050.26 62
27.1226.2140.919.0000.00000.0000 Dental Health Care 1,000.00 130.64 .00 712.30 287.70 71
27.1226.2150.919.0000.00000.0000 Vision Care 300.00 30.80 .00 183.76 116.24 61
27.1226.2820.919.0000.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 44,286.00 2,797.70 .00 24,913.77 19,372.23 56
27.1226.2820.919.0000.10919.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds 1,460.00 .00 .00 422.26 1,037.74 29
27.1226.2820.919.2633.00000.0000 Contribution to State and Local Retirement Funds .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++
27.1226.2830.919.0000.00000.0000 Employer Social Security 7,336.00 439.16 .00 3,936.86 3,399.14 54
27.1226.2830.919.0000.10919.0000 Employer Social Security 235.00 .00 .00 63.64 171.36 27
27.1226.2990.919.0000.00000.0000 Other Benefits 7,100.00 .00 .00 7,099.51 .49 100
27.1226.3210.919.0000.00000.0000 Regular Duty Travel 50.00 142.14 .00 142.14 (92.14) 284
27.1226.3430.919.0000.00000.0000 Mail/Postage Serv 150.00 10.80 .00 310.85 (160.85) 207
27.1226.4140.919.0000.00000.0000 Software Maint Agmts Serv 55,272.00 .00 .00 55,272.00 .00 100
27.1226.5990.919.0000.00000.0000 Misc. Supp & Matls 145.00 .00 .00 .00 145.00 0
27.1226.6460.919.0000.00000.0000 Capital-Repl Equip <$5000 525.00 .00 .00 525.00 .00 100
1226 - SupervisionDirection of Instr Staff $233,881.00 $10,962.54 $0.00 $157,150.07 $76,730.93 67 %
1231 - Board of Education
27.1231.3180.919.0000.00000.0000 Audit Services 4,728.00 .00 .00 4,727.81 .19 100
1231 - Board of Education $4,728.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,727.81 $0.19 100 %
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services
27.1283.3220.919.0000.00000.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 594.00 .00 .00 .00 594.00 0
27.1283.3220.919.0000.10919.0000 Workshops and Conf Travel 1,972.00 .00 .00 1,972.10 (.10) 100
1283 - Staff/Personnel Services $2,566.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,972.10 $593.90 77 %
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services
27.1284.3160.919.0000.10919.0000 Management Info Services 20,540.00 .00 .00 5,162.55 15,377.45 25
1284 - Non-Instr Technology Services $20,540.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,162.55 $15,377.45 25 %
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools
27.1411.8510.919.0000.00000.0000 Sub-Grantee / Flow through Disbursements 6,000,000.00 275,705.00 2,329,015.00 275,705.00 3,395,280.00 43
27.1411.8510.919.0000.10919.0000 Sub-Grantee / Flow through Disbursements 272,738.00 19,516.00 .00 19,516.00 253,222.00 7
1411 - Pmts to Other Mich Publ Schools $6,272,738.00 $295,221.00 $2,329,015.00 $295,221.00 $3,648,502.00 42 %
Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 16

Packet page 61 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGICMAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGERMCY

Cooperative Activities (Detail)

Fiscal Year to Date 02/29/24

G/L Account Number Account Description Amended Budget Current Month Actual Encumbrances Actual Budget - Actual % Used/Rec'd
1641 - Fund Modif to GE Cap Proj

27.1641.8110.919.0000.00000.0000 Fund Modifications 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 .00 1,500,000.00 .00 100

1641 - Fund Modif to GE Cap Proj $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00 $0.00 $1,500,000.00 $0.00 100 %

Expense $8,054,043.00 $1,808,698.54 $2,335,340.00 $1,974,408.53 $3,744,294.47 54 %

919 - Medicaid Programs $768,198.00 ($1,092,257.59) ($2,335,340.00) $3,371,186.26 ($267,648.26) 7%

($223,177.00) ($492,903.75) ($2,723,171.18) $5,564,858.74 ($3,064,864.56) 11 %

Run By jmillina on 03/15/2024 10:24:27 AM Page - 17

Packet page 62 of 271



Washtenaw Intermediate School District

General Education

Investments
Feb-24

Investment Settlement Date Maturity Date Principal Int. Rate
MILAF Investment
Cash Movement Beginning Balance in/(out) Ending Balance
MILAF GE Investment Max 3,714,311.30 15,801.18 3,730,112.48
MILAF GE Investment Term - - -
Special Education

Investment Settlement Date Maturity Date Principal Int. Rate
5/3 Bank cert of dep 6/8/2022 12/8/2022 $ - 0.05%
Old National Bank 7/26/2023 4/26/2024 $ 268,836.24 0.10%

$ 268,836.24

Cash Movement Beginning Balance in/(out) Ending Balance

Investments $ 268,836.24 $ - $ 268,836.24
Comerica $ 2,857.62 $ 1161 $ 2,869.23
MBIA $ 2,376.51 $ 1029 $ 2,386.80
MILAF SE Investment Max 14,472,271.78 13,078,671.64 27,550,943.42
MILAF SE Investment Term 13,000,000.00 (13,000,000.00) -

MILAF SUB Investment Max 2,009,368.61 4,303.39 2,013,672.00
MILAF Lunch Investment Max 6,305.00 26.82 6,331.82
MILAF COOP Investment Max 20,636,039.40 87,788.49 20,723,827.89
MILAF COOP Investment Term - - -

MILAF 2019 School Bond Debt Retirement Investment Max 3,359,806.69 14,293.07 3,374,099.76
MILAF Capital Projects Investment Max 3,864,279.55 16,439.17 3,880,718.72
MILAF 2019 Bond Capital Projects Fund 4,328,182.82 18,412.67 4,346,595.49
MILAF Agency Investment 137,990.04 587.03 138,577.07
MILAF AP Investment Max 1,228,467.78 5,226.07 1,233,693.85

3/18/2024

Packet page 63 of 271



Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status \Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference
AP - Accounts Payable MILAF
Check
213055 02/02/2024 Open Accounts Payable BILBEISI INVESTMENTS LLC $3,200.00
213056 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY, $411.15 $411.15 $0.00
LLC
213057 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ADRIAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS $106,138.00 $106,138.00 $0.00
213058 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ALTECH MECHANICAL SERVICES $16,120.95 $16,120.95 $0.00
LLC
213059 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable AMERICAN RED CROSS $5.00 $5.00 $0.00
213060 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ANN ARBOR CITY TREASURER $707.80 $707.80 $0.00
213061 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ARCH OF SELF, LLC $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $0.00
213062 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable AT&T $6,690.95 $6,690.95 $0.00
213063 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable AT&T MOBILITY $5,899.26 $5,899.26 $0.00
213064 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable BEARCOM $3,613.09 $3,613.09 $0.00
213065 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable BECK, JEANETTE $35.00 $35.00 $0.00
213066 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable BEDFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS $23,190.00 $23,190.00 $0.00
213067 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable BERRY , ALEXIS $625.00 $625.00 $0.00
213068 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC $2,395.28 $2,395.28 $0.00
213069 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CARPENTRY CONCEPTS $10,482.00 $10,482.00 $0.00
213070 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CINTAS CORPORATION $2,957.00 $2,957.00 $0.00
213071 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CITY OF DEXTER $200.28 $200.28 $0.00
213072 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CLINTON COUNTY RESA $8,100.00 $8,100.00 $0.00
213073 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CORREA, ALEXIS $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $0.00
213074 02/09/2024 Open Accounts Payable COURAGEOUS CONVERSATION $5,975.00
LLC
213075 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CROSHECK, GLORIANNE $150.00 $150.00 $0.00
213076 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable DTE ENERGY $4,614.03 $4,614.03 $0.00
213077 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ENVIRONMENTAL SUPPORT $210.00 $210.00 $0.00
SERVICES
213078 02/09/2024 Voided Will be Re-issued  02/29/2024 Accounts Payable EVANS , BETSY, LOUISE $3,358.19
213079 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FARHA, NIVEAN $750.50 $750.50 $0.00
213080 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FERRIS COFFEE AND NUT $201.26 $201.26 $0.00
COMPANY, INC.
213081 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FOCO METAL WORKS LLC $14,021.00 $14,021.00 $0.00
213082 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FOLBERG, ELIZABETH $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
213083 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FOXBRIGHT $6,695.00 $6,695.00 $0.00
213084 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GIBBS JR, HERMAN $200.00 $200.00 $0.00
213085 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GIFTED NURSES, LLC $44,199.68 $44,199.68 $0.00
213086 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GORHAM, ADRIANA $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $0.00
213087 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HILLSDALE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS $49,157.00 $49,157.00 $0.00
213088 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HOBART CORPORATION $409.55 $409.55 $0.00
213089 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HOWARD COMMERCIAL DOOR $86.41 $86.41 $0.00
213090 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HULINGS AND ASSOCIATES LLC $1,225.00 $1,225.00 $0.00
213091 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HUMANWARE INC $372.00 $372.00 $0.00
213092 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HURON VALLEY $150.00 $150.00 $0.00
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
213093 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HYATT REGENCY DENVER $782.48 $782.48 $0.00
213094 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INDEPENDENT LIVING AIDS, INC. $32.25 $32.25 $0.00
213095 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INSECTECH INC $270.00 $270.00 $0.00
213096 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INSTRUCTIONAL COACHING $13,464.97 $13,464.97 $0.00

GROUP

user: Millina, Jack

Pages: 1 of 6

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 64 of 271


javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173581','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173582','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173583','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173584','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173585','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173586','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173587','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173588','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173589','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173590','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173591','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173592','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173593','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173594','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173595','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173596','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173597','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173598','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173599','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173600','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173601','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173602','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173603','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173604','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173605','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173606','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173607','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173608','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173609','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173610','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173611','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173612','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173613','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173614','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173615','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173616','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173617','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173618','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173619','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173620','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173621','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173622','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));

Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status \Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference
213097 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE $615.00 $615.00 $0.00
213098 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable JD LEARNING PARTNERS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00
213099 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable JOHNSON, WENDY $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
213100 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable JOSTENS $926.61 $926.61 $0.00
213101 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable K12 INSIGHT LLC $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $0.00
213102 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KEEFER, GEORGIA ANN $825.00 $825.00 $0.00
213103 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KEYGUARD ASSISTIVE $73.11 $73.11 $0.00
TECHNOLOGY
213104 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KINNEY, LAURA, JEAN $116.09 $116.09 $0.00
213105 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KONICA MINOLTA - ALBIN $15.93 $15.93 $0.00
213106 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER $739.06 $739.06 $0.00
FINANCE
213107 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LAKESHORE LEARNING $1,921.48 $1,921.48 $0.00
MATERIALS LLC
213108 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LAZ PARKING MIDWEST LLC $192.00 $192.00 $0.00
213109 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LCK COACHING AND $8,123.34 $8,123.34 $0.00
CONSULTING, LLC
213110 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING LLC $286.20 $286.20 $0.00
213111 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LEATHERWOOD, ICSHAI RENEE $403.75 $403.75 $0.00
213112 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LEONARD'S SYRUPS $85.00 $85.00 $0.00
213113 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LESSONPIX, INC $274.98 $274.98 $0.00
213114 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LIVINGSTON EDUCATIONAL $148,007.00 $148,007.00 $0.00
213115 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MANSOOR , TOOBA $625.00 $625.00 $0.00
213116 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MARSHALL MUSIC CO. $94.88 $94.88 $0.00
213117 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MASSEY, WILLIAM $159.04 $159.04 $0.00
213118 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MICHIGAN COUNCIL FOR $2,075.00 $2,075.00 $0.00
EXCEPTIONAL CHILDREN
213119 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MILLER, JENNIFER KAYE $800.00 $800.00 $0.00
213120 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MONROE PUBLIC SCHOOLS $56,537.20 $56,537.20 $0.00
213121 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MYERS , MICHELLE $1,178.00 $1,178.00 $0.00
213122 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable NAEBECK, JESSICA $186.80 $186.80 $0.00
213123 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable NEOLA, INC. $1,375.00 $1,375.00 $0.00
213124 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable NORTHWEST EVALUATION $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
ASSOCIATION
213125 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable OFFICE DEPOT INC $2,698.10 $2,698.10 $0.00
213126 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable OLSEN, R. STEPHEN $105.35 $105.35 $0.00
213127 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable OTVEST LLC $327.16 $327.16 $0.00
213128 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PALMER, TASHA RACHELLE $735.00 $735.00 $0.00
213129 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PARKER, TRISHA $200.00 $200.00 $0.00
213130 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PCI MUNICIPAL SERVICES, LLC $51.95 $51.95 $0.00
213131 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PEARSON ASSESSMENTS $425.90 $425.90 $0.00
213132 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PEOPLE DRIVEN TECHNOLOGY, $1,611.44 $1,611.44 $0.00
INC
213133 02/09/2024 Open Accounts Payable PITTSFIELD ACRES ACADEMY $295.00
213134 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PROCARE THERAPY $5,867.29 $5,867.29 $0.00
213135 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PROPIO LS, LLC $4,632.62 $4,632.62 $0.00
213136 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF $13,256.98 $13,256.98 $0.00
MICHIGAN
213137 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable RNA FACILITIES MANAGEMENT $4,888.10 $4,888.10 $0.00
213138 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS $782.00 $782.00 $0.00
213139 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SARIGIANIDES, SOPHIA TATIANA $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $0.00

user: Millina, Jack

Pages: 2 of 6

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 65 of 271


javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173623','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173624','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173625','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173626','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173627','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173628','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173629','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173630','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173631','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173632','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173633','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173634','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173635','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173636','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173637','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173638','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173639','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173640','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173641','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173642','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173643','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173644','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173645','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173646','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173647','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173648','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173649','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173650','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173651','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173652','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173653','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173654','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173655','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173656','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173657','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173658','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173659','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173660','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173661','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173662','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173663','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173664','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173665','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));

Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status \Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference
213140 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC $2,176.96 $2,176.96 $0.00
213141 02/09/2024 Open Accounts Payable SCALZO, RICHELE $49.90
213142 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SEIDLITZ EDUCATION LLC $3,992.50 $3,992.50 $0.00
213143 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SIGNS IN ONE DAY $74.00 $74.00 $0.00
213144 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SOUTHPAW ENTERPRISES, INC. $409.26 $409.26 $0.00
213145 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SPENCER, ALISHA $842.00 $842.00 $0.00
213146 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable STADIUM HARDWARE $584.43 $584.43 $0.00
213147 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable STATE OF MICHIGAN - LARA $75.00 $75.00 $0.00
213148 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable STATE OF MICHIGAN - POLICE $11,393.25 $11,393.25 $0.00
213149 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TEACH TOWN $11,362.00 $11,362.00 $0.00
213150 02/09/2024 Open Accounts Payable TEN80 EDUCATION, LLC $625.00
213151 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TFSC LLC $5,162.50 $5,162.50 $0.00
213152 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable THE D.M. BURR GROUP $18,185.50 $18,185.50 $0.00
213153 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable THE SPIEKER COMPANY $19,923.00 $19,923.00 $0.00
213154 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable UNITED STATES POSTMASTER $342.00 $342.00 $0.00
213155 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY $21,036.44 $21,036.44 $0.00
OF AMERICA
213156 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable VANCE, LEAH $43.86 $43.86 $0.00
213157 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable VERIZON WIRELESS $615.82 $615.82 $0.00
213158 02/09/2024 Open Accounts Payable VESPA , KRISTIN $168.59
213159 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WASHTENAW COMMUNITY $264.42 $264.42 $0.00
COLLEGE
213160 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WASTE MANAGEMENT OF $1,882.78 $1,882.78 $0.00
MICHIGAN
213161 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WEX BANK $105.82 $105.82 $0.00
213162 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WILLIAMS LLC, MARCIA $2,300.00 $2,300.00 $0.00
213163 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LIVINGSTON CLASSICAL CYBER $23,727.00 $23,727.00 $0.00
ACADEMY
213164 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TOBII DYNAVOX LLC $100.00 $100.00 $0.00
213165 02/09/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable YEO & YEO CONSULTING, LLC $950.50 $950.50 $0.00
213166 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable Buckles & Buckles P.L.C. $414.80 $414.80 $0.00
213167 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CHAPTER 13 TRUSTEE $562.00 $562.00 $0.00
213168 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HOGAN, ANGELA $75.00 $75.00 $0.00
213169 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PALMER, ANLYA $249.75 $249.75 $0.00
213170 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable Ronald Rich & Associates $475.04 $475.04 $0.00
213171 02/15/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WASHTENAW UNITED WAY $512.12 $512.12 $0.00
213172 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY, $34.75 $34.75 $0.00
LLC
213173 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable AL-SAMMARRAIE, HUSSEIN $540.00 $540.00 $0.00
213174 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable ALTECH MECHANICAL SERVICES $9,194.84 $9,194.84 $0.00
LLC
213175 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable ANN ARBOR PUBLIC SCHOOLS $280.00
FOOD
213176 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable ARBOR PREPARATORY HIGH $16,882.00
SCHOOL
213177 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable AT&T $3,364.66 $3,364.66 $0.00
213178 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable AT&T LONG DISTANCE $13.00
213179 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable BELLE ARBOR COMMONS LLC $2,617.78
213180 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable BLAZEJEWSKI, ADAM $900.00
213181 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable BROOKS , ASHLEY $80.00
213182 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CARPENTRY CONCEPTS $33,450.00 $33,450.00 $0.00

user: Millina, Jack

Pages: 3 0of 6

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 66 of 271


javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173666','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173667','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173668','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173669','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173670','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173671','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173672','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173673','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173674','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173675','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173676','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173677','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173678','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173679','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173680','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173681','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173682','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173683','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173684','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173685','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173686','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173687','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173688','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173689','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173690','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=173691','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174379','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174380','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174381','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174382','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174383','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174384','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174385','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174386','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174387','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174388','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174389','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174390','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174391','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174392','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174393','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174394','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174395','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));

Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference
213183 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable CENTRAL ACADEMY $23,631.00
213184 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable CHELSEA SCHOOL DISTRICT $658,384.00 $658,384.00 $0.00
213185 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable CLINTON COUNTY RESA $12,448.00
213186 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable COLLIGAN, MERRI LYNN $1,365.00 $1,365.00 $0.00
213187 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable CROSHECK, GLORIANNE $225.00
213188 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable DOLLAR BILL PRINTING $854.27
213189 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable DTE ENERGY $3,228.10 $3,228.10 $0.00
213190 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC $145.12 $145.12 $0.00
213191 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GIFTED NURSES, LLC $58,027.13 $58,027.13 $0.00
213192 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable GLOBAL TECH ACADEMY $25,354.00
213193 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GOLDEN, LATASHA $258.00 $258.00 $0.00
213194 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GONGWER NEWS SERVICE $4,550.00 $4,550.00 $0.00
213195 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable GRAINGER $54.03 $54.03 $0.00
213196 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable HOGAN, ANGELA $75.00
213197 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable HONOS , SARAH, M $240.00
213198 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INCIDENT IQ, LLC $3,675.17 $3,675.17 $0.00
213199 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INSECTECH INC $241.00 $241.00 $0.00
213200 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable INTERIOR SYSTEMS CONTRACT $8,985.32 $8,985.32 $0.00
GRP, INC
213201 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable JUSTICE LEADERS COLLABORTIVE $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $0.00
LLC
213202 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable KEEFER, GEORGIA ANN $750.00 $750.00 $0.00
213203 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER $806.04
FINANCE
213204 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LAKESHORE LEARNING $122.55 $122.55 $0.00
MATERIALS LLC
213205 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LEATHERWOOD, ICSHAI RENEE $231.00 $231.00 $0.00
213206 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LOUNSBURY , JACOB $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
213207 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC $736.91 $736.91 $0.00
213208 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MARSHALL MUSIC CO. $246.41 $246.41 $0.00
213209 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable MCCALLA, CRAIG LEE $300.00
213210 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable MICHIGAN SCHOOLS ENERGY $16,637.19
COOPERTA
213211 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC $256.20 $256.20 $0.00
213212 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MILAN AREA SCHOOLS $596,228.00 $596,228.00 $0.00
213213 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable MONROE PUBLIC SCHOOLS $2,114.80
213214 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MOORE, DAE'VON NORRIS LEE $540.00 $540.00 $0.00
213215 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MYERS , MICHELLE $1,329.95 $1,329.95 $0.00
213216 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable NORIX GROUP INC $940.40 $940.40 $0.00
213217 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable OFFICE DEPOT INC $82.35 $82.35 $0.00
213218 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable PALMER, ANLYA $246.75
213219 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PEOPLE DRIVEN TECHNOLOGY, $13,519.35 $13,519.35 $0.00
INC
213220 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable POPE, GINA $103.75
213221 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PRAIRIE FARMS DAIRY INC $3,070.16 $3,070.16 $0.00
213222 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable PRINT-TECH $515.14 $515.14 $0.00
213223 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable RNA FACILITIES MANAGEMENT $4,888.10
213224 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS $327.92
213225 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SHRED-IT $1,239.73 $1,239.73 $0.00
213226 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable SOUTH ARBOR CHARTER $76,222.00
ACADEMY

user: Millina, Jack

Pages: 4 of 6

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 67 of 271


javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174396','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174397','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174398','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174399','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174400','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174401','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174402','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174403','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174404','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174405','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174406','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174407','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174408','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174409','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174410','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174411','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174412','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174413','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174414','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174415','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174416','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174417','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174418','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174419','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174420','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174421','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174422','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174423','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174424','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174425','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174426','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174427','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174428','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174429','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174430','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174431','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174432','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174433','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174434','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174435','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174436','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174437','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174438','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174439','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));

Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference
213227 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable SOUTH POINTE SCHOLARS $91,310.00
CHARTER ACADEMY
213228 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SPAULDING, JAMIE $28.96 $28.96 $0.00
213229 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SPENCER, ALISHA $674.50 $674.50 $0.00
213230 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SSS INVESTMENTS LLC $3,524.00 $3,524.00 $0.00
213231 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable STANDARD PRINTING $330.00
213232 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP UTILITY $220.68 $220.68 $0.00
DEPARTMENT
213233 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable TEACHSTONE INC. $2,010.00
213234 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TEAMVIEWER GMBH $7,603.12 $7,603.12 $0.00
213235 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TEL SYSTEMS $1,562.50 $1,562.50 $0.00
213236 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable TEN8O EDUCATION, LLC $2,288.00
213237 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable THRUN, MAATSCH AND $9,120.23 $9,120.23 $0.00
NORDBERG P.C.
213238 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable TRACE3 LLC $21,227.50
213239 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable TRIPLE R CONSULTANTS $6,600.00 $6,600.00 $0.00
213240 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable VANGUARD FIRE & SECUTIRY $600.00 $600.00 $0.00
SYSTEMS, INC
213241 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable WASHTENAW COMMUNITY $193,380.31 $193,380.31 $0.00
COLLEGE
213242 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASHTENAW COUNTY $900.00
PARKS/RECREATIO
213243 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASHTENAW COUNTY $1,246.08
TREASURER
213244 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASHTENAW HOUSING ALLIANCE $250.00
213245 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASHTENAW TECHNICAL MIDDLE $25,963.00
COLL
213246 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASTE MANAGEMENT OF $53.59
MICHIGAN
213247 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable EAST ARBOR CHARTER ACADEMY $55,523.00
213248 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable FORTIS ACADEMY $49,183.00
213249 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable GENOVA DEVELOPMENT $1,560.50
213250 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable HONEY CREEK COMMUNITY $76,592.20
SCHOOL
213251 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable LIVINGSTON CLASSICAL CYBER $7,271.00
ACADEMY
213252 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable MICHIGAN SCH BUSINESS $625.00 $625.00 $0.00
OFFICIALS
213253 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable MISS DIG SYSTEM, INC $1,109.87
213254 02/23/2024 Open Accounts Payable HOGAN, ANGELA $75.00
213255 02/23/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HORRY , LETICIA , NICOLE $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $0.00
213256 02/27/2024 Reconciled 02/29/2024 Accounts Payable HILLTOP VIEW APARTMENTS $809.00 $809.00 $0.00
LDHA LP
213257 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable A & F WATER HEATER INC $422.50
213258 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable Buckles & Buckles P.L.C. $414.80
213259 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable CHAPTER 13 TRUSTEE $562.00
213260 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable EVANS , BETSY, LOUISE $3,358.19
213261 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable HORRY , LETICIA , NICOLE $1,250.00
213262 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable OPENSPOT THEATRE $150.00
213263 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable Ronald Rich & Associates $475.04
213264 02/29/2024 Open Accounts Payable WASHTENAW UNITED WAY $512.12

user: Millina, Jack

Pages: 5 of 6

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 68 of 271


javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174440','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174441','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174442','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174443','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174444','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174445','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174446','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174447','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174448','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174449','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174450','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174451','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174452','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174453','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174454','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174455','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174456','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174457','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174458','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174459','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174460','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174461','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174462','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174463','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174464','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174465','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174466','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174501','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174502','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=174503','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175163','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175164','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175165','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175166','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175167','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175168','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175169','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://nwwisd.wash.k12.mi.us/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=175170','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));

Washtenaw Int School District

Payment Register

From Payment Date: 2/1/2024 - To Payment Date: 2/29/2024

Reconciled/ Transaction Reconciled
Number Date Status \Void Reason Voided Date _ Source Amount Amount Difference
Type Check Totals: 210 Transactions $2,920,426.24 $2,377,470.57 $0.00
AP - Accounts Payable MILAF Totals
Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 53 $539,597.48 $0.00
Reconciled 156 $2,377,470.57 $2,377,470.57
Voided 1 $3,358.19 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 210 $2,920,426.24 $2,377,470.57
All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 53 $539,597.48 $0.00
Reconciled 156 $2,377,470.57 $2,377,470.57
Voided 1 $3,358.19 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 210 $2,920,426.24 $2,377,470.57
Grand Totals:
Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 53 $539,597.48 $0.00
Reconciled 156 $2,377,470.57 $2,377,470.57
Voided 1 $3,358.19 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 210 $2,920,426.24 $2,377,470.57
All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 53 $539,597.48 $0.00
Reconciled 156 $2,377,470.57 $2,377,470.57
Voided 1 $3,358.19 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 210 $2,920,426.24 $2,377,470.57
user: Millina, Jack Pages: 6 of 6 Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Packet page 69 of 271



FEBRUARY 2024 Head Start Financial Summary

Washtenaw ISD Head Start and Early Head Start Grant 05CH010612-06

Budget Period for 07/01/2023 — 06/30/2024 Grant Year
*This chart reflects actual expenses through FEBRUARY 2024

2023-2024 REMAINING o
Head Start To;;;:gé’ Al | ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET y s/:so
Budget REVENUE
Training and
Technical
Assistance | $ 63,216.00 | S 47,611.13 4,194.38 11,410.49 82%
Personnel | ¢ 1 020,201.00| §  644,796.76 0 375,494.24 | 63.20%
Fringe $
Benefits 744,580.00 | $ 458,171.20 0 286,408.80 | 61.53%
Equipment
Travel: Out
of Town S 17,753.00 | $ 6,644.53 0 11,108.47 | 37.43%
Supplies $ 2500000 $  18,018.77 1,095.35 5,885.88 | 76.46%
Facilities/
Construction
Contractual | ¢ 3 :73,390.00| ¢  193.311.03 3,348,354.20 31,733.77 | 99%
Other S 111,256.00 | S 46,351.28 2,151.63 62,753.09 | 43.60%
TOTAL
$ 5,555,495.00 | $ 1,414,904.70 3,355,795.56 784,794.74 | 85.67%
Actual Grant Expenditures as a % of Award
25.47% of Head Start/EHS Award
Revenue of Award
TOTAL REVENUE TO DATE: $ 918,348.36
Grant Expenditures
TOTAL EXPENDITURES TO DATE: $ 1,414,904.70
TOTAL ENCUMBERANCES: $ 3,355,795.56
EXPENDITURES FOR FEBRUARY 2024: $ 295,362.94
Monthly Expenses for FEBRUARY 2024:
Salary and Benefits Mileage Telephone Services Assessment
L Supplies
Electric bill @ Space rental Beatty
Beatty . . Maintenance / Recruitment/enroll
Cleaning Services . .
. Facilities ment materials
Copies/postage

Program Materials
Printing Services

Packet page 70 of 271



%16'99
%8Y'6L
%C9'TE
%EE'SL

%IT°SS
%19'68
%1819

%95°69

%C6'TL
%99°S¥
%89°€8T

%85'69
%E6'TL
%06°€S
VAZRS

v€882°46$
€L°06¥'2TS
£0°£T€'95$
¥0'60TS
(86°215°SS)
0€'955°2€S
61'SET'SS
vEVLT'YSS

(oz'1S%)
(09°z0T1$)
TS0EETS
LEET]'BES
(z9729'28)
(62'5£9%)
(ovzes)
S9°195°/$
78°61T€°SS
65'966'71S
98'020°L$

99'¥8L°L6T$
LTS6E°8YS
£6'€50'975
96'7€€$
86'715'SS
0£786'6£S
18°02E'SY$
99'8/8°/8$

07'15$
09°20T$
8y '8or'eS
€9°679°C€$
79'95£°S$
675893
orzes
SE'66T°LTS
8T VEY'ETS
T¥'€29°2SS
YT EV9'SES

00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
000%
00°0%
00°0%

CT9EE LTS
T6'€15'9%
LO'YSSCS
€295
TLEV0'TS
9,'022'LS
69°805°9S
2€'90L°0TS

L5°08TS
80°9$
(8T°15¢28)
0Z'¥9t$
£v'908'V$
65'729$
06'655$
(ze'6L8)
A TN
98'958'T$
TT°L0TTvS
T7'692'vS

00°€£5°S679
00°988'09%
00'T8£78$
00°ZtvS
00°0$
00°6£52LS
00'955'0S$
00°€ST VTS

00°€9L2$
000
000%
00°6£LVS
00'6£V'TLS
00'vET'ES
00°0$
000
00'T98vZ$
00°'vS6°8TS
00°079°46$
00'¥99°¢¥$

Builasuno) jeuondnusul
Bujasuno)

yoJeasay

sjuswAed |eads Jayi0
Sujjasuno) |euoinanIsu|
3}4OM |e1d0S

Sujasuno)

yaieasay

0000'TTLO6'VECL L86°0SCT TSET'TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86'0CCT TSET'TT
0000'TTL06'VEC. L86°08TT T8ZT TT
0000°TTLO6'¥ECL'000°06LT T8CT'TT
0000'TTL06'VEC/'000°0SCT TSET'TT
0000°TTL06¥ECL 000 0PI TSET'TT
0000°TTL06'¥ECL"000'0ZCT TSET'TT
0000°TTL06'VECL'000°08TT T8CT TT

Jadaoyyoog-{esusp-Aielasdss
sjudwAed |eads Jayl0
uol1eINPI-|EUOISS3J0Id
|ealuyaa] JAYIo

uondaaQg luswpuedsqg/weiSold
Heis-uonaang/uoisiaadng
sjuswaAed |eads J9Y10
uo1IBINPI-|eUOISS3}01d
Jadaayjoog-jeania|d-Aielalas
|exquyda] J3yro

uonoaug wawpedaqg/weifold
Jeis-uonaalig/uoisiuadng

0000'TTL06'YECL /860291 92ZT TT
0000°TTL06'VECL £86°06LT'922T TT
0000°TTL06'VECL /86°026T92CT TT
0000°TTL06VECL LB6'06ST 9CCT'TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86'0LTT 9CCT'TT
0000°TTL06'VECL /86°09TT 9CZT TT
0000°TTL06°VECL'000°06LT°92CT'TT
0000'TTL06'ECL'000°0C6T 9CCT TT
0000°TTL06'VECL°000°029T '922T'TT
0000°TTL06'€TL'000°06ST°9CCT TT
0000°TTL06¥ECL'000°0LTT9CZT'TT

_xﬂm.mn 6v0T 1 BEVETYS vioisns
%66'66 T4 SL'666VS 000$ s33j puesang  0000°LTL06'VEZL'886°0TYL TIZTTT
%65°ST 89°ETT'VS 7€°092% 00'0$ 00'7£8'%$ MBS Bunulld  0000°9TL06'VEZL 886°0TIE TZLT TT
%CL'LS ££°992°9$ LT'855'8S 00°0$ TTICTS 00'5Z8'VTS [2AeJ] JuoD pue sdoysyJoM  0000'ETL06VECL 886°0CCETZLT'TT
%6166 68°0TTS T0'STH'0ZS 60'9€7'T$ 00°0% 00'29£'12$ S20IAISS [BIIUYIDL B JOId JBYIO  0000°'9TLO6'VETL'886°06TE TZZT TT
%86'66 11°0$ 68VSLS 00'0$ 000$ 00'S5.$ $3941 puessng  0000LTL06'VEZL L86'0TYL TCZT'IT
%0T'v6 Tr'685% 850199 00°008'2$ LIPS 00°000°0T$ [2AedL Juo) pue sdoysyI0M  0000'ETL06VETL L86°02ZETZLT'TT
%05 'v6 TV'6Z€S$ 0£'CTS'S$ 6C'8STS 00°0£2$ 00°000'9% SBJIAIS |PIIUYISL B JOId JBYIO  0000°9TLO6'H

uondusaq Junony © pauiquio) - aquin WNo0Y 1/9
|%z8°s8 VL Y6L'Y8LS 0L'v06'VIP'TS 95'S6.'SSE'ES P6°Z9E'S6ZS 00°S6v'SSS'S veoz/ez/z |

P.224/pP3s5N % Suiuieway vzoz/6z/z s9dUeBIqWINIU] Jluo Juain) 198png ELUETEN]
- £202/10/L0

saJn}jipuadxy

Packet page 71 of 271



%00°65 TTL8S VS
%18"79 9T°8¥E'TCS
%LS°ES ¥€'SS2S
%955 £8°9765
%09°LE TLTS0.S
%6765 ¥S'SSTS
%EG' 19 LS'6TTS

_xma.mm ¥9°T09Z8

(r8'685)
%ES'8LT (S¥'voTS)
%06°TS 1720
%ESVS 9T'SPELTS
%ET'EY €€°148
%S¢ TV 98°057%
%9 75°058'9%
%LT' LY SO°LTTS
%LOLE 0T'STZS
%99°ST £0°905$
%606 (1) 235
%6V'€9 LT'SLT'SS
%65°59 86'8£5°679
%CL'1S 05°652$
%C8'TS 66°618$
%6L°SE TE9T9°LTS
%685 96'25t$
%16'ST 92°589%

841099
¥8'STT'TYS

99°'¥62$
LT'LETTS
6C6vT'vS
9t°'87T$
Ev'122S

9£'960S0T$
78'68%
Sv'/eTs

6L TLT'ES
¥8'v08°02$

£9'8S$
PT9LTS
8t°€9vc$
S6'v0TS
08'9ZTS

L6°€6S

09°'158$
€8°000°6$
T0°L1£°95S

0S'TLT$
10°288%
69'128'6S
¥0v87$
vL'6£7$

00°0S
00°0S

000
000$
000%
00'0$
000$

o003

00°0S
00'0$
000$
00°0$

0003
00°0$
00°0$
0003
00°0$

00°0S

00°0$
00°0$
00°0$

00°0$
000S
000$
00'0S
00705

6S'€T8S
86°STZ'SS

TL9¢€S
CT6STS
8979955
$8'92S
£9°CES

L8TLY'SES
0528
8T'¥vS
EV'6EVS
S9'€T8T$

ze'88
£0°8T%
81°09¢$
66'T1$
TEVIS

00'STS

09°0€T$
Y T08°ES
SE'695'€CS

61°€LS
L1°€6T5
61°589°€S$
£8°TCIS
9SS

00'68T'TTS
00'v£5€9$

00°055$
00'180°CS
00°T0E'TTS
00'8€$
00'TPES

00°'869°£8T$
000
00°E€T$
00'v0£°9$
00'0ST‘8€$

00'9€T$
00°£Z¥S
00 ¥IE'6S
00'77T$
00ZvES

00°009$
00°0$
00°S06S
00'9L1VTS
00'958°58$

00'TESS
00°20L°T$
00'8et'LTS
00°LESS
00°s26S

Alunas |erdos JsAojdw]
Spun4 JuswaunRay

|EJ07 pUEB 3)E]1S 03 UOIINGLIUDY
2JE) UOISIA

24e) Yy1jeaH jeuaq

JuapIY pue yyesH dnolo
Angesig dnoig

3411 dnouo

V101 8ns

0000°TTL06 VETL'000°0E8T T8ZT TT
0000°TTL06'¥E€T£°000°0Z82 T8CT'TT

0000°'TTL06'€2£'000°0STT'TSZT'TT
0000°'TT/06'¥€2L°000°0VTC'T8CT TT
0000°TTL06'¥EZL 000'0ETT I8CT'TIT
0000°TTL06'VETL'000°0ZTC T8ZT'TT
0000°TTL06'VEZL°000'0TTZ I8CT TT

SH

AJBS 3uoydals)

s}y2uag JO N3 W ysed
AIunaas [epos JaAojdwy
Spung juawsinay

|EJ07 pUE 3]€1S 03 UCIINGLIIUCY
218D UOISIA

9IE) Y3jesH |ejuaqg

1U3PINIY pue yyeaH dnoig
Apgesig dnoio

3j1 dnoug

AI9S Quoyda|a]

Siysuag Jaylo

S1y2uag Jo nar ul yse)
AnJ9s |e1dos 1aAojdw]
Spun jJuawaJnay

|eJ07 pue a3e31$ 01 UoiINGLIIUO)
91D UOISIA

9JED Y)esH |equaq
JU3PIIdY pue yijesH dnoug
Apgesia dnoig

9jr1 dnoug

0000°'TTL06'VETL L86 0TVE9CCT TT
0000°'TTLO6'VETL £86'026C°9CCT TT
0000°TTLO6 ¥ECL L86°0E8T'9TTT'TIT
0000'TTLO6'7€TL L86°0282°9TTT'TT

0000°TTL06'VETL L86°0STT 9T TT
0000°TTL06'VETL £86°0VTT'9CCT TT
0000°TTL06'VETL L86°0ETT 9CCT TT
0000°TTL06'VETL L86°0CTT'92CT TT
0000°TTL06'VECL L86°0TTT'92CT'TT

0000°TTL06'VETL 000 0TYE9CZT TT
0000'TTL06'¥E2/ 000°066C'92CT'TT
0000'TTL06'VECL 000°0C6C°9C2T TT
0000°'TTLO6'PETL'000'0E€8C'9ZCT TT
0000°TTL06'PETL'000°028C'9TLT TT

0000°TTL06'7€E2£000°0STT 92T TT
0000°TTL06 ¥EZL 000 0VTT 92T TT
0000°'TTL06'VETL'000°0€TT'9ZCT TT
0000°'TTL06'¥EZL'000'0CTZ 92CT TIT
0000°'TTL06'PECL'000°0TTZ'9CCT TT

%ST'6C S6°¥8LS

%08°09 LLTOO'6TS

SO'€TES

€T LLY'6TS

0008

00°0S

00°0€S

LT°0520T$

00'80T‘T$
00°0S
00'6.¥'3Y$

sjuawAed |eads 13y10
uOlIBINPI-[BUOISSDJ0.d

HIOM [e1os

0000°TTL06'V€2L L86°06LT TSZT IT
0000 TTL06'¥ECL L86°0C6T TSZT'TT
0000°TTL06'VETL L86°OVYT TSET'TT

Packet page 72 of 271



%858
%9519

80°LSPS
9.'1Z6'TS

6°Tvs
vT'8L0°€S

%6v°L9
%18°S9
%EY'89

%98°'SS
%4509
%20°08
%S9°19
%1L'S9

%8LES

%8E°CE
%LETE
%66'T€

%98°€9
%96°L9
%68°TE
%E6'TE

%91°L9
%€9'99
%5985
%8€°09

%599
%€0'69
%€8'8S
%81°99
%6919

%9999
%999

%SL°00T

(19'919) .

¥9°£.8%
£9'8T2'0TS
TE'889°65$

68°L8/$
6061873
62°5/9°TTS
LLTYYS
€TELTS

0€°LLTS

7' 196'TS$
1566575
69°€9.°STS

€LETS
TThrS
' 191$
89°6/T$

00°£6T$
Ev89s
89'VE8' VS
97°'9v0'8ZS

[AN4 74
69'878%
95°686°0TS
YT TETS
OT'6€TS

00°001$
07'€88%

92T’
9£°728'TS$
£€°599°07%

69°/0V'62TS

T1°£66$
T6°0EEYS
T4°881°05$
£T°0TLS
LL°€TS$

0L'zzes

65°6£6%
6v°L60°C$
TE'0TTZTS

LTves
6L°€6S
65°6L$
V8RS

00°e0t$
89°99¢€'TS
T£°658°9S
YLYSLtrs

8t'Z8rs
1€ LV8TS
¥°'80£'STS
TR 74
06'¥SZS

00°00Z$
08'1¥9L'T$

00°0$

00°0$
00°0$
00°0$

00°0$
00°0$
000$
00°0$

00°0%
000
00°0$
000$

00°0s
0005
00°0$
00°0$
000%

00°0%
00°0%

4%
91'166S

00°88T$
vzoges
€0°'T6L'ES
1S €L’V

8E VTS
£5°069$
68'S00°TTS
SEVOTS
08'98$

00°SZ$

STIETS
86'3025
8¥'S6T1S

80°€S

90°€T1$
I3 AU
89°TIS

00°9S$
78°0L1S
65'9L0°TS$
S6'8T1'9$

¥€'19$
9€°£STS
[{R7A%4]
veLes
86'87S

0S°LES
09°07z$

00°005$
00°000°S$

00'802'Z$
00°00£'2$
00v8E'1ES
00'960'68T$

00'S8L'TS
00'0ST'2$
00'v91'€9$
00°ZST'TS
00°26.$

00°009%

00'T06TS
0026995
00'188°LES

00'8£$

00'8€T$
00°2£T$
0092

00°0%
00°009%
00'1S0'2$
00'¥69°TTS
00°T08'0LS

00'STL$
0092978
00°869'9Z$
00°LLES
00°'v6€$

00°0%
00°00€S
00'8¥9'¢S$

[9AB1] Juo) pue sdoysyIom
|aAe1] Juo) pue sdoysyIom

0000°TTL06°PETL L86°0CCE9CLTTT
0000°TTL06'VECL'000°0CZE9CCT TT
TIAVHL IALLVISININGY

IS duoyds|a)
siysuag Jo nal Ul ysed

AJan23s |e1dos saAojdwy

Spun4 jJuswainay

|E207 pUE 3E1S 0] UONRNQLIUOCD)

2JED UOISIA

8Je) yiesH |equsq

jUapIIY pue yyesH dnoig

Aupgesig dnoio

3y dnoio
= - |
MBS auoydajel

siysusg JoYlo

sijausg JO nalq ul ysej

Andas [eros JaAojdwy

Spung jusawainay

|e207 pue 33e1S O} UCRNGLIIU0D)

34D UOISIA

aJe) yijesH |eyueq

Apigesig dnoig

3)n dnoug
(I )
sjjausg 310

MRS suoydajaL

siijausg Jo nalq ut yse)

Aundas |epos 1eAojdwg

spung juawainay

|e207 puE 3}E)S 03 UOINGLIIUO))

2JED UOISIA

a1e) yyeay jewuaq

1U3pI22Y pue yieaH dnoig

Anigesig dnoug

3y dnoso

siysusq B0
MRS suoydafal
Syduag Jo nal ul yse)

0000°'TTL06'VETL L86'OTVE TSET'TT
0000°'TTLO6'VECL L86'0C6C TSET'TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86'0EBCTSET'TT
0000°TTL06'VETL L86'0C8T TSET'TT

0000°'TTLO6'VETL L86'0STCTSET'TT
0000°'TTL06VECL L86'OVT TSET'TT
0000°'TTL06VECL L86'0ETT TSET'TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86'OCTT TSET'TT
0000'TTL06°VECL L86°0TTT TSET'TT

SH3
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86°0TVE TECT'TT
0000'TTLO6'VECL L86'066C°T8CT TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL L86'0C6C'T8TT'TT
0000°'TTLO6'VECL L86°0E8CI8CT'TT
0000°TTLO6'VECL L86'0C8TTSCT'TT

0000°'TTL06'VETL L86'0STT TIBCT'TT
0000°TTLO6'VECL L86°0VTZ I8ZT 1T
0000'TTL06'VECL L86°0CTL T8CT IT
0000'TTLO6'VEC. L86'0TTC'I8IT'TT

SH3
0000°TTL06'VECL'000°066° TSET'TT
0000°'T1L06'v€CL'000°0TVE TSET'TT
0000'TTL06'VECL000'0C6T TSET'TT
0000'TTL06'VECL 000'0EBZ TSET'TT
0000°'TTL06'VECL 000028 TSET'TT

0000'1TL06'VECL'000'0STZ TSET'TE
0000°TTL06't€CL 000°0FTZ TSET'TT
0000°TTL06°'VECL'000°0ETZ TSET TT
0000'TT£06'VECL'000°0CT TSET'TT
0000°TTLO6'VECL'000'0TTZ ISET'TT

SH
0000°TT£06'¥EC/°000°066C° TSZT TT
0000'TTL06'YECL 000 0TVETSZT'TT
0000°TTL06'7€CL'000°0C6C TSCT TT

Packet page 73 of 271



- SINFIRE-ANS

_xmn.: LUSEL'TES £5°06V°TCTS 0L°8ET‘9TS 60°696‘VrS 00°£9€°69T$ violans
(sz'vT0'83) ST'¥10'8$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ MRS ansul Apigen] pue Auadodd  0000°9TL06 #£2£°000°0T6E T9ZT'TT
%59°68 ¥STESOTS 9/°695°78% 0L'8€T'9TS 90'705'SES 00'0bZ'STTS nas Jieday Buip|ing  0000°9TL06° V2L 000°0TTY T9ZT TT
%r8°2€E 00'87C°0T$ 00'200°s$ 00°0% 00°€99% 00'0£2'STS AI9S sieday Bulpping  0000°9TL06'¥EZL 000 0TIV TSET'TT
213 ALLY3d
%58°€6 67°95€$ 1S €Pr'ss 0003 000 00°008°5$ sa2nds idnd  0000°9TZ06 ¥EZL 000 0ETE TIET'TT
%EE'LE S9°'995TS SEEE6S 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°005°2$ saamuas idnd - 0000°9TL06 VETL LB6°0STE TIET'TT
000$ $IIIAIDS [BIIUYIDL B JOId JIBYIO  0000°9TL06'VEZL L86'06TE TSET'TT
(00°0££%) 00°0L£$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 0003 SIDIMDS [BIIUYID) 1B JOId JIOYIO  0000°9TL06 VEZL 000 06TE TIET'TT
%7979 PESEVTIS 99°/ST'6TS 00°0$ £0708'8$ 00°€65°0€$ SIIIAIDS [BIIUYDDL B JOUd JIBYIO  0000°9TL06 VETL 000 06TE TSET'TT
00°66€€LSES TYNLOVHLNOD
%818 L6482$ €0'592$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°055$ - sanddng aoy0  0000°9TZ06'VET/ £86'0T65 TSET TT
%850 69°TvT'1S 1€4$ 000$ 00°0$ 00'0SZ°TS$ s9)|ddNS PO 0000°STL06'7ETL L86°0T65 TSETTT
%90°S9 8LIIT'TS 7T'780°T$ 00°0$ 0003 00°00T‘€$ saiddns Buisal /Buiydeal 0000 ¥TL06 VECL L860TTS TSET 1T
%ST'61 88'9T9'T$ 2TE8ES 00°0$ (9£719) 00°000CS salddns 2240 0000°9TL06¥E2£ 000°0T6S TSET'TT
%I8EL 87:58/$ TLYITTS 00°0$ P 00°€09$ 00°000°€$ salddns Sunsal/8uiydesl  Q000¥TZ06 ¥ETL 000 0TTS TSET'TT
00°0% 0005$> dinb3 manN-jexde>  0000°9T/06°t€2L000°02¥9 T9TT TT
(89°51£9) 89°STES 000 00°0$ 00°0$ SReN 3 ddnS "ISINL - 0000°STL06'¥£7£°000° 0665 TSET'TT
%0E'T6 96'€ST'TS 69°0SL°TTS GE'S60'TS 9€°TITS 00°000STS ddns [00] 13 31eMpJeH "SI 0000'9TL06VETL 00070865 TIZT 1T
(T R T T e A T = L e (GG S 0y

i0/NIG# 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 101

INON

00°0$ LNIWdIND3

WEV'LE AR RRES

(€962L'BS  LEELSES . €s2Z$  1yio18ns
%96V 90'v6L'8S 6°851S 6°8StS 00'€ESE6S |9aed] Juo) pue sdoysyiopy  0000°ETL06'VECL L86°0CCE TGET'TT
%Pv1°C0T (v ¥93) €V ¥90°ES 000S 00°000°€S [3nel] yuo) pue sdoysyiom 0000°€TL06VECL 000°0CCE TSET'TT

© T3AVYL1YNOIIDNYISNI

%SL9S v8'8L€'2S 9T'TZT'ES 00°0$ 87°666S 00°005°SS viol1dans

Packet page 74 of 271



_.th.mw VLY6LYRLS 0L V06 VIV'TS 95'S6L'SSE'ES V6°79€°S6ZS 00°S6v°955°SS TV1OL ANVYD

%6’ LY 88'985'S$ 9ETIT' VS 9L TV6S T6'ETES 00°0¥9°0TS AJ3S [e1UDY Bulpping/puel  0000°9TL06VETL L86'0TTY TICT TT

X SEd Ebs 48160ETES ‘
%Z8'T0T (z0'€L9) ST'€98'7$ £8'602'T$ LLYSE'TS 00°000v$ m1as 8unuug  TO00'9TLO6 YEZL 000 0TIE TSET'TT
%L6TE 88'660'7$ TTL86$ 00'0$ 06'05% 00°£80°€$ AI9S BunuLd  0000'9TL06'VEZL L86'0TIE TSET'TT
%8512 r'E6E9TS 85TIS'V$ 000$ £2°502T$ 00'906°02$ [2reiL Aing Jein8ay  0000'€TL06'VEZL L86'0TZE TSET'TT
000$ [2AeIL AINQ JBIN83Y 0000 TTLO6'VEZL L86'0TZE TSET'TT
(92'8v23) 9L°8bT$ 000$ 00'0$ 00'0$ joAelL AInQ Jein8SY  0000'TTL06'VEZL'000°0TZE 9ZTT'TT

SJIAISS |edluyda] B J0Id JIBYIO  0000'9TL06'VETL L86'06TE TSET'TT

%00°0 00'0S8'TS 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0S 00°0S8°T$ S9IAIBS JUBWBBeUBIN  0000'STLO6'VETL L86'0STE TSET'TT
%EE'ES S9°062'SCS SE'606°8CS 00'0$ 9S'€0T°LS 00°00Z‘tS$ ddns A3d1199|3  0000°LTL06 V€L 000°02SS' TSET'TT
%8C°0L 05°€89% 0S'9T9'TS 00°0$ Trovs TS 00°00€°ZS$ Al3SUnsul 193l 0000'vTL06'VETL'000°0€6E TSET'TT
%V9'TC 598979 SETELTS 00°0$ 89°02¢5 00°000'8$ AJ3S 98emag 191 0000°LTL06'PEZL000°0€8E TSETTT
%Y0EE €9°066°T$ LE'T86$ 00°0$ 90°Z8YS 00'€L6°CS [9Ael] AinQ ueindaY  0000'E€TLO6'VECL 0000TTE TSET TT
%LLVE 81°7¢SS 8LLTS 00°0$ 000$ 00°008$ salddng 330 0000°'STLO6'¥ETL'000°0T6S TSET'TT
%EV'Y 80°68€°7S 76'0T1S 000$ 0005 00°005°2$ SIJIAISS JUBWSBeURIN  0000'STL06'VEC 000°0STE TSET'TT

UO9SE EEES S3RI1C

_.x.#.m LUSELTES £O°TTEE6TS 0Z'vSE‘8VEES 60°696'vt$ V101

Juswanoidwi 0000°00000¥£CL°000°0TSS' TIVT TT
Al[enp -syuswasingsiq
ysnouyy moy4 / aarueln-gng

%00°00T 00°0$ 0S°0Z8'TLS 05'z6v'ees 00°0S 00°€TE'SO0TS €T IOWHYM - Ssjudwesingsid  0000°OrTT8 ¥ECL 000'0TSS TTHT TT
y3nouys mol4 / as3ueID-qns

%00°00T 000 00°0$ 00'€TES0TS 00°0$ 00°€TE'SOTS UjoJUIT - SJUSWSINGSIA  0000°0L0T8 YL 000°0TSS TIVT IT
ydnouyy moy4 / asnuein-gns

%00°00T 00'0$ 00°0% 00°001°8£0°2$ 000 00°001'820°2S SJA - s)UBWasINGsIG  0000°0ZOT8 ¥ECL 000°0TSS TIFT TT
ysnouyy moy4 / anuesn-qns

%00°00T 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0TE'STT'TS 00'0$ 00°0TE'STT'TS SdVV - sjuawdsingsia  0000"0TOT8 ¥€22°000°0TS8 TTVT TT

ySnouyz mol4 / asueln-qns

Packet page 75 of 271



—
N~
o~
| - obed Wd €1:€0:21 ¥20Z/81/€0 UO ajym| Ag uny 5
©
N~
00 9z 25°068'9 8Y'€9Y'T 00 81°09¢ 00'vLE'S 00'6EV'E 00°6/8'S Juapiody pue yyesH dnois 0000°L1£06°'¥E€2L°286°0€12°92C) L) o
00’ JA4 SO'LLL S6'v0L 00 66°L1 0o0zee 00 00’2z Aungesig dnoi 0000°L1L06'VE2L°286°02V2°92ZL LE @
00 yAS 02'SLZ 08'9¢1 00 [4584% oozre 00 00°2ve 3y dnoig 0000°} 1 L06°V€CL 286°0LL2'92¢CL L)L
00’ +++ (09'z01) 09°Z201 00 (81°152) 00 00 00 uofjeonp3-|euoissejold 0000°LL206°'VEZ. 18602619221 LL ©
00 e+t (0z'15) 0zZ'LS 00 80'9 00 00’ 00 sjuswAed |eads Jayo 0000} L206'¥€2.°2186'0641°9224 L1 S
00’ 0 6.°0¥8 12°zee'tL 00’ 15081 00°€92'C 00 00'€9.'e Jadaaypjoog-leous|)-Alejeieg 0000°LLLO6'¥ECL L86°0291°92CL L) %
00 [ 25°0ee’t 8v'80v'e 00 0z ¥9t 00'6EL'V 00 00'6EL'V [ed1uyss | By1o 0000°L 1 206°'v€2L 286°0651°92¢CL LE
00 9 L€°€18'8E £€9°629'Z¢ 00’ £¥'908'v 00'6EY'LL 00°000°cl 00'6E1'8S uonaaug Juswpedsq/we.bolg 0000°L 1 L06°P€2L°L86°0LL1°922L LE
00 8l (z9229'2) 29'96.°G 00 65'v.9 00'vEL'E 00 00'vEL'E Hejs-uonoangyuorsinedng 0000°4 }206¥€ZL°286°09L1°922L L)
ue)g peay Aues - 186 welboid
00'0% % 29 E8°LIB0ZLE /1'156'002% 00'08 8L'ELL'EES 00'692'L2€$ 00'955'£98 00'cLEZ'vees s|ejo | paubisseur - goo weiboly
00 e €0°90S LE'EE 00 00°S) 007009 00 00009 Mg suoydaje | 0000°1 1 L06°'¥E€CL000°0LPE° 9221 LL
00’ 29 9.'126')L ¥2'840'E 00 91’166 00'000'S 00°000'S 00 [9AB1L JUOD) puE SAOYSHIOM 0000°L L Z06'¥E2L°000°022€°92¢2} L1
00 +++ (92°8v2) 9.'8ve 00 00 00 00 00 19Ae1L Ang Jeinbay 0000°L 1 L06'¥EZL000°0L2E 922 L)
00 6 ov'es 09'LG8 00 09°0¢l 00°S06 00 00'G06 sjysusg Jo nap ul ysed 0000°L1206°¥E£24°000°0262°92¢C) L1
00’ €9 L1'GLL'S €8°000'6 00 v L08'E 00'92L'¥1 008292 00'86%°L L Anoeg |eog sakoidwg 0000°L 1 206°¥€2.°000°0£82°92¢C)"LL
Spun4 Juswamay
00’ 99 86'8€5'6C 20°LLE'9S 00 G£'695°'cC 00'958'G8 00'8G.'01 00'860'69 [e007 pue 9jelS 0} uornquuody 0000°L L L06'¥EZL000°0282°9¢22)° L)
00 8¢} 06652 0s'L/z 00 6L°€L 00'LES 00 00'LES 3Ie] UOISIA 0000°LLL06°VE€Z22.°000°05L2°9ZCL L)
00 4} 66'618 1088 00" 11’62 00'202°L 00 00°20L'L ared yjesH jejusq 0000°L1206'¥€CL 0000V 92CL L)
00 9¢ 1€919'/1 69'128'6 00 61'G89'E 00'8ev' L2 00°0zL'8 00'gleslL Juapiody pue yyesH dnoin 0000°L1206'¥€2.°000°0€L2°922L L1
00 €5 96'CSe v0'v82 00 e€g'ict 00°L€S 00 00°L€S Auiqesig dnoio 0000°L 1 206'¥€2.°000°02L2°92CL'LL
00 9z 92°G89 vL6EC 00 9" ¥S 00'626 00 00'5¢6 a7 dnoun 0000°L L Z06'VETL'000°0LL2°9C2L 1L
00’ +++ (ot°ze) or'ze 00° (ze6L) 00 00 00 uoneanp3-jeuoissajold 00001 1L206°¥€2L°000°0261°922L 'L L
00’ +++ (62'5£9) 62'6€9 00 06'6SS 00 00 00’ sjuswied [eadg oo 0000°L 1206'¥E2L000°0641°92¢CL L1
00 04 S9'195'L Ge'66C'L) 00 evye9’l 00°198'v2 00 00'198'v2 Jsdeaypjoog-{eousi)-fiejedsg 0000°L L L06'¥€22.°000°0Z91°92CL 1L
00 43 C9'6LE'S 8L've9'cl 00 98'968°} 00'v56'81L 00 00'156'8l [edluyoa] Jsyio 0000°L }206'¥€22°000°0651°92¢CL 1L
00 G 65°966't1 L¥'€29°CS 00’ L2022y 00°029'26 00'000°'sE 0002929 uogoasq Juswpedsg/welboig 0000°'L 1£06°PEZ2°000°0LL 179221 LE
00 V8 98'020°L vl'epa'se 0o LP'692'y 00992y 00’ 00992y Jeis-uopoangyuoisiatedng 0000°L1L206'%£22.°000°0911°922L L1
paubisseun - 000 Wweiboig
Hels 1jsuj jo uonaasiquolsiazedng - 9ZZ) UOHIUN,
00'0$ % 28 BYOLY'LLS €L L19'/¥8 8E V61 S £6ZEYS 00'9L2'€9$ 00'G52'9L% 00" LOV'9Fs s|ejo) uononJsul jo Juswasoidwy - Zz| uonound,
00°0% %o L4 CS'L6P'0LS 9E'EEL'PES 60'9€2'L$ 121218 00°L81'9P3 0008 00°L9¥ 9v8 S[e10L D0||Y 8OUR)SISSY Y23 | Melg peaH - 86 Leiboig
00 001 ST S/'B66'Y 0o’ 00’ 00°000'S 00 00°000'S s834 pue sang 0000°21.06°'7€2.'886°0b¥L"LECL LL
00° 9l 89°CLL'Y 2e09. 00 00 00748y 00 008y ateg Bunuud 0000°91206°¥€2.886°0L9¢E° 1221 L}
00 85 €.°992'9 12'865'8 00’ Lz 00°6Z8'vL 00’ 00's28'vL [9ABI ] JU0D) pue SAOYSHIOM 0000°€1206'¥ECL'886°022E° 1221 L1
00’ 66 68011 (4415 44 60°9€Z'1L 00 0029L'12 00 00°Z9L'Le SIVIAIRS [BOHUYIB] R JOId J18YlO 0000'91L06'¥€22°886°061E°LZCL L)
0[]y 0URISISSY Y29] Mejs peaH - 886 Welboly
0008 % S6 ¥6'816% 12°118'TL8 62'856'28 2L VIES 00'G5L'91L8 00°'S52'91$ 00°0% sjejo) uels peoH Apeg - g6 weiboid
00 00l L 68°¥S. 00 0o 00'SS. 00'6S2 00 $884 pue senQg 0000°L1206'VETL L86°0LVL LCCL 1L
00 V6 cy'68S 85°019'9 000082 L 00°000°0L 00'000°01L 00 [9AB1L JUOD puE SAOUSYHIOA 0000°€1/06'¥€2.°286°022€°L22L L)
00 <6 Lv'62¢ 0e'2Ls's 62861 0002 00°000'9 00°000'9 00’ SOOIAISG [EOIUYDR] B JOId JBYIO 0000°91206'¥€2L°LB6°06LE LT LI
uejg peaH Apeg - 286 weiboly
uoponasuf jo Jusweaoidwy - Lzz| L uonoun4,
osuadxg sdA] wunooay
0008 % L1 b9'9rL'Z€9'VE  9£'8bE'8LES 0008 00'08 00°667'G55'SS  00°1£0°295% 00'P9Y'886'FS  s|eio) anuaAdy odA] junocoy
00'08 % Ll POOPLLES'PS  9E'9bE'8leS 0008 0004 00°G6¥'SS6'S$  00°L£0'/95% 00'vSP'886'FE  sieiol enusasy - 0000 .uonouN4,
00'08 % Ll ¥9'9rL'IE9'vS  9E'BYE'8LES 00'08 00°0% 00°G6Y'SSS'GS  00'LED'Z95% 00'¥9¢¥'886'vS  siejol paubisseun - pop weiboid
JUSWILLISAOE) [Blapad
00 Ll P9'ovL'Le9'y 9e'8re'gL6 00 00 00°G6¥'555'S 00°LE€0°L9S 00'v9v'886' woy Apoaiig paniedsy pejoLlsey 0000°00000°¥£Z2°000°0000°EL PO LL
paubisseun - 900 weiboiy
ANUBA3Y - 0000 .UCHOUN,
2NUBASY adA] 1LIN0JoY
pung [ejauag - || puny
[Ej0L sea) Jald posy/pesn % [emov-iebpng  [emov SaoUBIQWNOUT |eMoY 12bpng papuswy suswpuswy  jabpng pajdopy uogduasag JuNoooy FQUINN WNORY 1O
Ljuop Juaund 186png

¥¢/6¢/20 S1eQ 0} Jes\ |eosi4

Hoday asuewliouad 39bpng

m?nmm w“‘_}zmmguﬂwammnmmmmﬂg “ n



¢ - obeyd Wd €1:€0:Z) ¥202/81/€0 Uo ajym| Ag uny
00 +++ (00°0.€) 00'0.€ 00 00’ 00 00 00’ SBVIAISG [EOIUYDS] %R JOId JSYIO 000091206 ¥€2L°000°06LE LLEL L
00 6 61'9G6€ LGEVP'S 00’ 00 00°008's 00" 00'008°S s90lA18g (1dng 000091 206'¥€2.°000°0ELE LLEL LL
paubisseun - 000 weiboig
uondalIg S9JIAIaS AJuNwwon - LLgL . Uoioung,
0008 % LS L6°EV6'08L$ 60'0/2'981% 0008 80°L80°22% 00'PLZ 29E8 00'0$ 00'vie'/9¢e$ s|ejo[ UonenjeA3 pue yoleasey ‘Buluueld - 1821 ,uonoung,
0008 % €€ 96°ZL 1068 ¥O'SEL'EYS 00°0% €0°€8L'v3 0082 ZELS 00°0$ 00'8¥Z'2ELS sjejo | Jeys peay Apeg - 186 weiboig
00" S 0€'LL2 oLzze 00 00°6Z 00009 00 00'009 ARG auoydejs ), 0000°L 1 Z06vEZL 286°0LYE LBCL L)
00 4% L7 L96'L 65'6€6 00 sZ'iel 00°L06'C 00 00'106°2 sjysusg Jo na|t ur ysed 0000°} 1 206°'¥€2.°286°0262°L8CL L1
00 4 15°66S'V 6¥°260°C 00° 86°80C 00°169'9 00 00°269'9 Aunoag jeoog 1ekoldw3 0000°L1206'¥E2.LL86°0E€RCLBTL L
Spun4 juswaIpay
00 49 69°€9.'SC Leozi'eh 00 81'G6L°L 00'v88°L¢ 00 00'¥88°'LE [B007 pue 8jgys 0} uohnguuod 0000°L 1 L06°¥€2L°286°028Z°18CL L
00 V9 €LEL e 00 80°¢ 00'8¢ 00 00'8¢ 8Je) UOISIA 0000°LLL06'¥ECL L86°0SLZL8CL L
00 89 YAk 44 61'¢6 00 90°€l 00°'8€EL 00° 00°'8€L 2led YjesH jelueq 0000°L 1 206°'¥E€2L 28601 18CL 1L
00 [4 5518 6S5°GL 00’ €70l 00°2€2 00 00°2€C Aungesiq dnog 0000°L1L206'PECL 28670212 L8ZL L)
00 45 89'6.1L 2ev8 00’ 89°LL 00'v9Z 00 00'v92 a7 dnoig 0000°L1206'P€CL'286°0L12°L8ZL LL
00 6 S6'v8L so'ece 00’ 00°0¢ 00'804'L 00 00°804L°L sjuswied [ewadg JopO 0000°1 L206'PECL 286706417 18CL L)
00 A% L0°L2€'9S £6°€50'9¢ 00 L0°¥S8S°C 00°1BE'C8 00 00°18€'28 YoJeasay 0000°L 1206'v€2L 286°08L 17182 LE
ME)S peaH Apeqs - 286 welibold
00°0% % 19 56'0£8'06$ SOSEL'PPLS 00°0$ 50'8/8°LL% 00'996'VEC$ 00°0$ 00'996'v£2$ sleyo paubisseun - 0o wesboig
00 19 00001 00002 00° 0S°.€ 00°00¢ 00 00°00€ Aag auoydaje 0000°LLL06°PECL000°0LPE LBTL L)
00 .9 0C'e88 09'v9.'L 00 09°0ce 00'8¥9'C 00 00'8+9'Z Sjysusg Jo nalj Ut yseny 0000} 206'¥€2.°000°0C6C 1821 LL
00 6S 2Z18S'v 82°109'9 00 65°€lL8 00'68L°LL 00 00'68L'LL Aunoag |eog Jekojdw3 0000°L1206'vEZ2°000°0€82°18CL L1
spun4 juswalnay
00 59 91'8ve'ee v8'szZ LY 00° 86'GLZ'S 00'7.G'€9 00 00'v.G'€9 [e007 pue 8je)s o) uonnquiuo) 0000°L 1 206°'¥€2.°000°0282°L8CL LL
00’ i ¥E£'S6C 99'v6C 00 12°9¢€ 00°05S 00 00°0SS 8JBJ UOISIA 0000°L 1 206°'¥€2.°000°0SLZ°182L L
00’ SS £8°9¥6 LVIEL'L 00 22651 00'¥80'C 00 00¥80°'C 8Jed YjesH [ejueq 0000°L1206°PECL'0000VIC 18CL 1L
00 8€ L2150 62°6VC'Y 00 85°99G 00°10€'L L 00 00°10E'L juapiooy pue yjesH dnoi 0000°} 1 206'¥€2L°000°0ELT LBCL LL
00’ 6S vSest 9'82T 00’ 68'9¢ 00°'¥8€ 00 00'¥8€ Aungesiqg dnoio 0000°L 1206°P€CL°000°0CL2 182 L)
00 <9 1G'6LL ev'1ze 00 19°¢e 00°IvE 00 00°IvE a)17 dnaiy 0000°FLL06'PETL0000LI2 182 L)
00 7 Y0601 96'zee 00 €v'e9 o0ocry 00 00'Zhy sjuswAhed |e10adg JOYi0 0000°L 1 206°'¥€22°000°062L°18CL 11
00 29 VLTS 99'8/8'/8 00" 2€°904°01 00'eSk'ehi 00 00°€St'erl yoJesssy 0000°L L 206'VE2L000°09LL718CL 1L
peaubisseun - 000 Wwe.iboiy
uolenjeAg pue yoseasay ‘Buluueld - gzl .uonoung,
00°0% % 68 €1'86Z'GLS 90'9F4' 2018 18'S/1'8L$ YE€'6C6'SES 00°088'071L% 00°088'0v1$ 00°0% s|ejo) sadialeg sBulpping BunesedQ - 19z} ,uonoung,
0008 % LY 88'985'SS 9E'LLL'TS 9L L ¥BS Z6'ELES 00°0¥9'0LS 00°0¥8'0LS 0008 s|ejo] ueyg peaH Apes - /g6 weiboid
00 Ly 88'985'G LY 9L’ v6 Z6'ElE 00°0¥9'01 00°0¥9'0} 00’ Alag [Bjusy Buipling/puen 0000°91L206'¥ECL 286°0LCP 192l LL
Hejs pesH Ape3 - 1g6 weiboig
0008 % €6 GC'L19'6% 0L vEE'E0LS SOvEC' LS Zh'S19'6ES 00°0¥2'0€L% 00°0¢2'0E1L$ 00°0$ siejo| paubisseun - 000 weibosg
00 6 96°¢St'L 69°062'2L SE'SE0L 9e’LLL 00°000'SE 00'000°S} 00 ddng jooL B asempieH osIA 00009} 206'¥€Z.°000°0865° 1921 L1
00 98 7S LEG'9L 9/'69G'28 0L'8e1'91 90'¥0G'SE 00°0¥Z'SLi 00°0¥C'SLL 00° Aog sleday Buiping 0000°91206'V€2L°000°0L LY LOZL L1
00 +++ (SZ'¥10°9) STYlo'8 00’ 00’ 00 00’ 00 Al9g unsu| Ajiger pue Auedoid 0000°91L206'¥€2.°000°016€°L9C1 |}
paubisseun - 000 weifoig
s991nleg sbuipjing BunesadQ - L9z} uonound,
00°08 % 6S L21L1'281L% 62°002°2.28 00°0$ £2°06.'26% 00'ZLE'65VS 00'¢LL'LES 00'859'29€$ S|EJ0] Jels jsu| jo uopdaliquolsiatedng - 9ZZL uonound,
0008 % €S 8E°65£'99% 29EVT LLS 0008 S¥'919'6$ 00°€08°2€1L$ 00°8S1'¥28 00°SPP'ELLS s|ejo] Hejs peeH Ajie3 - g6 weiboug
00 +++ (¥8'68) 868 00 0s’L 00 00 0o AI9g auoydea 0000°L12L06°VE2.286°0LPE 922 L L
00 6 80°LSY [4:x44 00 [4%] 00°00S 00008 00" [9ABL] Ju0D pue sdoys>Hop 0000°L1L06'¥E2L L86°02CE 92CL L L
00 641 (st'v01) Sv'LET 00 8L vy 00°€EL 00 ooeel sjysueg Jo nar ul ysed 0000°L1206°¥€ZL LB6°0262°9CC) L1
00 2s 12°2e0'e 6L1i2'c 00 EV'6EY 00'0€°9 00°566 00'60¢€'S Aunosg [erog refoidwz 0000°L L L06°V€Z. L86°0E8C°92CL LL
spun4 yuawainay
00’ 1) 9L'sve' Ll ¥8'¥08'02 00’ 59'€l8’e 00°0G1'8€ 00'vzz' 00'926°LE |E007 pue 8je}s 0} uonnquuo) 0000°L L L06'VEZL 286°0282°9¢C) L1
00 %44 €e'lL 19'8S 00 48] 00'9€} 00’ 00°9¢1 SJed UOISIA 00001 1 206'VEC.L 28605429221 L)
00 54 98'0SC 7191 00 10'8C 00°Ley 00" 00°22¥ 2Jed yjesH |ejueqg 0000°L 1 206'vETL /86°0VLC9CCL L)L
B0l ;eap Joud poeYpesn Y [enpy-12fpng  lempoy sueiquIous  [enpy 195pNg pepuslly SJUSWpUBLWY 1ebpng paidopy Londuosag WNoIoY JSQUINN JUNCoTY 1O
juog waun) 12bpng

¥2/6¢/20 3¥eq 0} Jed |easiH

Hoday asuewiouad }obpng

AT DY AZIANIS TYHOILY INAI TYHSIDIY ¥

S| Meualysepn

Packet page 77 of 271



271

€ - obey Wd €1:€0:ZL ¥202/81/£0 U0 anym| Ag unys
00°0$ % 49 26'82£'612% 80°Lbb'S6YS 00°0% ¥Z2'98.'L68 00°04L'v72$ 00°960°'0v$ 00'v/9'¥0.$ sieio| Helg peaH Aeg - 296 weibold R
00’ 8y 16'¥82 £0'692Z 00" 00° 00°05S 007055 00 saliddng aoy0 0000'9LL06'+€2.° 28670165 LSEL LIS,
00’ b 69'2rZ'L 1eL 00’ 00 00°052'1 00°052'1 00 sallddng 820 0000°S1L06'+€2.°286'0L6G LSEL' LIS
00 S9 8L LLL'L T7'280'C 00 00" 00'00Z'c 00°002'c 00" selddng Bunsa ) /Buryoes | 000071 L06'VEZL L86'04LS LGEL Ll
00" ze 88'660'C zL'286 00 06°0S 00°280°¢ 00°/80'¢ 00" MBS Bupuig 000091 206'¥E22'/86'0LIE LGEL"L L
00’ 1oL (to'g1) 19¥2Z'Z 00’ 00'88L 00'80Z'Z 00" 00'802'Z ARG suoydaje 0000°LLLOBVEZL 286 0LYE LSEL L LD
00° S 90'v6.'8 ¥6'8GY 00 ¥6'85Y 00'¢52'6 00'¢52°'6 00" [oAel] JuoD pue sdoysyuopn 0000'€1206'¥€2.L 286022 LSEL L IX-
00 2z Zr'e6e'9l 85718 00’ 12'502°2 00'906'0Z 00°906'02 00" jeAel) Aing JeinBey 0000°€1L06'VETL 286'012E LSEL L L
00 0 00°058'L 00 00 00 00°058'L 00°058'L 00 S9OIAISS Juswabeuely 0000'S1L06°VEZL 2867 0SLE LSEL 1L
00 29 v9'2.8 9e'228't 00 ¥Z'9ge 00°002'Z 00’ 00'004°Z sjysuog jo nerj ui yseo 0000°LLLO6™VETL 2860262 LSEL' LI
00’ 99 L9'812'0L ££'699'0Z 00 €0'L6.L°C 00'v8¢'1€ 00" 00'+8¢'LE Aunosg (eog sakoidw3 0000} LL0B'VETL 286°0E8Z LSEL L
SpuUN4 Juswaley

00" 89 L£'889'65 69°L0%'6Z1 00" 15°€2.'ve 00°960'681 00’ 00°960°'681 12207 pue B}E}S 0} LOANGLIUCD 0000°} L L06'VE2L 28670282 LSEL 1L
00 9 6878/ L1266 00 8e' vl 00'582'L 00’ 00°8Z'L aIeD UOISIA 0000'LLL0BVEZL L86°0GLZ LSEL L
00" 19 60°618°C 16°0EE' Y 00 €5°069 00°0S1'2 00" 000512 a1eD YyesH jejusg 0000°'L LLOB'VEZL L86'0VLZ LSELLL
00 08 62'6.9'Z1 12'882'0G 00 68°600°L 1 00'v9t'c9 00" 00°9t'c9 1uapooy pue yyesH dnoig 0000'L 1 L06'VEZL 286°0ELT LSEL LE
00’ 29 LUy £€2°04L 00’ SEVOL 00°Z51'L 00’ 00'25L°L Aungesig dnoio 0000'LLL06'VEZL286°0ZLT LSEL L
00’ 99 €TELT 11825 00" 08'98 00°26. 00" 00262 8y dnoio 0000°L L206'V€22' 2860112 LSEL LE
00 19 LL°100'61 €T Liv'6T 00’ 12°052'02 00'6.t'8Y 00 00'6.1'8Y YoM [elo0g 0000'LLL0B'VEZL L86°0VF) LGEL L)
00 19 ¥£'88L'26 99'%8.'261 00° TT9ee LT 00'€5'S62 00" 00'€25'662 Bujjesuno? [euoponysu 0000} LLOB VEZL L86°0SZL LSEL 1L
00 6. £L°06V'Z4 1Z'568'8p 00 16°€1S'9 00'988'09 00 00'988'09 Buljssunog 0000°LLL06'YETL"186°0Z21 LSEL L1

Hels peay Apeq - Jg6 welboig
00'0$ % 29 P6'BZL'6ELS 61'89¢'£22$ 18°602°1§ ZL'£9E'9r$ 00°202'L9€% 00'650'a0L$ 00'8+9'652% sleo | paubisseun - 000 we.bosy
00 Fws (ag'sie) 89°GLE 00 00 00 00’ 00’ sie g ddng ‘osipy 0000°S1206'¥€22°000°0665 LSEL LI
00" 6l 88919} zL'ege 00’ (921) 00°000'Z 00°000'2 00 sallddng 820 0000'91206°¥€22°000°016G°LSEL LI
00" s¢ 81'Z2S T8'LiT 00" 00’ 00°008 00°008 00’ sa)ddng sa0 0000'S1206'7£22°000°0165 LSEL L}
00 €5 S9°062'sT GE'606'82 00’ 95'e0L"L 00°00Z'¥S 00'8€.'6€ 00°Z9t'vL ddng Ajoi08)3 0000°21L06'¥€22°000°0Z5S LSEL L1
00" 2 82'68. wLriee 00" 00'€09 00°000'¢ 00°000'S 00 saliddng bBunsa | /Buiyoes 0000'G1206°4€Z2 00001 LG LSEL’LL
00 € 00'82Z'04 00'200's 00’ 00'€99 00°0£2'st 00°0€Z°s1 00’ neg seday Buiping 0000°91206'V€22°000°0L 4+ LSEL L L
00 oL 05'c89 05°919'L 00" Zyovs't 00'00€'Z 00°00€'Z 00 Aag Insu| Je9)4 0000+ 206" ¥£Z2°000 0E6E LSELLL
00’ 44 $9'892'9 SeLEL'L 00’ 89°022 00°000'8 00°000'8 00’ nag abemeg Jaepm 0000°21L06'P€ZL 000 0SS LSEL L}
00’ 2oL (zoes) S1'€98°Z 18'602'L LLVS6°L 00°000'Y 00°000'% 00’ Areg Bupuug 0000°91 206" V€22 °000°0L9€LSEL ' LL
00" 19 00261 00'€0¥ 00 00'95 00°009 00°801 00'26% A9g suoydaje | 0000} L L06'V€ZL°000°0LVE LSEL L
00 201 (ev'v9) £7'490'c 00’ 00 00°000'c 00'000°€ 00 {oAe1| Juo) pue sdoysyiopm 0000'€LL06'V€22°000°0Z2E LSEL LI
00’ €e £9°066'L 1£'286 00° 90'Z8Y 00'€.6'Z 00'€.6'C 00’ 1oAel] AinQ Jenbay 0000°€LL06'VEZL'000°0LZE LSEL L
00 €9 yeser'LL 99'/G1'61 00° €0'209'8 00°€65°0€ 00'908'61 00°282'0) SeOIAIBS [BOIUYDD] B JOId JBYIO 0000°91206'+€C2 000061 € LSELLE
00 14 80'68¢€'Z Z6°0L1 00 00" 00'00S'C 00°005°Z 00’ sadInIeS Juswabeuepy 0000'S1206'V€22°000°0SLELSEL LI
00 19 ZE'189 89'99¢'L 00’ 280l 00'150'7 00 00'150°Z sjyauog Jo nal ul ysey 0000°L L L06'VEZ.2°000°0262 LSEL L1
00 65 89'VE8'Y 7€°658°9 00’ 6579201 00'¥69'LL 00°L€'L 00°2LE'04 Ayunosg [epog Jskojdws 00004 L 206'¥€22°000°0€82°LSEL L1

spun4 juswainay
00" 09 9Z'9%0°8Z YLlveL'ey 00" S6'8LY'9 00°108'0L 00'819'8 00°€81'29 [e307] PUE 3jElS O} UORNQUIUCD 0000'L L 206°¥£22°000°0282° LSEL' LI
00" 19 25T 8r'zey 00 ¥e'19 00'sz.L 00" 00's2L a1eg uoisip 0000} 1 L06'VE2L'000°0SLZ LSELLL
00 69 69'828 LE L) 00" 9¢'282 00'9.9'7 00" 00'9/9'2 a1eD YesH |eueg 0000°L LL06'VEZL000°0FLZ LSELLL
00’ 65 95'686'01 ¥'80L°61 00" Z6'vZ1'T 00'869'9Z 00°005'¢ 00'861°cZ JuspIody pue weaH dnoig 0000} 1206'¥€22°000°0ELZ LSELLE
00’ 59 veiel 9L'sve 00° vZ'lzZ 00°2.€ 00’ 00°2.€ Aujiqesig dnoig 0000°LLL06'YEZL°000°0Z4 T LSELLL
00 s9 oL'6ElL 06'¥S2Z 00" 86'82 00'v6€ 00’ 00'+6¢ 811 dnoug 0000} LLO6'YEZL 00001 L2 LSEL L
00" SS 0£'985'2¢ 0.'286'6€ 00 9270222 00'6£5'2L 00°000°'8L 00'685'vS oM [2100S 0000°L L206'¥€22°000°0FV 1 LSEL LI
00 et (86°'Z15'G) 86°2LS'S 00" LLUERO'L 00 (00°292Z'65) 00°292'65 Bujissunod [euoponusu 0000°L 1 206" ¥EZ2°000°0S2Z1 LSEL LI
00 06 61'GE2'S 18°028'SH 00 69'805°9 00°965'0S 00'9.¢€'2¢ 00°08L'gL Bujjesunog 0000} L.LOB'¥EZL 0000221 LSEL L
paubisseun - gop wesbolg
Uaiphy9 jo ale9 pue Apoisn - LGE| uonoun,

00°0$ % 18 v1°€56'L$ 98'9¥2'9$ 00°0% 00°0$ 00°00€'8$ 00°005'2$ 00°008'SS S|€10 | uUoRdRII( SAJNAISS AUNWwo) - |Lg} uonound,
00'0% % LE 59'996'L$ SE'ELHS 00°0% 00°0¢ 00°005'Z% 0000523 0008 s|gj0] pejg pesH Apes - 186 weiboig
00 1€ 69'095°L SE'EER 00’ 00’ 00005’ 00'008'Z 00" saolneg dng 0000°91206'VEZL 286'0ELELIEL L

Hejs peay Apeg - zg¢ welboiy
00°0$ % 001 (LseLs) LGEL8'sS 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°008's$ 00'0% 00°008's$ siejo| paubisseun - ggo wesboig
[0l Bsf Joid pPAeEPasnN %  [enpPy-Jebpng  enpy SeOURIqWINOUT  [endy 196png papuswy slewpuswy  jebpng paidopy uondussag unoosy JoqWINN JUNoXY S

Wuow Juaun) 12bpng

¥¢/6¢/20 9¥eQ 0} Jes A |eosi4

Hoday asuewiopad 19bpng

dS| Meuajyseppn ?



{ - ebed Wd €1:€0:2) $202/81/€0 Uo anym| Ag uny

00°0% 06'15£'268'es  (FE'955'96¥8)  (95°96.'sse'ed) (¢6'29€'5628) 0008 (005£2'6L9) 00'GEL'6LS s|e1o] puess

00°0$ % 98 YL 6L P8LE 0L¥06'vL¥'LS  QG'GBL'GSE'ES  ¥629E'562S 00'S61'GS6'SS  00°99.°98G% 00'622'896'vS  sIelo] asuadx3

00°0$ % L1 voovL'ieS'ys  9E'8rE'8l6$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00'S61'GS6'SS  00°LE0'L9GS 00'¥9+'886'¥$  SIEI0L enusAsy

00°0$ 06'L6E'258'e8  (pe'955'96ps)  (9s5°geL'sse’es) (b6 zoc'sezs)  00°0$ (00°EL'6LS) 00'SEL'ELS S|e10) pund jesauss - L pund

00°0$ % 98 PLYPEL VRIS 0L'v06'pLP'LS  99°GEL'GSE'ES  ¥6'29E'GHZS 00'G6%'SSS'SS  00°99/°985% 00'62L'886'v8  siElo) esuadx3

00°0$ % Ll vo'ovLIE9'YS 92 8PE'8LES 00'0$ 00°0% 00'S6%'SS6'SS  00°1£0°29S$ 00'791'886'v$  SIEl0L anusAsy

00'0$ % 98 Viv6LY8LS 0L v0B'VLP'LS  95°G6L'SSE'ES  ¥6'29€°S62% 00'S6P'SSS'SS  00°99/°985% 00'622'896'F$ _ sielo] esuadx3 d4] junooay

0008 % 001 0008 050281 L 0S'GLZ'ZEE'ES  000$ 00'9E0'+0+'ES  00°792'981L8 00FL2'LLZ'ES  s[e101 SI00YDS |qnd YDIW JOYIO 0 Sd = LIy} ,Uanound,

00°0$ % 00L 00'03% 05'028" 148 05'Glz'zee'es 0003 00'9E0'VOP'ES  00'29.'9814 00'pL2'2LZ'ES  sieic] paubjsseun - po0 weiboiy
AJSg 104 JoUsIg

00’ 001 00 05°028'LL 05'Z6¥'SE 00 00°€LE'S0L 00°220'9 00'9£2'66 100Y9S allgNd Jayjouy o} Jud 0000°29628"+£22°000°0228 LI ¥L LI
AIBS 10} PWSIA

00’ +++ 00" 00 00 00’ 00 (00°000°01L) 00°000°0} 100493 9MIaNd Jayiouy 0} jwd 0000°0¥L 18'¥E2L°000°0228 LEVL LL
AIBS 1o} JoLgsiq

00’ 00} 00" 00" 00°€LE'S0L 00 00°€LE'501 00'£L0'9 00'9¢2'66 I00Y2S 2lIgnd Jayjouy o} jud 0000°080}8°¥€22°000°02Z8" L b¥L L1
AIBS JOJ JoMISIg

00’ 00l 00’ 00 00°001'820'Z 00 00°00L'820'Z  00'6¥0'0Z1 00'150'856'L 100Y2S dlidnd Jayjouy o} uid 0000°02048'¥£2.°000°0228 LL¥L'LL
AISG Joj Joumsiq

00 001 00’ 00’ 00°0LESHL'L 00 00°0LE'SHL'L 00'655%9 00'152°050'L 100Y3S JlIgNd Jeyjouy o} Jud 0000°010L8'¥€22°000°02Z8 LL¥L LL

paubisseun - 000 Wweiboiy
SI00Y2S [qnd YIIWN JAYIO O3 Sjuld = Ly} .uojound,
00°0$ % S9 98'/G¥'88E$ 12'608'22.$ 18'60Z°1$ 9E'6YL YL $ 00°2/b'TLL'LS  00°SSL'8VLS 00°22€'v96$ S|ej0L UaIp|Iyd Jo ased pue Apojsng - |GEL .UonoUN,
[EloL fe3p Joud PO3Y/Pasn %  femoy -jebpng ey SSOUBIWNOUT  [enpPY 12bpng papuswy Sjlswpuswy  196png paldopy uonduosaq Junoaoy JequinN UNCIY O
LpucKy Juan)d 1@hpng

¥¢/6¢/20 @¥eq 0} Jes A |edsi

Hoday asuewiouad 39b6png

ADMIDV IDIANTS TYNCILYINGT IYHGIDIY ¥

(0S| MBUIUSEAA

Packet page 79 of 271



£z 40 1 8bed WV 00:£€:0T ¥0¢/8T/€ uo umeqgeT ‘elym Ag uny
welb
SH'09b'8 6£°€C Jadoud 0} asuadxa ssepay i arc 0££20000-+20¢ ¥c0z/e1/eo
90°/5b'8% ‘2jed o] sduejeg [2Ae4] Juo) pue sdoysHIOM 0000°ETL06'VEZL 886°0ZTE TTZT TT J2quuny JuUnoy 7/9
96'858% 89'041'1$ Slej0l peys peaH Apeg  weibold
96'858% 89°0/1'T$ S|ejol ¥XQ¢ Mels peaH juely
96'858% 96'821'1$ S|e101 S|DIALRS [enjoenuo) uojjeso’
96'858% 96'821°'TS s|ejo) paubisseun JBYl0
0£°7156% 96°858% 96'82T'T$ S|E10L SIDIAISS [@2IULDDL 73 JOId SYIQ JUNOXDY
0£'215°5$ 96°858% 96'821'1$ S[ej0) ¥zoz Auenigad  Yyjuop
S1¥20¢
0£21s’s 00°06 3504 |lo1Aed  AJUIUOW-IWBS S 1504 [I0JARd UH ac Zv£20000-+20¢ ¥eoe/st/zo
Anu3z jeuinog
UoIEILISSRPY JUNOJ2E PALI0D
ocTey’s 00°06 - SSepay WY 0} Sjuswssinquiisy SSepsy o) ac 06520000202 ¥20z/20/20
Agu3 jewnor
UOIIeDLISSeRY Junodde 1Da1I0d
0£'zee’s 00°06 - SSepay WY 03 SjuswiasInquuisy SSepsy 1 ac 065¢0000-+20¢ $202/20/20
Anu3 jeulnor
UONEDLISSESY |esional
0£°2HT's §9'0¢eC - SS9y W SSEDaY Juswiesinquiisy b arc £9520000-+¢0¢ ¥202/10/20
Anu3 jeuinog
uoneduIssepPay [eslaAal
S6'29b'S 1£°8€9 - SSBpo3y WY SSePIY JusWssinguliay 19 ac £9570000-+20¢ ¥202/10/20
Anu3 jeunog
uoIedYISSe|IaYy
9Z'10T°9 §9°0¢¢ - Ssejosy WY S5e|28Y JusWsesInquiisy b ac 655¢0000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anug jewnor
uoneduissepsy
19°088'S 1£'8€9 - Ssepay Wy SSE[IaY JUsasINquiIsy 1 ar 65520000-+202 +202/10/20
0€TrT's$ ‘Sjeq o1 aduejeg SIVIAIBS [BI1UYID] 1§ JOId 12410 0000°9TL06'VETL L86'06TE TZTT'TT JoQUNN N0y /9
00°0% [4452] S|ejo| [9ARA)  UONEICT
00°0% CL'IPS siejol paubisseun 12y10
85'019'9% 00°0% ZLTHS S[ej0L [oARI) Juo) pue sdoys)iopm  JuNoDYy
85°0799% 00°0% 2L 1hS |01 +Z0Z Adenagag  yuop
Poe/pouad juelb
85°0T9°9 [4AN8 2 J1adoid 03 ssuadxe ssepay 19 ac 0€££20000-+20C ¥eoz/zi/eo
98'895°9% 3}eQ 0] soueleq 19AeA] Juo) pue sdoysHIoM 0000°STL06°PETL L86'0TTE TZTT'TT  SQUINN JUNCDY /9
Souefeg [enpy JNOWY Jpsi) Junowy 3geq ESIEIETEr 20IN0S Dal01d/UORAIDSSq  Jebpa ) 2dAL Jewinog 31eq 1/9
qns jewmnor

lle3oq Jobpa gns apnjox3
¥2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey s1eq 1/9

- EDIeER
TVH3IN3D @37IvVL3d SH3/SH ¥20Z AdvNnyg3d

ADMIDY IDIANTS TYNSILY INOS TYNOIDIY ¥

(0S| MBUSIYSEAA

Packet page 80 of 271



£2 J0 7 abed WV 00:£€:0T $20T/8T/€ Uo umeqe ‘S)ym Aq uny
ST420T
T TI91'9p £1°06£C 350 |l01hed  AJUIUOW-ILSS S 150 ||oJAed UH ac 2420000202 $202/s1/20
welb
60°'TLL'Sh 9020 l1adoud 0} asuadxs ssepsy g a #0820000-+20¢ ¥z0e/z1/e0
welb
£0°669°6€ £/7e82'6C Jadoid 03 asuadxe ssepay §s) ac 0££20000-+20¢ ¥20ze/z1/20
0£'9TH'0T$ 193eQ 0 duejeg uoa.1g Juawpedaq/weibold 0000'TTZ06'PEZL 0000LTT 9ZZT TT  JSGUNN JUNOIDY /9
PIEb9'6ES 8S'THT$ 66'01H'v$ S[e10. Jeis-uonpalig/uoisiatadng  Junoddy
PIEp9'5ES 8S'1+1$ 66°0TF'FS s|ejol ¥z0T Aeniqag  Lpuop
914202
I Ep9’sE [4% (1144 3150 |l01Aed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||0JAed YH a 0£620000-+20¢ $202/62/20
874174
20°ThS'EE [4 (1] 844 150 |joJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS § 150 [|0JARd YH ac T£Z0000-+20¢ ¥202/S1/20
juelb
06°0b+'1€ £4'56 Jodoud 03 ssuadxa ssepay go) a 0£/20000-+202 ¥20e/ai/zo
Anu3 [euinog
uonedyissepay JUNOJJe PUI0D
LY SPE'TE 97'8¢ - 5@y WY 03 sjuBWRsSINqUIDY SSePSY gb) ac 06520000-+20Z $20z/e0/20
Anu3 jeusnog
uoleouissepay |esiaAald
€LELE'TE TEETT - ssepay WY ssepay JusasINguiey gb) ar £9520000-+207 ¥202/10/20
Anu3 jeusnog
uonesyissepay
+'092'1€ TEETT - Ssepay WY S5e|23Y WBWasINqIDY © ac 65520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
£1°€2€'18% 12)eQ 0] =ouejeg 4e)S-uoipdalig/uoisiradng 0000 TTL06'YEZL 000°09T T 9ZTT IT JoqUNN JUNOd2Y 1/9
96'858% 68'162'T$ S[e]0] UOIPNIISUT JO JUBWDACIdWT  LUOHIUNI,
00°0% 12 12T% S|e10 1 J0]|Y DOURB)SISSY Yoo Hejs peaH welbold
00°0% 121215 S|e101 HX0T HeIs peaH jueln
00'0$ 1Z2'121$ S|e10] [9ARdL  UONRIO]
00°0% 12'121$ slejo| paubisseun Jauy30
/2'855'8% 00°0% 12°121$ S[ej0) [9Ael] Juo) pue sdoysyIop  JUNODDY
£2'855'8% 00°0% 12 121$ s|ejo] $z0T Aenugad  yjuop
, 914202
LT’855'8 78'L6 150 [l01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||osAed ¥H ac 0£620000-+20¢ ¥202/62/20
90°L£b'8$ :33eQ 0| dduejeq [9Aed] Juo) pue sdoysHIOM 0000'STZ06"PETL 886°0ZZE TZZI IT JOGWNN JUNODY 7/D
SDuejeg [enpy JUNOWY Jp=1D JUNOWY 1GeQ ERIIEY=TE NS paloigfuondine=q  =bpe] 30AL JewInog 318G 19

le3aq 49bpa] qns apnjox3
v¢/6¢/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey 81eq 1/9

J35a37
TVY3INID @311Iv.1i3A SH3/SH ¥20TZ AdvNug3d

qans [ewnof

AIOY 3AYIS TYNCIAYINAI TWRODIY %

(0S| MBUSIUSBAA

Packet page 81 of 271



£z 4o € 3bed WY 00:€€:0T +202/8T/€ Uo umege ‘aym Ag uny
welb
89°80¢ ob'ee Jadoud 0} asuadxa ssepay 1 ac 0££20000-+202 ¥eoe/e1/zo
87'G8T$ -9jed o[ aouejeg 2411 dno1o P00 TTLO6'PEZZ'000'0TTZ 9ZZT TT J2quINN JUNo3dY 1/9
0F'2eS 5°64% 00'0% S|e10] UoIIeINPI-|RUOISSDJ0Ld  IUNOIDY
0t'ZES ZE'6/$ 00°0$ s|eol $T0T Atenugag  Ljuow
juesb
ov'ece TE'6L Jadoud 0} suadxd ssepay 19 ac 0££20000-+202 vzoz/z1/e0
LTS ‘8jeQ oL duejeg uoneINp3-|euoissajoid 0000 TTLZ06'YETL 000°0Z6T 9TCT TT Joquny Junoddy /9
62'5£9% 00°0% 06'655% s|ejo] syuswied [eads B0  UNODY
62'5£9% 00°0% 06'655$ sieiol vzoz Atenugag  yiuol
9T420?
62°G€9 L1799 150d [[oJAed  AlYIUOW-IWBS S 1S0d [losAed  dH ac 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STH20T
21'695 60'S 1504 [[0JAed  AAUOW-IWSS S 1504 Jlodhed  YH a £20000-5207 ¥202/s1/20
juelb
€095 80°19 1adoud 0} asuadxa ssejay g} a $0820000-+202 veoe/zi/ze
welb
S6'C0S 95'L2y Jadoid 03 asuadxa ssepay 19 ac 0££20000-+20¢ ¥zoz/z1/eo
6°SL$ 193eQ 01 duejeg sjudwAed eads 19Y10 0000°TTL06'VEZL 000'06LT'9TZT TT  J2qUINN JUNodDy 7/9
SE66Z'LTS £8°68+% 9Z'pI1'2s s|ejo) Jodoapjoog-|ediia|)-AJe)aldas  Junoddy
SE'662'L1S £8'68b% 9Z'¥11'es S|eI0l $20z Aenigad  yuop
9120
SE'662°LT £1°£S0°T 150d |loJAed  AUIUOW-IWSS S 350 |loJAed  YH ac 0/620000-+20¢C ¥20z/62/20
S1$20
w9t £1°450°T 150d [lolAed  AYIUOWHIWSS S 1s0d |loJAed  WH a €v£20000-+202 ¥20¢/S1/20
welb
60°S81'ST €8'68 Jadoid 0} asuadxa ssepay 19 a 0££20000-+202 vzoz/zi/e0
T6'pL9'STS 13je(Q 01 sueeg 1adadypjoog-jediad-A1e3aides 0000 TTL06°VEZL 000°0Z9T 9ZZT TT JSqUNN JUNoDY /9
8T'PEQ'ETS 00'0% 98'958'1T$ S[e10] [EJIUYDDL JBYIQ IUNOIDY
8T'PES'ETS 00°0$ 98'958'1$ sjejol bgoz Aenugad ol
91202
8T'VEY'ET 8b'180°T 150 loiAed  AlYIUOW-IWRS S 150d [loJAed  dH ac 0£620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
STH20T
0£7285'CT 8€'6/L 150d [lo1Aed  AJUIUOW-IWRSS S 1S0d JlodAed  YH ac 244200005202 ¥202/S1/20
CELLLTTS ‘91eQ 01 Souejeg 1221UYd3] IO 0000 TTL06'PETL 000"06ST 9ZZT TT JOGUINN UNODY /9
TH'£29'255 00°0% 11°£02'2v$ sjejo] uonpdaag uswpedag/wesbold UNOY
IH°£29'25$ 00°0% 11°£02'2p$ S|2301 $20T Adenuged  yjuop
\ 91207
(g XA R4S 61°29%'9 150d [[oJAed  AAUOW-IWBS § 3504 JosAed  YH a 0£620000-+207 v20t/62/20
0€'9TH'0T$ '2)eQ 0L 3duejeg uonpa41q wawpedaq/weibold 0000 TTZ06°FEZL 000°0LTT°9CZT TT JSQUNN JUNODY /9
Iouejey jenpy JUNOLWY Wpal) JUNOWY 31geq ERT=Y=1E0 ~ 0InoS Peloig/uondiDsaq  Jabpa] EGLYR Jewinog =1ed 1/9

le3=q 496pa7 gns apnjax3
¥2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 =buey 81eqg 1/9

ERTER!
TVY3INED @311Iv13d SH3/SH ¥20Z AdvNug3d

qns jewnog

a1 meusiisens AN

Packet page 82 of 271



[T 30  obeq WV 00:££:0T +20¢/8T/¢ uo umegeT ‘Suym Aq uny
10'788% 00°0% L1°€6C$ S|EJ0L BJeD) Y3jeay jejusg IuNoDY
10°288% 00°0% L1°E62% slejol $T0T Aleniqad  yjuop
914207
10'288 824 350d [[0JAed  AYAUOW-IWSS S 150 [j0IARd UH a 0/620000-+20¢ ¥20e/62/20
ST5202
LTH08 £0'95 150d [loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWRSS S 150 ||0JAed ¥H ar /20000202 $202/S1/20
jelb
01'8vL L7712 Jadoid 03 asuadxa ssepay 1) a $0820000-+202 $20z/21/20
welb
XN T4 64" LET Jadoid 0) ssuadxe ssepay g} 3c 0££20000-+202 ¥202/21/20
$8°885$ :33eQ 01 Suejeg 942D Yyj|eaH |ejuad 0000°TTL06'YETL 000 0PTZ 9CZT ITT J2GWNN JUnoddyY /9
69°'128°6% 00'0% 61°689'c$ S|EJ0L JUSPIDDY pue Yjjeay dnoss Junoy
69'T78'65 00'0% 61°589'c$ s|eJol $ToT Aenigag  uol
914202
69°128'6 69°++8 1s0d |loiAed  AJUIUOW-IWBS S 1504 [joiAed UH a 0/620000-+20C $20z/62/20
STH202
00°2L6'8 06'$SS 1504 |loJAed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 1504 JjoJAed uH a Zb/20000-+202 ¥202/51/20
jelb
017248 647682 Jadoid 03 asuadxs ssepay gb) ar #0820000-+20¢ ¥20e/TT/co
juelb
TE°2ET'8 18'566'T ladoud 03 asuadxe ssepay g} a 0££20000-+202 $202/21/20
05'9€19% 193eq o] nuejeg 3uapdY pue yijesH dnoln 0000 TTL06°PEZL 000°0ETT9ZZT TT JoqUNN JUNoDY 7/9
v0'v8TS 00'0% £8°121$ siejot Alligesig dnoss  unoxy
+0'b82% 00'0$ £8°121$ s|elol oz Aeniqad  Luol
1874174
¥0'$8C S0'€T 150d [[0JAed  AJUAUOW-IWRS S 150 J|olAed UH ac 0£620000-+20¢ ¥eoz/62/20
4874114
66'09C e 150d JloiAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [[0JAed UH a T£20000-+202 $202/51/20
eld
85°8b¢ ¥9°'01 Jadoud 0} asuadxe ssepsy ib) ac $0820000-+202 beoe/zi/eo
juelb
¥6'LET £1'S 1odoud 03 asuadxo ssepay © r 0££20000-+202 ¥zoe/e1/eo0
12°291$ 133eq 0] souejeq Ajjiqesiqg dnois 0000°TTL06'PEZL 000°0ZTZ 9ZZT'TT 2qUNN JUNoDY /9
PL6ECS 00'0% 9t $S$ s|230] @41 dnoag  Junoddy
bL6ETS 00'0% 9%"pSS sle0l $20Z Aenagad  Luol
91HZ0T
v/ 652 £5°6T 150d |l0JARd  AJYUOW-IWRS S 1504 [[olAed ¥H ar 0£620000-+20¢ $702/62/20
STH202
|4 744 €51 150d [lo1Aed  ALUO-IWSS S 1504 JjolAed UH ac 2r/20000-+202 $20e/s1/20
yuelb
89'11Z 00°€ Jadoud 0) asuadxe ssepsy ib) a $0820000-+20¢ $202/T1/20
87'981$ i33eQ 0] =ouefeg 3J17 dnodd 0000 TTL06'YETL 000°0TTZ 9ZZT TT J2qWNN JUNODY 1/9
dueeg [enpy UNOWY Jpa) WNOWY 11950 ESTEIEIETY 2005 Paloidjuondinssq  Jobps] SOAL Jewinog 580 19
ans jewsnog

lle3eq 12bpa gns spnjox3

2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 abuey a1eq 1/9

d39a3ai

TVH3IN3D @371v13d SH3/SH 707 Advnig3d

AZMIDY I2AEIS IVHOILY I0Aa3 TYHOI1T3d %

(0S| MBUSIUSEAA

Packet page 83 of 271



i
WY 00:€€:0T $202/81/€ U0 umeqe] ‘apym Aq uny i

LT Jo G abed
5
<t
[o0)
sjgeAeg >
$1°500'S 90°'816 SIUNE2OY Anuz a010Au1 dfy dv a 206200004202 ve0z/se/e0 ©
80°/80°7$ '31eQ 0] SUEjRg [9Ae1] Juo) pue sdoys}IoMm 0000°TTL06'YEZL 000°0ZZE9TTT'TT JSqUINN JUNCDY /9
09'158% 00°0% 09°0£1$ SIe104 S3yauag JO NS Ul Ysed  JUNoDY e
09°'158% 00'0% 09'0£1% s|ejol $2oz Aenigag  yiuojy o
91$202
09'158 0£°'59 150d |l0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 [|0JARY ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 ¥e0z/62/20
STHeoe
0£'982 0£°59 150d [loJAed  AIIUOW-WUSS S 1504 [loiAed  WH 3r Tv£T0000-+202 $T02/S1/20
00°124$ :9jeq 0] duejeg Sjausg Jo 31 Ul YseD 0000 TTL06'YETL 000'0Z62°9CCT'TT  SqWNN JUNOddY /9
£8°00065 00°0% ' 108°E$ siejo L Ajlnodag jetnos JoAojdwy  Junoxy
£8°000'6$ 00°0% ¥ 108'€S slel0) $Z0g Aenugad  Ljuop
91202
£8°000'6 $1°018 150d J[0JARd  AYIUOW-IWSS S 150 [olAed YH ac 0£620000-+202 ¥20z/62/20
S1¥202
69'061'8 6T'vLb 150d [[0JARd  AYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [jolhed ¥H ac T£20000-+202 vz02/51/20
welb
059142 [4-¥ 4183 Jedoud 0} asuadxe ssepoy g0) ac +0820000-+207 vzoz/e1/eo
juelb
86'€0bL 65°%02'C Jadoud 03 asuadxa ssepay gho) ac 0£/70000-+207 $202/21/20
6£'661'S$ 133eQ 01 Jouejeg A1ndag [epos 1pAojdwiz 0000°TTL06'VETL 000°0E8Z 9T TT JOQWINN JUN03Y /9
20°LTE95% 00°0$ SE'695'ETS S|e10] SPUN4 JUSWDIIIDY [BI0T pue d)E)S 03 UONQGLIIUCD  JUNODDY
20'Z1€'95% 00°03% SE'695'C7S S|e101 $Z0g Aenigad  Yiuol
9TH202
T0°21£'95 LT26'Y 150d JI0:4Bd  AJUIIOW-IWAS S 3504 [lolAed YH ac 0£620000-+202 ¥z0z/62/20
STH20e
S8 PbE'TS 66'9/0'€ 350d [loJAed  AJYIUO-IWSS S 150 [|oJARd uH a /200005202 $202/51/20
welb
98°/97'8b 18'€h6'T Jadoid 0) ssuadxo ssepay gbo) ac £0820000-+20¢ ¥20z/e1/c0
juelb
S0'pZs’ob 8€°9/S'ET JIadoid 0} asuadxs ssepay ™ ac 044200004202 $202/21/20
spung
LY LbL'TES 193eQ 0] duejeg WBW2IRY [ed0] pue 33EIS 0] UOINQLIIUOD 0000 TTL06'YEZL 000'0Z8T9TZT'TT  JSqUINN UNODY /5
0S'1/2$ 00°0% BT'ELS S|E10] 248D UOISIA JUNODIY
0S°1/2$ 00'0% 6T'ELS S|e0l $Z0T AMdenigad  juojy
9TH20¢
05142 SL'1e 1504 JloJAed  AlYIUOW-IWSS S350 JjoJAed  WH ac 0620000202 ¥eoe/62/20
STHe0z
SL'6bC 91 150d [l0JAed  AlYIUOW-IWRS S 1504 j[0JARd ¥H ac T/20000-+202 $202/51/20
juelb
(R X4 1€°S Jadoud 03 asuadxs ssepay g ac $0820000-+202 ¥20z/21/20
juesb
00'822 69'67 Jadoid 0} asuadxa ssepay 1 ac 0££20000-+202 ¥zoe/er/eo
1€'861$ '93eQ 0 SdUejeg 24eD UOISIA 0000°TTL06'YETL 000'0STZ 9ZZT'IT  JOqUNN JUnoddy /9
duSjeg [eroy ROy JIps1) JUNOWY 3iG=Q EREIETEr DINoS Paloidfuondinssq  ebps] 041 JeLinog 218q 19
ans fewnog

Ileyeq 196pa gng apnppx3

¥2/62/20 - +2/10/20 2buey a1eq 1/9

b-ELleEN

TVY3N3D @37Iv.i3d SH3/SH v20Z Advnug3d

ADPIDY IHANTS TYNOILYINOI TYNOIDIY ¥

d S| Meusjysepn



£ 10 9 9beg WY 00:€€:0T $202/8T/€ U0 umedeT ‘anym Aq uny
8b'80 s 00°0% 0Z'bor$ S|ej01 [edIuyda] JAYIO IUNOY
8t'80¢'E$ 00°0% 02 v9bs slelol $zoT Aenigag  yiuol
914202
8¥°80b'€ 9€°0/2 150d [loJABd  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 350 [l0JARd  ¥H ar 0/620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
STH202
TU8ET’E v8'€6T 150d lloJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150d [[oJAed  UH ac Zb£Z0000-4202 $202/51/20
87'bH6'2$ :91eQ 01 SUeRg [e21UYISL J9YI0 0000 TTL06'VETL £86°06ST 9TTT'TT JOQLUINN UNODY /9
£9'529'2E$ 00°0% £5'908'b$ s|e101 uondalid Jwdwpedag/weibold  Juncddy
£9'529°2ES 00'0% £0'908'bS sielol 0T Aeniqag  yiuop
9Tb20T
£9'529'2¢ (443024 150 ||lo1Aed  AJYUO-ILIBS S 1504 ||01ARd UH a 0£620000-+202 $20e/62/20
STHT0T
Tweee'os 12°E0¥'2 150d [joJAed  AJJIUOW-IWBS S Is0d [[oihed WM ar Zh£20000-420C ¥20t/s1/20
0C'618'LZ$ "91eQ oL =duejeg uoaIIq Juswedsq/weibold 0000 TTL06°PEZL Z86°0LTT9ZZT TT JoqUINN 3UNody /9
29°95/4'6$ 00°0$ 65'¢/9% $|ej0 | JJeis-uoipdadig/uoisiaiadng  Junody
29'95£'5% 00°0% 65'%£9% s|e101 $Z0Z Aenigad  Yiuol
914207
79'98L'S S5'TeE 150d |lo1Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150d ljoJAed ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 yeoz/ez/co
STHT0Z
LO'bTY'S vSTTee 150d [loJAed  AJYIUOWHIWSS S 1504 [loJAed  HH ac 2+£20000-+207 ¥202/51/20
elb
€5'160' 056 Jodoid 03 ssusdxa ssepay 19 a 044200004202 ¥202/21/20
€0°780'S$ "9jeq ol souejeg JJeis-uoidauIg/uoisiARdng 0000 TTL06'VEZL £86'09TT 9ZZT TT JSqUNN JUnoddy /9
£L'0TL$ 1S°$88'E8$ siei0) paubisseun  weiboid
£L°0148 15'p88'E8% S[e101 HXQZ MelS PEaH  jueln
EL°0TL3 15°+88'€8% S|ejo] SIS0 [PUUO0SIad U0IeI0
£L°014% 15'$#88'£8% s|ejoj paubisseun Jsyi0
L6°56% 00°0$ 00'ST$ S|ejo | AJSS Suoydajel  Junoy
L6°E6S 00°0% 00'STS s|e101 $Zoc Aenigad  Yiuop
9TH207
L6'€6 05, 150d llodhed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1s0d joshed  HH ar 0£620000-4202 ¥20z/62/20
STH20T
/598 052 180d JloiAed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 150d Jjoshed  HH a TH£20000-420T +202/51/20
£6'8L$ *9jeq oL axueleg AJDS duoydajal 0000 TTL06'PETL000°0THE 9ZZT TT Jequny Juncdy /9
v7'8£0'c$ 00°0% 9T'166% S|E10) [9ARI)L Juo) pue SdOYSHIOM  JUNOIDY
b2’ 8L0°E$ 00°0% 91'166% s|e10l yzoe Aenugad  Yjuop
, 914202
VC'8LO E 0TeL 350d [l0Jhed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150d loJARd  WH a 0£620000-+202 ¥20z/62/20
80'£80'$ i81eq 0| oueleg [2Ae1] Juo) pue sdoysHJom 0000°TTZ06'YEZL 000°0ZZE9ZTT'TT J3qUINN JUNODY /9
Soueleg [enpy JUnowY Yparg nowy Jigeg EsTT=1=TE0] DIN0S Paloigjuondiosag  Jebpa] SdAL JEWwnog 3180 /9

lle3oq 426pa7 gns apnpox3
+2/62/20 - b2/10/20 26uey a3eq 1/9

439543
TVYINID @37IV13d SH3/SH 20T AdvNyg3d

ans fewnog

ADMIDY IT1AYIS IYHCILY DRI TYNQIDIY ¥

(0S| Meua1ysepp

Packet page 85 of 271



12 Jo £ obeg WY 00:££:0T $202/8T/€ uo umege ‘suym Aq uny
8L c9b'$ 00°0$ 87°09¢$ 5|10 UBPINOY pue yijesH dnots Junody
8 €9b'T$ 00°0$ 81°09¢% siejo) $z0oz Aenigag  juop
91H207
8'€91°7 60°08T 150d ||I01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 150d ||0JARd uH E[s 04620000202 $20z/62/20
874114
6£'€8C'T 60°08T 150d |l01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWLSS S 150 Jl0JARd ¥H ac Z¥/20000-H202 $202/51/20
0£'€01°2$ '3jeQ 0 8juejeg JuSpIdY pue yyjeaH dnoid 0000 TTL06'PETL L86°0ETT OTZT TT Joquny Junocddy 1/9
S6'b0T$ 00'0$ 66'T1$ slejo) Aypiqesig dnoss  Junoddy
S6'+01$ 00°0% 66'115 s|elol pzoT Avenigay  Luol
914207
S6'%0T 66'S 150d [joJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0lAed YH a 0£620000-5202 $202/62/20
STH202
96'86 009 150 ||lo1Aed  AJYIUO-ILLBS S 1504 loJARd UH ac Tv£20000-+20¢ $20T/51/20
96'26%$ 133eQ 0] 8duefeq Aypqesiq dnoud 0000°TTZ06'VETL £86°0CTT 9CCT IT JSQWNN JUno3dY /5
08'921$ 00'0$ ZEPIS s|ejo] @417 dnodn  JUNOdIY
08°921% 00°0% VIS S|e1o] $Z0T Alenigad  Yiuol
9TH20¢
08921 91/ 350d |[0JAed  AlYIUOW-IWISS S 1504 [|0JAed UH ac 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STH202
$9°6TT 91/ 150d |l01Aed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 1504 |l0JAd UH ac 2420000202 $202/51/20
8K'ZIT$ :3jeq o) a3uejeg 9411 dnolo 0000 TTLO6'PETL L86°0TTZ9ZZT TT J2qUINN JUnoddy 1/9
09°Z0T$ 81°15¢% 00°0% S|EJ0| UOIFEDNP3-|RUOISS3J0Ld  JUNODDY
09°20T$ 8T'15¢$ 00°0% slejol #20¢ Atenigad  Ljuop
juelb
09°20T 81'152 1adoud o3 asuadxa ssepsy 1 a 0££20000-+207 yeoe/zifeo
8/'€5E$ 133eQ 0] soueleq uonedNP3-|euoissayoid 0000 TTL06'PETL L86'0C6T 9ZZT TT Joquny JUNody 1/9
0C'15% 00°0% 80°9% s|ejoL sjuswied [e10ads 1930 JUNODDY
07'15% 00°0% 80°9% s|ejo) $z0Z Aendgag  juol
91$202
0Z'18 $0'€ 350d |l0iAed  AJYIUOW-ILISS S 150 |0JARd ¥H a 04620000202 $20T/62/20
STH20
or'sy ¥0’E 150d |loiAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0JARg uH ar Zb/£70000-+202 ¥202/s1/20
(4897 :3)eQ 0] dueleg sjuswied |epads J9Y10 0000°TTL06'YEZL L8606 F°9TZT'TT JoqUNN JUNODY /9
12'226'15 eSS 16'4E23$ s|ejot Jedsayyoog-|ealsa))-Alejaidas  Junoddy
12'226°1$ PEHSS 16'PETS S|e1ol zog Atenigad  yjuopw
91$207
12'226°1 SELIT 150 ||lo1Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 350 [lolAed ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STHe0e
9208’1 9 /1T 1504 JjoJAed  AJAUOW-IWSS S 1504 [jolAed ¥H ac 2/20000-+20¢ $202/ST/20
juelb
0€°£89'T PEBS 1adoid 03 asuadxs ssepay 1 a 0££20000-+202 beoz/ei/eo
Y9 THL'T$ 13)eQ OJ dURjRY Jadaapjoog-1edia|)-A1e3a.19S 000" TTL06'PETL £86°0Z9T 9T TT Joquinp unoddy /9
Souejeg ey JUNOWY 3IPa1) JUNGWY 3950 ESIEIETE BRI Poloig/uondinseq  Jobpa| S0AL [ewinor 318G 1/9

Ileyaq J49bpa gns apnpx3
¥2/6¢/20 - ¥2/10/20 =buey 91eQ 1/9

d35d3an
TVY3N3D d371IV13a SH3/SH ¥T0T Advnug3ad

qns feusnog

ADMIDY IXAYIS TVNOILYINAS TYNCID3Y 7

0S| MmeUualysepp

Packet page 86 of 271



£2 40 8 3bed WY 00:€€:0T $202/81/€ Uo umeqe ‘sym Aq uny
Sb/£T$ 00°0$ 8T tb$ S|Ej0] SiyaURG JO N3l Ul Ysed  Junoddy
Sb'/£2% 00°0$ 8T'vb$ s|el01 $Z0T Atenagad  Luok
91H20¢
AT 6072 150d [0JARd  AJYIUOW-ILUSS S 150 ||oJARd YH ac 0£620000-+202 $20¢/62/20
STH20T
9€°ST¢ 60'2¢C 150d |l0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 150d ||0JAed UH a £20000-+20¢C $202/51/20
LTE6T$ 3jeQ 0] 33uefeq sjyaUag 40 NBI W YSseD 0000 TTL06'¥ETL L860Z62°9TCT'TT Joquny JUnoddy 1/9
6L TLT'ES 8€'ETS 18'29b% sieio| AJunoss jeros Jakojdwy  junody
64'142'c$ 8E€78 18°29F% s|e10) $Z0Z Atenagad  uop
914202
6L°TLT'E pEPET 150d lIoJAed  AJUIUOW-IWLSS S 150 [|0JAeg ¥H ac 04620000420 #202/62/20
ST1H20Z
Sb'L£0'E Lb'8TT 1504 JloJAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [[olAed ¥H ac v£20000-+202 $202/51/20
welb
86'808'C 8c'€? Jadoud 03 asuadxe ssepsy ° ac 0££20000-+202 ¥oe/zT/eo
9¢'7e8’'ts 131eQ 0| dURjRY Aandag |epos 1o40jdwi3 0000 TTL06°PEZL L86°0E8T'9TZT TT J2quINN JUnoy 1/9
¥8'+08'0Z$ 91'€01$ 18'916'2$ S|ejoL Spundg JuUSW=a41Iay [EJ07 PUE 33E3S 0} UOHINGMIUCD  JUNODDY
$8°+08°02$ 91'€07$ 18'9162% slelol 0T Atenugad  yuop
914202
$8'$08'07 £8°S2H'T 1504 |l01Aed  AJUJUOW-IUSS S 150 ||0JARg YH ac 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STHe0e
10°6££°6T 86'06%'1 150d ljo1hed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 JloJAed YH ar Th£20000-+202 $20z/s1/20
juelb
£0'888"/T o1'€0T Jadoud 03 asuadxe ssepy 19 ar 0££70000-+202 $0e/et/e0
spung
61°166'L1$ 1@3eQ 0J dURjRY JUBWAINRAY [B307 pue 218§ 0} UOHNALIUOD 0000'TTL06'VETL L86°0Z8T 9TTT TT SqWNN JUnody 1/9
£9'85$ 00'0% zE'8s S|e10| ddeD UOISIA JUNODY
£9°'85% 00'0% ZE'8% s|elol ¥Toz Aenagad  yiuow
914202
£9'85 - 9Ty 150d JloJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 |[oJAed YH ac 0£620000-+20¢ ¥eoz/6z/20
STH20C
15'bS 9T’y 150 |l01hed  AJUIUOI-IWSS S 3504 [|0JAed ¥H ac (200004202 ¥20T/ST/20
SE'05$ 19)eq 0] 2duejeq ale) UOISIA 0000'TTL06'VETL £86'0STT 9ZTT TT JOqWNN JUNoddy /9
v1'9LT$ 00°0% £0'82$ S|ej0] aJe) Yj|esH fejusq Junodxy
$1°9/1% 00°0% £0°87% s|ejol 20T Aeniqad  Lyyuop
91$20¢
v1'9/1 0bT 150d ||lo1hed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [[0JARd YH a 0£620000-+202 ¥20e/62/20
ST1H202
0T"291 £0'b1 150d |joihed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [[0JAed YH ac Th£20000-+202 $e0e/s1/20
L0°8b1$ ‘8)eQ 0] dueleg a1eD yyeaH |ejuad 0000'TTL06'VETL L86'0FTZ OTTT'TT  JoquINN JUnoddy 1/9
Sdvejeg [enpy JUNOWY Ipa1D JUNOWY 31Geq Huaeey 2NM05 F = YR T =g R =" Tv=7] SIAL Jewnor STaRIS)
qns jewnog

lle32q 1abpa gns apnpx3
v2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 abuey s31eq 71/9

d395d3al

TV33IN3D @31IvV.L3d SH3/SH 20T AdvNug3d

I2NAMIT TYNCILYINAO3 TYMOIDIY 7

(S| MEUSEAN

Packet page 87 of 271



LT J0 6 9bed WV 00:££:0T $202/81/¢ uo umegen ‘auym Aq uny
00°0$ ZP'S19'6E$ siejo) paubisseun weiboid
00°0% Z'S19'5E% slejo $X0¢ He3s pesH jueln
00°0% 'S19'6E% S|Rj0] SPJIAIDS [BNPRIUO)  LONERIOT
00°0% 7b'619'6E% sjejol paubisseun 19Y10
69°05.'21$ 00'0% 9£'111% siejo] ddns |00y 53 2iempieH *ISill  JUN0ddY
69'0S.°21$ 00'0% 9’ 1118 slejol $Z0Z Aeniqad  yiuop
a|qeied
69°0S2°TT 9E'TTT SuNoY Anu3 so10Au] d/fy dv ac $1220000-+202 $202/60/20
££'6£9°2T$ :33eQ 0] BdUElRg ddns ooy 3 1empley "ISIW 0000°9TL06'PECL 000'0865 TOZT'TT JBGWINN JUNOIDY /9
9/'695'28% 00'0% 90°'H05°SE$ S|ejo] A49S Jreday Bulpjing  Junoddy
9/'695'28% 00'0% 90°H05'SES siejol $zoT Aenigad  yiuoly
dlqeAeq
9/'695'78 $6°780"v1 SunoY Anu3 9010AUT dfY dv arc 20620000-+202 veoe/sefeo
poe/pouad juelb
78'98+'89 £0'99 ’ Jadoud 0 asuadxs ssepsy 1 a 0£/£20000-520C beoz/Tr/zo
djqeded
SL'07H'89 S0°'SSE'TT SJUNOJDY Anu3z sdioAul d/Y dv a $1£20000-+202 $202/60/20
0£°990°(¥$ :31eQ 0| Uejey alas ajeday buipjing 0000°9TL06'PETL 000°0T T TOZT TT JoqUINN JUNODY 7/9
6L THT'1$ 20°€£6'€6% S|E10] JJelS JIsuT Jo uonpaliquolsiaRdng . uonaund,
90'ZERS 15°'840'01$ s|ejo] Mels peaH AMe3  weibold
90'ZEkS$ 1S°8p0°01$ S[e10] HX0T Mels pesH 1uels
90'ZEh$ 15°8¥0°01$ S|ej0 $IS0D [BUUOSISd  UONEdO
90'ZEP$ 15'8P0°01$ slejo] paubisseun Jsyio
+8'68% 00°0% 05°L$ Slejo] a1es suoydsjal unoly
$8°68% 00°0% 05'/% S|e10) 0T Aenigad  yiuop
914202
$8'68 SL'E 150d [[0JAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 350 ||01Aed ¥H a 0£620000-+202 $e0e/62/20
STb20T
6098 TS 150d l|oJAed  AYIUO-ILIBS S 350 [joJAed uH ar /20000202 ¥202/S1/20
4] i93eQ 0] Bduejeg Al3S duoydajoL 0000°TTL06'PETL L86°0THE9ZZT'IT quNN JUnody /9
26'vs$ 00°0% [4%:13 S[eJ0) [PARIL JuoD pue sdoysHIOM UNOIY
76°ThS 00°0$ zr'gs sjelo) $20zT Atensqad  yuop
914202
6T 48] 1504 Jloihed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||osAeg UH ac 0£620000-+20¢ ¥e0e/62/20
08'vE$ :23eQ 0] 3dUEjRg {oARI] Juo) pue sdoys)HIoMm 0000 TTL06VETL £86'0ZZE9TTT'TT JBqUNN 1unoady /9
SoUEfeg [enpy JONOWY 3PS JUNOWY 3G ouasejey LS Paloidfuondinssq  Jebpa ] SGAL fewnog 9180 1/9
qans fewnog

Ie3eq 496paT qns apnjpx3
v2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 9buey s3eq 1/

d35d37

TVY3INID @37IV13d SH3/SH 20T AdvNig3d

APNIDY ID1AYAT TYNOILYINA3 TWNSIDIY ¥

(0S| MeUaYSEAA

Packet page 88 of 271



£T 0 0T 3bed

WY 00:£€:0T +20¢/81/¢ uo umege ‘auym Aq uny

99'8/8'/8% 19°LET'T$ £6°EP8'TTS S[e10]1 Ydodeasay unodoy
99'8/8'/8% 19°££1°1$ E6'EPR'TIS S|ej0l 20T AMeniqay  yjuow
91H20¢
99°'8/8'/8 10'8bL'y 150d [[olAed  AYIUOW-ILISS S 350 jloJAed dH ar 0£620000-202 $202/62/20
ST+20¢
S90£T'e8 208’y 350d [[0JAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 3S0d __o._>mm_ uH ar v£20000-+202 v20¢/S1/20
el
£9'28¢e'8L ¥b'(8E'T Jadoud 0) asuadxe ssepey 1 ar 0££20000-+202 ¥eoe/ci/zo
Anug jewnor
uoIeDYISSe|Y JUNODIE PRLI0D
61°566'92 £8'€9 - Ssepay WY 0} sjuswesInquuisy ssepay il ac 06520000-+20C ¥coe/eo/zo
Anu3 jewnor
uonedyIsse|day JUNodJe PBL0D
20°650°/L CEETT - ssepPay WY 03 Sjuswasinquiioy ssepday ] ac 06520000-+20¢ $20e/z0/z0
Anu3 jeuinog
UonEeIISSePaY [eSlaAal
vee'i 86°G8¢ - SSeay Wy SSE[I3Y JusLIBsINgUIRy 19 ar £95¢0000-420¢ beoe/10/20
Anuz [euinor
uoneduIssePay lesional
998294 8b'pLS - Ssepay Wy SSejoRY Juswssinguiisy ™ ac £9520000-+20C $20e/10/20
Anu3 |eulnog
uoneoyissepay
88'TTZ'9L 86°98¢€ - SSepay WY SSE|I3Y JuUBWRsINquISy 19 ac 655¢0000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anug jewnor
uoneyisseay
98'/65°9/ A 74 - SSepay Wy SSEIaY JuswssInquiisy 19 ac 65520000-+202 ¥20e/10/20
bETULTLLS ‘@)eqg 0] aduejeg Yd1e9s9y 0000°TTL06°PEZL'000°0STT TS8CT TT 12qUNN UNOXDY 1/9
00°0% E'626'5ES s|e30| seInuRs sbuipping bunessdg  uondundg,
00'0% 76'E1ES s|ejol Me3s pesy Apez  welbold
00'0% 26°ETES S[EI01 ¥X0T HelS peay jueln
00°0% Z6'ET1ES S|EJ01 SIJIALRS [enoeljuo)  uonedo
00'03% Z6'ETES s|ejo) paubisseun Jsyo
9E'ITT'vS 00°0% C6'ETES S|ej0| AISS [ejuay Gulpping/pue]  junoddy
9E'TIT'bS 00°0% C6°ETES S|ej0l $Z0T Aenigqad  Luop
s|qeied
9’ ITT'Y Z6'ETE SUNO2JY Anu3 so10Au1 dfY dv ar 20620000-b20¢ ¥e0e/€e/eo
vbL6L'c$ ‘9jeq 01 sjuejeg AI9S |ejuay Bulpling /puet 0000°9TZ06'VEZL L86°0TZH TOZT TT  JSQLINN JUNOIDY /9
Souejeg [enpy JUNOWY ¥par) JUNOWY 3320 ERITETET =] 20IN05 PRlOIG[ucndiDsSq  Jebpe 3dAL Jewinog 2180 19

Ie3aq 496pa7 qns apnjox3

¥2/62/20 - $2/10/20 9buey =3eq 1/9

-EDIeED

TVY3NID d371IvV13d SH3/SH $20T AdvVNyug3d

qans jewinog

ATMNIDV 3D1AYIS TYNOLLYINGI TYROIDIY ¥

dS| Meualysepp

Packet page 89 of 271



£2 40 11 3bed

WV 00:£€:0T 202/8T/€ UO UMBQET ‘SUYM Aq uny

STH207
97'790°1 16vL 150d |joJAed  AlYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 |104ARd YH ar 2£20000-+202 $20Z/51/20
elb
GE°/86 or'6 +adoid 03 ssuadxa ssepay 1 arc 0££20000-+202 beoz/e1/zo
S6'/46% :3jeq 0} aduefeg a4e) YijeaHy [euad 0000 TTL06'PECL 000'0PTZ TSZT TT  Joqunp JUnoxy /9
62'6vZ'bS 00°0% 85'995% 5|EJ0] JUSPIDY pue yjesH dnols  Junody
62 607 b3 00°0% 85'995% S|eol $Z0T Ateniqad  yjuop
914202
6T'6vT'y peTe 350d [loJAed  AJJIUOW-IWSS S 150d loJAed UH ac 0/620000-+202 ¥zoe/62/20
STH202
78'950"p Ji a4 1504 floihed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [|0JABd UH ar (20000202 $202/51/20
welb
SEp8’s $9'THT Jadoud 0} asuadxo ssepay g ac 0££20000-+202 $z0z/T1/20
1£°289°¢$ :8)eq 0| =0uejeg JUSpIDY pue pjesH dnols 0000 TTL06'YETL 000°0E€TT TSZT TT JoqUINN JUNOY /9
9v°'82Z3 00°0% 58'97$ sjejo] Ayjiqesiq dnotg unoddy
9822 00°0$ 58'9z$ S|eJ0L $Z0T Adenigad  UUo
91H202
9°'87¢ 9'11 150d [[oJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [jo.Aed uH ar 046200004202 ¥zoe/62/20
STH202
$8°912 79'11 150d lloJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||oLAed YH a 244200004202 $202/51/20
juelb
7e°s0z 19'€ Jadoud 0y ssuadxe ssepay gb) ac 044200004202 $e0e/21/20
19'102$ 'S3eq 0] sduefeq Ajiqesig dnots 0000 TTL06'YEZL 000'0ZTZ ISZT'TT Jaqunp unoddy /9
£p 122 00°0% £9°2e$ s|ejot a7 dnoin  Junoddy
cp1ees 00°0% /9°28$ s|ejol 0T Aenigad uop
91H20¢
H1Te EP1 350d ljoihed  AJYIUO-IWSS S 150 ||osAed YH ar 0£620000-+202 ¥eoe/6z/20
STH202
11°£02 4% 2! 150d [[0JARd  ALAUOW-IWSS S 3504 [|oJARd uH a T/20000-5202 ¥20z/st/zo
juelb
647261 £0'p Jadolid o3 asuadxe ssepoy ™ a 0££20000-+20¢ . veoe/zi/eo
9/'88T$ '81eQ 0| 3uUElRy 3J17 dnols 0000°TTL06'YEZL 000°0TTZ TSZT TT QNN JUNOIDY /9
96'7eES 00°0% £4°'79% S|ejo ] sjudwied jeads JOYI0  JUNoDY
96'7EES 00°0% £p'79% slejo| $Z0Z Aenigag puol
914202
96°T€E 1802 150d JloiAed  AJUIUO-IWBS S 1504 ||0JARd uH ar 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STH20T
ST'ZIE 18°0¢ 350d [l0JARd  AlYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 |[0JAed YH a Tk£20000-+202 ¥202/S1/20
jelb
$E16¢ 18°0¢ Jadoud 0} asuadxe ssejsy i) a 0££270000-+202 $202/21/20
£5°0L¢$ '31eQ 0] souejeg sjuswied |erads 12130 0000"TTL06°HEZL 00006 T T8ZT'TT JoqQWNN JUnodY /9
dueeg [enpy JUNOWY 3PP JUNOWY 3G2q ER=SE =R IN0S Pol0IdJUCRdinSSq  Jebpa] 30AL Jewinog 2384 /9
ans jeuinog

lle3eq 49bpa7 gns spnpx3
¥2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 9buey 21eQ 1/9

- EDIeER

TVY3IN3DO d37Iv.i3d SH3/SH ¥20Z AdvVNyg3d

A2RIDY IHAMIS TYHOILYIAA3 IPHOIDTY ¥

(0S| MeU3YSEAA

Packet page 90 of 271



£2 J0 21 3bed

WV 00:E£:0T +202/8T/€ Uo umeqe ‘a3ym Aq uny

08'+9L'1$ 00°0% 09'022$ 5|101 SIYSUDY JO NBIT Ul YSeD  UNodDY
08'¥94'1$ 00'0% 09'0z¢$ s|eol $Z0Z Ateniqad  uojy
9120
08491 0€°011T 1504 Jl0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150d |loJAed  dH ar 04620000-+20Z ¥202/62/20
STHz0z
05'b59'T 0£'0TT 150d JloJAed  AjyIUOI-IWBS S 1504 JjoJAed ¥H Els Tb£20000-+202 $202/S1/20
0THbS'T$ '®1eQ 01 dueley sjyauag jo nar ul Ysed 0000°TTL06°PETL 000'0Z6T TSTT'TT J2qWNN unody 1/9
8/°109°9% 000$ 65°€18$ sjelo] A3undag [epos saAojdwg  Junody
8/'109°9% 00°0% 65°€18% S|ejol $20oz Aenigad  yuop
9TH20T
8£°1099 €465 180d lloJAed  AJYUOW-IWSS § 350d IoJAed  UH a 0£620000-+202 veoe/ee/z0
STH20z
SE'9T9 s 150d |l0JAed  AJUIUOW-IWBS S 150d |loJAed  WH ar Z#£20000-+202 ¥z0e/s1/20
juelb
16°068'S 2L'T01 Jadoud 03 asuadxa ssepay i) a 0/£20000-v202 $202/21/20
67°88£'S$ '9)eq 0L dueleg Ajlndag |epos JoAojdwiz 0000'TTL06'YETL 000°0E8T TSI IT ISqWNN JUN0dY /9
T 00°0$ 85'G1Z'SS S|EI0L SPUNJ JUBWSINGY |eI07] PUE dJL}S 03 UOIINGHIUOD  JUNODY
¥8'SZZ v 00°'0$ 85'ST2'S$ sielo ] Z0z Aeniqad  yuoy
91207
¥8'SZZ'TH 0T'£62'T 1504 [I0/ARd  AJUIUOW-ILISS S 350d [lo1Aed  YH ac 0£620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
STH202
¥£'826'8€ 11°L62'2 1s0d [I0JARd  AJURUOW-IWRS S 150d [jloJAed  AH ac /200004202 ¥20e/s1/20
welb
€9°T€9'9€ LETTY Jodoud 03 asusdxe ssepay 19 a 0££20000-420C ¥e0z/z1/20
spung
97°010'9¢$ *8jeQ o] souejeg JUSWIR3Y [e307 puk )E)S 0} UOHINGLIUOD 000D TTLO6'PEZL 00008 TSZT TT JqINN JUNODY 1/9
99'p6Z$ 00°0$ TL°9E$ S|E10] 24D UOJSIA  JUN0DY
99'v62$ 00°0% 1£°9€% sielol 0z Alensqag  auop
9T+20z
99'v67 S0'LT 150d JloJAed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 350d |loJAed  dH a 04620000202 ¥z0e/62/20
STHZ0Z
194t ST 350 [loJAed  AIYIUOW-IWAS S 350d [l0JAed  ¥H ac T¥£70000-4202 ¥202/51/20
welb
95°09¢ 19T tadoud 03 osuedxe ssepsy 19 ar 0££20000-+202 ve0e/e1/zo
§6'45¢$ ‘9jeQ o] sduejeg 34eD UOISIA 0000'TTL06'YETL000°0STT TSTT'TT JoqUINN JUNodY 1/9
LTLET'TS 00°0% 726514 $|ej0) ale) YjjesH [euag  Junoddy
LTLET'TS 00°0$ 72'651$ s[e10l $Z0Z Ateniqad  uol
9T+202
LT'/ET'T 16'%L 1504 JloJed  AJUIIOW-1WSS S 150d [IoJAed  dH ac 0£620000-+207 vzoe/ee/eo
56'LL6% ‘91eQ 0| adueeg 34eD Y3|eSH |e3UDQ 0000 TTL06'FEZL'000°0FTZ TSZT'TT  JOQWNN JUNOIDY 1/9
ouejeg [enpy JUnowy Ipen) JUnowy JI9eg ET=Y=1E7T 30IN0S Paloigjuonduosaq  Jebpa S0AL Jewinog 231eq 19
ans Jewsnog

lle3eq 426pa gns apnpx3
¥2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey 21eq 1/9

b EDIeER

TVY3INID d311IV.L3d SHI/SH $20Z AdvYNug3d

ADNIADY IDIANIT ITYNOILYINAI TYHOIDIY 7

S| meusjysepp

Packet page 91 of 271



£T 40 €T abed

WV 00:€€:0T $202/8T/€ uo umeqen ‘a3Iym Ag uny

ST¥20z
06'%Z 69' 150d |loshed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 1504 ||0IARd UH ar 2¥/20000-+20¢ ¥202/s1/20
welb
1T¥L S0'6 1adoid 0y asuadxa sse|ay 1o ar 04420000202 $202/21/20
91°'59% :3)eq 0] sduejeg ANpqesig dnoid 0000 TTL06'VETL L86'0CTZ TSTT IT QNN JUN0DY /9
ZEH8% 00'0%$ 89'11$ slejot @y dnoun  Junoddy
ZE'v8s 00'0% 89'11% slejol pzoT Adenugay  Ljuol
914202
€8 08 350 |l0JAed  AJUIUOW-ILBS S 150 |I0JAR YH a 0£620000-+20¢ yeoz/ez/co
S1H202
75°€8 08’ 150 |lolhed  AJYIUOW-ILLBS S 150 ||0JAegd UH a 2£20000-+202 ¥202/S1/20
welsb
e 80°01 ladoud 03 asuadxa ssepdoy g} ar 0££20000-+20¢ ¥20z/21/20
$9'2L$ :3)eQ 0] souejeg 9J171 dnodd 0000 TTL06'YETL L86'0TTZ TSTT'TT J2qWNN JUN0DY /9
S0'cTes 00°0% 00°0£$ s|ejo] sjuswdied jeads 18430 UNODY
SO'ETES 00°0% 00°0£$ s|ejol $Zoz Aenugeg  Ujuop
elb
s0°'ses 00°0¢ Jodoid 0y asuadxe ssepay 1 a 0£/20000-+20¢ ¥eoz/ci/eo
S0'€67$ :3jeQ 0] =duejeg sjudwied |eads Y10 0000°TTL06'VETL £86°06Z T TSTT FT  JSQWNN JUnomDy 1/9
£6°£50'92% 00'0% L0°$S5'2$ S|ej0l Yoaeasdy unciy
£6'£50°92$ 00°0% £0'¥SS2S s|el0l 20T Aenigag  Luop
9T¥20e
£6'£50°9¢ 91°Lle 3504 lo1hed  AJUIUOW-ISS S 1504 |l0JAed uH a 0£620000-+20¢ $20T/62/20
S1H202
1£°922'ST 1 W4 150d |l01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||oJAed UH ac Tv/70000-420¢ $202/S1/20
juelb
19°66b'SC S/°666'T J1adoud 03 ssusdxs ssepay 1 a 0££20000-+20¢ ¥eoe/zi/zo
98°'66b°c7$ :93eQ 0] 9duelRg yoleasay 0000°'TTLO6°VETL L86°08TT TSCT TT IoqunN Junomy /9
19°LET'TS 99'S10'61% slejo| paubisseun welbold
19°LET'TS 99°'S10°61% S[e101 HX0Z He1s peaH 1uel
19°/E7'T$ 99°ST0'61$ S|e10] S3S0D [BUUOSIad  UOREIOT]
19°L€T'T$ 99'S10°61% siejo| paubisseun Jayl0
00'00Z$ 00'0% 05°/£$ S|ejo] ALRS auoydajer junoy
00°002$ 00'0$ 0S°/€$ slelo] $zToz Aleniqad  yjuop
9TH20¢
00°002 0S°ZT 150d |[0JA_d  AJYIUOW-WSS S 3504 |[0LAed YH a 0£620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
STH20T
05°/8T 0s°Z1 3150d |j01Aed  AJYIUOW-ILUSS S 350 J|oJAeg YH ar 2+£20000-+20¢ ¥202/s1/20
juelb
00°S/1 0S¢t Jadoud 03 asuadxe ssepay ™ ac 04420000202 $2oe/et/zo
0S'291$ '3)eQ 0 =duejeq A13S SuoydajaL 0000°TTL06'YETL 000°0THE TSZT TT JSGWINN UNODY /9
DUEEg ey N0 Jp=5) JUNOWY J1Geq ESTEYETER 0UN0S Peloig/uondinssq  19bps | a0AL Jewinog aeq

leyeq 496paT qns apnpx3

2/62/20 - $2/10/20 9buey s1eq 1/9

J3A9Aa3a7

TVY3NID @371IvV.L3A SH3/SH +Z0Z AdvNug3d

qns jewnog

ADMIDY IZ1ANIF IYNCILYINAS TYMOIDIN ¥

(0S| MBUSIYSEAA

Packet page 92 of 271



£ 0 1 abed

WV 00:€£:0T £+202/8T/€ uo umeqeT ‘ayym Aq uny

6b°L60°TE 00°0% 86'802% s|ejo] Ajnoag |edos JoAojdwz  Junoddy
6v'£60'2$ 000% 86'802% S|ejol ¥zog Aenigad  Ljuo
91t20¢
6°£60'C $6'02 1504 |l01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 150 ||0JARY UH a 0/620000-+20¢ $20¢/62/20
STH202
§5°9/0°7 $6'0C 150d |loiAed  AlYIUOW-IWBS S 1504 [[01Aed UH a 2b£20000-+202 $202/51/20
esb
19'550°C 01°/91 l1adoid 03 ssuadxe ssepay © a 0££20000-%202 ¥202/21/20
15°888'1$ :9)eq 01 sdueleg Ayindag jeos 1aAojdwl 0000°TTL06'VETL £86°0EST TSTT TT  JoqunN Junoddy 1/9
1£°021'C1$ 00°0$ 8v'S61'T$ S|EJ0] SPUNJ JUSWAIRSY |20 pUR LIS 0] UORNGLIUD  JUN0DY
1€°021°21% 00°0% 8b°S61'T$ slelo) 20T AMenigag Liuow
914202
1€°021'21 61951 150d [loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [[O0JARd YH a 0/620000-+202 $202/62/20
74174
TP86TT 6T°9€T 150d [joiAed  AJJIUON-IWSS S 350 ||0JARg UH ac T£20000-+202 ¥20z/s1/20
juelb
£6'/+8'TT 0T°£26 Jodoud 03 ssuadxa ssepay gb) a 0££20000-+202 $202/21/20
spundg
£8'426°01$ :33eQ 0L duejeg JUBWS.NAY |30 pPUER 3)E)S 03 UOIINGLIIUOD) 0000 TTZ06'VECL L86°0Z8T TSZT TT JoquNN UnNoddy 1/9
g 74 00°0% 80°€$ S|Ej0| DJeD UOISIA  JUNoDY
LTveS 00°0% 80°€$ s|ejo) $zoT Atendgqag  Ljuop
914202
LTt ¥S'1 1s0d [[oJAed  AJYIUO-IWSS S 1504 ||olAed UH ar 0/620000-+20¢ bzoT/62/20
s1b20t
€L ST 150d [l0JAed  AJJIUOW-IWSS S 150d ||0JAed uH ac 24200004202 ¥202/sT/20
61'1Z$ :33eQ 0] Sduejeq aie) UOISIA 0000°TTL06'VETL L86°0STT TSTT TT QNN JUnomdy 1/
6/'56%$ 00'0% 90°€T$ S[ej0] ale) YijyeaH |eaus@ uUNoRY
6/'£6% 00°0% 90°E1S s|elol 2oz Aenuqag  Lpuo
9T+20¢
64°€6 €59 3150 ||01ARd  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [loJAed uH ac 0£620000-+20¢ ¥202/62/20
STH20T
97'(8 £6°9 150d [[oJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0LAed UH a 4200004202 ¥202/S1/20
£/°08% :9jeQ o] duejeq aJe) yijesH |ejuaq 0000°TTL06'YETL £86'0VTT ISZT'TT JSQWNN JUNODY /9
65'54$ 000% £5°01$ s|ejoL Ayjiqesi@ dnoss  junoxy
65'6/% 00'0% £H015 s|ejo) bZoT Adenigag  Lpuol
914207
65°SZ 69' 150d [|oJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 J|oJAed ¥H ar 0£620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
91°59% 131eQ 0] Souejeg Ajnqesig dnois 0000°TTL06°PEZL L86'0ZTZ TSZT'TT  JoqUNN JUNODY /9
souejeg [enpy JURCLLY Wpo1) JUNOWY 3iG=Q ERITEYETEY] IS S0AT Jewinor 518G 1/
|leusnor

lle3aq@ 49bpa7 gns opn|ox3
¥2/62/20 - v2/10/20 abuey a1eq 1/9

-EDleER

TVY3IN3ID @371IvV13d SH3/SH ¥Z0Z AdvNig3d

APNIDV IIAYTT TYNOILY DI A3 TYNOIDIN ¥

(0S| MeUIYSBAA

Packet page 93 of 271



£ 40 51 3beq

WY 00:£€:0T 202/8T/¢ Uo umeqe] ‘a3ym Aq uny

STH202
79'€00’s 9¢°'60S 150d |jo1hed  AIUOW-IWIDS S 150d __o;mm UH a T+£20000-+202 ¥202/51/20
el
9T Peb'Y 66'T J1adoud 0} ssuadxa ssepsy Ab) a 0£.£20000-+20¢ ¥20e/ei/zo
LT69%'F$ :3)eq 0] sduefeg Bulesuno) jeuoiPnSUL 0000 TTL06'YEZL 000°0STT TSET'TT JOqWINN JUNODY 1/9
18'0Z£'Sh$ 0£'0L1$ 66'8£9'9% siejo) Bugjasuno) Junoddy
18'0Z£'5p$ 0£'041$ 66'8/9'9% S|ej0l 0z Asenigad  Luopw
914207
18°0Z¢'sk S9/¥L'T 1s0d |loMhed  AlYIUOW-IWRS S 1504 ||0JAR] ¥H a 0£620000-+20¢ ¥20z/62/20
STH20¢
9T'€/S Th S9'/bL'T 31504 |lo1Aed  AIIUOW-IWBS S 1504 [j0JAed uH a T£20000-H202 $202/51/20
junodoe
15°528°6€ SO/TY 0/2 0} 3NUA. mmm_uwm ™ ar ¥££20000-+20T $202/41/20
juel
9b'80t'6€ 86°GE/ Jodoud 03 asuadxa ssepay §) a 0££20000-+20¢ $202/21/20
Anu3 jeusnor
uonedljisse|pay Junodoe 12=1103
81°2£9'8E $9'6€T1 - ssepay WY 03 sjuswasinquiisy ssepsy ™ ac 06520000-+202 $202/20/20
Anu3 [eunog
uonesyisseay jesionsl
[4N4s:4:15 99'0¢ - ssepay WY SSEI3Y JUBWRSINGUISY go) ar £9520000-+20¢ ¥20¢/10/20
A3 jeulnor
uonjedljisse|doy
9°'184°8€ 99°0¢ - ssepay WY SSE[I3Y JUBUBSINQUIIDY gb) a 65520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Z1'218’8¢$ '23ed 0] sduejeg Bulesuno) 0000°TTL06'¥€2Z 000°0ZZT ISET'TT QNN 3Unody 1/9
19°/51°'1% 69'861°c2$ S|e10| uonenjeA3 pue ysreasay ‘buluueld .uonound,
00°0% £0'E8T S S|e30| Hels peay Apesy  weiboud
00°0$ £0'E8T'F$ S|e10] HX0T Me1s pesy juein
00°0% £0°E8TpS S|EJ0] SISOD [UUOSIdd  UONREIOT
00°0% £0°€81"pS s|ejo| paubisseun JLy0
0L225$ 00'0% 00'5Z$ S|PI0L AJRS BuoydajRl  UNOJDY
0L'22ES 00'0$ 00'sz$ S|e10] $Z0T Areniqad  yjuop
jelb
0L2ze 00°'sT 1adoud 03 asuadxa ssepay 1 ar 0££20000-+202 ¥eoe/e/zo
VALY :3)eq 0] 9duejeq Al13g auoydejal 0000 TTL06"PETL L86°0TVE TSTT TT QNN JUNODY 1/9
65°6£6% 00°0$ STIETS S|e10L S3yDUDG JO NBIT Ul YSED  JUNODDY
65'6£6$ 00'0% STTIETS S|el0] 20T Atenigad  yiuow
9TH20¢
65'6£6 ot 150d J[oiAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 [[0JABd uH a 0£620000-+202 ¥20e/62/20
STHZ0T
L1676 o1 150d [[0JAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 150d __o;mm_ ¥H ac 2r/20000-4202 ¥20z/s1/20
el
S/'816 5011 Jadoud 0) asuadxs ssejpey ik a 0££20000-+20¢ $20Z/71/c0
v£'8083% :8jeq 0] =duejeg Sjuy3uDYg JO NaI Ul YseD 0000 TTL06°YETL L86°0Z6T TSTT'TT QNN JUnoooy 1/9
Souejeg [enpy JUNOWY WP JUNOWY 3IG=q =TT NoS PoloIdfuORdiDssq  190pa ] S0AL Jewinog 21eq 1/9

lie3eq 426pa gns apnpx3
ve/6e/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey a1eq 1/9

L-ERleER
TVY3N3ID A37IV.L3IA SH3/SH ¥Z0Z AdvNig3d

qns jewnog

A2MHITV IHANIS TYNOILY2OAI TYPOID3Y 7

S| Meualysepp

Packet page 94 of 271



£2 J0 97 abey

WY 00:£€:0T bZ0Z/8T/€ uo umeqe ‘sym Ag uny

STH202
£9'81/'T 89'821T 1s0d JlosAed  AJYIUOW-IWRS S 1504 ||0JAed ¥UH ac TL20000-H20 $202/S1/20
S6'685°T$ 193eQ] 0 IduelRg 34D RJeaH jeuad 0000°TTL06'PETL'000°0VTT TSET'TT  JoQUNN JUNODY /9
rb'804'S1S 00°0% 265212 S[E10L JUIPIDOY pue yyjesH dnotn Junoddy
Pb'802°51S 00°0% 26'FT1'2S s|el0] $Z0OT Azenigag  uop

9TH202
¥b'802'ST ST°/86 150d [l01Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||0JARY UH a 0£620000-+20¢ ¥20z/62/20

STH20C
62 T2L'HT ST°/86 1s0d ||0:Aed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0iAed UH ac h£20000-4202 ¥20z/s1/20

junoooe
PTPEL'ET 79'0ST 0/2 0} BNUBAB) SsepPaYy 1 ac $££20000-4202 $202/+1/20
75°€85°ETS$ :31eQ 0L Sd2uejRg JUSpOY pue yijesH dnols 0000 TTL06'PETL 000°0ETT TSET FT  Joquiny Junoddy 1/9
9L'5%T% 00°0% ve L2 siejo Ayjiqesiq dnods  junody
9/'SkZ$ 00'0% vT'LTs s|eo) HZ0zZ Aenigad  Lpuol

9TH202
9/'SH2 79°€T 350d [l01Aed  AJYIUOW-NIWUSS S 150 [j0JARd ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 peoz/ec/eo

STHe0z
W47 79°¢€1 150d J|loJAed  AJYIUOW-ILSS S 150 [[oJARd uH ac T£20000-+20¢ $202/S1/20
(4% :1%4 :33eQ 0L Iduejeg Anngesiq dnoid 0000 TTL06'PETL 000'0ZTT ISET'TT  9qUNN JUNODY 1/9
06'+52% 00°0% 86'8¢% S|ejo) ayry dnoss  WNoDY
06'bSZ$ 00°0% 86°82$ SIel0L +Z0T Adenigay Ljuoly

914202
06°¥ST 6vb1 1504 |loJAed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||0JARY YH a 0£620000-+202 $e0e/6e/20

ST¥20e
obe 6b'bT 150d JloJhed  AJJIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [[04ARg uH ac 2£20000-+202 $202/s1/20
[{3T44) 133eQ 0| IdUEjRg 9J17 dnous 0000°TTLO06'VEZL 000 0FTT TSET'IT  J2QWNN JUNODY 7/9
0£'786'655 00°0$ 9/'02¢'L$ S[EJ0L JHOM |B120S  JUNCY
0/°786'6E% 00°0% 9/°022'/$ S|EJ0] $Z0T Adenagay  ujuop

914202
0£'786'6€ £6'202'C 150d JloJAed  AJUIUOW-IWISS S 150 [j0JARg ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 ¥e0z/6e/e0

STH20
LIVl (s £8'210's 1s0d |loihed  AJYIUOW-ILLSS S 1504 JlosAed YH ac /200004202 $202/51/20
¥6'192°2¢$ i91eQ 0] =duejeg IO/ |BID0S 0000°'TTL06'YEZL 000'0VPT ISET'TT SoquNN JUNodY /9
86'715'5$ 00°0$ 14 S40°'1$ s[ejol Butjesuno) jeuoRdnsul  Junody
86'215'SS 00°0% 1L°Sp0'TS S|e10) HzoC Aenigad  yjuop

91H202
86°215°S 9£°'608 150d J[0JA_d  AJYIUOW-IWISS S 150 [[oJARd ¥H ac 0£620000-+202 $20¢/62/20
LT'69%'b$ '91eQ 0] Souejeg Buglesuno) jeuolPNNSUT 0000 TTL06'YEZL 000'0STT'ISET'TT  JoqWNN JUNoDY /9
Souefeg [enpy JUNOWY 3ipa) JUnoul 3IG9Q ESTEIETE SIN0S Paloidfuondinssg  Jobpe) adAL [euInog 3180 1/9

Ile3eq JabpaT gns apnjox3
+2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 9buey s3eq 1/9

EDTCER!
TVA3INED A311Iv.L3d SH3/SH 20z AdvNniug934d

ans fewnog

Packet page 95 of 271



£T 30 (1 3beg

WY 00:£€:0T $202/81/€ uo umeqeT ‘aym Aq uny

89'99£'T$ 00°0% 78'0/1% S[R10] SIY3USg JO NBIT Ul YSBD  UN0DY
89°99¢'1S 00°0% 78°'041% s|elol 07 Adenugay  uo
91+20¢
89'99¢'T 'S8 150d ||j0JAed  AJYIUO-ILISS S 150 [|0JAed ¥H ar 0£620000-+202 vzoz/ee/eo
STH20T
LT1I8T'T 14'S8 150d llodhed  AIUOW-IWIS § 350 |j0sAed UH ac T£20000-+20¢ ¥20z/s1/20
98'S6T'T$ '33eQ 0L 2dURjEY S}1jouag Jo NI Ul YseD 0000 TTL06'PETL 000'0Z6T TSET'TT  JaqWINN JUNODY /9
7E£'658'9% 00'0% 65°9/0'1$ s{e0) A)Indag jeos Jakojdwz  Junody
7£'658'9% 00°0$ 65'9/0'1% slelo) $Z0T Atenigad  juop
9TH202
7€°658'9 26'LTh 150d JloiAed  AJUIUOW-ILUSS S 1504 |josAed ¥H ar 0/620000-+20¢ $eoz/6z/20
STH202
ob'THb'9 85°/79 150 Jl01Aed  AJUJUOW-IUBS S 1504 ||0JABd ¥H E 2¥£20000-+202 $202/S1/20
junoxe
78°€18's 60°'TE 0/2 0} @NUBARI SSBPY als} a $££20000-+20¢ ¥20Z/¥1/20
££'28L'S$ '3jeq o] sduefeg Andas jepos sehojdwl 0000 TTL06'YETL 000°0EST'TSET TT  JOGWINN JUNOIDY /9
YL YSL'Th$ 00°0% S6'8TH'9% S|eJ0] Spung JUdWALILY |ED07 pue 3)e3s 0] UoIINGUIUOD  JUNOIDY
YL'YSLTrS 00°0% 56'8TH'9% Sjelo] pzoe Adenigaq  yjuop
9T$20¢
YL vSL 'ty 6£'659'C 150d [|oJAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 350 [jolAed UH ac 0/620000-+202 ¥20z/62/20
STpe0e
S€°560°0b 75'685°S 150d [loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 J|olAed UH ac T£20000-+202 $202/91/20
unoxe
£8'5£5°9¢ $0'00Z 0/> 0] ®NUAAI ssepaY 1 ac ¥££20000-+202 $202/¥1/20
spung
6/°SEE'9ES '®1eQ 0] duejeg juswa1lRaYy |BI0 pue 93E1S 03 UOIINGLIUOD 0000 TTL06FETL 000°0Z8T TSET TT QNN JUNoY 1/9
8b'Z8b% 00'0% PE19% S[ej0] 248D UOISIA  UN0IIY
8t 78b$ 00°0% $E'19% S|e1ol +zoe Aenagad  juop
91$202
8b'Z8p £9°0E 1504 [|loiAed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 150 ||0JARd UH ar 0/£620000-+202 ¥0z/62/z0
STH20T
18'1SH £9°0¢ 150d [joJAed  AlYIUOW-IWSS S 304 JjosAed ¥H ac Tk(20000-H202 #202/s1/20
T TTHS 19)eQ o) souejeg 94D UOISIA 0000'TTL06'YETL 000'0STT ISET'TT JoqWNN JUNOJY /9
IE'4F8'TS 00°0% 9£'/52% S[E10) BJED Y}|eDH [ejudg IUNODIY
1€ /48'1S 00°0$ 9£'/52% S|e10) $T0T Alenigag  Ljuop
914202
1€ /68°T 89'871 150d [|oJAed  AlYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 JoJAeg UH E[y 0£620000-+20¢ bz0e/62/20
S6'68S°T$ :33eQ 0] Sduejeg aie) jesH 1e3uad 0000'TTL06'YEZL000'0PTT TSET'TT  JOQUINN JUNODY /9
SDUE[eg [enpy JUNOWY JIpaiD JUNOWY J1G2q ERTEIETEN S0In0s Paloid/uondinssg  J9bpe] S0AL jewinog eq 19

lle3eq 496pa gns apnpx3
2/62/20 - $2/10/20 2buey 21eq /9

b-EDleEN
TVY3IN3D @371IvV.L13A SH3/SH 20z Advnug3d

qns fewnog

Packet page 96 of 271



/2 40 8T abed

WY 00:€€:0T +202/81/€ uo umegeT ‘auym Aq uny

00°0% 00°£09% slejo| sanddng uoneso
00'0% 00°'£09% sjejo paubisseun 12410
(IR 2t44) 00'0% 00°£09% sieyo] saijddng Busal/Buiydes) unody
TLP12'TSs 00'0$ 00°€09% sjejol $zZ0Z Alenigad  Lyjuol
alqeied
(448 Avard 00°€09 SJUNODY Anu3 a010AU] d/Y dv ac 206200005202 ¥20e/sz/zo
¢LUTTI9'TS '21eQ 0] suejeg sa1iddng bunsa /Buiydes) 0000°STL06'YEZL 000°0TTIS TSET'TT JoqunN Junoady 7/9
85°TH$ 00°785°'1$ siejo] awdinby  uoiedo
8S'THS$ 00°285'T$ slejo] paubisseun 1oYi0
05°919'T$ 85'TbS 00°285'T$ S|ejo] AJSS INSUT 3934  JUNODIY
05'919'1% 85T 00°285'1$ Sle10l yZoT Aenagay  yjuop
05'919°1 85'TH SuoIPI||0D ysodaq yueg ¢N.mﬁ.w vy ac 9820000-+20¢ #202/51/20
el
80'859'T 00'285'T Jadoud 0} asuadxe ssepsy gh) ac 0££20000-+20¢ yeoz/ei/eo
80°9/% :3jeq 0] sduefeq AJ3S ANSUT 19314 0000 PTL06'VETL 000°0E6E TSET'TT  J2qUINN JUnodY 1/9
z1'62% 8T'175$ S|EJ0] |[RARLL  UONEIOT]
21'62$ 8T°115% s|ejo) paubisseun Jay10
££'786% [4 X143 8T'T15% slejot [Aes) AynqQ Jejnbay  junody
LE286% (4814 811154 slelo] $zog Adenagas  yuop
91H20T
LE'T86 896 150 [joJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 350d __o;mm UH ac 0£620000-+20¢ $202/62/20
uel
68'G88 9z'e/e ladosd 03 ssuadxa ssepay §b) a 0££20000-+20¢ yeoz/zi/eo
Anu3 jewinor
uopjedijissedsy Junod2le 159.1I0d
£9°€19 ZEETT - ssejpay WY 0} SjusWasINquIRy Ssepay ib) a 06520000-+20¢ ¥20¢/20/20
Anu3g jeusnor
uonesyIsse| Doy |esioAal
1€'00S 16T - ssepay Wy SSEPRY JuSWSSINqUIIDY ™ ENy £9520000-+202 $202/10/20
Anu3 jeuinog
uonesyisseay
£b'62S 16z - SsepPay WY SSE|IaY JUSWRSINUIY ib) ac 65520000-+20¢ +202/10/20
1€°005$ 133eQ 0| SUEjeg 9AelL AIng Jejnbay 0000°ETL06'PEZL'000°0TTE TSET TT  J2qUINN JUNODY 7/9
0£04T$ 99'591'52$ S[E10] SISOD [SUUOSISd  UOIRI0
0£'041% 99'591'5Z$ sjejo paubisseun Y10
00°£0b$ 00'0% 00°95% S|ejo| Ales auoydsjel  UNoddsy
00'€0b% 00°0% 00'95% S|ejol $z0T AMenigad  yjuol
914202
00"€0% 00'8¢ 150d [loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 3504 [jolAed ¥UH ar 0/620000-+202 veoe/6e/c0
ST¥e0e
00°S4E 00°8¢ 150d |jloiAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 |loJAed UH ar Tr£20000-202 $202/91/20
00°/bE$ :93eq 0] =duejeg Al19S suoydsjaL 0000°TTZ06°YETL 000°0TPE TSET TT  JSQWNN UN0DY /9
Dueeg ernoy JUNGLUY Jpal) JUnowy 31Geq ESTEIETES Y 30IN0S Paloigjuondiossq  Jebpa] EGIY JeuwInog 238g 1/9
qns jeusnor

le3aq 426pa gns apnjox3
¥2/62/20 - $2/10/20 2buey =1eq /9

J35da3a1

TVY3IN3ID @311IV.L3IA SH3/SH ¥20Z A¥VYNug3d

Packet page 97 of 271



£T 40 6T 3bed

WV 00:£€:0T +202/8T/€ uo umeqeT ‘auym Aq uny

3lgeAeq
18'785'sT 80°2LL'E SJUNo2Y Anug so10AU1 dfy dv ac $1/20000-+202 +202/60/20
6£°508'T2$ :33eq 0] =ouejeq ddns A321439913 0000°LTL06'VETL 000°0TZSS ISET'TT  J9QUNN UNODY /9
SE'TEL'TS 00'0% 89'072$ S|ejo] A19g abemag Jajepm  Junoddy
SETEL'TS 00°0% 89'07Z$ S|e1o)l pzoeg Aenagay  LJ3uop
3lqeAed
SETEL'T 89°02¢ SN2y Anug s310AUf d/fy dv a 20620000-+202 beoz/sz/z0
£9°015'1$ 131eQ 0] SduelRg Al19S abemas 19JeMm 0000°ZTL06'VETL 000°0ESE TSET'TT JOGUNN 3UNOIDY /9
9L’1$ 08°'61#'T1$ S|EIOL SSJIAIDS |ENIDRIIUCD  UOREIO]
9/'1$ 08'61F' IS s|ejo] paubisseun JoYI0
Z1°E8es 9/L'T$ 00'0% siejo) saijddng 2030  JUNODY
Z1°e8es 9L'1% 00°0% slelo| 0z Aenigag Luop
9|qeded
[48%:13 91 SjUNODY Anu3 2010AUT dfy dv ac 20620000-H20¢ ¥eoe/sefzo
83'¥8¢$ 133eQ 01 3UejRg saljddng 23130 0000°9TL06'¥E2Z°000°0T6S TSET'TT Joqunp JUnoDdy 1/9
00°Z00's$ 00°0$ 00°£99% slelo | a1ag seday buipjing  unoxy
00'200'5% 00°0% 00°£99% sielol zoz Aenigay  uop
welb
00°200'S 00°64S ’ J1adoud 03 ssuadxe ssepay 1 a 04£20000-+20¢ ¥20z/e1/z0
3lqeded
00°€2b'y 00'v8 SJUNO2DY Anu3 so10AUL d/y dv a $1/20000-+202 +202/60/20
00°6£€'p$ :33eQ 0] duelRg A19g Jjeday buipjing 0000°9TL06'VETL 000°0TTH TSET'TT  JSQUWINN JUNODY 1/9
S1°€98'C$ 00°0% LLYSE'TS S|ejo| AJ9S Buiuug  Junoxdy
ST'£98'7$ 00'0% LLHS6'TS s|eJol +Z0T Aeniqad  Luop
S1°€98'C b1z { $2°62°C WHd AdoD ° a ££0£0000-+20¢ ¥20z/62/20
[4413:44 8’1 . 11 $7'67°7 be1sod 1 a 9£0£0000-+202 v20z/62/20
djqedeq
¥ pe8'T £6'ST ﬂ::omu< Anu3 2010AU] d/Y dv a $1£20000-420¢ $202/60/20
3|qeded
15°818°2 £1°016'1 SJUNO2JY Anu3 a210AU] d/Y dv ar $1£20000-+202 $202/60/20
8£'806$ '3jeq 0] =0uejeg AlDS Bunulld 0000°9TZ06'PETL 000°0T9E TSET'TT  JOQWINN JUNO3Y 1/9
99°'/5T°61% 00°0% £0°208'8$ S|EI0| SSIIAISG [EDIUYID] ] JOId JOYI0 IUNODY
99'/ST'61% 00°0$ £0°'208'8$ S|eJ0] $Z0T Atenugag  yjuol
o|geied
99°/ST'6T $0°/82'8 SJUNO2DY Anu3 so10Au] n_\m dv ac 20620000-520¢ peoz/se/eo
el
29°04£°01T 66'F1 Jadoud 0} asusdxs ssepsy ko) ar 0££20000-+202 $202/21/20
£9°65£°01$ '9)eq 0J soueleg SIIAIRS [BoIUYDB ] R JOId JAYIO 0000°9TL06°YETL000'06TE ISET'TT  J2qWnp JUNoddyY /9
souejeg [enpy JUROWY 3PS JUNOWY 3IGeq Uy 30IN0S PaloidfuondiDseg  Jebps SdAL [ewnog 318 119
ans Jeusnor

llelag 196pa7 gns apnpx3

¥e/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey s3eq /9

d39d3al

TVH3N3ID @37IvV.L3d SH3/SH ¥Z0Z Advnyg3d

ASNIDV IZNAUI5 TYNDILY IO IYNOIDIY ¥

0S| MeU3JYUSEAA

Packet page 98 of 271



£T $0 0Ot abed WY 00:€€:0T $20¢/8T/¢ uo umeqeT ‘ayym Ag uny
Anu3z jewnor
uoedyISSE|IDY
ShPEE’0LT A4 - ssePay WY SSE[DIY JUBWBSINGUIIDY 1 a 65520000-+202 +20¢/10/20
Anu3 |ewinog
uonjeoyissepay
61°09€°0LT £T'Sh - ssepay ] SSE[DRY JuSWBSINqUIRY Ro) a 65520000-520¢ ¥20¢/10/20
Anu3 jeuinor
uoleouissepay
S0P 04T S9'7C - S5R[P3Y WY SSEI8Y JUBISSINGLIDY 1b) a 65520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anug jeuinog
uofjedYISSePYY
£0°82+'0L1 ££°0C - ssepay WY SSE[ISY IUBWSSINGUIIY §B) ar 65520000-+202 $202/10/20
bbb 0414 :9)eQ o duejeg Buijasuno) jeuondnIIsUL 0000 TTLO6'PETL £86°0STT ISET TT J9QWNN JUNODY 1/9
LT'S6E'8bS 9/'59% £9'645'9% sjejo] Butjasuno)  junoxy
£T'S6E'SHS 9/'59% £9°645'9% s|el0l 20z Atenugad  yjuol
914202
LT°S6£'8P 79'668'C 1504 [loiAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150 [loJARd UH ac 0£620000-+202 veoe/6z/eo
STH202
§9°56b'Sh 29°66£’S 150d floJAed  AYIUOW-IWSS S 1s0d __o;mu YH a 4700004202 $20e/s1/20
juels
£0'960°2h £E°SHT Jadoud 0} asuadxe ssepay §B) ar 0£.20000-+20T ¥eoz/zt/eo
Anu3 jeulnor
uonedLisse|sy JunodJe 3091102
0£°0S8'TH 99°0¢ - ssepay WY 03 SjUSWSSINqISY SSeIay 1 ac 065200004202 $202/20/20
Anu3 jewnog
uonedYIssePYY |esianal
9¢°188'TH 01°s€ - SSeTY Wy SseRY JUBWISSINGUIIDY ™ ac £9520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anug jeuinog
uoneyissepay
9Z'9v8'TH 0T°SE - ssep3y WY ssepsy JusWasINquIsy §o) a 65520000-+202 ¥202/10/20
9£'188'TH$ 123eQ 0] =dueleg Buljasunod 0000 TTL06'PETL L86'0TTT TSET'TT  JoquIny JuNodY 1/9
9L v 88'509'9v$ slejoj paubisseun weibolqg
9L'THTS 88°509'9k$ S|EJ0L ¥X0T HelS peaH juels
00°0$ YT HTE (S S|ej01 S3S0D JOYIO  Uo1edoT
00'0% T PeE LS siejo paubisseun BU0
SE'60682% 00'0% 95°€01'/$ siejol ddng AdLIBI3  JUNOY
SE'606'82$ 00'0% 9G'€0T'£$ S|e0) p20z Aenagad  Lyiuop
welb
SE'606'8C 8b'9ze’s J1adoud 0} asuadxa ssepsy © a 0££20000-+207 beoe/ci/zo
6£°508°1C$ 13)eq 0| =ouejeg ddng AydURI3 0000°LTL06'YETL 000°0ZSS TSET'TT  JSGLINN 3UNODY 1/9
Sdouefeg [enpy JUNOWY Wpa1) JUNoWY 355G ESTEYET= 300N0S Peloigfuondinssg  sebpe]  edAL Jewnog 3380 1/9

leyeq 4e6pa gns spnx3
¥2/62/20 - v2/10/20 obuey 21eQ 1/9

-EDIeER
TVYINED Ad371IvV.L3A SH3/SH 20T AdvNug3d

qns Jewnog

A2PI0W ITIAMIS TYNOILY 23 T9YNGIDIY ¥

0S| Meualysepn

Packet page 99 of 271



/¢ 30 1z 9beq

WY 00:€€:0T $Z0Z/8T/€ U0 umeqeT ‘a3Ym Aq uny

99'v8/'/61% 06'261'1$ 21°625'82% s[ejoL Buljasuno) JeuodnIISu  JUNOY
99'$84'L61% 06'261°15 Z1'625'82% sjelol $ToT Aenagad  Yiuop
91+20¢
99'b8/'/61 75°86L'TT 3504 ||oiAed  AlYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [[04ABd dH ar 0£6¢0000-+20¢ ¥202/62/20
STHe0T
+1°986'G8T 15°864'T1 1s0d |loiAed  AlIUON-ILUSS S 1504 [joJARd UH ac <b/£20000-+20C v20z/s1/20
welb
£9°/8T'V/T S6'v9¢ 1adoid 0} ssuadxe ssepay 19 ac 0£/£20000-+20¢ beoe/ei/eo
elb
89°726'¢LT 0T°26£'C Jadoud 03 asuadxs sseday D) ar 0££20000-+20¢ ¥eoz/e1/zo
elb
85°SZ8'T/1 88°LET1'C Jadoid 03y asuadxe ssepay ° a 0££20000-+202 beoe/ei/zo
Anu3 Jewinog
uonedyIssepay JUNOdOe B0
0£°£8¢£'69T £5°€97 - SSepP3y WY 0} sjuswesinquilay ssepr=y D ar 065¢0000-+20¢ ¥20z/20/20
Angu3 |euinog
uonedYISSedaY UN0JOE PBLIOD
£7°155'69T L6201 - SSePay WY 0] sjuslasINquIIBy Ssepsy 19 E[ 06520000-+20¢ ¥z0e/c0/c0
Anu3 jeunor
uonedyIsse|ey JUNOJ2E PBLI0D
0759691 S0°L0b - 55esy WY 01 sjuswBsINquUioy SSepay 1 ar 06520000-+20¢ $202/20/20
Anu3 jeuinor
uoneoyIssepay JuUnoJ2e PAL0D
S2°'190°0/1 §8°€0C - S5epPYy WY 0} sjuswssinquiiay ssepay 19 ar 065¢0000-+20¢ $202/20/20
Anu3 jeusnor
uonedyIssepay JUNOJoE PALIo
01°592'041 PE'ERT - SSe9y WY 01 sjuswesinquiiy ssepsy il ac 06520000-+20¢ $20z/20/20
Anu3 [eulnoc
uonedyissepsy |esioAal
b 8bb'0LT L1°81 - Ssepay Wy SSE[I3Y JusLusSSINguIIYy 19 ac £9520000-+70¢ ¥20t/10/20
Anu3 jewnor
uonesyssepay |essonal
L[T0Eb'0LT | 7414 - Ssepay WY SSeO3Y JuBWSsINquIisy 1 ac £9520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anug jeuinor
uoneoyissepay |esiaAal
€5°%01'01 €T'Sh - Sseay Wd SSBITY JusLIBsINquIIDy 19 ar £9520000-+20¢ +202/10/20
Anu3g jewnor
uonesyissepay |esianal
0€°65£°04T §9°CC - Ssepay WY SSeDaY JusWasInqulisy il ar £9520000-+20¢ ¥202/10/20
Anu3 |eulnor
uonesuIsseIay |esIanal
S9'9£€°0LT L£°0C - SSePay WY SSE[DY JusLuesInquiiey 19 ac £9520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anu3 [eusnor
uopesyissepay
82°9T€°04T L1°8T - Ssepay Wy SSEDaY JuUBWRsINquIioy jD)] 3r 65520000-20¢ ¥eoe/10/20
vh 801 0LT$ ‘9jeq oL soueeg 6uljasuno) [euondNIISUT 0000 TTL06°PECL L86'0STT TSET'TT  JAGUINN UN0XDY /9
aouejeg [enpy JUNCWY Jpaiy JUNOLWY 3Gog ESIET=T=5e] |00N0S Peloidjuondinsag  Jabpa 2041 Jewnor 218 1O
qns jeusnog

lieveq Ja6pa gns apnjox3
b2/62/20 - $2/10/20 2buey s1eq /9

d35da3al
TVI3INID @311Iv.1i3d SH3/SH 20T AUvNyg3d

AZNIDY IDIAMIS IYHOGILYINAI TYROIDIY ¥

0S| Meuaysepn

Packet page 100 of 271



£T J0 2z 3bed

WY 00:££:0T +202/8T/¢ uo umege ‘@jum Aq uny

91H20¢
£T°LLY'6T 1£°€6T°C 150 ||0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [|0JABd uH ac 0£620000-+202 $202/62/20
STHC0C
75°€82'/¢ 07°€62'2 150d [[oJAed  AJJIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0lAed uH ar b£70000-+20C ¥eoz/st1/20
juelb
7£'066'%C b 1L Jadoud 03 asusdxs ssesy D Ey $0820000-+20¢ veoz/zi/eo
elib
88'816'FC 96'950'6 Jadoid 03 asuadxa mmm_umw ik} ac 0££20000-+20¢ veoe/et/eo
el
76'198'ST wTveL’9 l1adoud 03 asuadxa ssepray 19 ar 0££20000-+20¢ ¥zoe/zr/eo
Anu3 |eusnog
uonedlISSePY JUNOJE 121100
0/'£21'6 SH'TT - Ssepay WY 0] SjusasINquIIDy Ssepsy i) ar 06520000-+202 ¥202/20/20
Anu3g jewnor
uoneDYISSePay unNodde P3LI0D
ST'6£T'6 0Z've - ssejoay WY 03 SjusasINquIDY Ssejaay 19 ar 06520000-+20T ¥20t/20/20
Anu3z jeunor
uoneouIssepay JUNO2DE PBLI0D
SE'E/T'6 P61 - ssepsy WY 0] SjuswBasINquuiny SSepay g i ar 06520000-+20¢ ¥eoe/zo/zo
Anu3 |eulnor
uonesyissepay JuNoJe 1081100
9,261’6 0C've - Sseay WY 03 Sjuslssinquiiay ssepsy 19 ar 06520000-+20¢ $202/20/20
Anu3g jewnor
UOIIRILISSEPDIY |esiosl
96'922'6 19'91¢ - SsepPay Wy SSeI3Y JuswesInquisy i bo] ar £9520000-+207 ¥20t/10/20
Aqu3 [euwinog
uonedyIssepay |esianal
SE€°010%6 SH'1T - Ssepay WY S$5|33Y Juswesinquisy b ac £9520000-+20¢2 +202/10/20
ARnu3 |eulnor
uonedyissepay |esiaAal
06'866'8 0S'pET - 55e|09y Wy S5R|I3Y Juswesinquiisy 1 ar £9520000-+20C $20¢/10/20
Anu3 |ewinog
uoneduissepay |esional
ob'$92’8 6T - Sseay Wy SSe|OaY JusRsINguIsy 1D ar £95¢0000-+20¢ ¥e0z/10/20
Anuz jewinor
uoneoyisse|dsy
66'bbL'8 19°912 - SSepsy WY SSE|23y Juawesinquiisy i1} ac 655¢0000-+20¢ $20z/10/20
Anu3 jeulnog
UoIeDYISSePaY
09'796’8 SH'IT - Sseoay WY SSE|23Y Jusuasinquiisy 19 ar 65520000-+20C ¥20e/10/20
Anu3 Jeulnor
uoneoyissepay
S0'€/6'8 0S'bEC - Ssepay Wd SSe|23Y Juswesinquiisy 1 ac 65520000-420C $20z/10/20
Anu3 [eusnog
uonesyisseday
§5°207'6 6T - Ssejoay WY SSe3Y JusWesInquiisy 19 ar 655¢0000-+20¢ ¥eoe/10/20
96'972'6% ‘8)eqg 0] Sduejeg HI0M [0S 0000 TTLO06'PECL L86'0VPT ISET TT J2qQWNN WNoMDY /5
souejeg [enpy junowry Jpar) unouwy Jigag ESTEYE Y — 90InosS Paloigjuondinsay  Jabpa adAL "Jewinog 1ed 1O
qns jewnor

lle3a@ 196pa7 gns spnpox3
v2/62¢/c0 - ¥2/10/20 abuey a1eq /9

d39a3al
TVY¥3INID d37IV.Li3A SHI/SH 20T AdvNyg3d

ADMIDY IDIAYTS TYNOILYDNAI TYMOIDIH =

S| MeUIUSBAA

Packet page 101 of 271



£ J0 £ abed

WV 00:€€:0T +202/8T/€ Uo umeqeT ‘auym Aq uny

1£'88£'05% 00°0% 68'S00'T1$ S|e10| JUSPIIDY pue Y)esH dnoin  Junody
1£°88/'06% 00°0% 68'S00'T1$ S|e10l $Z0T Aeniqas  yjuop
914202
1£°882'0S £1°509°S 1s0d Jloihed  AJYIUOW-ILIBS S 1504 |j0JARd ¥H ar 02620000-520¢ peoz/6z/z0
STH202
85°€8T'Lb ST'665’E s0d [joiAed  AlYIUOW-IWBS S 1504 [[0JAR] ¥H a Tb£20000-+20¢ ¥20z/s1/20
welb
£E'H85'sh 95'%9 Jadoud 0) asuadxa ssepay ib) a 0££20000-4202 beoz/ei/o
jelb
LL61S'Eh TE€°ShL'T Jadoid 03 asuadxa sseay © a 0££20000-+202 ¥eo0z/Tr/z0
welb
9yL/'0b £1'V98 Jadoud 03 asuadxe ssepay 1 a 0££20000-+20¢ $202/21/20
uelb
69'6066€ /8971 1adoud o3 ssuadxa ssepay 1 ac 0££20000-+202 202/21/20
78°78L'68% :33eq 0] sduejeg JUSpIY pue yajeaH dnold 0000 TTL06'YETL Z86°0ETZ TSET'TT  Joquny Junoddy 1/9
£2°01L$ 00°0% SEVOTS sieo) Aypiqesig dnoig  junoxy
£2°01L$ 00°0% SEPOTS slejol 0T Atenigag uop
91+202
£T01L P T 150d [[0JARd  AYIUOW-IWSS § 350 |josAed uH ar 04£620000-+20¢ $202/62/20
STH20T
66°899 61T 150d floJAed  AIUOW-IWSS S 350 J[otAed ¥H a Tv/70000-+20¢ ¥e0z/s1/20
juesb
0879 8/ Jodoud 03 asuadxa ssepay §o) a 0£/20000-+202 $202/21/20
elb
70'/29 75'8T Jadoud 0} asuadxe ssepay ® ar 0££20000-+202 ¥eoz/ci/co
juelb
0S°809 79'C 1adoid 03 ssuadxe ssepay ib) a 0££20000-+20¢ ¥eoe/et/zo
88'509% :9)eq o] dueleg Ajnqesig dnoid 0000°TTL06'PEZL £86°0CTT ISET'TT  J2qunN JUNODY /9
LL°€T5$ 00'0% 08°98% slejol a7 dnoJn  Junoy
LLETSS 00°0% 08'98% S|l $T0T Ateniqgay  Lpuop
91+20¢
LL€TS 8/°0¢ 150d |0:Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 J|osAed WH a 0£620000-7202 $20z/62/20
STH20e
6676V 9£°0¢ 150d [[0JARd  AYIUOW-IWSS S 304 [lolAed uH a ZbL20000-+20¢ ¥2oe/s1/zo
juesb
€279 L8 Jadoid 03 Ssuadxa ssepay 1 ar 04420000202 $202/21/20
welb
9" T9% 16°0C Jadoid 0} asuadxe ssepay ™ ac 0££20000-+20¢ ¥eoz/et/zo
elb
Sb'ovb 8b'c 1adoud 03 ssuadxe ssepay io) ar 0££20000+20T beoe/ci/zo
L6'9EVS @)eQ 0] sduejeg 317 dnolo 0000 TTL06'YETL L86'0TTZ TSET'TT JOQUINN Junody /9
€T LIV 6C% £2'185% 0S5'1£8'02% S|EJOL HMOM [BID0S  JUNOIDY
£TLLb'6ES £7°185% 0S°'1£8°02% slejo] $z0ozZ Atenigay Lpuow
96'97Z'65 ®jeq 0] 3duejeg 340 [B100S 0000 TTLO6'PETL L86'0PPT ISET'TT  J2QUWNN JUNODDY /9
SHUefeg [enpy JUNOLIY 31pa1D JUNCLY 3IG9Q Sualejey 20IN0% PRl0IdfuondinDssg  Jebpa) 3dA] feusnog 31eg 1/9
ans fewsnog

lle3eq JobpaT gns apnpx3

¥2/62/20 - +2/10/20 2buey s1eq /9

d39d3a

TVY3ANID d37IV13a SH3/SH +20Z AdvNyg3d

Packet page 102 of 271



[T 40 pr 9bed

WY 00:€£€:0T +202/81/€ uo umeqe auum Aq uny

welb
£9'720'L1 LE8YT Jadoud o3 asuadxe ssepay 19 3 0££20000-+20¢ ¥202/21/20
0S'b/8'9T$ :81pQ 0] SoUERg Aandag |epos 1oAojdwil 0000°TTLO6'VEZL L86'0ESZ TSET'TT JoQWNN JUNODY 1/9
mm.hgv_.mwﬂw oo.ow ._m.mmh.._uww Sjejo| spung juauwalinay |edo7 pue aje}s 0} uonnqgiiuo) Junoddy
69'/0b'6ZT$ 00°0% 16°€24'bE$ s|ejol $zoz Aenagad  yjuop
91420Z
69'£0v'6TT L1°650'8 150d [l0JAed  AJUIUOW-ILISS S 1S0d ||0JAed UH a 0£620000-+202 ¥20z/62/20
STHC0
75°89€°121 95°€71’8 150d |loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 3504 ||0JAed UH ar TH£20000-+20¢ $202/51/20
jesb
96'bHT'ETT L0921 Jodoid 03 ssuadxs ssepay 1 ac 0££20000-+202 ¥202/21/20
welb
6T'8TTETT 6£'S61p Jadoid 0) osuadxo ssepay 19 a 04470000202 ¥z0z/e1/e0
welb
0b226'80T 68°212'S Jodoid 03 ssuadxs ssepay gb) ac 0£/20000-%202 ¥z0z/T1/20
uelb
15°602'50T £€'520'T Jadoid 0} asuadxe ssepay 1o ac 0£/20000-+20¢ vzoe/er/zo
spung
8T'+89'40T$ :838Qq 0] =dUERg JURWBINSY [B207 pue d)e3S 0} UOINGUIL0D D000 TTL06'VETL L86°0Z8Z TSET TT JoqWNN JUnody /9
11°466% 00°'0% 8EbP1$ S|e10| ®JeD UOISIA IUNODIY
1T'£66% 00°0% 8E'bH1S slejol vz Aenugay  yjuol
91$202
1T°266 8/'99 350d [loJAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1S0d ||olAed YH arc 0/620000-+202 ¥202/62/20
STH20T
££°0€6 09'99 150d flo4Aed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 |IolAed uH a v/£20000-+202 $202/51/20
elb
£/°€98 w1 Jodoid 03 asuadxa ssepay §5) ar 0££20000-5202 $202/21/20
juelb
15298 95t Jadoid 03 ssuadxe ssepay g} ac 0£/20000-+202 $202/21/20
welb
$6°/58 s J1adoud 03 ssuadxs ssepay §b) ar 0££20000-+20¢ $e0e/z1/20
£/°758% :3)eq o) Sduejeg 84e) UOISIA 0000°TTL06'PETL L86'0STT ISET ITT J2qUNN JUNODY 1/9
16'0EE'pS 00°0% £5°069% S|ejol aJe) yjjeay |euaq Junoddy
16'05E'S 00°0% £5°069% slelo] $Z0z Aenagal  yiuop
914202
16°0¢€’y 65408 150d [[0JARd  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 150d [|oJAed uH a 0£620000-+202 $20e/62/20
STH20¢
75°'920'y 7L°€08 350d |loiAed  AJUIUOW-ILDS S 1504 JI0JAd UH a T/20000-+202 ¥202/s1/20
uelb
08°'zeL's 1Sy ladoud o3 asuadxa mmm_uww ™ ar 0£/20000-+202 $202/21/20
el
6C'8TL'E 2168 1odoud 0} ssuadxa ssepoy 15) ar 0/£20000-+202 ¥e0z/z1/20
elb
L1°659°¢E 64°81 1adoxd 03 ssuadxa ssepay §b) a 0££20000-520¢ veoz/eifeo
8 0+9'c$ '3)eq 0] souejeq aJe) yj|esH |euaq 0000°TTL06'YEZL L86'0PTZ TSET'TT JoqWNN JuUnody /9
2oUejeg [enpPy JUNOWY JIpa) JUNOWY 31G=g JUSRPY eI PRloIg/uondinssg  Jebpa | adAL jewnog 2Neg 1o
qns jewnog

le3eq J496bpa qns apnpox3

¥2/62/20 - ¥7/10/20 2buey 21eq 1/9

d395a3al

TVY3INID d311IvV.13d SH3/SH 20 AdvNyg3d

AZNIDV IHAYIS TYNOILY INA3 T¥MOIDIY ¥

S | Meuajysepn

Packet page 103 of 271



£¢ Jo G abeq

Anu3 jeulnor

WV 00:£€:01 207/8T/€ U0 umegeT ‘Suym Aq uny

uo[ea1ISSe|oY
18'025C 0z'e8 - s5ePRY WY SSE[PY JuBWSsINqUISY 1o 3 65520000-+202 $202/10/20
Anu3 [ewnor
uonedyissepay
19'8€$°C 00°06 - s5EPRY WY SSep9Y JuBWISINqUISY 1 ar 65520000-+202 $202/10/20
Anu3 [euinog
uonesuissepay
19'8b€C 0s'TH - ssepay Wy ssesy JusWwasNquIsy g} ar 65520000-+20¢ ¥202/10/20
1€°208'e :33eq o] sduejeg 1eaes) AanQ 1einbay 0000°STL06'VEZL LZ86°0TZE TSET TT J1OqUINN UN0DY 1/9
68°6£8'1$ Z0'116'96% S|E}0| SISOD [2UUOSID  UONEDDT
68°6£8'T$ 20°'116°965 slejo paubisseun 1LY10
19'b22'e$ 00°0% 00°881% S[ejo| AJSS duoyds|al  JUNodDY
19'v22'2S 00°0% 00°881% s|ejo) 0T Aeniqag  juop
o 9T20e
19'v2e'e 05'18 150 |loihed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 ||0JAed UH ac 02620000-+20¢ $202/62/20
STH202
1T'sbT'e 05'18 150d [[oJAed  AJJIUOW-IWSS S 350d [|olARd ¥H ar T+£20000-+20¢ $202/51/20
elb
19°7190°C 0s'z iadoid 03 asuadxa mmm_umw ib) ac 0££20000-+202 $202/21/20
juels
:”mmow 0572 Jadoud 03 asuadxd ssepay 1B a 0££20000-+20¢ beoz/ei/eo
19'9€0'2$ '3jeq 0] duejeg AI9S duoydapal 0000 TTL06'VETL L86'0TYE TSET'TT JOQWNN JUNODY /9
9£'778'1$ 00'0% $T'95T$ S[E}0] S3YSUSg JO hal] Ul Yysed Junoddy
9£'7Z8'1$ 00°0% $2'9£T$ s|ejol g0z Aenagay  yiuop
.y 914202
9¢°728'1 [4%:111 150d [[oJAed  AJUIUOW-IWSS S 1s0d [|olAed UH ac 0£620000-+20¢ $20e/62/20
STH202
vm.vonm 48181 150d jodhed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 |olAed UH a Z¥£20000-+20¢ $202/S1/20
71°985'1$ 183eQ 0] =oueleg S11J2Uag Jo haI Ul Yyse) 0000 TTL06'YETL L86°0Z6C TSET TT JoquNN JUNODY 1/9
££°599'02% 00°0% £0'T6L'E$ sjejo Ajlndag jernos seAojdwg  Junody
££'699'0Z% 00'0% £0'164'ES S|ej0) $ZOT Aeniged  YIuop
. ) 91202
££°599°0¢C 8K'192'T 150 |j0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWISS S 150 f|olAed ¥H ar 0£620000-+20¢ ¥eoe/6z/20
) STH20¢
S8'€0b'61 £€9°21¢'T 150d [[0JAed  AJYIUOW-IWSS S 1504 [olAed UH ar Tr£20000-+202 $202/51/20
uelb
7216081 €€°0C Jodoud 03 ssuadxa mmm_umw 1 a 04420000202 $202/21/20
, el
68'0£0'8T ' TbS Jadoud 0y asuadxe ssepoy 1 a 0£/20000-+20¢ ¥eoe/Ti/zo
, jelb
bu.mmm\h . 08'90S sodoud 0} asuadxa ssepay ™ a 0££20000-+20C ¥zoz/e/zo
0£'pL8'91$ :3jeq 01 Sduejeq —— Ajlndag |epos seAojdwz 0000 TTL06'VETL L86'0EST TSET'TT JSQWINN JUNCIDY 1/9
Jouejeg |enpDy JUNOWY Jpai) JUNoWY 31G2q Sousielay S0INosS Paloig/uondinsag  Jebpa) S0AL [euwinog 31ea 1/9
ans [ewnop

'e39Q 426pa7 gns apn|ox3
¥¢/62/20 - v2/10/20 2buey =1eq 1/9

b-EleED

TVY3INID d371IV.L3d SHA/SH $20Z AdvNyg3d

ADMIDY I21A¥35 TYNOILY DMAI VMO

(0S| MeusjUsepp

Packet page 104 of 271



£T 30 9 abed WY 00:£€:0T +202/81/€ uo umeqe ‘suym Ag uny
Anug jewnog
uonesuIssepay JUNOJDR D3.LI0D
68°0¥2’c 8¢'esh - Ssepay WY 03 SsjusWLsINqUIIDY SSepsy j o) ar 065¢0000-+20¢ ¥20z/20/20
Anu3 jewnor
uoedyIsse|ay JuUNOdJe R.II0D
19'88/'C 05'9¢¢ - SSepay WY 0} SjusWssinquiiay SSejoy 19 ar 06520000-+20¢ $202/20/20
Anu3 jewinor
uonesyIssepay JUNOJDE P31I0D
11°295'C 60°1S - SSepay WY 0] SjuswssInquiny Ssejooy 19 ar 065¢0000-+20¢ ¥eoz/zo/eo
Anu3 [euinog
uonesyissePay JuUNOJ2E PALIOD
20°115°C T£°€0C - SSejoay WY 03 SjusliesInquIsy sseppsy 1 ar 06520000-+20¢ ¥20e/20/e0
Anug jewinog
UOREOLISSRDOY [esiaAal
1€'£0€'C SE'8T¢C - ssepay WY Sse|a3y Juswesingquisy 19 ac £9520000-b20¢ $20z/10/20
Anu3 jeumnog
uonedLISSeNRY |esiaAst
99°5£5° 26’101 - ssepay Wy SS|23y JuswasInquiisy D) ar £95¢0000--202 $20z/10/20
Agu3 jeuinor
uopedyIsseay |estonal
85'/£9'C 00°15¢ - SSe[oay WY SSe|DaY JuBWBsINquIIsy 1 ac £9520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anu3 jewnor
uonedYIssepPay |estanal
85°888°C TCEry - SSBP?Y WY SSe|D3y JusWesInquiisy 1 ac £9520000-+20¢ ¥20t/10/20
Anuz jewnor
uopeayissepay |esianal
6L'TEE'E 0228 - SSe|oay WY SSPPISY Juswses.inquuiisy ™ Els £9520000-+¢0¢ +20z/10/20
Anu3 |eulnog
Uo1RIYISSEODY |esianal
66€TH'E 00°06 - Ssepsy WY SSe|23y JuswasInquiisy D ac £95¢0000-+20¢ $20z/10/20
Anu3 jeumnor
uopeoyisse|pay |esiaAl
66°€05’S 0E'TH - Sseay WY SSe|2ay juswesinquuiey 19 ar £95¢0000-+20¢ ¥20t/10/20
Anu3 Jewnor
uoneoyissepay
67°SHS'E SE'8¢¢ - SSepJay WY SSE|23y JusRsInquIisy 19 ar 65520000-+20¢ $202/10/20
Anu3 jeusnor
uonedlIssePYy
P6'91€’c ¢6'10T - SSepsy WY SSeD3y JuslssInquiisy 19 ar 65520000-¢0¢ $202/10/20
Anu3 jeusnog
UOIRISSe|DDY
Z0°ST2’E 00°15¢ - 55eo3y WY Sse|o3y Juswesinquiisy ™ ac 655¢0000-+20C $202/10/20
Anu3 jeunog
uonedyissepay
20'%96'C T¢erb - Ssepay WY SSeD3Y JUSWIsInquIsy D ac 655¢0000-+20¢ $202/10/20
1£°/0€'28 ‘9jeQ o] adueeg [9ARaL Aanq Jein63Y 0000°ETL06'YETL L86°0TCE TSET'TT  JOqUINN WUN0DY /9
Duejeg [enpy JuNowY Ipa1) JURoWY 3Geq ERTENETER 0IN0S Paloidjuondinseg  Jobpa S0AL Jeuinog 5eqg 1/5
qgns jewinog

llezaq J2bpa gns apnjpx3
¥2/62/20 - $¢/10/20 obuey =1eq 1/9

- EDIeER
TVY3N3ID A37IV.L3IA SHA/SH ¥Z0Z AdvNig3d

ADMIDY IUANIT TYNCILY I3 TYMOIDIY

0S| MeU3IYSEAA

Packet page 105 of 271



[T 40 /7 3bed

WY 00:€€:0T £202/81/¢ uo umeqeT ‘Suym Aq uny

66°65¢'9% £6'228'10£% S[ejo] pues
66'650'9% £6'228'10€% S|ejo| puny |esauasn pung
£9'02£'cS 66'69%'LP1$ S|EJ0L UBJPHIYD JO 218D pue ApPoISND  LUONOUNI,
[8'LLO'ES 11'498°00T$ s|ejo) Hels peay Apes  weuboud
[8°2L0'ES 11°498'001$ S|e10] x0T Hels pedH 1uRio
00°0% 06°05% S|EI0L SIIIAIDS |eNIIRIU0)  UOQRIOT]
00°0% 06°05% slejo] paubisseun 1410
71°£86% 00'0% 06'05$ slejo) AsaS Bunuid  Junoddy
214863 00°0% 06°05$ Slelo) yzoT Adenagag  Ljuop
21486 06°0S 18 $7'62°C Wld Ado) §R) a ££0£0000-+202 ¥z0e/6t/20
77°9€6$ '31e@ o4 =duejeg A19s Bunuud 0000°9TZ06'YECL'L86°0TIE TSET TT  42QUWNN JUNODY 7/9
86°L£T'T$ 61°206'c$ S|ejo} [oAed]  uOREIOT
86'LET'TS 61°206'cS s|ejo| paubisseun 210
v6°855% 000% #6'85b$ S|PI01 9AR4L JUOD pue SdOYSHIOM  JUNODY
b6°85F$ 00'0% ¥6'85t% s[e10] yzoT Adenagay  yjuop
alqehed
¥6'85b ¥6'85H SJUNCJDY Anu3 9010AUT d/Y dv a 20620000-+20¢ vzoe/se/co
00°04$ :33eQ 0] duUeleg [2Ae1L Juo) pue sdoysiioMm 0000°€TL06'YETL £86'0CTE TSET'TT  JOQWINN UNODY /9
85°21S'b$ 86'/£2'1$ STEPF'ES s|e1o) [9Aed) Ayng Jenbay  unoxy
85°7IS'v$ 86°LET'TS STEPP'ES SIe10l $ZOT Atenigasd  Ljuop
1824174
8921y 0Tssy 350d |loiAed  AJYIUOW-IWBS S 150d __o;mm_ UH ar T£20000-207 ¥20z/s1/20
juels
8€'H/0'y LT'€92 Jadoud 03 ssuadxs ssepoy 1 a 0£/20000-+20¢ ¥202/21/20
Anu3z Jeulnor
uoneoyisse[dsy Junoloe Ps1I0d
12°118°E 0/'181 - ssepay WY 0} SjuswWasINquuIsy ssepsy gb) ar 06520000-+202 $202/20/20
Anug |euwnor
uoiedyisse|doy JuUnod2e Pa.LuI0d
15°629'¢ 0T’ TIET - ssepay WY 01 SjusWSsINquIIsy SseaY §o) ac 06520000-+20¢ $202/20/20
A3 jeuinog
uoneoyissepay JUNOJ2e PsUI0d
1€°86%'E 4 AT - ssepay WY 01 sjuswesInquisy ssepay gb) ar 065200004202 ¥20Z/20/20
1€°£0€°2$ 9jeQ 0] aduejeg [9Ae4L AIng 1e|nb3y 0000°ETL06'VETL L86°0TZE TSET'TT JOQINN JUNODY 7/9
Sduejeg [enpy JUNOWY Ypa) INOWY JIGeq ES=I=T= S0IN0S Dal01d/UCAGIDSSg  +obps ) adAL [eWinog 318G 19

lleyaq@ 496pa7 gns apn|ox3
t2/62/20 - ¥2/10/20 2buey a1eq 1/o

439431

TVY¥3IN3D @371Iv13d SH3/SH $20Z Advnig3d

ans jewnog

ASMIDY IHAYIS TVYNSILYDINAI TYNQIDIY %

S| Meuaysepp

Packet page 106 of 271



Ll

Isxjuswelels OWE ™ PlepueIS=apowi™ |sX891 £56=POL3de8/ ¥IZSS L0V, Z-7038-0E L-8694-4VES0DE6=WNUJUN00R, dse Z00ZHOdel/SHOdaY /4/eNS /L0 SIILBUAPPUSASOLUG MMM//:Sdpy

00012 $
ooolg $

916l $
91'G1Z $

00'szl $
00seL $

667661 $
66661 $

y °|9x3 xe}l
(asnhunowy

¥202/81/€0 UQ pajuld

JUSW.JE]S JUNOIDY [BaJJUOH 10 dueg

yoday juswelelg

JojensIuILPY SJUNo22Y INoA O} pSpJeMIO) U} PUB WO} SIY) 0} paydeye oq pinoys sidisasl TV

uonsdwo) ug
uoyoesuel) |euosiad e sejeoipy] ,

SHO3DS Bululel| uoinjosay JOIPUOT - PS| Ysep [edAed aseyoing

— paloig 0000 8410

00000 ‘uoyeaoT] €0PE Juely 666 ‘weibold

061 ¢ 302[40 L2Zl uopouny L1 pung
000 ™

) o Ps| ysem [edAed ¥¢0¢/2eico

(dze) s|eusiew Joamod WO - ZXOgUNIgGMY SN dPjIN UZWY 8seyoing

- Paloid 0000 “2yo

00000 :uoneodo’] €ErE el 566 ‘weibold

0665 109[d0 SiZ| ‘uoioung L1 ‘pund
000 -

P i ZXogugMy Sn AP uzwy 1202/0¢/2c0

Jeyusdie) AusyD Jo) uoneoynedal JaAISsSqO SSYD - Buluies) suoisyoes) eseyoind

- osfoid 0000 18UI0

00000 ‘uoyed0T] YOPE Juely 000 :weiboid

061¢ 193(00 1¢¢| ‘uonound L1 ‘pun4
000 =

i Buiuies suojsyoes| ¥20¢/20/20

SIOYISIA SWoH 1o} sanpoyy Buiysmug awijuo - jeuoq YiesH US|INIW SSBYoINd

— osfold 0000 “240

91,06 :uoiyeao] YECL el 186 ‘weiboid

0gLg 303lq0 LLEL “uopound L1 ‘pund
000 =

A lleuoq uyjlesH usiiNRN ¥20¢/1¢/10
Jwy xej apo) xel

1disoay |tejaq suei] ajeQq suel]

asi MYNILHSVYM Hun Auedwo)
£698-X00X=XXXX-XXXX *JaquinN pie)
00°0$ :20uejeg SnolAsId

G1'0S.¢ :oouejeg JUaLIND

¥20¢/.2/20 0} $202/82/10 poled juswsielg
Jnny eldlly Joj juswisiels OING

WV Zv'0l ‘veZ/8Lic

Packet page 107 of 271



413

ISXJUsWlelSTONG PIepuUeIS=apow ™ |sX391 £G6=PoLBd? 1889V VSEE998-6 | 2T-423r-G9T6-85ASAYEY=WNU JUNodse, dse zoozHodal/spoday /NS /Lo solweuAppuadsowq mmmy/:sdny

zzTee s
czeee

(R T A
(AT

18T/ $
18TILES

€8'0€ §
€9°9€$

S6'v81 $
S6°¥8L $

jwy [ox3 xej
(asnhunowy

2

et

00000 :uojedoT
0666 109[q0
000

p Lo

00000 :uoyed0T
0666 108lq0
000

pad

00000 :Uoled0T
0666 10°[qo
000

|

00000 :uonedoT]
0665 199{q0
00°0

Y

00000 :uoes0
0666 399[q0
000

A
Jwy xej
1disoay

¥202/81/€0 ‘UQ pejuld

JUSWSJE]S JUNCODY |ESLUOIN JO Yueg

yoday jusweole)s

2o¥Zogrey SN dpin uzwy

sleusleN LYV - 112500508 SN dpiIy uzwy aseyaing

— joafoiq
POPE elD
92¢| -uopouny

11250050 SN AN uzwy

slesjey 1YV - 0bessuszy SN dpiIN Uzwy eseyoaind
— psloid
POvE “ueln
L2l ‘uojoung

obegsugZY SN AN uzwy

sal|ddns SHI - LIWSE200Y WoJ uozewy sseyaind

- osfoid
YEVE el
¢lcl ‘uopdung

LIWG0O00Y WOoD uoZewy

sleusleN LYV - 294Zo9bZ2d SN dpiW uzwy aseyoind
— josloiq
YOye el
L¢el ‘uondung

0000 J8Yy10
000 :weiboiq

1L pung

¥202/0€/10

0000 ~43y0
000 ‘weiboid

Ll spung

¥202/0¢/10

0000 lepo
000 ‘weiboid

L :puny

¥202/62/10

0000 49Y0
000 :weiboid

Ll :pung

¥20¢/62/10

s[euslepy 14V - pUlLIZpUBLE)T aseyoInd

— Josloid
y0¥e Jueln
92¢| ‘uopoung

pulwgZpueye)g
apog xe|
|ileleq suesy

0000 18Y0
000 :weibold

Ll :pung

¥20¢/1e/10

a)eq suedp

asl MVNILHSVM iun Auedwo)
BE0E-XXXX-X00-XXXX JequinN pJen

00°0$ :9ouejeg snoiAsld

98°/96°L$ 2ouejRg JUSLND

20¢/.2/20 01 ¥20¢/8¢C/1 0 pousd juswaiels
Il Yezsnuepy piemp3 1o} Juswsiels ONg

WY EV:0) ‘v2/8LiE

Packet page 108 of 271



ale

ISX'JUBWalelS OWE ™ PIepUBIS=apoW™ |SXgg| £56=PoLadP1889YYSECI98-6 1 38-423P-G9T6-85ASaYEY=WNU JUNCOoER, dse Z00ZH0dal/SHOdeM/4#/81S /0o SolLBUAPPUSdSOWG MMmw/:sdRy

0072l $
00°ZLL $

€ezs
€€CH

INARES
Gl'ozl-$

9zge-$
9c'6e-$

9z'se $
9C'6e$
Hoday juswolelg

JOJeASIUIWPY SUNOJOY JNOA O} PapIEMIO) USL} PUB WO} SiU} O} payoele aq pinoys sdisoal Ty

#1206 :uoyeo0T
oesg 309[q0
000

A

#1206 :uojeson
0£6¢ 0elqo
000

A

00000 :uoieoo
0665 108iq0
000

A

00000 :uoRes0
0665 :109lq0
000

B

00000 :uoleooT]
0666 120[q0
000

ruonsdwmo) ug

uojjoesuey [euosiad e sajeosipu) ,

Jemaua. Be) spoiyan Juawpeda( - 0} Youelg slels JO 298 aseyoind

- oafoid 0000 2jo

PECL Jueis) 000 :wesbosd

LGEL ‘uonouny LI -pung

0l yodueig 9e1s JO 998 ¥202/80/20
‘lemausai Bej sd1yaa Juswipedap J0) 994 991A19S pIED JIpaL) - 994 SOIAISS UOAB|T 9SBYdINg
- afoid 0000 aYl0

+$EZL RIS 000 :weiboid

LGE| uonouny L :pung
994 9JIAI8S uoAe|F ¥202/80/20
punjai - sn dpjN Uzwy JeyonoA Iped)

- Jo8foid 0000 U8pO

YOve el 000 :weibo.id

9zzl :uopoung 1) :pung
SN dpiN uzwy ¥202/10/20

sleusiew | Hy 1o ipaio - sn AP UZWY JSYonoA 1pa1d

— Joaloid 0000 “eWo

YOvE JueID 000 “wesboid

9¢z| :uogouny i1 spung

s dpin uzwy ¥202/10/20

sjeusiely 1NV - 0Abgga/2d SN dpiW uzwy aseyaind

- sloid 0000 340

POvE Jueln 000 :weibolg

92¢| ‘uonoung LL :pung
0Abg9a/2y SN dPiN uzwy ¥20Z/1LE/L0

7

WV £¥:01 'vZ/gL/e

Packet page 109 of 271



Washtenaw 1S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday, March 12, 2024

The Washtenaw Intermediate School District Board of Education held a regular board meeting on Tuesday,
March 12, 2024, in Washtenaw ISD's Teaching and Learning Center Board Room at 1819 South Wagner Road
in Ann Arbor, Michigan.

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President Diane Hockett

ATTENDANCE

The following members were present:
Diane Hockett, President
Mary Jane Tramontin, Vice President (left at 5:52 pm)
Theresa Saunders, Secretary (arrived at 5:09 pm)
Steve Olsen, Trustee

The following member was absent:
Sarena Shivers, Treasurer
Quorum was met.

Also present:
Naomi Norman, Superintendent
Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent
Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent
Ryan Rowe, CTE Director
Holly Heaviland, Executive Director, School and Community Partnerships
Tanner Rowe, Director of Operations
Becky Mullins, Human Resources Supervisor
Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Theresa Saunders, to approve the agenda, as presented.
Ayes: All.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION — Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw County:
Superintendent Naomi Norman addressed the Board, giving a brief introduction to CTE Director Ryan
Rowe, his role, and the opportunities that have been created through his work. CTE Director Ryan Rowe
presented the Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw County presentation
to the Board. Ryan Rowe fielded questions from the Board and a brief conversation regarding the
technicalities of a millage ensued.

Packet page 110 of 271



Page 2 — Regular Meeting — 03/12/2024

EQUITY, INCLUSION, AND SOCIAL JUSTICE DIALOGUE: Superintendent Naomi Norman facilitated the
Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice (EISJ) discussion, sharing about the following:
- A new sticker design that has been developed to showcase the WISD’s values.
- Scheduling upcoming EISJ Learning Sessions with the Board.
- Naomi Norman, Diane Hockett, and Mary Jane Tramontin attended the Washtenaw County
Literacy Coalition meeting held on Sunday, March 10, 2024, at Washtenaw Community College.
She shared her takeaways from participating in this event, pondering what planning and
coordinating for future literacy programming at the WISD and the county-level would look like.
Board President Diane Hockett chimed in, voicing that the panel at the meeting was quite powerful,
and questioned how our staff plays a role in literacy.

CONSENT AGENDA
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Theresa Saunders, that the Board of Education approve the minutes
and Superintendent’s recommendations in the Consent Agenda, as presented.

Voting yes: Theresa Saunders, Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett.
Voting no: None.
Motion carried.

Approval of Minutes
The Board approved the minutes of the February 27, 2024, regular meeting.

078-23-24

The Board approved the following employment recommendations:
- Mary Beth DiFranco as a School Social Worker.
- Traci Talley as a Legal Assistant.

079-23-24
The Board approved the following reclassification requests:
- Gregory Myers, EISJ Project Specialist, 1.0 FTE, 230 Workdays, Non-Affiliated bargaining, to EISJ
Program Manager, 1.0 FTE, 205 Workdays, Non-Affiliated Bargaining.
- Tiffancy Woods, Early Head Start Home Visitor, 0.5 FTE, 230 Workdays, Unit | bargaining, to Early
Head Start Home Visitor, 1.0 FTE, 230 Workdays, Unit | Bargaining.
- Vacant, General Education Social Worker, 1.0 FTE, 185 Workdays, Unit Il bargaining, to General
Education Social Worker, 1.0 FTE, 205 Workdays, Unit Il Bargaining.

- Vacant, Technician lll — Human Resources, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: NA, Non-affiliated
bargaining, to Legal Assistant, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: Grade 7, Step 2, Non-affiliated
bargaining.

080-23-24

The Board approved the following new position requests:
- Special Education Coordinator (2), 2.0 FTE, 210 Workdays, Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center,
Non-Affiliated bargaining.
- Special Education Supervisor (2), 1.0 FTE, 230 Workdays, Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center,
Non-Affiliated bargaining.

081-22-23
The Board approved the following staff retirement.

Packet page 111 of 271



Page 3 — Regular Meeting — 03/12/2024

- Lee O’Neal, effective December 31, 2024.

082-23-24
The Board approved the new WISD Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) appointment, Tara Hayes.

083-23-24
The Board approved the Chapelle Lease Renewal with Ypsilanti Community Schools, in the amount of up
to $20,924.00, as presented.

084-23-24
The Board approved the Early Literacy Coaching Contract with Manchester Community Schools, in the
amount of up to $60,000.00, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS — Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot Plan: Superintendent Naomi Norman
opened by saying that sometimes we must do what is best for the students, even if it is out of the ordinary,
and this is an example of that. Deputy Superintendent Cherie Vannatter introduced the Ypsilanti Community
Schools (YCS) Supplemental Pilot Plan — a plan that is meant to address the staffing and retention needs of
YCS by providing staff to deploy IEP services and compensatory services for 237 special education students
who are currently not receiving services. Cherie fielded questions from the Board and a conversation
regarding the importance of interlinking educational services ensued.

Motion by Theresa Saunders, seconded by Steve Olsen, that the Board of Education approve/authorize
the administration to approve the implementation of Supplemental Services as a Pilot Plan with Ypsilanti
Community Schools, as presented.

Voting yes: Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett, Theresa Saunders.
Voting no: None.
Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS — Board Policies — First Read: The Board reviewed the policies and provided feedback
regarding language inconsistencies to Human Resources Supervisor Becky Mullins. Becky agreed to make
these revisions and provide the updated Board Policies at the March 26, 2024, Board of Education meeting.
Board action was not required.

OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS: There were no other items of business.

BOARD OF EDUCATION REPORTS: Board President Diane Hockett reminded the Board of the upcoming
Washtenaw Association of School Board (WASB) Annual Meeting on Thursday, March 14.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS - Superintendent’s Report:
Superintendent Naomi Norman spoke about the following:
- The Chief Information Officer position has been posted and the WISD is coordinating with a
recruiting company to fill this role.
- Washtenaw Educational Options Consortium (WEQOC) is facing financial challenges resulting in a
slew of toxic rumors and misinformation being spread throughout the organization and schools.
- Two local districts are facing major financial challenges at the moment — Whitmore Lake Public
Schools with roughly $1,000,000.00 in debt, and Ann Arbor Public Schools with roughly
$20,000,00.00 in debt. Naomi expressed possibilities for slowing resolving these debts.

Packet page 112 of 271



Page 4 — Regular Meeting — 03/12/2024

- Ann Arbor Public Schools has narrowed down their Superintendent search to six candidates. The
Board and Superintendents had a brief discussion about the eligibility of the six candidates.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Theresa Saunders, Secretary
Washtenaw ISD Board of Education

Packet page 113 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education

FROM: Margy Long, Director, Success by 6 Great Start Collaborative

DATE: March 20, 2024

RE: Home Visiting Grant Renewal — SOS Community Services Contract Amendment

At the July 27, 2023, Board of Education meeting, the Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal
with SOS Community Services was approved for $40,000.00. Since then, the need for funding has
shifted from professional development to home visiting programming, necessitating a $2,660.00
amendment to the original contract. This brings the contract total to $42,660.00. SOS Community
Services will provide the scope of work as outlined in the original contract.

cc: Holly Heaviland, Executive Director, Community and School Partnerships

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 114 of 271



\V \Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Amendment to Contracted Services Agreement - Company

The contracted services agreement dated7/1/23.by and between Washtenaw Intermediate School
District hereinafter referred to as WISD or District,and SOS Community Services hereinafter
referred to as Contractor, is amended as follows:

Itis the intention of the parties to amend the previous contracted services agreement covering the
period of 7/1/23 until 6/30/24 in the following manner:

SECTION I - SCOPE OF SERVICES

In connection with the above, Mﬂ’ll /7/ W w1ll perform the following services:
he

1. SOS Community Services will p.v{mde scope of work as outlined in the original contract.
2.

SECTION II - COMPENSATION

1. WISD will add an additional $2660 to the current contract of $40,000 bringing the total
contract to $42,660.
2.

Except as set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement is unaffected and shall continue in full force and
effect in accordance with its terms. If there is conflict between this amendment and the Agreement or
any earlier amendment, the terms of this amendment will prevail.

The Amendment agreed to on February 23, 2024

Date
Independent Contractor

Date
Department Head

Date

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Page 1 of 1

Packet page 115 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education
FROM: Matthew Cook, Assistant Director, Technology & Data Services
DATE: March 11, 2024

SUBIJECT: Internet Access for Internal Communications

The Administration recommends that the Board of Education approve the three -year contract
for internet access to out-centers and programs with Comcast for a cost of $84,772.80 plus the
cost of any applicable taxes, tariffs, and fees.

The WISD provides network access to our out-centers and programs via vendor circuits when
fiber is not available. As part of the annual bid process for the Universal Service Fund (Erate), a
bid for Internet Access for internal connections was circulated to vendors for 3-year pricing for
the following locations:

Comcast Download Upload
Accounts Address Speed Speed
Progress Park | 3980 Research Park DR., Ann Arbor, M| 48108 1.25 Gbps 35 Mbps

Chelsea YA 114 N. Main St., Chelsea, Ml 48118 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
Red Oak YA 850 Red Oak Rd., Ann Arbor, M1 48103 1.25 Gbps 35 Mbps
Carpenter YA | 2835 Carpenter Rd., Suite 1 & 3, Ann Arbor, M| 48108 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
Ann Arbor YA | 310 Miller Avenue, Suite # 80 1.25 Gbps 35 Mbps
Ypsilanti YA | 301 W. Michigan Ave, Suites 101 & A, Ypsilanti, M1 48197 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
Dexter 2200 N. Parker Rd., Rms 476 & 482 Dexter, M| 48130 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
WashNews YA | 1935 S. Industrial, Ann Abor, M| 48103 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
WISD 1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, MI 48103 1.25 Gbps 35 Mbps
WAVE 301 W Michigan Ave, Ste 201, Ypsilanti 48197 100 Mbps 25 Mbps
Beatty 1661 Le Forge Road, Ypsilanti Ml 1.25 Gbps 35 Mbps
cly 2201 Hogback Rd Front Office, Ann Arbor, Ml, 48105 250 Mbps 25 Mbps

The ISD received two bids. The bid evaluation is detailed on the attached Bid Evaluation
worksheet. The recommended bid from Comcast includes $2,354.80 monthly service charge and
equipment fee. Applicable taxes, tariffs and fees are not included in the monthly charge. The
agency will apply to the federal Universal Service Fund (USF) program for discounts on this

expenditure.

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406

ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406

(734) 994-8100

WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 116 of 271



District Name:

Service Type:
Service Description:

E-RATE BID EVALUATION WORKSHEET

WISD Consortium

Internet Connection

Internet Connection

FY24: 2024-2025

Bid Opening Date: 12/11/2023

Service Provider Service Provider Service Provider Service Provider Service Provider
. Factor Comcast MetroNet [Insert Name] [Insert Name] [Insert Name]
Evaluation Factors
%Weight*|Rating**| Weight*** | Rating**| Weight*** |Rating**| Weight*** |Rating**| Weight*** |Rating**| Weight***

E-rate Eligible Costs* 30 5 30.00 3 18.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Service Transition Factors 20 5 20.00 3 12.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adherence to Specifications 10 5 10.00 4 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prior Experience 5 4 4.00 1 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Performance 5 4 4.00 4 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Understands Needs 10 5 10.00 4 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Personnel Qualifications 5 3 3.00 4 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Management Capabilities 5 2 2.00 4 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial Stability 10 5 10.00 5 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other (specify) 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other (specify) 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Ratings: [ 9 [0 [ 9
Selected Service Provider: Comcast Comments: |Pue to one vendor for all site, pricing, additional installation

Approved by:
Title:
Date:

Merri Lynn Colligan

Chief Information Officer

12/26/2023

*Factor %Weight=Weight of each factor where Price is the heaviest weight

**Service Provider Rating: 1=Poor 2=Fair 3=Good 4=Better 5=Best

***Service Provider Weight=(Factor %Weight) x (Service Provider Rating) x (.2)
****Total Factor %Weight must=100%

Triple R Consultants

costs from other providers, and service transition factors,
Comcast is the selected service provider.

Page 1 of 1

Darlat narva 117 A~f D71



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education
FROM: Tanner Rowe, Director of Operations
DATE: March 20, 2024

SUBJECT: High Point — Synthetic Turf

The administration recommends that the WISD Board of Education authorize the administration
to approve a contract with AstroTurf Great Lakes for the installation of synthetic turf at High Point
School for a cost not to exceed $71,500.

At High Point School there is an area of natural grass underneath the shade pavilion in the
playground that is constantly muddy due to the high foot traffic and lack of sunlight. It has been
requested by High Point, Honey Creek, and Gretchen House staff that this area be converted into
synthetic turf. This will help to cut down on the mud and thus the mess, as well as provide a
better play surface for the students.

WISD engaged with Midwestern Consulting to develop the scope and work entailed with this
project. Midwestern Consulting is the firm that was used previously for the High Point School
Project and is therefore very familiar with the existing construction. They were able to design
new under drains to capture rainwater from the space as well as detail the artificial turf
requirements which will remain consistent with the existing synthetic turf currently installed on
the playground.

On February 22, 2024, a request for proposals was issued publicly for this work. On March 12,
2024 proposals were received. There were a total of one (1) proposals received. AstroTurf Great
Lakes submitted a bid of $65,000, with a suggested contingency of 10%, the total for this project
is estimated not to exceed $71,500. After a post bid interview with AstroTurf Great Lakes, which
was conducted on March 19, 2024, it was confirmed that they are very capable and prepared to
accomplish this project. They are a Michigan based company and pay their employees prevailing
wage labor rates. They have a tremendous amount of experience with this type of work and are
committed to meeting our proposed construction schedule for June of this year. Funding for this
project will come from the existing 2019 High Point Bond Construction budget.

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, MI 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 118 of 271



Washtenaw |S D

M BRI R A AT ISR L SRRV R A P

Date: 3/12/2024
Proposal: High Point - Synthetic Turf

Bid Tabulation

& 2
> S
S <
& o«‘? & &F
06 06 \)(‘\\' (_)\‘} ", 6%
QQ' Qe' (o) \O Q‘o (\Q/ &
o‘\ o‘\ & Q Q'\"’(' < ot o®
& & > & 5 & QA
@ @ 9 o NG R 9 N
& & 5 N N N & °
& & i Q e N 3 N
AstroTurf Great Lakes 25005 Trans X Rd. Novi, MI 48375 S 65,000.00 |Yes Yes Yes No No

Packet page 119 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGION AL EDIUICATICHN AL SERVICE AGERCY

DATE: March 13, 2024
TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education
FROM: Danielle Dros, Regional School Health Coordinator

SUBJECT: FY25 SNAP-Ed Application

| am requesting the board’s approval to apply for FY25 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program Education (SNAP-Ed) funding from Michigan Fitness Foundation in an amount not to
exceed $350,000.00. SNAP-Ed is an evidence-based, federally funded grant program that helps
people lead healthy, active lives through the provision of nutrition and physical activity lessons
and through the implementation of policy, systems, and environmental (PSE) changes that
increase access to fresh, nutritious food and movement resources in eligible communities.

SNAP-Ed programming has supported the Washtenaw County community for over eight years.
Washtenaw County’s SNAP-Ed program currently provides direct education lessons in thirteen
elementary schools across Ypsilanti and Whitmore Lake communities and works with various
community partners including Peace Neighborhood Center, Argus Farm Stop, Superior Charter
Parks and Recreation Department, Washtenaw County Food Council’s Food Action Network
Policy Action Team (FANPAT), and Ypsilanti Community Schools’ Coordinated School Health team
to implement PSE changes in the community. The work done in Washtenaw County through
SNAP-Ed funding is rooted in equity. Our program primarily works to increase access to fresh,
nutritious foods in Ypsilanti, which has a Black population share that is more than double that of
the county and has significantly lower access to food and physical activity than the predominantly
white surrounding areas. Of the nine census tracts in Ypsilanti, 78% have no access to healthy
food or are in food swamps, compared to 38% of neighboring Ann Arbor’s tracts®.

The SNAP-Ed grant funding is for one year, October 1, 2024-September 30, 2025, and will be used
to pay for the following: 100% of WISD’s Healthy Habits Start Now Program Assistant’s salary and
benefits, 100% of WISD’s Healthy Habits Start Now Program Nutrition Outreach Specialist’s salary
and benefits, contracted staff time, staff travel, and program supplies.

1. Srygley, S. Exploring the food landscape in Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti, MI: Neighborhood racial characteristics and food availability. Eastern
Michigan University Master's Theses and Doctoral Dissertations. 2021

1515 5. WaGRKER RO, PO, BOX 1408 AMM ARBCR, M| 48106 1406 {7324) 994 2100 WA W WASHTENAWIS0.0ORG

Packet page 120 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

Date: March 6, 2024

To: Superintendent Naomi Norman; Washtenaw ISD Board of Education
From: Jennifer Banks, Director of Instruction

RE: Ten80 Race Car Challenge Purchase Request Amendment

At the November 28, 2023, Washtenaw ISD Board of Education meeting, the Board approved a $50,000.00
purchase request, to purchase materials and curriculums from Ten80 Education to support the
implementation of the Ten80 Race Car Challenge. Additional needs, that will require supplementary
funds, have been identified since that time. | am requesting that the Board authorize the administration
to amend the original request by $15,000.00, bringing the new total to $65,000.00. The funding for this
will come from two sources: 2023-2024 Region 2 MiSTEM Funds and STEM Support funds.

WISD Math & Science Coordinator, Heather Holshoe has been working with eleven students at Ypsilanti
Community Schools and will be escorting them to the National Society of Black Engineers (NSBE) Annual
Convention, where they will race their Ten80 vehicles. Heather will be working closely with Ten80
Education to review all necessary components for the race at the NSBE Convention, furthermore, she will
be trained on how to evaluate and upkeep the cars we currently have throughout Washtenaw County,
and WISD will be purchasing a repair parts kit, to rebuild as many of the cars as possible.

Ten80 Education is a team of STEM education and business professionals dedicated to cultivating a STEM
Ecosystem that unites and inspires the next generation of entrepreneurial thinkers and innovators,

empowering ALL students to thrive in a world of constant innovation.

Please contact Dr. Jennifer Banks, if you have any questions.

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, MI 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 121 of 271



Ten80 Education, LLC
12 Spring St.

) Suite 101

Schuylerville, NY 12871

Bill To

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL D
Attn: Finance Department

PO Box 1406

Ann Arbor, MI 48106-1406

Invoice

Date

Invoice #

2/29/2024

2024022908A

Account # P.O. No. Terms

Project

COM-7539 Email Req. Net 30

Quantity

Description

Rate

Amount

1

Competition Preparedness assessment:
e competition operations overview

e race event walkthrough

e race engineering components

Race car maintenance assessment:
e assessment of current race car conditions
e upkeep and maintenance suggestions

Race car rebuild tutorial and kit:

e Lighting STK rebuild how-to tutorial
e Lighting STK rebuild kit

Sales Tax

6,000.00

4,000.00

2,500.00

0.00%

6,000.00T

4,000.00T

2,500.00T

0.00

855-836-8033

info@ten80education.com

www.ten80education.com

Total

$12,500.00

Packet page 122 of 271




Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education
FROM: Edward Manuszak, Executive Director for Early Childhood
DATE: March 18, 2024

SUBJECT: University Translators Contractual Agreement

| recommend that the WISD Board of Education authorize the administration to approve the
contract agreement with University Translators for translation services rendered during the
remainder of 2023 — 2024 program year.

The WISD’s Early Childhood programs regularly require a translator to assist with communication
and instruction between our staff and the families we serve. While we currently have an agency
contract with Propio Language Services, their work is done remotely, and we frequently have a
need in our department for on-site translations, which University Translators does offer. The
proposed contract, agreed to between our department and the contractor, will allow our
programs to continue serving the non-native English-speaking families in our programs
effectively in-person and without communication barriers. This partnership will extend beyond
our regular programming and into family events and program meetings which often invite family
participation both in-person and remotely.

The contract is for $67,997, and this will be paid using grant funds from budget accounts within
the Early Childhood Department. Please let me know if you have any questions.

CC: LaDawn White, Grants Manager

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 123 of 271



Washtenaw |S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT
CONTRACTED SERVICES AGREEMENT

This agreement is made this_20th day of July , 2023__by and between Washtenaw Intermediate
School District, hereinafter referred to as WISD or District, andUniversity Translatorqyareinafter referred to as
Contractor.

Itis the intention of the parties hereto to enter into an Agreement defining the nature and extent of the duties
to be performed by the Contractor, the place where the services are to be performed and the time limitation
on the performance of the duties.

SECTION I - SCOPE OF SERVICES

Now, therefore, in consideration of payment to the Contractor of the sums specified in Section II, the Contractor
does hereby agree as follows:

1. The Contractor shall commence performance of the duties in Section [, Number 2 no earlier than ¥ 1. 2023
Once this contract is implemented, the ending datefor providing services shall be June30,2024,

2. The Contractor agrees to perform the following duties and any necessary tasks incident to full
performance of the described duties:

Duty 1: Provide translation, communication, and interpretation services between families and
WISD Home Visitor care providers on dates, times and locations scheduled and agreed upon
by both WISD staff and the Contractor.

Duty 2:

Duty 3:

3. The Contractor shall provide, at the request of WISD, periodic progress reports detailing the tasks
accomplished and the tasks remaining to be accomplished to complete full performance of the
Contractor's duties as described.

4. The Contractor may be required to undergo a criminal background check by having fingerprints
scanned electronically and submitted to the Michigan State Police. The Contractor will be
responsible for payment of the fingerprinting service.

5. The Contractor must also comply with Public Act 131 of 2005, which details the procedure to
follow if the Contractor, or any individuals working on behalf of the Contractor, has/have been
charged with a crime listed under Section 1535a (1) of the Michigan School Code, or a violation of a
substantially similar l]aw of another state, a political subdivision of this state or another state, or of
the United States.

Page 1 of 5

Packet page 124 of 271



SECTION II - COMPENSATION
WISD does hereby agree as follows:

1. The maximum consideration for the Contractor's services as described in Section I shall be
$_67,997 including all related expenses, including travel expenses outlined in Section III.

2. The above consideration for the Contractor's services is based on the time reasonably expended by the
Contractor to complete the tasks herein above described in Section I and is based on a rate of
$110 per hour of time expended.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice describing the services, including dates and hours of work, for
part paymentofthe contract price not more frequently than once per month. The contractor shall submit
an invoice requesting payment no more than thirty (30) days after the work has been performed.
Invoices submitted after this date may not bepaid.

4. The Contractis retained by WISD only for the purposes and to the extent sent forth in this Agreement,
and the Contractor's relationship to WISD shall, during the life of this Agreement, be that of an
independent contractor. As such, WISD agrees that the Contractor shall be free to dispose of such
portion of his/her entire time, energy, and skill during regular business hours that s/he is not obligated
to devote to WISD in such manner as the Contractor sees fit. The Contractor shall not be considered as
having an employee status or as being entitled to participate in any plans, arrangements, or
distributions by WISD pertaining to or in the connection with any fringe, pension, bonus or similar
benefits for the WISD's regular employees. WISD will not withhold or pay any sums, state, federal or
local taxes, FICA, Michigan School Employees Retirement, MESC insurance, or worker's compensation
insurance, unless required by law. The Contractor agrees to hold WISD harmless for the payment of
such sum, interest, penalties or costs in the collection of same. Nothing in this agreement shall be
construed to interfere with or otherwise affect rendering of services by the Contractor in accordance
with its professional judgment.

S. The contractor has not been debarred, excluded or disqualified! under the non-procurement common
rule, or otherwise declared ineligible from receiving Federal funds, contracts, certain subcontracts, and
certain Federal assistance/benefits.

6. WISD acknowledges that the Contractor has no responsibility for the supervision of any WISD
personnel in carrying out his/her contractual functions, and any recommendations made by the
Contractor (other than in treating patients whom s/he has examined,) will require independent
judgment of WISD prior to being effectuated.

7. WISD agrees that the Contractor shall have access to WISD premises at such time as is necessary for
the Contractor to perform the above described tasks. However, WISD may require at least a one week’s

prior notice relating to the use of certain facilities.

8. In compliance with federal requirements, payments shall be made to a vendor on a reimbursement
basis for services delivered; not as a prepayment.

9. WISD agrees to promptly pay the invoices submitted by the Contractor upon verification of the
rendering of the services and within 30 calendar days fromreceipt in the WISD's Business Office.

10. WISD agrees to report to the Internal Revenue Service all amounts paid or reimbursed for services of
the Agreement in conjunction with the legal requirements.

Page 2 of 5

1 Verified via the government System for Award Management (SAM) website; https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1

Packet page 125 of 271



SECTION III - OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

1. All expenses for travel and mileage as a result of rendering the services identified in Section I are the
responsibility of the Contractor. However, WISD may ask the Contractor to incur travel expenses not
foreseen prior to the execution of this contract. If this occurs, WISD pre-approved travel costs associated
with this Contract will be paid by WISD at a rate to be determined by WISD. Such travel expenses must be
submitted under the guidelines established by WISD, including expense submission dates and inclusion of
detailed receipts.

2. Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee
between the parties at any time during the life of this Agreement.

3. The WISD shall retain ownership interest in any of the following three (3) circumstances:
i. The WISD expressly directs the Contractor to create a specified work (electronic or
otherwise) or the work is a specific requirement of the contract;
ii.  Any documents (electronic or otherwise) created and or developed by the Contractor
while under contract with the WISD; or

ii.  The Contractor voluntarily transfers the copyright, in whole or in part to the WISD in the
form of a written document signed by said Contractor.

4. The work done by the Contractor shall be to the entire satisfaction of WISD. Should the Contractor
unsatisfactorily perform the duties, WISD may cancel the Agreement and the Contractor shall have no claim
for any of the balance of the contract price remaining to be paid at date of termination other than amounts
related to services provided prior to termination.

5. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving the other 30 days advance written notice.

6. WISD may change the duties of the Contractor as above described, but such change shall not be a
substantial alternation of the Contractor's duties, nor can such change be made without the input of the
Contractor.

SECTION IV - INSURANCE COVERAGE

In the event that the Contractor uses motor vehicles in the course of performing the services above described,
the Contractor shall provide to WISD proof of public liability insurance and property damage insurance in such
sums as shall be deemed appropriate by WISD.

The Contractor shall maintain at his/her own expense during the term of this Contract, the following

insurance:
\\l 1) Workers' Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits of Employers’ Liability
Insurance with a minimum limit of $500,000 each accident;

\ 2.) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $1,000,000 aggregate, for bodily injury and property damage. The policy shall include blanket
contractual and liability and personal injury coverage.

The Contractor understands that WISD's liability insurance policies may not afford any coverage for any work
associated with this contract. Therefore, the Contractor agrees to hold WISD harmless 1) for any sum related
to the cost of liability insurance, 2) from any and all liabilities, claims, liens, demands and costs, of whatsoever
kind and nature, and 3) from any associated attorney fees, arising out of the performance of the work
described in Section L. The Contractor shall obtain and provide proof of public liability insurance in such sums as
shall be deemed appropriate by WISD unless specific written exemption is provided by the Assistant
Superintendent, Business Services. Neither party shall be responsible for any action or inaction of the other
party or its officers, agents, or employees, nor for insurance costs or legal fees, related thereto.

Page 3 of 5

Packet page 126 of 271



SIGNATURES

The Contractor acknowledges by his/her signature that he/she has read the Agreement and understands same
and agrees this contract constitutes the total agreement between the parties and that anything not included in
this contract is expressly excluded.

July 20th

Agreed to on . 2023

DATE /i//?l/ZOZ;S’

pate | 117 /2024

Department Head

. DATE
Washtenaw Intermediate School District

DATE
Washtenaw Intermediate School District

DATE

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Page 4 of 5

Packet page 127 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education
FROM: Becky L. Mullins, Supervisor, Human Resources and Legal Services
DATE: March 26, 2024

RE: Updated Policies — Second Read

The Policy Committee! recommends adoption of the proposed policy changes to the following
as attached:

WISD Board Policies -
Policy #'s 1662/3362/4362/5517 — Harassment
Policy #’s 1422/3122/4122 — Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity

First read of these policies was done at the Board of Education’s Regular Meeting held on March
12, 2024. The only changes requested were to review to ensure language was consistent in each
(i.e. Board employees changed to District employees, child changed to student, etc.). A review
was done, and language updated to read the same.

These revisions should be adopted in order to maintain accurate policies.

Enclosure

1Steve Olsen (Board Trustee), Mary Jane Tramontin (Board Vice President), Naomi Norman (Superintendent), Brian Marcel
(Associate Superintendent), Cherie Vannatter (Deputy Superintendent), Cassandra Harmon-Higgins (Executive Director of
Human Resources and Legal Services), and Becky Mullins (Supervisor of Human Resources and Legal Services)

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 128 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT

Code: pol662

1662 - ANTI-HARASSMENT
General Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board.

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color,
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion,
ancestry, or genetic information (collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil
rights laws (hereinafter referred to as "unlawful harassment"), and encourages those within the School
District community as well as £Third pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such
problems. The Board will investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful
harassment is substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its
reoccurrence, and remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of
the following prohibited acts:

Packet page 129 of 271



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation.

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment.

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges
comprises part of one's supervisory duties.

Definitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined héf@ifl: wordSIiBF defined herein shall be
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal co
resolution to the alleged harassment.

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged t in unla rassment,
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a f compl is seekin nformal resolution

to the alleged harassment.

School District community means student
professional and classified staff), as we

he term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means
office is open for normal operating hours, Monday —

ssly stated otherw
ay(s) that the

Bullying

Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or
work performance or participation; and may involve:

Packet page 130 of 271



A. teasing;

B. threats;

C. intimidation;

D. stalking;

E. cyberstalking;

F. cyberbullying;

G. physical violence;

H. theft;

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment;
J.  public humiliation; or

K. destruction of property.

Harassment
“Harassment= means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written,
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that:

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to

his/her property;

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance,
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.

Sexual Harassment

Pursuanttelor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,-and
Fitle- X-of-the-Educational Amendmentsof1972; "sexual harassment" is defined as:

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature, when:

Packet page 131 of 271



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity.

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or
educational decisions affecting such individual.

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an
educational program or activity.

Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the
same or anothereppesite gender.

Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on'the Basis of Sexiin'Education
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations@fsuch'€éonduct shalllbe addressed
solely by Policy 2266.

Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment undér this policy may take a variety of forms.
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations.
B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact.

C. Threats orinsinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion,
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances.

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions-efa-sexual-nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds
or whistles; obscene telephone calls.

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich
may embarrass or offend individuals.

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting or pinching; obscene gestures.

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities.

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own
sexual activities or sexual history.

Packet page 132 of 271



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic
relationship.

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks,
or groin.

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work
environment.

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School
District community into a student's personal space and personal life.

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.

Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits,
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive
employment or educational environment.

Race/Color Harassment

Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working,
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets,
and/or negative references relative to racial customs.

Religious (Creed) Harassment

Packet page 133 of 271



Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves
religious slurs.

National Origin/Ancestry Harassment

Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs.

Disability Harassment

Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling-eendition, such as negative comments
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic
information.

Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers

The followingindividual(s) shall serve asithe District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s)
(hereinafter, “thaeil€Compliance Officer(s)?):

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

Packet page 134 of 271



(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

—

Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1402
(Telephone Number)

1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Packet page 135 of 271



another individual about "unwelcome" conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual
in those instances where concerns have not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all
parties are in agreement to participate in an informal process.

Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official. Upon receipt of a report of alleged
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy tofthe Complainant and

recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the i h recommendations
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of reported to them to
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the

harassment, unless circumstances make such an inte
member should immediately notify other Board e ement officials, as

necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, th i or designee must contact the
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or.Co 2 / ians if the Complainant is

under the age eighteen (18), within two ( advi : tent to investigate the
alleged wrongdoing.

Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct

Members of the School District community,-~which-iacludes-all- staff-and-third-parties along with Third

Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator,
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives
such a reporfeemplai-nt shall file it with the Distriet's-Anti-Harassment-Compliance Officer within two
(2) days of recei‘ report of harﬂat—his#her—ﬁ%st—eemenieneer

Members of the School District community and Third Parties-e+third-parties who believe they have
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint,
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scemplaining

individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential
witnesses are available.

If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with
Policy 5517.01 - Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of bullying,

Packet page 136 of 271



aggressive behavior and/or harassment to the enre-of-the-Anti-HarassmentCompliance Officer(s) who
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall suspend

the hisfherPolicy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the

Principal informed of the status of the Policy 1662 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a
copy of the resulting written report./Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with
the determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process.

Packet page 137 of 271



Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 1662 F1)

Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Program or Activities, any Aay-employee or other member of the School District community
or £Third pParty (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he-has been subjected to
unlawful harassment or retaliation may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through either the
procedures described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the
Complainant's claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding
whether the charges are substantiated. &

® ’

Packet page 138 of 271



fertadsclovs

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, timelines are
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a
complaint within thirty (30)-ealendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15)-busiress days of the complaint being
received).

The informal-and-formal-procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
("EEOC").

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and
to-investigate-and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful hafrassment or retaliation. -third-party-who-believes
sthe-has beenunlawfully harassed-erretaliated-against. Thisinformal procedure is not required as a
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those
cwcumstances where the Complalnant and the'Respondent mutually)gree to partlcmate in it.-andwill

The Complainant

beheve%hat—the%ave—been—wﬂawﬁuhhmssed—metalﬁatedagmmt—may proceed im medlately to the

formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complaintsinvelving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District

community, or a ThirdiParty and a student'will be formally investigated. However-all-complaints-of

As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe in an-individualfeelsthat
stheis being unlawfully harassed-and-s/heisable-and feels safe-doing so, the individual should tell or
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassmg ha#asser—t-hat—t-he—conduct is unwelcome
and must stop. Suek g g T-sg
vielence: The Comglalnan eemplalmng—mdiwdual-should address the allegedly harassmg conduct as
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual-if requested to do
so. Ar Complainant individual-who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent
about the allegedly inappropriate conduct may file inform-the-harasser-of-histhercomplaintis-net
prohibited-from-etherwise-filing-an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain

Packet page 139 of 271



types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the
use of the informal complaint process.

A ComplainantAn-individual who believes s/he has beenunlawfully harassed may make an informal

complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2)
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level
employee.

All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an
informal resolution as described below-en-histherewn, or appoint another individual to facilitate an
informal resolution.

The BeardsSehool-District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending

upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual-claiming unlawful
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following:

A. Advising the Complainantiadividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the
behavior to the Respondentaleged-harasser.

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe-anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the

school building or office where the Respondentindividualwhese-behavioris-being
guestioned works or attends.

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation
between the Complainant'and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between-the

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance
Officer/er-designee Is directed will-exercise his/herautherity-to attempt to resolve all informal
complaints within fifteen (15)busiress days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is
Partieswhe-are-dissatisfied with the results-efthe-informal complaint process, the Complainant, may
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either party parties-may request that the
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process, ifthe-individual-elects-to-file-aformal
complaintinitially-the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

Packet page 140 of 271



The ComplamantAmndmduaLwa—beheves&#he—has—beenéub}eeted%&e#mswe

z ant— may file a formal
complalnt elther orally orin ertlng, W|th a teacher, Pr|nC|paI the Comphance Officer, Superintendent,
or other District officialempleyee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30)-calendar days after the conduct occurs
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher,
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialempleyee, either orally or in writing, about any
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance
Officer/designee within two (2) business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the
parties reasonably informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process.

All formal complaints must |nclude the foIIowmg information to the extent known+t—l5-a¥a|4able the
identity of the Respondentindivie g 2 2
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detalled descr|pt|on of the facts upon Wh|ch the complalnt is

based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by
the Complainant.

If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation,
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or
the Respondentalleged-harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees with hisfheragreementto-the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance
Officer may still take whatever actions deemed sfhe-deems-appropriate in consultation with the
Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/-e+a-designee will
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive
conduct/harassment/retaliation. (-TheA Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to
do so by the Compliance Officer.

Slmultaneously, the Compllance Offlcer will inform the Respondent that a formal mdiwdual—aueged-te

that—a:complaint has been received. The Respondent wiII be informed about the nature of the
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including
the Board's Anti-Harassment Policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5)Jbusiness days.

Packet page 141 of 271



| Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/-era-designee will attempt
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen
| (15)-business days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;
B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/-e#the-designee shall prepare and deliver
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful

harassment/retaliation of the Complainant. Cemplainant-has-beensubjected-to-unlawful
harassment--The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the

circumstances.aeluding-the-ages-and-maturity-levels-of these-invelved: In determining if
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be
used. The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board's legal counsel before finalizing the report to
the Superintendent.

Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business-days of receiving the report of the
Compliance Officer/-erthe-designee, the Superintendent must either issue a written final-decision
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation.

| A copy of the Superintendent's firatwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the
Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)

| business-days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

[} The decision-of-the Superi I Il be final

E[X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business-days of the
party's histherreceipt of the Superintendent's-final written decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representative within twenty (20) business-days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's

Packet page 142 of 271



disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each-cencerned party within ten (10) business-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

ERP-OFOPTIONE]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Tthird
Pparty alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the
right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with
this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee.

[-X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-deseribed
meetings/hearings.

The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution oftheconiplaint shalllnet be impaired by
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of@&¢ciilaction in courtoUsesof this
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of otherrémedies.

Privacy/Confidentiality

The-Seheel District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the
Respondentindividual{s)against-whom-the-complaintisfiled, and the witnesses as much as possible,
consistent with the Board's legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform
with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this policy and
related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted by law.
Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Addltlonallv, the Respondent must be prowded the
Complainant's |dent|tv i stk 2

During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer or-hisfher designee will instruct all
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/helearns-erthatsthe

provides during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment.
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter.-ineluding-the-ages-and-maturitylevels-of these
invelved: In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies,
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Packet page 143 of 271



Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisteg icipate

participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or : pse laws and/or this
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided o g her person in the

imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/om@ther approp

Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be fiIeMdin_g_t‘ternal Mint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under JztAmﬁdm’f the U.e“tates Constitution does

not constitute retaliation prohibited u is policy.

" v ‘ -0 o 3t 3 dund age-of eig 8}-who has
suffered or faces a threat of suffering ashysical or mental wound, disability or condition of a nature that
reasonably indicatesabuse or neglectiof a ehild student to immediately report that knowledge or
suspicion to the properauthorities; which must include protective services; for students under the age
of 18 is children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is adult protective services
agency. See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information.

to-thecounty-childrensservicesageney—If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the
Compliance Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably
indicates abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance

with State law and Board Policy.

Any reports made to a-eeunty-children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency or
to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and

Packet page 144 of 271



responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent.

Education and Training

In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent-or designee shall
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment
in general, will be age and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retentighiofall’records that mustbé
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy;

C. anydocumentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage
of the incident);

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes

whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

Packet page 145 of 271



policy;

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

J. documentation of any supportive iterim-measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or the Respondent, complainants-and/or-the-alleged-perpetrators,-including

no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-ef Conduct);

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

Packet page 146 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law — e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 201820214

Legal

Titles VI and VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA)
29 U.S.C. 621 et seq, Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

42 U.S.C. 1983

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act

29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq.

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et segq.

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006
National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis — May 2008

Packet page 147 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update Revised ANTI-HARASSMENT
Code: po3362

Adopted: August 21, 2012

3362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT
General Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board.

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and #ransgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information
(collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to
as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well

as £l hird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated,
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action.

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of
the following prohibited acts:

Packet page 148 of 271



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation.

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment.

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges
comprises part of one's supervisory duties.

Definitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal
resolution to the alleged harassment.

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment,
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution
to the alleged harassment.

School District community means students and BeardDistrict employees (i.e., administrators, and
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board.

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property).

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Beard-efficeSchool District is open for normal operating hours,
Monday — Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

Bullying

Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or
work performance or participation; and may involve:

A. teasing;

Packet page 149 of 271



B. threats;

C. intimidation;

D. stalking;

E. cyberstalking;

F. cyberbullying;

G. physical violence;

H. theft;

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment;
J.  public humiliation; or

K. destruction of property.

Harassment

“Harassment= means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written,
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that:

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to
his/her property;

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance,
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.
Sexual Harassment

Pursuanttelor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,-and
Fitle- X-of-the-Educational Amendmentsof1972; "sexual harassment" is defined as:

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature, when:

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity.

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or
educational decisions affecting such individual.

Packet page 150 of 271



C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an
educational program or activity.

Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the
same or eppesiteanother gender.

Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed
solely by Policy 2266.

Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms.
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations.
B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact.

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion,
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances.

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions-ef-a-sexual-nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds
or whistles; obscene telephone calls.

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich
may embarrass or offend individuals.

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures.

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities.

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own
sexual activities or sexual history.

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic
relationship.

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks,
or groin.

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.

Packet page 151 of 271



L. Inthe context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work
environment.

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School
District community into a student's personal space and personal life.

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.

Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits,
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive
employment or educational environment.

Race/Color Harassment

Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working,
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets,
and/or negative references relative to racial customs.

Religious (Creed) Harassment

Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves
religious slurs.

National Origin/Ancestry Harassment

Packet page 152 of 271



Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs.

Disability Harassment

Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisablingcendition, such as negative comments
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic
information.

Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers

The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s)
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”):

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Packet page 153 of 271



Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1300
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

bmarcel@washtenawisd.org

(E-mail Address)

Packet page 154 of 271



formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and
Respondent. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations
by a designee. All BeardDistrict employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to
them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident.

Any BeardDistrict employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance
with this policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days.
Additionally, any BeardDistrict employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to
intervene to stop the harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in
which case the staff member should immediately notify other BeardDistrict employees and/or local
law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s)
or designee must contact the Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's
parents/guardians if the Complainant is under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of
the Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing.

Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct

Members of the School District community;~which-ineludes-all-staffand-thirdparties along with Third

Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator,
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives
such a reporteemplaint shall file it with the Distriet’s-Anti-Harassment-Compliance Officer within two
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at-histherfirst-convenience:

Members of the School District community erthird-partiesand Third Parties who believe they have
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint,
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scemplaining

individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential
witnesses are available.

If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with
Policy 5517.01 — Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying,
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theene-ofthe-Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall

suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal
informed of the status of the Policy 3362 investigation and provide the Principalkimther with a copy of

Packet page 155 of 271



the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process.

Packet page 156 of 271



Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3362 F1)

Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny employee or other member of the School District community
or Third Partythird-party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they havesthe-has been
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehisther complaint through the procedures
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims
of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are
substantiated.either-the-informal-orformal-procedures-as-de ibed-bele rthera-proce 0

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty
(30) ealendar-days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) busiress-days of the complaint being received).

The informalandfermal-procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
("EEOC").

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and
to investigate-and-facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint

Packet page 157 of 271



procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third-party-who-believes
sthe-has beenunlawfully harassed-orretaliated-against. This informal procedure is not required as a
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those
circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it.-and-will

behevethat—theyhave—been—unlawﬂ#y#massed—e#e&ﬂatedagamst may proceed |mmed|ately to the

formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complainants involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However-all-complaints-of

As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan-individual-feels-that

stheis being unlawfully harassed-ands/heisable-and feelssafe doing so, the individual should tell or
otherwise inform the Respondent that the aIIeged harassmg-ha%asser—t-hat—t-he conduct is unwelcome
and must stop. 2

vielence-The Comglalnan eemplatmng—mdmdua# shouId address the aIIegedIy harassmg conduct as
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals

when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do
so. A ComplainantAn-iadividual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform-the-harasserof-hisfhercomplaintis-not
prohibited-from-etherwise-filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain

types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the
use of the informal complaint process.

A Ceomplainant-individual-wheo-believes-s/he-has-been-unlawfully-harassed may make an informal

complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2)
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level
employee.

All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an
informal resolution as described below-en-hisfherown, or appoint another individual to facilitate an
informal resolution.

The Board's SeheelBistriet's-informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending

upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual-claiming-unlawful
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following:

Packet page 158 of 271



A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the
behavior to the Respondentaleged-harasser.

B. Distributing a copy of thistheanti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individualwhese-behavieris

bei oned worl I

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between-the

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance
Officer/-erdesignee is directedwill-exercise-his/herautherity to attempt to resolve all informal
complaints within fifteen (15)-business-days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant
isParties-whe-are dissatisfied with the results-efthe-informal complaint process, the Complainant may
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if-the-individual-elects-to-file-aformal

complaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

The ComplamantAn—mdmduaLwhe—beheve&sfhe—ha&beenéubjeete#eeﬂemwe

Y : ant—; may file a formal
complamt elther orally orin wrltlng, W|th a teacher, Pr|nC|paI the Compllance Officer, Superintendent,
or other District empleyeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealendardays after the conduct occurs
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher,
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialempleyee, either orally or in writing, about any
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance
Officer/designee within two (2) business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably
informed of the status of the investigation and the deeisier-decision-making process.

All formal complaints must |nclude the foIIowmg information to the extent knownu—rs—avaﬂable the
identity of the Respondentindivie 3¢ 2 Ara-ar z
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detalled descrlptlon of the facts upon wh|ch the complamt is based
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the
Complainant.

Packet page 159 of 271



If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation,
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or
the Respondentaleged-harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhisfheragreementte the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance
Officer may still take whatever actions deemedsthe-deem appropriate in consultation with the
Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/-era-designee will
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The{3-A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to
do so by the Compliance Officer.

Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formal

thata complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including
the Board's Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business-days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/-exa-designee will attempt
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;
B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/-e+the-designee shall prepare and deliver
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful

harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantCemplainant-has-been-subjected-to-unlawful-harassment.

The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances.;

including-the-ages-and-maturity-levels-ef these-invelved: In determining if discriminatory harassment or

Packet page 160 of 271



retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. {3-The Compliance Officer may
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent.

Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) busiress-days of receiving the report of the
Compliance Officer/erthe-designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final-written decision
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation.
A copy of the Superintendent's finalwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the
Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)
business-days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

[} The decision-of-the Superi lant shall be final.

oR

[X 1A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) busiress-days of the
party'shisther receipt of the Superintendent's finalwritten-decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representative within twenty (20) business-days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each eenecerned-party within ten (10) business-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

END-OFOPTIONS]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third
Partythird-party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its
designee.

[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described
meetings/hearings.

The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.

Privacy/Confidentiality

The Seheel-District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant,

the Respondentindividual{s)-against-whom-the-complaint-isfiled, and the witnesses as much as

Packet page 161 of 271



possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted
by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be
provided the Complainant's identity. All-Complainantsproceeding through the formalinvestigati

During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/-er-histher-designee will instruct all
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or providedsfhelearns-erthats/he

provides during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment.
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter-relading-theagesand-maturity-tevelsefthese
invelved—In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies,
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy.

Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

Packet page 162 of 271



The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child-Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct

State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a ehitd student

schoolregardless-ofage-who has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound,
disability or condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately
report that knowledge or suspicion to the proper authorities, which must include protective services; for
students under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is
adult protective services agency. See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information.
county-childrensservicesageney-If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance
Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates
abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with
State law and Board Policy.

Any reports made to a-eeunty-children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency
or to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and
responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent.

Education and Training

In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent-or designee shall
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment
in general, will be age and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

Packet page 163 of 271



any narratives that memorialize oral-reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy;

any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

written witness statements;
narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage of
the incident);

notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

policy;

dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

documentation of any supportive interim-measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant
and/or the Respondent,complainants-and/forthe-alleged-perpetrators; including no contact

orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-ef Conduct);

. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the alleged
discrimination or harassment;

Packet page 164 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law — e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 201820214

Legal

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA)
29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

42 U.S.C. 1983

Packet page 165 of 271



42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act

29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq.

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq.

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006
National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis — May 2008

Packet page 166 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Section:  Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT

Code: po4362

4362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT
General Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board.

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and #ransgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information
(collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as
unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well

as £Third pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated,
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action.

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy

Packet page 167 of 271



The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of
the following prohibited acts:

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation.

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment.

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges
comprises part of one's supervisory duties.

Definitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal
resolution to the alleged harassment.

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment,
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution
to the alleged harassment.

School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and
professional and support staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board.

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property).

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Beard-efficeSchool District is open for normal operating hours,
Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

Bullying

Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or
work performance or participation; and may involve:

Packet page 168 of 271



A. teasing;

B. threats;

C. intimidation;

D. stalking;

E. cyberstalking;

F. cyberbullying;

G. physical violence;

H. theft;

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment;

J.  public humiliation; or

K. destruction of property.
Harassment

Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written,
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that:

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to
his/her property;

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance,
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.
Sexual Harassment

Pursuanttelor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,-and
Fitle- X-of the-Educational Amendments-of1972; sexual harassment is defined as:

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature, when:

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity.

Packet page 169 of 271



B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or
educational decisions affecting such individual.

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an
educational program or activity.

Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the
same or eppesiteanother gender.

Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed
solely by Policy 2266.

Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms.
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations.
B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact.

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion,
classroom work or assighments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances.

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions-ef-a-sexual-nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds
or whistles; obscene telephone calls.

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich
may embarrass or offend individuals.

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures.

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities.

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own
sexual activities or sexual history.

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic
relationship.

Packet page 170 of 271



J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks,
or groin.

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.

L. Inthe context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work
environment.

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School
District community into a student's personal space and personal life.

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.

Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits,
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive
employment or educational environment.

Race/Color Harassment

Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working,
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets,
and/or negative references relative to racial customs.

Religious (Creed) Harassment
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with

the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit

Packet page 171 of 271



from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves
religious slurs.

National Origin/Ancestry Harassment

Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs.

Disability Harassment

Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisablingcendition, such as negative comments
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic
information.

Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers

The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s)
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”):

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

Packet page 172 of 271



1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

{Name}

Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

-(734) 994-8100 extension 1300
(Telephone Number)

-1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

_bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the
School District's web site (X ) and:

A. (X)in the parent and staff handbooks.

The Compliance Officer(s) () is (-X) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply
with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a
prompt and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment.

The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular scheelfwerk-hours-business days as
described above to discuss concerns related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other
members of the District community, and third parties who seek support or advice when informing
another individual about unwelcome conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in
those instances where concerns have not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all
parties are in agreement to participate in an informal process.

Packet page 173 of 271



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official. Upon receipt of a report of alleged
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and
Respondent. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident.

Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct

Members of the School District community;~which-ineludes-allstaffand-thirdparties along with Third

Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator,
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives
such a reporteemplaint shall file it with the District’s-Anti-Harassment-Compliance Officer within two
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at-hisfherfirst convenience.

Members of the School District community erthird-partiesand Third Parties who believe they have
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint,
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scemplaining

individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential
witnesses are available.

If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with
Policy 5517.01 — Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying,
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theene-ofthe-Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall

suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal
informed of the status of the Policy 4362 investigation and provide the Principalkimsther with a copy of
the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process.

e Cormoli o

Packet page 174 of 271



Packet page 175 of 271



Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4362 F1)

Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities, anyAay employee or other member of the School District community
or Third Partythird-party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he-has been
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehisfher complaint through the procedures
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims
of harassment or retallatlon and a process for rendering a deC|5|on regarding whether the charges are
substantlated ai 2 ed-be h :

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty
(30) ealendar-days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business-days of the complaint being received).

The informal-andfermal-procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
(EEOC).

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and

to investigate-and-facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third-party-whe-believes
sthe-has-been-unlawfully-harassed-erretaliated-against- This informal procedure is not required as a

precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those

Packet page 176 of 271



circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it.-and-will

The ComplainantEmple

beheve%hat—theyhave—been—unlawﬂ#y#massed—e#e&ﬂatedagamst may proceed im medlately to the

formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District

community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated. However-all-complaints-of

As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan-individual-feels-that
stheis being unlawfully harassed-ands/heisable-and feelssafe doing so, the individual should tell or
otherwise inform the Respondent that the aIIeged harassmg-ha%asser—t-hat—t-he conduct is unwelcome
and must stop. Suek 2 : g
vielence-The Comglalnan eemplatmng—mdmdua# shouId address the aIIegedIy harassmg conduct as
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do
so. A ComplainantAn-iadividual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform-the-harasserof-histhercomplaintis-nhot
prohibited-from-etherwise-filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain

types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the
use of the informal complaint process.

A Ceomplainant-individual-wheo-believes-s/he-has-been-unlawfully-harassed may make an informal

complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2)
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level
employee.

All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an
informal resolution as described below-en-hisfherown, or appoint another individual to facilitate an
informal resolution.

The Board's SeheelBistriet's-informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending

upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual-claimingunlawful
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following:

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the
behavior to the Respondentaleged-harasser.

Packet page 177 of 271



B. Distributing a copy of thistheanti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individualwhese-behavioris

bei onedworl e

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between-the

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance
Officer/-erdesignee is directedwill-exercise-hisfherautherity to attempt to resolve all informal
complaints within fifteen (15) business-days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant
isParties-whe-are dissatisfied with the results-efthe-informal complaint process, the Complainant may
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if-the-individual-elects-to-file-aformal

complaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

The ComplamantAn—mdmduaLwhe—beheve&sfhe—ha&beenéubjeete#eeﬂemwe

! - g ant; may file a formal
complamt e|ther orally orin wrltlng, W|th a teacher, Pr|nC|paI the Compllance Officer, Superintendent,
or other District empleyeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealendardays after the conduct occurs
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher,
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialempleyee, either orally or in writing, about any
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance
Officer/designee within two (2) business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably
informed of the status of the investigation and the deeisienr-decision-making process.

All formal complaints must mclude the foIIowmg information to the extent knownu—rs—avaﬂable the
identity of the Respondentindivie 3¢ 2 Ara-ar z
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detalled descrlptlon of the facts upon WhICh the complalnt is based
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the
Complainant.

If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the

Packet page 178 of 271



Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation,
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or
the Respondentaleged-harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhisfheragreementte the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance
Officer may still take whatever actions deemedsthe-deem appropriate in consultation with the
Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/-era-designee will
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The{3-A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to
do so by the Compliance Officer.

Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividualalleged-toe

a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business-days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/-exa-designee will attempt
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;
B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/-e+the-designee shall prepare and deliver
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful
harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantComplainant-has-beensubjectedtounlawful harassment.
The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances.;
including-the-ages-and-maturity-levels-ef theseinvelved: In determining if discriminatory harassment or
retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. {}-The Compliance Officer may
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent.

Packet page 179 of 271



Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) busiress-days of receiving the report of the
Compliance Officer/erthe-designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final decision regarding
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of
the Superintendent's finatwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the
Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)
business-days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

[} The decision-of the Superi lant shall be final

OR

[X 1A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business-days of the
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's finalwritten-decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representative within twenty (20) business-days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each eenecerned-party within ten (10) business-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

[END OF OPTIONS]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third
Partythird-party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its
designee.

[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described
meetings/hearings.

The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.

Privacy/Confidentiality

The Seheel-District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant,
the Respondentindividual{s)-against-whom-the-complaint-isfiled, and the witnesses as much as

possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted

Packet page 180 of 271



by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be
provided the Complainant's identity. Al-Complainants-proceeding-through-the-formalinvestigation

During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/-er-his/herdesignee will instruct all
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or providedsfhelearns-erthats/he

provides during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment.
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies,
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy.

Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Packet page 181 of 271



Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child-Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct

State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a ehitd-student

schoolregardless-efage-who has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound,
disability or condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately
report that knowledge or suspicion to the proper authorities, which must include protective services; for
students under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is
adult protective services agency. See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information.eeunty-childrens
services-ageney- If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance Officer or a
designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates abuse or
neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with State law and
Board Policy.

Any reports made to a esunty-children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency
or to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and
responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent.

Education and Training

In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent-or designee shall
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment
in general, will be age and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/ statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/
complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy;

Packet page 182 of 271



C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

D. written witness statements;
E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage
of the incident);

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

policy;

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

J. documentation of any supportive iterim-measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or the Respondent,complainants-and/orthe-alleged-perpetratoers; including

no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-ef Conduct);

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

Packet page 183 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law —e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 201820234

Legal

Titles VI and VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.
20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA)
29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

42 U.S.C. 1983

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act
29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.
29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

Packet page 184 of 271



42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq.

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq.

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006
National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008

Packet page 185 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 Revised ANTI-
HARASSMENT

Code: po5517

Adopted: May 22, 2012

5517 - ANTI-HARASSMENT
General Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board.

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color,
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as
authorized by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic
information (collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter
referred to as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well
as Third Partiesthird-parties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board
will investigate all allegations of unlawful harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is
substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and
remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action.

Packet page 186 of 271



Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of
the following prohibited acts:

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation.

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment.
C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of
unlawful harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating harassment charges

comprises part of one's supervisory duties.

Definitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined h s not defi hall be

construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alle en subje unlawful
harassment, regardless of whether the person file rmal c torisp an informal

resolution to the alleged harassment.

gag awful harassment,
regardless of whether the Reporting Part oris seeking an informal resolution

guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
thletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or
other individuals who come in contact with members of
elated events/activities (whether on or off District property).

Day(s): Unless expressly rwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s the Board-officeSchool District is open for normal operating hours,
Monday — Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

Bullying

Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and
the bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work

Packet page 187 of 271



environment; cause discomfort or humiliation, or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or
work performance or participation; and may involve:

A. teasing;

B. threats;

C. intimidation;

D. stalking;

E. cyberstalking;

F. cyberbullying;

G. physical violence;

H. theft;

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment;

J.  public humiliation; or

K. destruction of property.
Harassment

Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written,
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that:

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to
his/her property;

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance,
opportunities, or benefits, oran employee's work performance; or

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.
Sexual Harassment

Pursuanttelor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964-and
Fitle- X-of the-Educational Amendmentsof1972, sexual harassment is defined as:

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature, when:

Packet page 188 of 271



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity.

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or
educational decisions affecting such individual.

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an
educational program or activity.

Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the
same or anothereppesite gender.

Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination'onithé Basis ofiSexiEducation
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall'’be addressed
solely by Policy 2266.

Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this pelicy may take a variety of forms.
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations.
B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact.

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion,
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular
programs,activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances.

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions-efa-sexual-nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds
or whistles; obscene telephone calls.

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich
may embarrass or offend individuals.

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures.

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities.

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own
sexual activities or sexual history.

Packet page 189 of 271



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggests the desire for a romantic
relationship.

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks,
or groin.

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School
District community into a student's personal space and personal life.

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.

Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits,
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive
employment or educational environment, or such that it is intended to, or has the effect of, denying or
limiting a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the educational program or activities.

Race/Color Harassment

Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working,
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets,
and/or negative references relative to racial customs.

Religious (Creed) Harassment

Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is

Packet page 190 of 271



directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves
religious slurs.

National Origin/Ancestry Harassment

Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs.

Disability Harassment

Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisablingcenditien, such as negative comments
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic
information.

Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer$§

The following individual{s)'shall'serve as the'District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s)
(hereinafter, “the €Compliance Officer(s)”):

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103

Packet page 191 of 271



(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org

(E-mail Address)

F

Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1300
(Telephone Number)

-1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103

(Office Address)

-bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Packet page 192 of 271



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official. Upon receipt of a report of alleged
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and
Respondent. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident,

accordance with this
ays. Additionally, any

Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harass
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Office
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention da3
member should immediately notify other Board employees an
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Offi ig 0 ntact the
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainag ;
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to ag

alleged wrongdoing.

Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct

Students and other members of the School District community alon‘h Third Partiesand-third
parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to a teacher, administrator,
supervisor or other District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes severe,
pervasive, or persistent. Any teacher, administrator, supervisor, or other District employee or official
who receives such a rpor teomplaint shall file it with the-Distriet's-Anti-Harassment Compliance
Officer WItMZ) days of rece_e repo‘rassment HersistherSrstconvenience
withintwe{2}-school days.

Members of the School District communitylnd Third Parties, which includes students, or third parties
who believe they have been unlawfully harassed are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process
that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect
the Complainant'scemplainingindividual's employment or participation in educational or extra-
curricular programs. While there are no time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this
policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct
occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available.

If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with
Policy 5517.01 — Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the
reported misconduct may have created a hostile learning environment and may have constituted
unlawful discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of
bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theene-ofthe-Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers
who shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves
Sexual Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the
grievance process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates

Packet page 193 of 271



the allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall

suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal
informed of the status of Policy 5517 investigation and provide the Principalkisa/her with a copy of the
resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process.

Packet page 194 of 271



Investigation and Complaint Procedure

Except for Sexual'Harassment that is.covered by Policy.2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny student who believes that they havesfhe-has been subjected
to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehisther complaint through the procedures described
below. The formalleomplaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims of
harassment or retaliation and a processfor rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are
cubsiontoie eitherthe-informal orformal proceduresas-described-be —Further,aprocessfe

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, time lines are
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a
complaint within thirty (30)-ealendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15}-busiress days of the complaint being
received).

Packet page 195 of 271



The informalandfoermalprocedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of a
student to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States Department
of Education Office for Civil Rights.

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and to
investigateand facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student who believes s/he has been unlawfully
harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a
formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those circumhstances where the
Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in.it.

Students who believe that they have been unlawfully harassed may initiate their complaint through this
informal complaint process, but are not required to do so. The informal process is only available in those
circumstances where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to
participate in the informal process.

The ComplainantStudents-whe-believe-that they-have-been-unlawfully-harassed-orretaliated may

proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the
informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the
formal complaint process.

All complaints involving a District employée; any other adult’ memberof the School District

community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated. However-al-complaints-of

As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe instudentfeelsthats/heis
being-unlawfully-harassed-and-s/he-is-able-and-feelssafe doing so, the individual should tell or
otherwise inform the Respondent that the allegedlv harassmgha;asser—t-ha-t—t-he conduct is unwelcome
and must stop. Sueh : n-shouldn g i
welenee#he—eemplalmngmdmdualThe Complamant should address the aIIegedIy harassmg conduct
as soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel
individuals when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual-if
requested to do so. A ComplainantAn-individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach
the Respondent about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform-the-harasserofhisther
complaintis-not-prohibited-from-otherwisefiling an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with

regard to certain types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may
advise against the use of the informal complaint process.

A ComplainantA-studentwho believesshe/he has beenunlawfully harassed may make an informal

complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator in the
school the student attends; 2) to the Superintendent or other District-level employee; and/or 3) directly
to one of the Compliance Officers.

Packet page 196 of 271



All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an
informal resolution as described below-en-histherewn, or appoint another individual to facilitate an
informal resolution.

The Board'sSehoeeol-Bistrict-s informal complaint procedure is designed to provide students who believe
they are being unlawfully harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their
concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantstudent

claiming-unlawful-harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of

the following:

A. Advising the Complainantstudent about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the
behavior to the Respondent.alleged-harasser

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individualwhese-behavioris

bei oned worl e

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation
between the Complainant and the Respondent tesWiork out a mutualkesolution.between-the

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance
Officer/-erdesignee is directedwill-exercise-his/herautherity to attempt to resolve all informal
complaints within fifteen (15) business-days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant
isParties-whe-are dissatisfied with the+results-efthe informal complaint process, the Complainant may
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the
Complainant, from the.outset, elects tofile a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations
are not appropriate for resolution thfough the informal process,f-the-student-elects-to-file-aformal

complaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

The ComplamantA—studeanhe—beheveH#he-has-beenﬁub}eete#&e#mmve
z irant; may file a formal
complalnt elther orally orin wrltlng, W|th a teacher, prlnC|paI or other Dlstr|ct employee at the
student’s school, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, or another District officialemployee who
works at another school or at the district level. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful
harassment and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however,
individuals should make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealendar-days after the
conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant
informs a teacher, principal, or other District officialempleyee at the student’s school, Superintendent,
or other District employee, either orally or in writing, about any complaint of harassment or retaliation,

Packet page 197 of 271



that employee must report such information to the Compliance Officer/-e+designee within two (2)
business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process.

All formal complaints must |nclude the foIIowmg information to the extent known+t-+s-a¥a+lable the
identity of the Respondentindivie g 2 0
eend-uet-ﬁha#assmen#ﬁetalat-ien a detalled descr|pt|on of the facts upon wh|ch the complalnt is based
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the
Complainant.

If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation,
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or
the Respondentalleged-harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/heragreementto the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he-deem appropriate in consultation with the
Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/-era-designee will
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive
conduct/harassment/retaliation. (}-AThe Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to
do so by the Compliance Officer.

Slmultaneously, the Compllance Offlcer will inform the Respondent that a formalmdmdual—al-leged—te

a complaint has been received. The Respondent wiII be informed about the nature of the aIIegations and
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business-days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/-era-designee will attempt
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;

B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

Packet page 198 of 271



D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/-e+the-designee shall prepare and deliver
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful

harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.-Complainant-has-beensubjected-to-unlawful
harassment: The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the

circumstances.;heluding-the-ages-and-maturitylevels-ef-these-invelved: In determining if
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. {
}The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the
Superintendent.

Absent extenuating circumstances, within ten (10)-sehee! days of receiving the report of the Compliance
Officer/-erthe-designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of
the Superintendent's final decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within ten (10)
sehoel-days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent shall issue a final
written decision as described above.

[} The decision-of the Superi lontohall be final

OR

£IX] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business-days of the
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's-final decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each-cencerned party within ten (10) busiress-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

ERP-OFOPTIONE]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the student alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation
pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation
conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed
appropriate by the Board or its designee.

[-X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described
meetings/hearings.

Packet page 199 of 271



The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.

Privacy/Confidentiality

The Seheeol-District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the complainant,

the Respondentindividual{s)-against-whom-the-complaint-isfiled, and the witnesses as much as
possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this
policy and its related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must

be provuded the Complamant s |dent|tv AH—Gemplamants—pmeeedmg—thmugh—the—fennaLmvesﬂgaﬂon

During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/-erhisfherdesignee will instruct all
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns-erthats/he

provides during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment.
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies,
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its reoccurrence, and remedy its effects.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this

Packet page 200 of 271



policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy.

Retaliation against a person from making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
imposition of disciplinary sanction/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child-Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct

State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a student under
the age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the school
regardless of age has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or
condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a ehitd-student to immediately report
that knowledge or suspicion to the to the proper authoritieseeunty-chitdrens-servicesageney. For
students under the age of 18 is children's protective serviges agency; for students 18 and over is adult
protective services agency. If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance Officer
or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates abuse or
neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with State law and
Board Policy.

Any reports made to a county children's services agency, adult service agency, or to local law
enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and responsibility to
continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a designee may
work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no event shall the
harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without good cause after
consultation with the Superintendent.

Education and Training

In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent-or designee shall
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where
appropriate. All training, as well as information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment in
general, will be age and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

Packet page 201 of 271



The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged
violation of this policy;

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

D. written witness statements;
E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage
of the incident);

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

policy;

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

J. documentation of any supportiveinterim measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant
and/or the Respondent,complainants-and/orthe-alleged-perpetrators; including no contact

orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

Packet page 202 of 271



L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-ef Conduct);

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law — e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an

investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 201820234

Legal

Packet page 203 of 271



Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA)

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

U.S.C. 1983

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act
29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.
29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq.

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq.

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006
National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008

Packet page 204 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
Code: pol422

Adopted: New Policy

1422 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race,.colo ional origin, sex (including
sexual orientation and tkansgender identity), disability, age, reli w t, marital or family
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any ot ; ad categor
(collectively, Protected Classes), in its programs and activities, ing opportunities.

= QO
-.

Packet page 205 of 271



District Compliance Officers

The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’'s Compliance Officers (also known
as Civil Rights Coordinators) (hereinafter referred to as the COs).

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Name}

AssociateSuperintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1300
(Telephone Number)

1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann‘Arbok, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School
District's web site (X) and:

A. (X)in the staff handbooks.

Packet page 206 of 271



The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to cemply with applicable Federal and
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to addrgss in’a prompt and equitable manner
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation of denial©f equahaccess. The COs shall
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title || of thesAmdericans with Disabilities Act (as

amended), Title VI and Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, W

of 1972 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amendéd), and the Age Discrimination in

Employment Act of 1975 is prowded to staff members and the general pubhc—(—)—A-ny—seet—tens—ef—t—he

&peeéc—te%ms—sheﬂd—be—ehnm-nated#em—sueh—een#aets— A copy of each of the Acts
and regulations on which this notice is based eris lable u rom the 0 based-may-be
¢ ¢ in-the CO’s office.

Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation

Employees are requig“@ged‘pt-ly—report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or

retaliation to an admlnlstrator superwsor or other District- Ievel off|C|aI so that the Bea%d—Dlstrlct may
address the conduct. Any

(—})-sehee‘days.—All members of the ScheelDistrict community must report incidents of

discrimination/retaliation that are reportedto them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2)
businessdays of learning of the incident/eonduct.

Employees who believe'theyahavedieen unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize
the complaint process set forthibelow. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not
adversely affect the Complam complaining-individual's-employment. While there are no time limits
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are
available.

The COs will be available during regular scheelwork-heurs-business days as defined above to discuss

concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportseemplaints of unlawful
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party,
or received reports that are initially filed with another Beard District employee.visitor-to-the-District;

Packet page 207 of 271



: on); Upon receipt of
areport of alﬁged dlscrlmmatlon/retallatlon, the CO will contact the Complamant and begin either an
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any-persen
whe-files-a-complaint: In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee.

ation is obligated, in
two (2) business days.
ination/retaliation is

Any Beard District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimina
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one
Additionally, any BeardDistrict employee who observes an act
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumsts
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the
designee must contact the Complainantempleyee within two (2) b i herof the
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing.

Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex inE
to have beenAr

any employee who alleges
to unlawful discrimination or

vful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are

owever, individuals are encouragedshewld-make-every

days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal

The procedures set forth | are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to
pursue a complaint of unlawft crimination or retaliation with the United States Department of
Education Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstep-guickly inappropriate behavior
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or
retaliation.believes-s/he-has-beenunlawfully discriminated-orretaliated-against. This informal
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only
available in those circumstances where the [Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties{the

Packet page 208 of 271



diserimination) agree to participate in it.

The ComplainantEmp 2 : :
against may proceed |mmed|ately to the formal complalnt process, and t-he—Respenelenat—and
€0Osindividuals who participate in the informal procedure may request that the informal process be
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated.

As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable :

individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it‘eccurs as possible. The COs are
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals whien taking this initial step onto intervene
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A Complainant: An-in

unwilling to directlv approach the Respondent about thed

ether-mse-ﬁhng an mformal ora formal complalnt In addltlon with regard to certain types of unlawful

discrimination {e.g., sex discrimination), -sueh-as-s.al-dﬁc-gm:he CO may advise against the

use of the informal complaint process.

dividua o-k 3 awfully-d 3 A Complainant
who alleges unlawful discrimination ion may make an mformal complamt either orally orin
writing: (1) to an administratoes;.(2) directly to'one of the COsyand/or (3) to the Superintendent.

All informal comiplaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal
resolution asfdescribed below, or appointanotherindiidual to facilitate an informal resolution.

The School District's mformal complaint grocedure is desuzned to prowde the Complainant-employees
with a range of options aimed
at bringing about@ prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint

and the wishes of the Colmplainant, individual-claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation; informal

resolution may involve,‘but hot bedimited to, one or more of the following:

A. Advising the Compla‘:ndmdual about how to communlcate h+5,lher—concerns to
the Respondent.perse s-atleged gagee i ator aliatory-beh

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 1422 — Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as
areminderio the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual

whose-behaviorisbeing-guestioned

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the

Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between-the-individual

Packet page 209 of 271



While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or
designee is directedwill-exercise-his/herautherity to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within
fifteen (15) businessdays of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Rarties-who-are
dissatisfied with theresults-of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, iflene of the parties requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to thedormal cemplaint process, or if

the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal com >ort liance Officer(s)
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolutio ough t al process, individual

elects-to-file-aformal-complaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

A Complainant Ani

elther oraIIv or in writing, W|th a prlnC|paI the Co, Superlntendent or other District official-level
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of'unlawful discrimination and retaliation,
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealend_r‘gays aftefthe conduct occurs. If a Complainant
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other DistriMither orally or in writing,
about any complaint of discrimination/retgliation, that employee must report such information to the
CO/designee within two (2) businessdays.

Throughout the coursesofithesprocess, the COshould keep the parties reasonably informed of the status
of the investigationfand the decision-making proeess.

All formal complaints must mcIude the followmg information to the extent knowm-t—ts—a-vallable the

; @ detalled description ofthe facts upon wh|ch the complaint is
ere, and what occt-:i), a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by

based (i.e., w
the Complainant.

If the Complainant is unwilling or uhable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the CO shall ask forsuch details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the
reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the_ Respondent.
person-who-allegedly-engagedinthe-misconduct:- In making such a determination, the CO should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhistheragreementte the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still
take whatever actions deemeds/he-deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent.

Packet page 210 of 271



Within two (2) busiressdays of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful
discrimination/retaliation.

Slmultaneouslv, the CO WI|| inform the Respondent that a formalmdmdual—aﬂeged—te—have—enggged—m

: OFY-C aliatorycone : : ata complaint
has been recelved The Respondent W|II be informed about the nature of the allegatlons and provided
with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 1422 - Non-
Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the COora d pt to complete an
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation i i days of
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;

B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who ma N3 ve any information
relevant to the allegations;

At the conclusion of the investigation; : 1 epare and deliver a written report
to the Superintenden 0 i

on or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence
with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report

in five (5) businessdays of receiving the report of the CO or the
designee, the Superintende sither issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges
have been substantiated or re st further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)
businessdays. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentCemplainant-was-subjected-to-unlawful
diserimination/retaliation,sthe must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and

Packet page 211 of 271



prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable,
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation.

[} The decision-of-the Superi lont shall be final.

OR

[X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) busiressdays of the
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's finakdecision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet withihe concernediparties and their
representatives within twenty (20) businessdays of the receipt6f such an‘appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within tenf{10) businessdays of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

ERP-OFOPTIONE]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a cemplaint or report ofiunlawful
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board alsg resenves the right t6 have the formal
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in acéordance with this policy or in such other
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its\designees

[X] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at/theifl Bis/herowin cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings.

The right of a per. a bro : esolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person’s p iling of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of ges wi 2 z filing of a civil action in court. Use of this

internal ¢ : isi pursuit of other remedies.Fherightofa-person
SHFePARA 2o letre sl eeR-6 complain Ae hot-be-impaired-t Ae-{ae oR’s-pu THw.

Privacy/Confidentiality

The SeheolDistrict will employ.all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must
be provided the Complainant's identity.All-Complainantsproceedingthrough-theformalinvestigation

During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as

Packet page 212 of 271



part of an investigation is expected nette to not-disclose to £#Third pParties any information thatlis

learned or provided sthelearns-and/erprevides-during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination /retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involvediin the matter. In those cases
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, theaBoatd may ednsider whether the
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordancedwith otherBoard policies, consistent
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action haslbeen taken against an.employee, all
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintend@nt'shalhbe reasonably caledlated to
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect.

Retaliation

discrimination/retaliation or participates as a,wit i estiga prohibited. Neither the
Board nor any other person may intimida g 2 ori ewith any individual because
the person opposed any act or practice =
because that individual made a repo int§ ifi sisted or participated or refused
to participate in any iR.an invest ) ing garing under those laws and/or this
policy, or becaus i ed, aided or encouraged any other person in the
exercise or enj i ted by those laws and/or this policy.

inst a person for maki port oerimination, filing a formal complaint, or
investigation or me is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
jnary sanctions/co ences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Formal complaints‘&taliatk‘/ be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protec nder the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Packet page 213 of 271



Education and Training

In support of this policy, the Beard District promotes preventative educational measures to create
greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or -designee-shall provide
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age
and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

All individuals charged wi sstigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored informa : onic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an i o m include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievan atements/r nses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral repor i com ats/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violatio i C\

any documentation that memojgial ict personnel

related to the investigation
eged violatio s policy;

Jeo, or digital recordings of witnhess interviews/statements;

hat directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
., hot after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage

notes or summari contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed'into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this
policy;

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a

Packet page 214 of 271



result of a violation of this policy;

J. documentation of any supportive-interim measures offered and/or provided to the

Complainant and/or Respondent,complainantsand/orthe alleged perpetrators; including no

contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used hy the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time‘of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff withdrespectito the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student/Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-ofConduect);

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal ot infermal resolutionsito the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

Packet page 215 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public

records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law —e.g.,

student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an

investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330

for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 20182024

Legal
M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seaq.

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act
20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act o
20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Acce
42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 197
42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabi
34 C.F.R. Part 110(7/27/93)

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Infor
42 U.S.C.
29 US.C.
29 C.F.R.

Packet page 216 of 271



-Book: Policy Manual

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
Code: po3122
Adopted: August 21, 2012

3122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category,
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities.

Definitions:

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defi rein; wudefined herein shall be
construed according to their plain and ordinary meani

jectedH unlawful
omplaint or is pursuing an

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is al
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether

unlawful
y files a formal complaint or is

seeking an inform rimination/retaliation.
School Distri munity means ts and |sr|ct employees (i.e., administrators, and
d classified staff), as Board bers, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other

0 the control and sup jon of the Board.

uests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or
and other individuals who come in contact with members of
ool-related events/activities (whether on or off District property).

Third Parties in
visiting speakers, p
seeking to do busines
the School District com

Day(s): Unless expressly statexotherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Beard-efficeSchool District is open for normal operating hours,
Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services,
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to
perform any such duty as listed above.

Packet page 217 of 271



District Compliance Officers

The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs").

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Name}

Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extensiony1300
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School
District's web site ( x) and:

Packet page 218 of 271



A. (X)in the staff handbooks.

The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, FitleIX-ofthe-Education-Amendment-Act
of1972; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as. amended), and the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act of 1975 is prowded to staff members and the general publlc -Any-sectionsofthe

speerﬁeterms—shewd—be—elwn-nated—ﬁrem—sueh—eentraets— {-EN-D-OF—OP—'FIONS] A copy of each of the Acts

and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based-may-be

Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation

Employees are reguired to encouraged-topremptly-report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or
retaliation to an admlnlstrator superwsor or other D|str|ct level official so that the Board may address

the conduct. Any

days: All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation

that are reportedto them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) busiressdays of learning of
the incident/conduct.

Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not
adversely affect the Complainant's eemplaining-individuals-employment. While there are no time limits
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are
available.

The COs will be available during regular secheelfwerk-heurs-business days as defined above to discuss

concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportseemplaints of unlawful
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party,
or received reports that are initially filed with another Beard-District employee.visitor-to-the-District;

Packet page 219 of 271



3 N h h d A : n)- Upon receipt of
a report of alleged d|scr|mlnatlon/retallatlon the CO W|II contact the Complamant and begin either an

informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any-persen
whe-files-a-cemplaint: In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. Albmembersofthe

Any Beard-District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) busiress-days.
Additionally, any Beard-District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Beard-District employees
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or
designee must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) business-days to advise himfherof the
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing.

Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3122 F2)

Except for sex discrimination and/or SexuallHarassment/that is coveked by Policy 2266 -
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of SefiinEducation ProgramsiessActiVities, any employee who alleges
to have beenAny-employee-wheo-believesthats/he-has-been subjected to unlawful discrimination or
retaliation may seek resolution of the hisfhercomplaint through the procedures described below. The
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are
substantiated.

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedsheuld-make-every
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30)-calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within
fifteen (15) business-days of the complaint being received).

The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC").

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstep-guiekly inappropriate behavior
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or

retaliation believessfhe-has-beenunlawfully discriminated-orretaliated-against- This informal

Packet page 220 of 271



procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only
available in those C|rcumstances Where the Complalnant and the Respondent mutuallvpamas-(-t-he

d+5er-|-mmat|on-) agree to part|C|pate init.

The ComplainantEmpleyees-who-believe-thatthey-have ; e winateslee :
against may proceed |mmed|ately to the formal complamt process and individuals who partlcugat
inseekreselution-threugh the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated
at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District
community andagaiast a student will be formally investigated.

As an initial course of actlon if a Complamant feels comfortable and safean—mdw&dual—feels—t-ha-t—sﬁhe—rs
Az : A e doing so, the

|nd|V|duaI should teII or otherW|se |nform the Respondent that per-sen—who—engag-ed—m—the allegedly
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainanteemplaining
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAr-individual who is uncomfortable or
unwiIIing to directlv approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may filein#orm—t-he

othemse—ﬁhng an mformal ora formaI complalnt In add|t|on with regard to certain types of unIawfuI
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination), -sueh-as-sexual-diseriminatien; the CO may advise against the
use of the informal complaint process.

: A Complainant
who aIIeges unIawfuI dlscnmlnatlon/retaI|at|on may make an mformal complalnt either orally or in

writing: (1) to a-building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent
or other District-level employee.

All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution.

The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant-employees

who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated-against with a range of options aimed

at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint

and the wishes of the Complainant, individualclaiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation; informal

resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following:

A. Advising the Complalnan tindividual about how to communlcate hrs,lher—concerns to
the Respondent.f : ngag "

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 3122 — Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as
areminderto the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual

whese-behavioris-being-questioned works.

Packet page 221 of 271



C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the

Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between-the-individual

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or
designee is directedwill-exercise-hisfherautherity to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within
fifteen (15) business-days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties-whe-are
dissatisfied with theresults-ef the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if

the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal compldint}orthe Compliance Officer(s)
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution throughth@linformal processyindividual

electsto-file-aformalcomplaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

A ComplainantAn-individual who believes s/he has-beensubjected-to-unlawful
discrimination/retaliation-(hereinafterreferred to-asthe "Complainanty); may file a formal complaint,

either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level
empleyee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation,
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealendardays after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel-employee, either orally or in writing,
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the
CO/designee within two (2) business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status
of the investigation and the decision-making process.

All formal complaints must mcIude the foIIowmg information to the extent known+t-+s-a¥a+lable the
identity of the Respondentindi : g o

discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detalled descr|pt|on of the facts upon Wh|ch the complalnt is

based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by
the Complainant.

If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the
reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent.

person-who-allegedly-engaged-in-the-miseonduct:- In making such a determination, the CO should

Packet page 222 of 271



consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/heragreementte the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still
take whatever actions deemeds/he-deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful
discrimination/retaliation.

Slmultaneously, the CO W|II inform the Respondent that a formalmdmdual—a“eged—te—ha*;e—engaged—m

a complaint has been received. The Respondent wiII be informed about the nature of the aIIegations and
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 3122 -
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business-days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business-days of
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;
B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/-exthe-designee shall prepare and deliver a written report
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in
unlawful harassment/xetaliation of the Complainant.Complainant-has-been-subjected-to-unlawful
discrimination/retaliation. The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence
standard will be used. (}-The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report
to the Superintendent.

Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) busiress-days of receiving the report of the CO or the
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)
business-days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

Packet page 223 of 271



If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation

toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentCemplainant-was-subjected-to-unlawful
discrimination/retaliation,s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and
prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable,
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation.

[} The decisionof the Superi | L b final.

OR

[x ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) busiress-days of the
party'shisfher receipt of the Superintendent's final-decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representatives within twenty (20) businress-days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

ERP-OFOPTIONE]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee.

[-x] The partiesdmay’be represented,at.their own'cest, at any of the above-described
meetings/he@rings.

The right ofi@pexson to a prompt and eguitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person’s pursuit.of other remedies steh as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of chargesWith local law enfgf€@ment, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this

internal complaint pEOcess is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.Fhe-right-ofa-person

Privacy/Confidentiality

The Seheel-District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must

be provnded the Complamant s |dent|tv AH-Gemplmnants—preeeedmg—t-kmeugh—the—ie#maLmvesﬂgaﬂon

Packet page 224 of 271



During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as
part of an investigation is expected nette-to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned

or provided sthelearns-andforprovides-during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination /retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to

end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who mak eging unlawful
harassment/retaliation or participat is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person imidate, t with any individual because the
person opposed | by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because

Retaliation agai S : eport of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or
: o is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
sequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

imposition of discipling

Formal complaints allegingMion may be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Packet page 225 of 271



Education and Training

In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee-shall provide
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age
and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retentionief all’fecordsithat. must be
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged
violation of this policy;

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
congfacted or appointed by the Board to fulfilhits responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

D. written witness statements;
E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage
of the incident);

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

policy;

Packet page 226 of 271



I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

J. documentation of any supportive-iaterim measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants-and/orthe-alleged-perpetrators; including no

contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-e+Cedes-ofConduct);

V. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law — e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

Packet page 227 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 201820214

Legal
M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq.

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974
20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93)

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended

29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Packet page 228 of 271



Book: Policy Manual

Section: Nondiscrimination/
Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Code: po4122

4122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category,
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities.

Definitions:

Words used in this policy shall have those meanrtf;ied I]nrds not defined herein shall be
ings.

construed according to their plain and ordinary

bee bjected to unlawful
f|Ies mal complaint or is pursuing an

nd BeardDistrict employees (i.e., administrators, and
oard members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other
ion of the Board.

School Dist munity means stud
rofessional a ified staff), as we
persons subject t ntrol and su

Third Parties include, b ed to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
visiting speakers, participa posing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or
seeking to do business with, Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of

the School District community at school-related events/activities (wWhether on or off District property).

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Beard-efficeSchool District is open for normal operating hours,
Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services,
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for

Packet page 229 of 271



training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to
perform any such duty as listed above.

District Compliance Officers

The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs").

Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1311
(Telephone Number)

-1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 43103
(Office Address)

charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Name}

Associate Superintendent
(School District Title)

(734) 994-8100 extension 1300
(Telephone Number)

_1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103
(Office Address)

_bmarcel@washtenawisd.org
(E-mail Address)

Packet page 230 of 271



The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School
District's web site (-X) and:

‘ A. £(X) in the staff handbooks.

The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to/‘address in a prompt and equitable manner
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, FitleIX-of the-Education-Amendment-Act
of1972; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. () Any sections of the
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. fENB-OF-ORPHONS] A copy of each of the Acts
and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based-may-be

Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation

Employees are required to encouraged-topremptly-report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board may address

the conduct. Any . D el emplovee-orofficial-who-receive

days: All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation
that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) busiress-days of learning of
the incident/conduct.

Packet page 231 of 271



Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not
adversely affect the Complainant's eemplainingindividual's-employment. While there are no time limits
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are
available.

The COs will be available during regular seheel/werk-heurs-business days as defined above to discuss

concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportseemplaints of unlawful
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party,
or received reports that are initially filed with another Beard-District employee.visitorto-the-District;

o . : : h h A : on); Upon receipt of
a report of aIIeged d|scr|mlnatlon/retallatlon the CO W|II contact the Complalnant and begin either an

informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant'skkequest andthe hattire of the
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any-persen
whe-filesacomplaint: In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them
to the CO within two (2) busiress-days of learning of the incident/conduct.

Any Beard District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days.
Additionally, any Beard-District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Beard-District employees
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or
designee must contact the Complainantempleyee within two (2) busiress-days to advise himfherof the
Beard's-District's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing.

Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4122 F2)

Except for sex discriminatioh.and/0rSexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 -
Nondiscrimination on the'Basisfof'Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges
to have beenAny-employee whe believesthats/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or
retaliation may seek resolution of the hisfhercomplaint through the procedures described below. The
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are
substantiated.

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are

flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedsheuld-make-every
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30)-ealendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal

complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received).

Packet page 232 of 271



The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC").

Informal Complaint Procedure

The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstep-guiekly inappropriate behavior
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or

retaliation believessfhe-has-beenunlawfully discriminated-orretaliated-against- This informal
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only
available in those C|rcumstances where the Complamant and the Respondent mutuallvpames-(-t-he

d+5er-|-mmat|on-) agree to part|C|pate init.

The ComplainantEmp awfully-¢ minated/re ad
against may proceed |mmed|ately to the formaI complalnt process and individuals Who partlmpat
inseekresolutionthrough the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated
at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District
community andagaiast a student will be formally investigated.

As an initial course of actlon if a Complalnant feels comfortable and safean—mdwrdual—feels—t-ha-t—sﬁhe—rs
: : : afe doing so, the
|nd|V|duaI should teII or otherW|se mform the Respondent that persenwho—engaged—m—the allegedly
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcemplaining
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn-adividual who is uncomfortable or
unwilling to d|rectly approach the Respondent about the mapproprlate conduct may fllem-ferm-t-he

et-hemse—f-lhng an |nformaI ora formal complalnt In add|t|on with regard to certain types of unlawful
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination), -such-as-sexual-diserimination; the CO may advise against the
use of the informal complaint process.

: : : A Complainant
who aIIeges unIawfuI dlscrlmlnatlon/retallatlon may make an mformal complalnt either orally or in

writing: (1) to a building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent
or other District-level employee.

All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution.

The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant-empleyees
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated-against with a range of options aimed

at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint

Packet page 233 of 271



and the wishes of the Complainant, individualclaiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation; informal

resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following:

A. Advising the C omplalnan tindividual about how to communlcate hrs,lher—concerns to
the Respondent.g : 3 hgaged 3 alia h

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 4122 — Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as
areminderto the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual

whese-behavioris-being-questioned works.

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the

Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolutioh.between-the-individual

While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or
designee is directedwill-exercise-his/herautherity to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within
fifteen (15) business-days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Partieswho-are
dissatisfied with the+results-ef the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process.

Formal Complaint Procedure

If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if

the Complainant, fromsthemoutset, electsitofile a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s)
determines the allégations'are notappropriateffor resolution through the informal process, individual

elects-to-file-aformal-complaintinitially; the formal complaint process shall be implemented.

£ ComplainantAndndividual who believes-s/he-has been-subjected-to-unlawful
discrimination/retaliation{hereinafterreferred-to-asthe “Complainant™); may file a formal complaint,

either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation,
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) ealendardays after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel-empleyee, either orally or in writing,
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the
CO/designee within two (2) business-days.

Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status
of the investigation and the decision-making process.

All formal complaints must include the foIIowmg information to the extent knownu—rs—avaﬂable the
identity of the Respondentindividual-be 2 2

discriminatory/retaliatoryconduct; a detalled descr|pt|on of the facts upon wh|ch the complalnt is
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by
the Complainant.

Packet page 234 of 271



If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the
reported charge by signing the document.

Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent.
person-who-allegedly-engaged-in-the-miseonduct: In making such a determination, the CO should
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhisfheragreementte the
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still
take whatever actions deemeds/he-deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent.

Within two (2) business-days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful
discrimination/retaliation.

S|muItaneoust, the CO WI|| inform the Respondent that a formalmdmd&al—alleged—te—have—engaged—m

a complalnt has been rece|ved The Respondent will'be informed about the nature of the allegatlons and
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 4122 -
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business-days.

Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business-days of
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include:

A. interviews with the Complainant;
B. interviews with the Respondent;

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information
relevant to the allegations;

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant,
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/-exthe-designee shall prepare and deliver a written report
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant-has-beensubjected-to-unlawful
discrimination/retaliation. The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence
standard will be used. (}-The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report
to the Superintendent.

Packet page 235 of 271



Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) busiress-days of receiving the report of the CO or the
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent.

If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5)
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final
written decision as described above.

If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful diserimination/retaliation

toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant-was-subjected-to-unlawful
diserimination/retaliation,s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and

prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable,
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation.

[} The decision-of-the Superi I Il be final

R

£[X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business-days of the
party'shisther receipt of the Superintendent's final-decision.

In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their
representatives within twenty (20) busiress-days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business-days of this
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.

END-OFOPTIONS]

The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee.

[X ] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at theirhis/her own cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings.

The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights,
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this

internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.Fhe-right-ofa-person

Packet page 236 of 271



Privacy/Confidentiality

The Seheel-District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must
S Allicomplainantsproceedingthrough-theformalinvestigation

During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as
part of an investigation is expected nette-to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned

or provided sthelearns-and/forprovides-during the course of the investigation.

Sanctions and Monitoring

The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination /retaliation by taking
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s).

Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to

end such.conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect.

Retaliation

report or files a complaint alleging unlawful

as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board
nor any other person ma , threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the
person opposed any act or p e made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy.

Retaliation against
harassment/retaliatio

Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Packet page 237 of 271



Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set
forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy.

Education and Training

In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee-shall provide
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age
and content appropriate.

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsifiléifofioverseeing reténtienfofall records that must be
maintained pursuant tethis pelicy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not
be limited to:

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy;

B. any narratives that memorialize oral
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged
violation of this policy;

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy;

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

Packet page 238 of 271



e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage
of the incident);

notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents;

written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this

policy;

dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a
result of a violation of this policy;

documentation of any supportive-interim measures offered and/or provided to the

Complainant and/or Respondent,complainantsand/orthe alleged perpetrators; including no

contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders;

documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its
discriminatory effects;

copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks-erCedes-of-Conduct);

. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment;

Packet page 239 of 271



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law — e.g.,
student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule.

© Neola 20182023

Legal

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq.

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974
20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93)

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended

29 C.F.R. Part 1635

Packet page 240 of 271



Washtenaw |S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

DATE: March 26, 2024

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent
and Members of the WISD Board of Education

FROM: Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.
Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services

RE: WISD Board Meeting - Closed Session (#24-001)

A closed session is requested in compliance with MCL 15.268(1)(f); the individual at issue has requested
the session be closed.

cc: File

1819 S. Wagner Road - P.O. Box 1406 ® Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106-1406
TEL: (734) 994-8100 ® FAX: (734) 994-1629

Packet page 241 of 271



Washtenaw |S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

DATE: March 26, 2024

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent
and Members of the WISD Board of Education

FROM: Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.
Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services

RE: WISD Board Meeting - Closed Session (#24-002)

A closed session is requested in compliance with MCL 15.268(1)(a) and MCL 15.268(1)(f); the individual
at issue has requested the session be closed.

cc: File

1819 S. Wagner Road - P.O. Box 1406 ® Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106-1406
TEL: (734) 994-8100 ® FAX: (734) 994-1629

Packet page 242 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education

FROM: Shannon Novara, Program Manager and
Holly Heaviland, Executive Director, Community & School Partnerships

DATE: March 19, 2024

SUBJECT: Care Solace Contract

We recommend that the WISD Board of Education authorize the approval of this contract with
Care Solace, Inc. to provide mental health care coordination and referral services to available
mental health service providers for WISD’s and local districts’ students, families, and staff. The
contract will be in effect from April 1, 2024-June 30, 2025, at a cost not to exceed $162,233.

Care Solace, Inc. is a national company that provides mental health care coordination and
referral services via a branded website for each of our participating districts. With parent
permission, district staff can request a “Care Companion” contact a family to connect them
with a mental health service provider who can see them within three weeks. Families can also
self-refer to the service anonymously if they prefer. Care Companions match families with
providers based on their preferences, including insurance, location, gender, specialty, etc., and
initiate a “Warm Handoff” to that provider. Care Solace services help make mental health care
available and accessible to all families.

This agreement will include services for WISD, as well as the following local districts that chose
to participate: Ann Arbor Public Schools, Chelsea School District, Dexter Community Schools,
Lincoln Consolidated Schools, Milan Area Schools, and Saline Area Schools. WISD will use
Section 31aa funds to cover the cost of these services.

CC: Sarah Hierman, Coordinator, Grants and Special Projects

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 243 of 271



SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Service Agreement (the “Agreement”) is dated as of the date of the last signature below between Washtenaw
Intermediate School District, a Michigan Intermediate School District, organized and operating under the Revised
School Code, MCL 380.1, et seq., as amended (hereinafter “WISD”), and Care Solace, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(hereinafter “Care Solace”). WISD and Care Solace may be referred to individually as “Party,” or collectively as
“Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Care Solace provides a web-based navigation system to assist its school district clients and the districts’
students and parents in locating and connecting with mental health treatment providers (hereinafter the “Services”),
and agrees to provide the Services to WISD member districts identified in Appendix A hereto (hereinafter, "WISD
Districts") on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, WISD is an Intermediate School District created by the Michigan legislature for the primary purposes of
providing constituent K-12 school districts with cooperative, coordinated administrative and instructional services.

WHEREAS, WISD desires for Care Solace to assist WISD Districts in connecting their students and families with
mental health treatment providers.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the matters described above and of the mutual benefits and obligations set
forth in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

Scope of Services

1. Care Solace shall provide the Services as follows:

1.1 Care Solace owns and operates a website located at the URL caresolace.org which provides information related to
mental health treatment providers (hereinafter the “Main Site”). As part of this Agreement, Care Solace will manage
and operate a version of the Main Site that is branded with each WISD District’s name (hereinafter the “Branded
Site”). Care Solace will take all reasonable steps to ensure the BrandedSite is live April 2024. Care Solace will provide
access to the Branded Site to users authorized by WISD Districts, including WISD Districts' staff, students, and parents
(hereinafter the “Authorized Users”), on a Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) basis pursuant to the terms and conditions
set forth in Paragraphs 26-34, infra.

1.2 Care Solace shall facilitate a process called the “Warm Handoff®,” whereby WISD Districts' staff or third-party
contractors, consultants, or other parties to whom WISD Districts have outsourced institutional services
(hereinafter“Independent Contractors”) designated as school officials pursuant to 34 CFR § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B), upon
obtaining consent from a student’s parent or guardian, or the student if 18 years or older, provide Care Solace with
contact information of a student or family in need of mental health treatment providers (hereinafter the “Treatment

Packet page 244 of 271



Providers”). The family contact shall be a parent, legal guardian, or other adult primary contact as directed by WISD
Districts. Care Solace will then work directly with the primary contact to connect the student to Treatment Providers.

1.3 In addition to providing Authorized Users with access to the BrandedSite, Care Solace will also provide
Authorized Users with telephone and email access to a Care Companion™. The Care Companions are care
coordinators with experience in customer service, trained to navigate the mental health system and health insurance.
The Care Companions are not licensed mental health professionals and do not diagnose, assessor evaluate. No
provider-patient relationship is formed by provision of services by a Care Companion to an Authorized User. The Care
Companions are not a crisis response team. The Care Companions are available to work directly with students and
families to connect them with Treatment Providers. Care Companions are available 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.

1.4 Care Solace connects Authorized Users with Treatment Providers based on criteria such as geographic proximity,
whether the provider accepts the Authorized User’s insurance, and whether the provider is accepting new patients.
Care Solace will use reasonable efforts to have each Treatment Provider it refers to Authorized Users reviewed through
Care Solace’s verification process. The information available on Treatment Providers through the verification process
may vary significantly.

1.5 Care Solace (and anyone providing Services under this Agreement) shall provide the Services to WISD Districts as
an independent contractor, shall have no employment relationship with WISD or any of the WISD Districts arising out
of this Agreement, and shall not be eligible for any compensation or benefit other than those itemized in this
Agreement. Neither Care Solace's employees, personnel, subcontractors nor its agents are, or shall be deemed, WISD
or WISD Districts’ employees.

1.6 Notwithstanding the above, Care Solace reserves the right to withhold the Services from any specific WISD
District until such time that the specific WISD District has executed an Acceptance of Services in the form set forth in
Appendix B with Care Solace and agrees in writing to be bound by this Agreement as if a direct signatory hereto.

1.7 Care Solace, WISD, and WISD Districts agree that each WISDDistrict shall be treated as a “Party”for the purposes
of determining its rights and obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to with regard to the
Arbitration Agreement (as defined in Paragraph 42, infra), as evidenced by WISD signature below and WISD
Districts’ signatures each on an Acceptance of Services agreement.

Care Solace is Not a Treatment Provider

2. Care Solace is not a mental health treatment provider or a provider network, and does not provide mental
health treatment or other health care treatment to Authorized Users. Rather, Care Solace acts solely as a care
coordinator by connecting Authorized Users to Treatment Providers. Care Solace does not represent, warrant
or guarantee that Treatment Providers are of a particular quality. Care Solace shall not be liable for the quality
of care provided by Treatment Providers.

Implementation Process

3. Care Solace will provide an onsite or virtual walk-through of the Services to WISD District representatives

Packet page 245 of 271



designated by WISD Districts in order to demonstrate the features and functionality of the Services.

4. Care Solace will conduct initial on-boarding training sessions with staff designated by each WISD District in order
to explain and demonstrate the Services. Care Solace will coordinate with each WISD District to arrange for on-
boarding and training sessions on an individual basis and will provide on-boarding training as needed to any person at
the WISD Districts who replaces a position for the duration of the Agreement.

5. Care Solace will provide training and on-going support concerning the use and functionality of the Services to key
stakeholders of WISD Districts as requested by WISD Districts. Key stakeholders may include, but are not limited to:
WISD Districts' mental health teams, psychologists, counselors, assistant principals, principals, human resources staff,
district leadership, and parent-teacher associations.

6. Care Solace will assist in providing access to the Branded Site on WISD Districts' websites as well as individual
school websites, as requested by WISD Districts.

7. Care Solace will provide backpack mailer templates and email/text templates for WISD Districts to deliver to
students and parents quarterly, or four times per year, to remind them of the Services and provide the URL for the
Branded Site.

8. Each WISD District shall designate one of its employees as its principal contact for communicating with Care
Solace regarding technical issues in the provision of the Services, and shall notify Care Solace of such designation in
writing within fifteen (15) days of the execution of an Acceptance of Services by such WISD District. WISD and
WISD Districts may change their principal contacts from time to time by providing written notice to Care Solace
pursuant to Paragraph 54, infra.

Term of Agreement and Fees

9. This Agreement shall be effective as of April 1, 2024 (hereinafter the “Effective Date”).

10. The initial term of this Agreement (hereinafter the “Initial Term”) will begin on April 1, 2024, and continue
through June 30, 2025 for all WISD Districts, unless otherwise set forth in Paragraph 10.1, infira, with respect to a
specific WISD District. This Agreement will renew automatically for one-year terms (hereinafter, "Renewal Term")
on July Ist of each year following the Initial Term (hereinafter the “Renewal Date”), unless either Party provides the
other Party with at least sixty (60) days prior written notice, pursuant to Paragraph 54, infra, to terminate this
Agreement effect at the end of the existing term. The maximum term of this Agreement is five (5) years.

10.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Paragraph 10, supra, for purposes of only the following WISD
District with an existing direct Service Agreement with Care Solace, the following extension of such WISD District’s
existing term (“Extension Term”) shall apply under this Agreement, to which the fees in Paragraph 11.1, infra, shall

apply:

Dexter Community Schools

Service Agreement dated November 20, 2023, with a current term through June 30, 2024

Packet page 246 of 271



Extension Term: July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025

11. In exchange for the Services contemplated under this Agreement, WISD will compensate Care Solace as follows:

11.1. For the Initial Term, April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, WISD will pay $162,233 to Care Solace as follows (based
on a student enrollment as identified in Appendix A):

$32,447 to be invoiced upon execution of this Agreement

$129,786 to be invoiced on or around July 1, 2024
For each Renewal Term, WISD will pay $129,786 to Care Solace on or around the respective Renewal Date.

11.2 WISD may add additional school districts and/or school site to this Agreement between April 1, 2024, and June
30, 2025, at a pro-rated rate for the remainder of the Initial Term of this Agreement.

11.3 In the event that WISD wishes to add additional school districts or school sites to this Agreement, the Parties
agree to execute an addendum to this Agreement identifying additional school sites/districts, enrollment numbers, and
pro-rated cost for each additional school site or district, and that each such district or school site shall execute an
Acceptance of Services. WISD agrees to pay Care Solace the pro-rated cost for each additional school site or district
added by addendum within thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice for such additional school sites or districts.

12. The fees set forth in Paragraph 11, supra, shall be earned by Care Solace when paid and shall not be subject to a
prorated refund in the event of a termination without cause by WISD of this Agreement prior to the end of the Initial
Term or any Renewal Term.

12.1 Payment Terms. WISD agrees to pay the amounts set forth in Paragraph 11, supra, within thirty (30) calendar
days of receipt of an invoice. If Care Solace does not receive payment in full on an invoice within thirty (30) days, a
finance charge on the unpaid amount of any invoice will be charged at a rate of 3.75% annually, beginning thirty (30)
days after WISD receives the invoice. Payments by WISD will thereafter be applied first to accrued interest and then to
the principal unpaid balance. WISD agrees to pay all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Care
Solace in the collection of any delinquent accounts. For the purposes of this Paragraph 12.1, an invoice shall be
deemed to be received upon delivery, if delivered personally or by email, or three (3) days after mailing by U.S. mail.

13. To ensure continuity of the Services,Care Solace will continue to provide the Services for a grace period of ninety

(90) days after expiration of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term to allow for negotiation of a subsequent Renewal
Term or new Agreement. During this grace period, all terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and
anyRenewal Term or new Agreement beginning after this grace period shall be retroactive to the expiration date.

14. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all monetary amounts referred to in this Agreement are in USD
(United States Dollars).

Termination of Agreement

Packet page 247 of 271



15. WISD may terminate an Initial Term or a Renewal Term without cause pursuant to this Agreement at any time after
providing Care Solace with sixty (60) days written notice, pursuant to Paragraph 54, infra. In the event of termination
without cause of an Initial Term or a Renewal Term by WISD pursuant to this paragraph, the fees paid by WISD shall
not be subject to a prorated refund.

16. In the event that Care Solace determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, to cease to offer the Services to new
clients and to discontinue support of the Services for existing clients, Care Solace may terminate without cause an
Initial Term or a Renewal Term pursuant to this Agreement by providing WISD with sixty (60) days written notice
pursuant to Paragraph 54, infra. In the event of termination without cause of an Initial Term or a Renewal Term by
Care Solace pursuant to this paragraph, the fees paid by WISD shall be subject to a prorated refund which Care Solace
shall remit to WISD within thirty (30) days after termination.

16.1 In the event of termination of this Agreement without cause by Care Solace pursuant to Paragraph 16, WISD shall
be primarily responsible for communicating such termination to WISDDistricts. Care Solace shall reasonably

cooperate with WISD to assist WISD in communicating such termination without cause to WISD Districts.

17. If either Party fails to comply with any of the material terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, without
limitation, the payment of any fee to Care Solace, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement with cause
upon thirty (30) days written notice to the breachingParty specifying the breach(es). Upon receiving written notice of a
specified breach, the breaching Party shall have a thirty (30) day cure period to remedy the specified breaches. The
written notice must be provided in accordance with Paragraph 54, infra.

17.1. Only in the event that a Party fails to remedy a specified breach within the thirty (30) day cure period shall such a
breach be considered a “Dispute” subject to the dispute resolution provisions set forth in Paragraphs 42-50,infra.

17.2. The written notice to a breaching Party specifying any breach(es) of the material terms of this Agreement and the
thirty (30) day cure period set forth in this Paragraph 17 are conditions precedent to any Party’s ability to provide the
other Party with notice of a Dispute under Paragraph 43, infra.

Data and Information Privacy

18. Care Solace and WISD and WISD Districts each agree to comply with all data privacy laws and requirements, state
and federal, to which they are each subject, which may include, without limitation, the Children’s Online Privacy
Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6501-6506 (hereinafter “COPPA”), the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment, 20
U.S.C. § 1232h, and The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99 (hereinafter,
“FERPA”). Care Solace shall also abide by WISD policies applicable to student privacy, specifically Policy 8330.

19. The Branded Site will include links to a privacy policy and terms of use which will comply with applicable law.

20. In order to ensure compliance and that Care Solace is able to perform the Services, WISD and each WISD District
identified in Appendix A designates Care Solace a school official with legitimate educational purpose pursuant to 34

Packet page 248 of 271



CFR § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B) for the limited purposes of providing the Services.

21. The Parties expressly understand and agree that: (1) the Services are an institutional service or function that would
otherwise be performed by employees of WISD Districts, such as counselors or principals; (2) Care Solace is under the
direct control of WISD Districts with respect to the use and maintenance of “education records,” as that term is defined
at 34 CFR § 99.3; (3) Care Solace shall comply with the obligations imposed by 34 CFR § 99.33(a) regarding the
redisclosure of any information relating to students and families obtained in providing the Services; (4) WISD and
WISD Districts have determined that Care Solace has legitimate educational interests in any education records
provided to it; and (5) WISD Districts have provided parents and eligible students with the annual notice required by
34 C.F.R §99.7(a)(3)(iii) regarding its criteria for determining who is a school official and what constitutes a legitimate
educational interest in education records.

21.1 Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement or permitted by law, Care Solace will not disclose any student
information without prior written consent of the student’s parent/guardian or eligible student. Care Solace may,
however, redisclose student information to the same extent any other school official would be permitted to disclose the
information pursuant to FERPA and other state and federal laws that apply to local educational agencies. If Care
Solace rediscloses personally identifiable information without the express authorization of a parent/guardian or eligible
student, Care Solace must notify the building principal of the redisclosure and must, in consultation with the building
principal, take steps required by state and federal law to document to whom the information was disclosed and the
purpose for the redisclosure.

22. WISD and WISD Districts represent and warrant that any Independent Contractor that is provided with access to
the Warm Handoff or is otherwise responsible for transmitting directory information or education records to Care
Solace has also been designated as a school official pursuant to 34 CFR § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B) and that each WISD
District has provided parents and eligible students with the annual notice required by 34 C.F.R §99.7(a)(3)(iii).

23. Care Solace reserves the right to internally monitor each WISD District's and Authorized Users’ usage of the
Branded Site and Services.

24. Care Solace will provide access to WISD Districts to the following non-personally identifiable information
collected from Authorized Users: number of visitors, matches, and phone appointments. If a WISD District desires to
obtain personally identifiable information from Care Solace related to a particular Authorized User’s use of the
Services, such WISD District shall obtain and deliver to Care Solace a duly executed written authorization from the
Authorized User, or their legal guardian if applicable, in a form that complies with applicable law.

25. Care Solace shall ensure that: (i) all data and information provided by WISD or WISD Districts is stored on files
that are separate from those of other Care Solace clients, or (ii) all files containing data and information provided by
WISD or WISD Districts are partitioned from the information and data provided by other clients sufficient to protect
the security and privacy of such information and data.

Software-as-a-Service

26. Care Solace grants each WISD District a non-exclusive, non-transferable, limited, revocable and royalty-free
license to provide a hypertext reference link (hereinafter the "Link") to the initial, top-level display of the Branded Site
solely for the purpose of linking any website owned or controlled by WISD Districts to the Branded Site.

Packet page 249 of 271



27. Use Restrictions. WISD and WISD Districts covenant and agree that their use of the Services will be in a manner
consistent with this Agreement and with all applicable laws and regulations, including trade secret, copyright,
trademark, and export control laws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, WISD and WISD Districts will
not, directly or indirectly, do any of the following: reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or otherwise attempt to
discover he source code, object code, or underlying structure, ideas, or algorithms of or included in the Services or any
software, documentation or data related to the Services (hereinafter “Software”); modify, translate or create derivative
works based on the Services or any Software; or copy (except for archival purposes), distribute, pledge, assign or
otherwise transfer or encumber rights to the Services or any Software; use the Services or any Software for
timesharing or service bureau purposes or otherwise for the benefit of a third party; or remove any proprietary notices
or labels.

28. Security. WISD, WISD Districts, and the Authorized Users shall be solely responsible for acquiring and
maintaining technology and procedures for maintaining the security of their connections to the Internet. As part of the
Services, Care Solace shall implement reasonable security procedures consistent with prevailing industry standards to
protect information provided by WISD or WISD Districts and Authorized Users from unauthorized access. Care
Solace will share with WISD its security procedures/methods. The Parties agree that Care Solace shall not, under any
circumstances, be held responsible or liable for situations in which:

(i) data or transmissions are accessed by third parties through illegal or illicit means, or (ii) the data or transmissions
are accessed through the exploitation of security gaps, weaknesses, or flaws unknown to Care Solace at the time,
provided Care Solace complies with its obligations in this paragraph and maintains reasonable security procedures
consistent with prevailing industry standards.

29. Unauthorized Access. Care Solace will promptly report to WISD and any affected WISD District any unauthorized
access to data or information provided by WISD or the affected WISD District upon discovery of such access by Care
Solace, and Care Solace will use diligent efforts to promptly remedy any breach of security that permitted the
unauthorized access to occur. In the event that Care Solace was solely responsible for the breach and to the extent that
Care Solace has an obligation imposed by law, statute, regulation, or policy, including WISD Board Policy 8330 to
notify any individuals whose information was provided toCare Solace by WISD or the affected WISD District, Care
Solace shall be solely responsible for any and all such notifications at its expense and will reimburse WISD for any
reasonable time and expenses incurred, if applicable, to assist Care Solace with any required notifications to affected
individuals. In the event WISD or the affected WISD District was solely responsible for the breach, WISD or the
affected WISD District shall reimburse Care Solace for time and expenses incurred to assist WISD or the affected
WISD District with any required notifications to affected individuals. In the event that Care Solace and WISD and/or
the affected WISD District are jointly responsible for the breach, the Parties will attempt to reach an informal
resolution as to expenses and, if unable to do so, it will be considered a “Dispute” subject to the dispute resolution
provisions set forth in paragraphs 42-50, infra.

30. Ownership of Proprietary Rights. Ownership of any and all rights, whether registered or unregistered, in and with
respect to patents, copyrights, confidential information, know-how, trade secrets, moral rights, contract or licensing
rights, confidential and proprietary information protected under contract or otherwise under law, trade names, domain
names, trade dress, logos, animated characters, trademarks, service marks, and other similar rights or interests in
intellectual or industrial property (hereinafter “Proprietary Rights”) embodied in the Branded Site, the Services, and
the computer hardware, software and other tangible equipment and intangible computer code necessary to deploy and
serve the Services (hereinafter the “Technology”) shall remain exclusively vested in and be the sole and exclusive
property of Care Solace and its licensors. In addition WISD and WISD Districts hereby transfer and assign to
CareSolace any rights WISD and WISD Districts may have to any suggestions, ideas, enhancement requests, feedback,
recommendations or other information provided by WISD and WISD Districts personnel relating to the Branded Site,
the Services, or the Technology.

Packet page 250 of 271



31. Mutual Exchange of Confidential Information. The Parties desire to establish terms governing the use and
protection of certain confidential information one Party (hereinafter "Owner") may disclose to the other Party
(hereinafter "Recipient"). For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Confidential Information" means (i) the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, subject to a valid request under the applicable state’s open records act (ii) non-public
aspects of the Branded Site and the operation thereof, the Technology, the Services, and Care Solace's business and
technical information and data, and (iii) WISD's and WISD Districts' information or other data processed, stored or
transmitted by, in or through the Services (hereinafter “WISD Data”). In addition, Confidential Information includes
information which, although not related to the Services or this Agreement, is nevertheless disclosedhereunder and
which is disclosed by an Owner or an affiliate to a Recipient in documentary or other tangible form bearing an
appropriate label indicating that it is confidential or proprietary in nature, or which, if initially disclosed orally or

visually is identified as confidential at the time of disclosure and a written summary hereof, also marked with such a
label, is provided to Recipient within fifteen (15) days of the initial disclosure. Recipient may use Confidential
Information of Owner only for the purposes of fulfilling the obligations contemplated in this Agreement and shall
protect such Confidential Information from disclosure to others, using the same degree of care used to protect its own
proprietary information of like importance, but in any case usingno less than a reasonable degree of care.Recipient
may disclose Confidential Information received hereunderonly as reasonably required to perform its obligations under
this Agreement and only to its employees who have a need to know for such purposes and who are bound by signed,
written agreements to protect the received Confidential Information from unauthorized use and disclosure. The
restrictions of this Agreement on use and disclosure of Confidential Information shall not apply to information that: (i)
is in the possession or control of Recipient at the time of its disclosure hereunder; (ii) is, or becomes publicly known,
through no wrongful act of Recipient; (iii) is received by Recipient from a third party free to disclose it without
obligation to Owner, (iv) is independently developed by a Party as evidenced by its written and dated records and
without any breach of this Agreement; or (v) is the subject of a written permission to disclose provided by Owner. The
Recipient may discloseConfidential Information of Owner pursuantto the requirements of a governmental agency or by
operation of law, provided that such Recipient gives Owner written notice thereof as soon as practicable to allow
sufficient time for Owner to object to disclosure of such Confidential Information.

32. General Skills and Knowledge. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, WISD and WISD
Districts agree that Care Solace is not prohibited from utilizing any skills or knowledge of a general nature acquired
during the course of providing the Services, including information publicly known or available or that could
reasonably be acquired in similar work performed for another client of Care Solace.

33. Publicity and Branding. WISD and WISD Districts agree that Care Solace may (a) publicize WISD's and WISD
Districts' names, the fact of the Branded Sites, and WISD Districts' use of the Services; and (b) brand the Branded
Sites with a "powered by Caresolace.com" or similar legend and/or copyright notice.

34. Options for Infringement Claims. If any Party is enjoined from using the Technology, or if Care Solace believes
that the Technology may become the subject of a claim of intellectual property infringement, Care Solace, at its own
option and expense, shall either: (i) procure the right for WISD Districts to continue to use the Services; (ii) replace or
modify the Technology so as to make it non-infringing; or (iii) terminate this Agreement, in which case Care Solace
shall provide a prorated refund to WISD of any and all fees paid in advance for the Initial Term or any Renewal Term
by WISD for those Services not provided by Care Solace.This Paragraph and the defense and indemnity Paragraph39,
infra, set forth the entire liability of Care Solace to WISD and WISD Districts for any infringement by the Technology
or Services of any intellectual property right of any third party.

Packet page 251 of 271



Representations and Warranties

35. WISD and WISD Districts represent and warrant that: (a) any information WISD or any WISD District provides to
Care Solace does not and will not infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate any intellectual property right or right
of privacy or publicity of any third party; (b) WISD and/or WISD Districts have provided parents with the notice
required by 34 CFR § 99.7(a)(3)(iii) regarding the criteria used to determine who constitutes a school official and what
constitutes a legitimate educational interest; and (c) the performance of its obligations as set forth in this Agreement
and the use of the Services by WISD Districts and their Authorized Users will not (i) violate any applicable laws or
regulations, or (ii) cause a breach of any agreements with any third parties. In the event of any breach by WISD or any
WISD District of any of the foregoing representations and warranties set forth in this Paragraph 35, in addition to any
otherremedies available at law or in equity,Care Solace will have the right to suspend immediately any Services if
deemed reasonably necessary by Care Solace to prevent any harm to Care Solace and its business. Care Solace will
provide written notice of any breach of the foregoing representations and warranties to WISD and the applicable
WISD District(s) in accordance with Paragraph 54, infra, and a reasonable time period to cure, if practicable,
depending on the nature of the breach.

36. Care Solace represents and warrants that it will comply with all state and federal healthcare referral and anti-
kickback statutes, and that it does not have an ownership interest in any of the Treatment Providers to whom it refers
Authorized Users. In the event of any breach by Care Solace of the foregoing representations and warranties set forth
in this Paragraph 36, WISD or a WISD District will provide written notice of the breach to Care Solace in accordance
with Paragraph 54, infra, and a reasonable time period to cure, if practicable, depending on the nature of the breach.

37. Except as expressly set forth herein, the Services are provided on an "as is" and "as available" basis, and without
warranties of any kind either express or implied. Care Solace hereby disclaims all warranties, express or implied. Care
Solace does not warrant that the Services will be uninterrupted or error free or that defects will be corrected. Care
Solace does not offer a warranty or make any representation regarding the results or the use of the Services in terms
oftheir correctness, accuracy, reliability, risk of injury to WISD's and WISD Districts' or any Authorized User’s
computer, network, market, or customer base or commercial advantage.

Insurance and Indemnification

38. Insurance. During the term of this Agreement, including any Renewal Terms, Care Solace shall obtain and
maintain liability insurance with policy limits having minimum coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence, which can be
met through an umbrella or standard policy or any combination thereof. The insurance shall be evidenced by a
Certificate of Insurance reflecting the minimum coverage limits which shall be provided to the School District before
the Effective Date of this Agreement. Care Solace’s insurance shall be primary and not contributory. Care Solace shall
not reduce or eliminate coverage without first providing School District at least sixty (60) days’ prior written notice.

39. Defense and Indemnity. Care Solace or its insurer shall defend and indemnify WISD, any WISD District and their
officers, board of education, board members, agents, employees and volunteers (collectively “WISD Parties”) against
any and all claims, demands, liability, judgments, awards, losses, damages, expenses or costs of any kind or character
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”), to the extent arising out of any act, error, omission, negligence, or
willful misconduct of Care Solace or its officers, employees, agents, contractors, licensees, or servants connected to

Packet page 252 of 271



the Services covered by this Agreement. Care Solace or its insurer shall have no obligation, however, to defend or
indemnify WISD Parties from a Claim if it is determined that such Claim was caused by the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of WISD Parties.

39.1 Additional Insured. Care Solace shall cause WISD and WISD Districts to be named as an “Additional Insured”
under the liability insurance policy obtained and maintained as set forth in Paragraph 38, supra.Notwithstanding
WISD's and WISD Districts' coverage as an Additional Insured, in no event shall Care Solace or its insurer be held
liable for WISD's or WISD Districts' sole negligence or willful misconduct. Under no circumstances is any Additional
Insured entitled to any coverage beyond the contractual indemnification provisions in Paragraph 39, supra.

40. A WISD Party seeking defense and/or indemnification hereunder shall promptly notify Care Solace in writing of
the Claim in accordance with Paragraph 54, infra, and shall cooperate with Care Solace or its insurer at Care Solace’s
or its insurer’s sole cost and expense. Care Solace or its insurer shall control the defense and investigation of the Claim
and shall employ counsel of its choice to handle and defend the same, at Care Solace’s or its insurer’s sole cost and
expense. The obligations and responsibilities set forth in this Paragraph 40 shall apply only in the event that Care
Solace or its insurer agree to provide a defense and/or indemnification.

41. Naming WISD and WISD Districts as additional insureds does not alter the limitations, obligations and conditions
set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and to the extent permitted by law, in no circumstances will WISD or WISD Districts be
entitled to coverage beyond the contracted for amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence contained in Paragraph 38.

Dispute Resolution

42. Any and all disputes, controversies, or Claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or a breach thereof,
including without limitation Claims based on contract, tort, or statute (hereinafter a “Dispute”), shall be determined by
binding arbitration as set forth in this section, consisting of Paragraphs 42-50 herein (hereinafter the “Arbitration
Agreement”).

43. An aggrieved Party shall notify the other Party of a Dispute within fifteen (15) days of being made aware of the
Dispute; however, no Party may provide notification of a Dispute prior to the termination of the thirty day cure period
described in Paragraph 17, supra. Notice shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 54,
infra.The date that notice is received by the opposingParty shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Notification Date.”

44. If the Parties are unable to informally resolve the Dispute within thirty (30) days of the Notification Date, the
Parties agree to engage in mediation in good faith. The requirement to engage in mediation is a condition precedent to
the initiation of arbitration pursuant to this Arbitration Agreement. Mediation must occur within 120 days of the
Notification Date. The 120-day deadline may be waived by mutual agreement of the Parties. Mediation shall be
conducted according to the following terms:

44.1 Mediation shall be conducted by a single mediator from JAMS, or another mediation service agreed to by the
Parties (hereinafter “Mediation Service”).

44.2 The Parties will cooperate with the Mediation Service and one another in selecting a mediator from the Mediation
Service’s panel of neutrals and in scheduling mediation proceedings. In the event that the Parties are unable to agree
upon the selection of a mediator, the Parties shall request that the MediationService assign a mediator from its panel of
neutrals with experience as a state or federal court judge.

Packet page 253 of 271



44.3 The Parties agree that they will participate in the mediation in good faith and that they will share equally in the
costs of mediation.

45. If the Parties are unable to resolve the Dispute through mediation, the Parties shall submit the Dispute to binding
arbitration pursuant to the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. § 1, ef seq. (hereinafter the “FAA”). Notwithstanding any
other provisions of this Agreement regarding applicable law, the Parties agree that the substantive and procedural
provisions of the FAA will apply to this Arbitration Agreement, to the exclusion of any state-specific substantive and
procedural law regarding arbitration.

46. Arbitration shall be initiated by the aggrieved Party within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of mediation. In no
event shall arbitration be demanded after the date the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.
Arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the following terms:

46.1. Arbitration shall be conducted by a single neutral arbitrator from the National Roster of Arbitrators and
administered according to the American Arbitration Association’s (“AAA’s”’) Commercial Arbitration Rules and
Mediation Procedures then in effect, except as modified by this Agreement or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the
Parties. A copy of the AAA’s current Commercial Arbitration Rules and Mediation Procedures may be viewed at this
link: https://home.caresolace.com/contracts/AAA- Commercial-Arbitration-Rules-and-Mediation-Procedures-

020121.pdf

46.2. In rendering the award, the arbitrator will determine the rights and obligations of the parties in accordance with
the substantive law of the State of Michigan, subject to the limitations on damages set forth in Paragraphs 47-50, infra.

46.3. The arbitrator shall award the prevailing Party the costs of mediationand arbitration.

46.4. This Arbitration Agreement is intended to be binding on and to inure to the benefit of the Parties, their principals,
successors, assigns, affiliates, partners, employees, parent or subsidiary entities, and to any other persons or entities
whose claims or defenses may arise out of or relate to this Agreement, including third party beneficiaries.

46.5. In the event a Dispute involves a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement, the third-party beneficiary shall be
excused from compliance with the notice and opportunity to cure requirements of Paragraphs 17 and 43, supra and
shall also be excused from the mediation required under Paragraph 44, supra. The costs of any arbitration involving a
Party and a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement shall be borne solely by the Party involved in the Dispute, unless
such Dispute involves both Parties, in which case the Parties shall share equally in the costs of arbitration. In no event
shall a third-party beneficiary be responsible for the costs of arbitration pursuant to this Arbitration Agreement.

46.6. Any arbitration award shall be binding on the Parties and on any third-party beneficiaries. This binding
Arbitration will not be subject to appeal.

Limitation on Damages

Packet page 254 of 271


https://home.caresolace.com/contracts/AAA-Commercial-Arbitration-Rules-and-Mediation-Procedures-020121.pdf

47. As a result of any Dispute, no Party shall be liable to the other Party or to any third-party beneficiary for any
indirect, incidental, or consequential damages under any theory, even if the Party allegedly causing such damages has
been advised of the possibility of such damages. The Parties waive any right to recoversuch damages.

48. As a result of any Dispute, in no event shall any Party be liable to the other Party or to any third-party beneficiary
for punitive or exemplary damages, unless specifically provided by statute. The Parties waive any right to recover such
damages unless specifically provided by statute.

49. In the event that Care Solace is found liable to WISD, a WISD District, or any third-party beneficiary as the result
of a Dispute, or in the event that WISD or a WISD District is found liable to any third-party beneficiary, liability shall
not exceed the total general liability insurance amount in Care Solace’s certificate of insurance pursuant to this
Agreement. In no event shall Care Solace be held liable for the sole negligence of any other Party, including WISD or
any WISD District.

50. The prevailing Party in any Dispute will be entitled to recover, in addition to costs and any other damages or
award, all reasonable attorneys’ fees associated with the action.

Miscellaneous Terms

51. Performance. The Parties agree to do everything necessary to ensure that the terms of this Agreement take effect
and each Party will use its best efforts to ensure thatAuthorized Users are made aware of the Services and their ability
to access the Branded Site.

52. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Michigan
without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of Michigan or any other jurisdiction)
that would cause the application of laws of any jurisdiction other than those of Michigan. The sole exception to this
Paragraph is that the Arbitration Agreement set forth in Paragraphs 42-50, supra, shall be governed by the procedural
and substantive provisions of the FAA.

53. Venue for Mediation/Arbitration. Mediation and arbitration, as applicable, conducted as set forth in Paragraphs 42-
50, supra, shall take place in Washtenaw County, MI.

54. Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required by this Agreement between Care Solace
and WISD shall be in writing and shall be deemed given and served upon delivery, if delivered personally or by email,
or three (3) days after mailing by U.S. mail as follows:

If to WISD:
Washtenaw Intermediate School District

1819 S. Wagner Rd
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Attention: Naomi Norman

Packet page 255 of 271



Regional Superintendent of Schools

Email: nnorman@washtenawisd.org

If to Care Solace:

Care Solace, Inc.

120 Birmingham Dr., Suite 200
Cardiff, CA 92007

Attention: Chad Castruita

Email: chad.castruita@gcaresolace.org

Each WISD District will provide contact notice information on the applicable Acceptance of Services.

Any Party may change the address or persons to which notice is to be provided by giving written notice of the change
of address or persons to the other Party in the manner provided for giving notice in this paragraph.

55. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Parties agree that this Agreement is intended to benefit Authorized Users as third-
party beneficiaries and that the Parties' mutual intent to confer a benefit upon Authorized Users as third-party
beneficiaries of this Agreement is a material part of the Agreement’s purpose. The Parties expressly agree that it is
their intention by this Agreement that all Claims, as that term is defined in Paragraph 39, supra, brought by third-party
beneficiaries including, but not limited to Authorized Users, shall be subject to the Arbitration Agreement set forth in
Paragraphs 42-50, supra.

56. Waiver. The waiver by either Party of a breach, default, delay or omission of any of the provisions of this
Agreement by the other Party shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other
provision of this Agreement.

57. Continuing Obligations. The following obligations shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement: (i)
any and all warranty disclaimers, limitations of liability and indemnities granted by either Party herein; (ii) any
covenant granted herein for the purpose of determining ownership of, or protecting, the Proprietary Rights, including
without limitation, the Confidential Information of either Party, or any remedy for breach thereof; and (iii) the payment
of any money due to Care Solace.

58. Force Majeure. NeitherParty shall be liable for damages for any delay or failure to perform any obligation imposed
by this Agreement if such delay or failure arises out of causes beyond the Party’s reasonable control and without their
fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of civil or military authority, fires, riots, wars,
national or regional emergencies, pandemics, embargoes, internet disruptions, hacker attacks, any action taken by a
governmental authority, or telecommunications failures. A Party whose performance is affected by any of the
foregoing shall give written notice to the other Party stating the period of time the occurrence is expected to continue,
and shall use diligent efforts to end the failure or delay and minimize the effects of such delay. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained herein, if either Party is unable to perform hereunder for a period of thirty (30)
consecutive days, then the other Party may terminate this Agreement immediately by providing ten (10) days written

Packet page 256 of 271


mailto:nnorman@washtenawisd.org
mailto:peter.biberstein@caresolace.org

notice. Should the application of this Paragraph 58 become the source of a Dispute between the Parties, then either
Party may immediately initiate the dispute resolution process outlined in the Arbitration Agreement, Paragraphs 42-50,
supra, without first providing notice and an opportunity to cure as set forth in Paragraphs 17 and 43, supra. Any
written notice under this Paragraph 58 must comply with the written notice requirements of Paragraph 54, supra.

59. Modification of Agreement. Any amendment or modification of this Agreement will only be binding if evidenced

in writing and signed by each Party or an authorized representative of each Party with authority to bind the Party. Any
amendment or modification must comply with the notice requirements of Paragraph 54, supra.

60. Assignment. Care Solace will not assign or otherwise transfer its obligations under this Agreement without the
written consent of WISD.

61. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings, or agreements, written or oral, including but not limited to WISD's
purchase orders or like documents, which shall be for administrative convenience only and which shall have no
substantive force or effect. It is agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement or condition

affecting this Agreement except as expressly provided in this Agreement.

62. Titles/Headings. Titles and Headings are utilized in this Agreement for the convenience of the Parties only and are
not to be considered when interpreting this Agreement.

63. Severability. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable in
whole or in part, all other provisions will nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable with the invalid or
unenforceable parts severed from the remainder of this Agreement.

64. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts which, taken together, shall constitute one original
document.

65. Authority to Execute Agreement. Each individual signing this Agreement warrants and represents that he or she has
been authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE — REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Packet page 257 of 271



Packet page 258 of 271



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date of the last signature below.

Care Solace, Inc. (“Care Solace”)

Printed Full Name: Anita Ward
Title: Chief Growth Officer

Signature:

Date:

Washtenaw Intermediate School District ("WISD")

Printed Full Name:
Title:

Signature:

Date:

Accounts Payable Information:

WISD Dept:
Accounts Payable contact:

Name:

Packet page 259 of 271



Email:

Phone:

Packet page 260 of 271



Appendix A

WISD Districts Enrollment and Fees

Chelsea School District, enrollment 2,250 x $4 per student / 12months x 15 months = $11,250
Dexter Community Schools, enrollment 3,337 x $4 per student / 12 months x 12 months = $13,348
Lincoln Consolidated Schools, enrollment 3,431 x $4 per student / 12 months x 15 months = $17,155
Milan Area Schools, enrollment 1,818 x $4 per student / 12 months x 15 months = $9,090

Saline Area Schools, enrollment 4,709 x $4 per student / 12 months x 15 months = $23,545

WISD, enrollment 639 x $4 per student / 12 months x 15 months = $3,195

Ann Arbor Public Schools, enrollment 16,930 x $4 per student / 12 months x 15 months = $84,650

Packet page 261 of 271



Appendix B

Form

ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICES AND AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND BY TERMS OF SERVICE
AGREEMENT

This Acceptance of Services and Agreement to be Bound by Terms of Service Agreement Between Care Solace, Inc.
and Washtenaw Intermediate School District (the “Acceptance of Services™) is effective as of the date of the last
signature below between , @ Michigan public school district (hereinafter, the “School District”),
and Care Solace, Inc., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter “Care Solace”). School District and Care Solace may be
referred to individually as “Party,” or collectively as “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Washtenaw Intermediate School District (hereinafter, “WISD”) is an Intermediate School District
created by the Michigan legislature with the authority to purchase educational and other services and programs to
address the needs of its member school districts.

WHEREAS, Care Solace provides coordination of mental health resources through the use of the Care Solace’s web-
based navigation system to assist its school district customers and their students/families and school staff in locating
and connecting with mental health treatment providers, as further described in the Service Agreement (the “Care
Solace Services”);

WHEREAS, WISD and Care Solace have entered into a Service Agreement effective April 1, 2024 (the “Service
Agreement”), for the provision by Care Solace of the Care Solace Services to the WISD Districts identified in
Appendix A to the Service Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that it is their mutual intention by execution of this Acceptance of Services that the
School District agrees to accept all of the terms of the Service Agreement and any addenda thereto in its entirety, as if
more fully set forth herein,and that the Service Agreement and any addenda shall be bindingupon the Parties; and

WHEREAS, School District and Care Solace represent and confirm that they each have the authority to enter into this
Acceptance of Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the matters described above and of the mutual benefits and obligations set
forth in this Addendum, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Agreement to be Bound by Service Agreement.

School District hereby agrees to accept all of the terms of the Service Agreement and any addenda thereto in their
entirety and to be bound by same as if a direct signatory thereto.

2. Additional Service Agreement Terms

The Parties hereby agree that the below referenced additional terms shall be incorporated into the Service Agreement
and shall be binding upon the Parties:

Packet page 262 of 271



Section 54.1: Notice to School District:

School District:

Address:

City, State, ZIP:

Attention:

Email:

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE — REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Packet page 263 of 271



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Acceptance of Services as of the date of the last

signature below.

Care Solace, Inc. (“Care Solace”)

Printed Full Name:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

(“School District”)

Printed Full Name:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Packet page 264 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education

FROM: Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent

DATE: March 11, 2024

SUBJECT: Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 127 Plan Document and Grant Application
Request

As part of the 2023-24 State School Aid budget, the Legislature included a provision under Section
27k for a student loan repayment program. According to the Michigan Department of Education,
“this program serves as an effort to increase the retention of teachers, including those in critical
shortage areas, aligning with goal 7 of Michigan's Top 10 Strategic Education Plan.”

The Section 27k grant will reimburse WISD staff that work directly with pre-K to grade 12 students
for 32 hours or more per week up to $200 per month to reimburse them for payments made on
their qualifying federal student loans. Staff must meet the specific criteria established in the grant
to qualify for the funding. The administration also has a responsibility to monitor compliance with
the grant criteria, so ongoing inquiries of staff will need to occur. WISD will receive no indirect
cost reimbursement for administering this grant.

There will be an annual application for this funding until the funding is exhausted, so new
employees will be able to qualify for funding. Statewide funding is limited to $225,000,000. If at
any time the total amounts of payments exhaust this limit, payments to approved participants
will be pro-rated equally. To avoid the payment to the staff being taxable, legal counsel’s
recommendation is to have an IRC Section 127 in place. Section 127 allows employers to offer
their employees up to $5,250 annually in tax-free educational assistance for undergraduate or
graduate level courses if they have a plan in place. I've attached a recommended plan document
for your review.

The administration is recommending the Board establish an IRC Section 127 plan by approving
the attached plan document, and to authorize the administration to apply for the Section 27k
grant on behalf of our eligible staff.

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 265 of 271



Educational Assistance Program
Washtenaw ISD

This Educational Assistance Plan (the “Plan”) is established by Washtenaw ISD (the “District”) to
provide eligible employees with educational assistance benefits under Section 127 of the Internal
Revenue Code (“Section 127”) to enhance employee proficiency and opportunity for
advancement, or in the case of educational assistance provided through grant-funded loan
repayment programs, to recognize past academic accomplishments.

1. District-Funded Educational Assistance — Not applicable.

2. Grant-Funded Educational Assistance. Grant-funded educational assistance consists of
grant funds received by the District from a third party for: (1) payment for any form of
eligible instruction or training that improves or develops the employee’s capabilities; or (2)
repayment of eligible student loans. To the extent such grant funding is available, the
District will distribute this funding in accordance with grant requirements to employees
who meet the grant program’s guidelines and eligibility requirements, and who complete
any District-required certifications and documentation of eligibility.

3. Plan Revision or Termination. The District reserves the right to change the terms or
terminate the Plan without prior notice. In this event, the District will reimburse employees
according to the terms of this Plan for all courses in process prior to termination, but
reimbursement will not be provided for any course that began after termination and
notification of the same.

4. Service Obligation — Not applicable.

5. Taxation. Section 127 provides an exemption from gross income of up to $5,250 of
educational assistance per calendar year, including employer-paid student loan payments
through December 31, 2025. Once the receipt of benefits of $5,250 is exceeded in a
calendar year, or if an educational assistance benefit is no longer exempt from gross income
under the Internal Revenue Code, the employee is responsible for any resulting tax
consequences.

IRC Section 127 Plan Page 1 of 1

Packet page 266 of 271



Washtenaw | S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

TO: WISD Board of Education

FROM: Naomi Norman, Superintendent
DATE: March 13, 2025

RE: Student Advocacy Center Contract

| am requesting that the board approve a contract with the Student Advocacy Center to provide
a statewide helpline for families in educational crisis, for a cost not to exceed $100,000.00.

This helpline has been a staple in Washtenaw County for many years and this funding will support
access to the helpline in other counties throughout Michigan.

The funding for this statewide helpline comes from the state’s 2023-24 supplemental budget and
was awarded to WISD for the purpose of the Student Advocacy Center helpline. Senator Jeff
Irwin contacted me to confirm that WISD would be willing to be the flow-through organization

for the state funding.

| believe that the information that the Student Advocacy Center is providing through the helpline
is very valuable to families. I’'m happy to support the organization in this way.

1819 S. WAGNER RD. P.O. BOX 1406 ANN ARBOR, M| 48106-1406 (734) 994-8100 WWW.WASHTENAWISD.ORG

Packet page 267 of 271



Washtenaw 1S D

A REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT
CONTRACTED SERVICES AGREEMENT

This agreement is made this 14th day of March, 2024 by and between Washtenaw
Intermediate School District, hereinafter referred to as WISD or District, and Student Advocacy Center,
hereinafter referred to as Contractor.

Itis the intention of the parties hereto to enter into an Agreement defining the nature and extent of the duties
to be performed by the Contractor, the place where the services are to be performed and the time limitation
on the performance of the duties.

SECTION I - SCOPE OF SERVICES

Now, therefore, in consideration of payment to the Contractor of the sums specified in Section II, the Contractor
does hereby agree as follows:

1. The Contractor shall commence performance of the duties in Section I, Number 2 no earlier than
10-01-2023. Once this contract is implemented, the ending datefor providing services shall be
09-30-2024.

2. The Contractor agrees to perform the following duties and any necessary tasks incident to full

performance of the described duty:

Duty: Maintain a statewide helpline for families in educational crisis.

3. The Contractor shall provide, at the request of WISD, periodic progress reports detailing the tasks
accomplished and the tasks remaining to be accomplished to complete full performance of the
Contractor's duties as described.

4. The Contractor may be required to undergo a criminal background check by having fingerprints
scanned electronically and submitted to the Michigan State Police. The Contractor will be
responsible for payment of the fingerprinting service.

5. The Contractor must also comply with Public Act 131 of 2005, which details the procedure to
follow if the Contractor, or any individuals working on behalf of the Contractor, has/have been
charged with a crime listed under Section 1535a (1) of the Michigan School Code, or a violation of a
substantially similar law of another state, a political subdivision of this state or another state, or of
the United States.

Page 1 of 5

Packet page 268 of 271



SECTION II - COMPENSATION
WISD does hereby agree as follows:

1. The maximum consideration for the Contractor's services as described in Section I shall be
$100,000.00 including all related expenses, including travel expenses outlined in Section III.

2. The above consideration for the Contractor's services is based on the time reasonably expended by the
Contractor to complete the tasks herein above described in Section I. Payment will be made in
two equal sums in April 2024 and June 2024.

3. The Contractor shall submit a first invoice describing the services for the first half of the school year no
later than April 30, 2024 and shall submit a second invoice at the end of the school year, but no later
than June 2024. The Contractor shall submit a report on the usage and impact of the Helpline prior to
the second payment in June 2024.

4. The Contract is retained by WISD only for the purposes and to the extent sent forth in this Agreement,
and the Contractor's relationship to WISD shall, during the life of this Agreement, be that of an
independent contractor. As such, WISD agrees that the Contractor shall be free to dispose of such
portion of his/her entire time, energy, and skill during regular business hours that s/he is not obligated
to devote to WISD in such manner as the Contractor sees fit. The Contractor shall not be considered as
having an employee status or as being entitled to participate in any plans, arrangements, or
distributions by WISD pertaining to or in the connection with any fringe, pension, bonus or similar
benefits for the WISD's regular employees. WISD will not withhold or pay any sums, state, federal or
local taxes, FICA, Michigan School Employees Retirement, MESC insurance, or worker's compensation
insurance, unless required by law. The Contractor agrees to hold WISD harmless for the payment of
such sum, interest, penalties or costs in the collection of same. Nothing in this agreement shall be
construed to interfere with or otherwise affect rendering of services by the Contractor in accordance
with its professional judgment.

5. The contractor has not been debarred, excluded or disqualified! under the non-procurement common
rule, or otherwise declared ineligible from receiving Federal funds, contracts, certain subcontracts, and
certain Federal assistance/benefits.

6. WISD acknowledges that the Contractor has no responsibility for the supervision of any WISD
personnel in carrying out his/her contractual functions, and any recommendations made by the
Contractor (other than in treating patients whom s/he has examined,) will require independent
judgment of WISD prior to being effectuated.

7. In compliance with federal requirements, payments shall be made to a vendor on a reimbursement
basis for services delivered; not as a prepayment.

8. WISD agrees to promptly pay the invoices submitted by the Contractor upon verification of the
rendering of the services and within 30 calendar days fromreceipt in the WISD's Business Office.

9. WISD agrees to report to the Internal Revenue Service all amounts paid or reimbursed for services of
the Agreement in conjunction with the legal requirements.

Page 2 of 5

1 Verified via the government System for Award Management (SAM) website; https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1
Packet page 269 of 271


https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1

SECTION III - OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

1. All expenses for travel and mileage as a result of rendering the services identified in Section I are the
responsibility of the Contractor. However, WISD may ask the Contractor to incur travel expenses not
foreseen prior to the execution of this contract. If this occurs, WISD pre-approved travel costs associated
with this Contract will be paid by WISD at a rate to be determined by WISD. Such travel expenses must be
submitted under the guidelines established by WISD, including expense submission dates and inclusion of
detailed receipts.

2. Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee
between the parties at any time during the life of this Agreement.

3. The WISD shall retain ownership interest in any of the following three (3) circumstances:

i. The WISD expressly directs the Contractor to create a specified work (electronic or
otherwise) or the work is a specific requirement of the contract;
ii. Any documents (electronic or otherwise) created and or developed by the Contractor
while under contract with the WISD; or
iii. The Contractor voluntarily transfers the copyright, in whole or in part to the WISD in the

form of a written document signed by said Contractor.

4. The work done by the Contractor shall be to the entire satisfaction of WISD. Should the Contractor
unsatisfactorily perform the duties, WISD may cancel the Agreement and the Contractor shall have no claim
for any of the balance of the contract price remaining to be paid at date of termination other than amounts
related to services provided prior to termination.

5. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving the other 30 days advance written notice.

6. WISD may change the duties of the Contractor as above described, but such change shall not be a
substantial alternation of the Contractor's duties, nor can such change be made without the input of the
Contractor.

SECTION IV - INSURANCE COVERAGE

In the event that the Contractor uses motor vehicles in the course of performing the services above described,
the Contractor shall provide to WISD proof of public liability insurance and property damage insurance in such
sums as shall be deemed appropriate by WISD.

The Contractor shall maintain at his/her own expense during the term of this Contract, the following
insurance:
1.) Workers' Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits of Employers' Liability
Insurance with a minimum limit of $500,000 each accident;

2.) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $1,000,000 aggregate, for bodily injury and property damage. The policy shall include blanket
contractual and liability and personal injury coverage.

The Contractor understands that WISD’s liability insurance policies may not afford any coverage for any work
associated with this contract. Therefore, the Contractor agrees to hold WISD harmless 1) for any sum related
to the cost of liability insurance, 2) from any and all liabilities, claims, liens, demands and costs, of whatsoever
kind and nature, and 3) from any associated attorney fees, arising out of the performance of the work
described in Section I. The Contractor shall obtain and provide proof of publicliability insurance in such sums as
shall be deemed appropriate by WISD unless specific written exemption is provided by the Assistant
Superintendent, Business Services. Neither party shall be responsible for any action or inaction of the other
party or its officers, agents, or employees, nor for insurance costs or legal fees, related thereto.

Page 3 of 5
Packet page 270 of 271



SIGNATURES

The Contractor acknowledges by his/her signature that he/she has read the Agreement and understands same
and agrees this contract constitutes the total agreement between the parties and that anything not included in

this contract is expressly excluded.

Agreed to on

Independent Contractor

Department Head

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Washtenaw Intermediate School District

Page 4 of 5

20

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

Packet page 271 of 271



	Agenda (p. 1)
	March 26, 2024 Memo (p. 4)
	Graphic Financial Report February 2024 (p. 9)
	Treasurers Report February 2024 (p. 18)
	Head Start Financial Summary February 2024 (p. 70)
	March 12, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes (p. 110)
	Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal - SOS Community Services Contract Amendment Memo (p. 114)
	Home Visiting Expansion Grant Renewal - SOS Community Services Contract Amendment (p. 115)
	Internet Access for Internal Communications Memo (p. 116)
	Internet Access for Internal Communications Bid Evaluation (p. 117)
	High Point Turf Memo (p. 118)
	High Point Turf Bid (p. 119)
	SNAP-Ed Grant Application FY25 Memo (p. 120)
	Ten80 Memo (p. 121)
	Ten80 Invoice (p. 122)
	University Translators Memo (p. 123)
	University Translators Contract (p. 124)
	Policies Memo (p. 128)
	PO 1662 - Anti-harassment (p. 129)
	PO 3362 - Anti-harassment (p. 148)
	PO 4362 - Anti-harassment (p. 167)
	PO 5517 - Anti-harassment (p. 186)
	PO 1422 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 205)
	PO 3122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 217)
	PO 4122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 229)
	Closed Session Memo #24-001 (p. 241)
	Closed Session Memo #24-002 (p. 242)
	Care Solace Memo (p. 243)
	Care Solace Agreement (p. 244)
	IRC Section 127 Plan Memo (p. 265)
	IRC Section 127 Plan (p. 266)
	Student Advocacy Center Contract Memo (p. 267)
	Student Advocacy Center Contract (p. 268)

	Date Agreed to: 
	DATE_L2: 
	DATE_L3: 
	DATE_L4: 
	DATE_L5: 
	DATE_L6: 


